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Part I
Item 1. Business
We are one of the nation’s leading diversified health care benefits companies, serving approximately 36.5 million people with information and
resources to help them make better informed decisions about their health care. We offer a broad range of traditional and consumer-directed health
insurance products and related services, including medical, pharmacy, dental, behavioral health, group life and disability plans, and medical
management capabilities and health care management services for Medicaid plans. Our customers include employer groups, individuals, college
students, part-time and hourly workers, health plans, governmental units, government-sponsored plans, labor groups and expatriates.

We are dedicated to helping people achieve health and financial security by providing easy access to safe, cost-effective, quality health care and
protecting their finances against health-related risks. We seek to achieve superior customer satisfaction through innovative products, comprehensive
health and related benefits choices, effective service and easy-to-understand information.
The health insurance and related benefits industry continues to experience significant change. Employers, consumers and the federal and state
governments have increased their focus on health care costs and providing health insurance to the uninsured, and continue to drive changes in the
structure of health insurance and related benefits products and services. Product features continue to evolve that are directed at containing rising
health care costs, addressing affordability problems, enhancing access to quality health care services and giving members greater control and
responsibility in directing their benefit dollars. For employer-based health coverage, employers are continuing to require covered employee members
to assume a greater portion of the cost of their health care and/or coverage. These economic factors and greater consumer awareness are leading to
increased popularity of products that offer flexibility in design features such as deductibles and co-payments, health savings accounts, consumer
access to a broader network of health care providers and quality-based physician networks. The industry is also subject to other forces including
adverse economic conditions in the U.S. and abroad, federal and state legislative and regulatory reforms, advances in pharmaceutical and medical
technology and industry consolidation. All of these factors can affect the competitiveness of product and service offerings, the range of industry
competitors and the bases of competition.

We believe that these factors will exist for some time and will drive a continuing evolution in the health insurance and related benefits industry. We
place significant emphasis on developing and maintaining our product and service offerings to serve existing and new customer markets and have
done so through organic growth and acquisitions. Over the last five years, this focus has led to the introduction of new products, such as our
Personal Health Record, which provides members with online access to personal information to help them make better informed decisions about their
health care; Aetna Health Connections, SM our integrated disease management program; Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and private fee-for-

service Medicare plans (“PFFS”). We continue to develop and enhance our existing products, such as our Aexcel SM physician networks, which are
comprised of specialist providers who have demonstrated effectiveness in the delivery of care based on measures of clinical performance and
efficiency. In addition, during 2008 we began offering disease management services to international members. We are also continuing to expand our
initiative to improve the transparency of our products and pricing by utilizing our Aetna Navigator on-line tool to give our members access to
physician-specific cost, clinical quality and efficiency information in additional select markets.
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During 2008, our emphasis on introducing, developing and enhancing new products and services through organic growth led to the expansion and
diversification of both the geographic scope of our operations and the customer markets we serve. Our significant expansions and diversifications
during 2008 included:

·
·
·
·
·

expanding our individual and small group marketing into additional states;
expanding our capabilities to serve Government and labor customers;
expanding our Medicaid offerings to a total of 11 states;
expanding our capabilities to serve retirees, particularly through our relationship with the HR Policy Association and our enhanced individual
and group Medicare offerings; and
expanding our expatriate offerings and global capabilities.

As we enhance our product capabilities and geographic presence, we continually evaluate acquisitions and other transactions that present strategic
growth opportunities.
Our operations are conducted in three business segments: Health Care, Group Insurance and Large Case Pensions.
We derive our revenues primarily from insurance premiums, administrative fees, investments and other revenue. Refer to Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) and Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning
on pages 2 and 79, respectively, of the Annual Report, which are incorporated herein by reference, regarding revenue, profit and total asset
information for each of our business segments. The following is a description of each of our business segments.
Health Care
Products and Services
Health Care products consist of medical, pharmacy benefits management, dental, behavioral health and vision plans offered on both an insured basis
and an employer-funded, or administrative, basis. Medical products include point of service (“POS”), preferred provider organization (“PPO”),
health maintenance organization (“HMO”) and indemnity benefit (“Indemnity”) plans. Medical products also include health savings accounts

(“HSAs”) and Aetna HealthFund®, consumer-directed health plans that combine traditional POS or PPO and/or dental coverage, subject to a
deductible, with an accumulating benefit account. We also offer Medicare and Medicaid products and services and specialty products, such as
medical management and data analytics services, medical stop loss insurance, as well as products that provide access to our provider networks in
select markets. We refer to insurance products as “Insured” and administrative products as “ASC.”

Our principal products and services are targeted specifically to large multi-site national, mid-sized and small employers. We also serve individual
insureds, expatriates and, in certain markets, Medicare and Medicaid beneficiaries. Medicare and Medicaid products and services are categorized
separately from our other Health Care products and services, which we refer to as Commercial.
The primary Commercial products we offer are POS, PPO, HMO and Indemnity plans. We also offer other products and services. Our other
Commercial products and services include:

ActiveHealth Management
Through the use of our patented CareEngine ® system, our ActiveHealth Management business provides evidence-based medical
management and data analytics products and services to a broad range of customers, including health plans, employers and others.

Personal Health Record
Our Personal Health Record provides members with online access to personal information, including individual personalized messages and
alerts, detailed health history based on available claims data and voluntarily submitted information and integrated information and resources
to help members make informed decisions about their health care.
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Pharmacy
We offer pharmacy benefit management and specialty and mail order pharmacy services to our members. Our pharmacy fulfillment
services are delivered by Aetna Specialty Pharmacy (“ASP”) and Aetna Rx Home Delivery ®. ASP compounds and dispenses specialty
medications and offers certain support services associated with specialty medications. Specialty medications are generally injectable or
infused medications that may not be readily available at local pharmacies. Aetna Rx Home Delivery ® provides mail order prescription drug
services.

Dental
We offer managed dental plans on an Insured and ASC basis. We are one of the nation’s largest providers of dental coverage, based on
membership at December 31, 2008.
Behavioral Health
Our behavioral health products provide members who experience mental health issues with integrated behavioral health benefit
administration, access to a network of providers and innovative wellness programs.

Cofinity
Cofinity provides access to a regional health care provider network to other insurance companies, third party administrators, health plans
and employers. It has operations in Michigan, Colorado and other states.

Stop Loss
We offer stop loss insurance coverage for certain employers. Under this product, we assume the costs associated with large individual
claims and/or aggregate loss experience within the employer’s plan above a pre-set annual threshold.

Other Commercial Products and Services
We offer a variety of other health care coverage products either as supplements to health products or as stand-alone products. Such
products, which may be offered on an Insured or an ASC basis, include indemnity and vision programs. We also offer, directly or in
cooperation with third parties, our Aetna Health Connections SM disease management program, which addresses 30 chronic conditions,
including asthma, diabetes, congestive heart failure and lower back pain.

In addition to Commercial health products, in select markets we also offer HMO, PPO, PFFS and prescription drug coverage for Medicare
beneficiaries and participate in Medicaid and subsidized State Children’s Health Insurance Programs (“SCHIP”). SCHIP are state-subsidized
insurance programs that provide benefits for families with uninsured children. Our Medicare and Medicaid products include:

Medicare
Through annual contracts with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”), we offer HMO and PPO plans for eligible
individuals in certain geographic areas through the Medicare Advantage program. Members typically receive enhanced benefits over
standard Medicare fee-for-service coverage, including reduced cost-sharing for preventive care, vision and other services. As a result of
the changes in Medicare resulting from the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, we continue to
expand our Medicare Advantage program into select markets. We offered these plans in 214 counties in 18 states and Washington, D.C. in
2008 and are expanding to 224 counties in 19 states and Washington, D.C. in 2009.
We are a national provider of the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Program (“PDP”) in all 50 states to both individuals and employer
groups. All Medicare eligible individuals are eligible to participate in this voluntary prescription drug plan. Members typically receive
coverage for certain prescription drugs, usually subject to a deductible, co-insurance and/or co-payment.
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We offer PFFS in select markets for individuals and nationally for employer groups. When combined with our PDP product, PFFS forms
an integrated national fully insured Medicare product for employers that provides medical and pharmacy benefits.

Medicaid and SCHIP
We offer healthcare management services for eligible Medicaid and SCHIP individuals under multi-year contracts which are subject to
annual appropriations. We offered these services on an Insured basis in five states, ASC basis in four states and targeted medical
management services in five states in 2008.
Provider Networks
We contract with physicians, hospitals and other health care providers for services for our customers. The health care providers who participate in
our networks are independent contractors and are neither our employees nor our agents, except for providers who work in our mail-order and
specialty pharmacy facilities.

We use a variety of techniques designed to help encourage appropriate utilization of health care resources and maintain affordability of quality
coverage. In addition to contracts with health care providers for negotiated rates of reimbursement, these techniques include the development and
implementation of guidelines for the appropriate utilization of health care resources and the provision of data to providers to enable them to improve
health care quality.

At December 31, 2008, we had extensive nationwide provider networks of more than 894,000 participating health care providers, including over
517,000 primary care and specialist physicians and over 5,000 hospitals.

PCPs
We compensate primary care physicians (“PCPs”) on both a fee-for-service and capitated basis, with capitation generally limited to HMO
products in certain geographic areas. In a fee-for-service arrangement, network physicians are paid for health care services provided to the
member based upon a set fee for the services provided. Under a capitation arrangement, physicians receive a monthly fixed fee for each
member, regardless of the medical services provided to the member. During 2008, we continued to eliminate or reduce the use of capitation
arrangements in many areas. The percentage of health care costs related to capitation arrangements was 5.0% for the year ended December
31, 2008 compared to 5.5% and 5.9% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Specialist Physicians
Specialist physicians participating in our networks are generally reimbursed at contracted rates per visit or per procedure.

Hospitals
We typically enter into contracts with hospitals that provide for per day and/or per case rates, often with fixed rates for ambulatory, surgery
and emergency room services. We also have hospital contracts that provide for reimbursement based on a percentage of the charges billed
by the hospital.
Our medical plans generally require notification of elective hospital admissions, and we monitor the length of hospital stays. Physicians
who participate in our networks generally admit their patients in network based products to participating hospitals using referral procedures
that direct the hospital to contact our patient management unit in order to confirm the patient’s membership status and facilitate the patient
management process. This unit also assists members and providers with related activities, including, if necessary, the subsequent transition
to the home environment and home care. Case management assistance for complex cases is provided by a special case unit.

Other Providers
Laboratory, imaging, urgent care and other freestanding health facility providers are generally paid under fee-for-service arrangements,
except for certain laboratory services.
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Quality Assessment
We seek accreditation for most of our HMO plans from the National Committee for Quality Assurance (“NCQA”), a national organization
established to review the quality and medical management systems of health care plans. Health care plans seeking accreditation must pass a rigorous,
comprehensive review and must annually report on their performance. As of December 31, 2008, approximately 98% of our HMO members
participated in HMOs that had received accreditation by the NCQA.

Aetna Life Insurance Company (“ALIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aetna, has received NCQA PPO Full Accreditation through December 11,
2010.

We also seek accreditation and certification for other products from NCQA and URAC, another national organization founded to establish standards
for the health care industry. Purchasers and consumers look to URAC’s and NCQA’s accreditation and certification as an indication that a health care
organization has the necessary structures and processes to promote high quality care and preserve patient rights. In addition, regulators in over half of
the states recognize URAC’s or NCQA’s accreditation and certification standards.

Our provider selection and credentialing/recredentialing policies and procedures are consistent with NCQA and URAC, as well as state and federal
requirements. In addition, we are certified under the NCQA Credentials Verification Organization (CVO) certification program for all certification
options through January 29, 2011. Our URAC CVO accreditation is valid through October 1, 2009.
Our quality assessment programs for contracted providers who participate in our networks begin with the initial review of health care
practitioners. Practitioners’ licenses and education are verified, and their work history is collected by us or in some cases by the practitioner’s
affiliated group or organization. Our credentialing and recredentialing practices are in accordance with applicable URAC and NCQA requirements
and state and federal regulations. We generally require participating hospitals to be certified by CMS or accredited by the Joint Commission or the
American Osteopathic Association.
We also offer quality and outcome measurement programs, quality improvement programs and health care data analysis systems to providers and
purchasers of health care services.
Principal Markets and Sales
Our medical membership generally is dispersed throughout the United States, although we serve a limited number of members in countries outside
the United States. Refer to Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on page 79 of the Annual Report, which is
incorporated herein by reference, for additional information on our foreign customers. We offer a broad range of traditional and consumer-directed
health insurance products and related services, many of which are available nationwide. Depending on the product, we market to a range of
customers including employer groups (small, mid-sized and large multi-site national accounts), individuals, college students, part-time and hourly
workers, health plans, governmental units, government-sponsored plans, labor groups and expatriates.

The following table presents total medical membership by geographic region and funding arrangement at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

(Thousands)
Northeast

Insured

Mid-Atlantic

1,138
1,062

Southeast
North Central
Southwest
West
Other
Total medical membership

877
683
1,181
258
6,168

969

2008
ASC
1,533
1,776
1,814
2,227
2,058
1,990
135
11,533

2007
Total

Insured

2,671
2,838
2,783
3,104
2,741
3,171

1,154
1,074
949

783
669

987

393

133

17,701

5,749
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ASC
1,471
1,767
1,726
2,271
1,880
1,852
137
11,104

2006
Total

Insured

2,625
2,841
2,675
3,054
2,549
2,839

1,159
1,007
906

571
655
811

ASC
1,443
1,642
1,681
2,284
1,719
1,364

Total

2,602
2,649
2,587
2,855
2,374
2,175

270

124

67

191

16,853

5,233

10,200

15,433

Additional information on Health Care’s membership is included in the “Membership” section of the MD&A, on page 8 of the Annual Report,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

We market both Insured and ASC products and services primarily to employers that sponsor our products (also called “plan sponsors”) for the
benefit of their employees and their employees’ dependents. Frequently, larger employers offer employees a choice among coverage options, from
which the employee makes his or her selection during a designated annual open enrollment period. Typically, employers pay all of the monthly
premiums to us and, through payroll deductions, obtain reimbursement from employees for a percentage of the premiums that is determined by each
employer. Some Health Care products are sold on a fully employee-paid basis. In some cases, we bill the covered individual directly. We also sell
Insured plans directly to individual consumers in a number of states.

We sell Insured Medicare coverage on an individual basis as well as through employer groups to their retirees. Medicaid and SCHIP members are
enrolled on an individual basis.
Health Care products are sold through our sales personnel, as well as through independent brokers, agents and consultants who assist in the
production and servicing of business. For large plan sponsors, independent consultants and brokers are frequently involved in employer health plan
selection decisions and sales. We pay commissions, fees and other amounts to brokers, agents, consultants and sales representatives who place
business with us. We support our marketing and sales efforts with an advertising program that may include television, radio, billboards and print
media, supplemented by market research and direct marketing efforts.

Pricing
For Commercial Insured plans, employer group contracts containing the pricing and other terms of the relationship are generally established in
advance of the policy period, typically for a duration of one year. We use prospective rating methodologies in determining the premium rates
charged to the majority of employer groups, and we also use retrospective rating methodologies for some groups. Premium rates for customers with
more than approximately 125 employees generally take into consideration the individual plan sponsor’s historical and anticipated claim experience
where permitted by law. Some states may prohibit the use of one or more of these rating methods for some customers, such as small employer
groups, or all customers.

Under prospective rating, a fixed premium rate is determined at the beginning of the policy period. We typically cannot recover unanticipated
increases in medical costs in the current policy period; however, we may consider prior experience for a product in the aggregate or for a specific
customer, among other factors, in determining premium rates for future policy periods. Where required by state laws, premium rates are filed and
approved prior to contract inception. Our future results could be adversely affected if the premium rates we request are not approved or are adjusted
downward by state regulators.
Under retrospective rating, we determine a premium rate at the beginning of the policy period. After the policy period has ended, the actual claim
and cost experience is reviewed. If the actual claim costs and other expenses are less than expected, we may issue a refund to the plan sponsor
based on this favorable experience. If the experience is unfavorable, we may, in certain instances, recover the resulting deficit through contractual
provisions or consider the deficit in setting future premium levels. Generally, we may not recover the deficit if a plan sponsor elects to terminate
coverage. Retrospective rating may be used for Commercial Insured plans that cover more than approximately 300 lives.
We have Medicare Advantage and PDP contracts with CMS to provide HMO, PPO, PFFS and prescription drug coverage to Medicare beneficiaries
in certain geographic areas. Under these annual contracts, CMS pays us a fixed capitation payment and/or a portion of the premium, both of which
are based on membership and adjusted for demographic and health risk factors. CMS also considers inflation, changes in utilization patterns and
average per capita fee-for-service Medicare costs in the calculation of the fixed capitation payment or premium. Our PDP contracts also provide a
risk sharing arrangement with CMS to limit our exposure/benefit to unfavorable or favorable expenses. Amounts payable under the Medicare
arrangements are subject to annual revision by CMS, and we elect to participate in each Medicare service area or region on an annual basis. In
addition to payments received from CMS, most of our Medicare Advantage products and all of our PDP products require a supplemental premium to
be paid by the member or sponsoring employer. In some cases these supplemental premiums are adjusted based on the member’s income and asset
levels. Compared to Commercial products, Medicare contracts generate higher per member per month revenues and medical expenses.
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Under our Insured Medicaid contracts with states, government agencies pay us fixed monthly rates per member that vary by state, line of business
and demographics, and we arrange, pay for and manage health care services provided to Medicaid beneficiaries. These rates are subject to change
by each state, and in some instances, provide for adjustment for health risk factors. CMS requires these rates to be actuarially sound. We also
receive fees from our customers where we provide services under ASC Medicaid contracts. Our ASC Medicaid contracts generally are for periods
of more than one year, and certain of them contain guarantees with respect to certain medical, financial and operational metrics, as well as certain
performance guarantees regarding reduction of the claim expenses incurred under state government contracts. Under these guarantees, we are
financially at risk if the conditions of the arrangements are not met. Payments to us under each of these Medicaid contracts are subject to the annual
appropriation process in the applicable state.

We offer HMO, consumer directed and dental plans to federal employees under the Federal Employees Health Benefit Program. Premium rates for
those plans are subject to federal government review and audit, which can result and have resulted in retroactive and prospective premium
adjustments.

Our ASC plans are generally for a period of one year. Some of our ASC contracts include performance guarantees ranging generally from one to
three years with respect to certain functions such as customer service response time, claim processing accuracy and claim processing turnaround
time, as well as certain performance guarantees that claim expenses to be incurred by plan sponsors will fall within a specified range. Under these
guarantees, we are financially at risk if the conditions of the arrangements are not met, although the maximum amount at risk is generally 20% - 30%
of fees paid by the customer involved.
Competition
The health care industry is highly competitive, primarily due to a large number of competitors, our competitors’ marketing and pricing, and a
proliferation of competing products, including new products that are continually being introduced into the market. New entrants into the
marketplace as well as significant consolidation within the industry have contributed to the competitive environment.

We believe that the significant factors that distinguish competing health plans are perceived overall quality (including accreditation status), quality of
service, comprehensiveness of coverage, cost (including both premium and member out-of-pocket costs), product design, financial stability,
geographic scope of provider networks, providers available in such networks, and quality of member support and care management programs. We
believe that we are competitive on each of these factors. Our ability to increase the number of persons covered by our plans or to increase our
revenues is affected by our ability to differentiate ourselves from our competitors on these factors. In addition, our ability to increase the number of
persons enrolled in our Insured products is affected by the desire and ability of employers to self fund their health coverage. Competition may also
affect the availability of services from health care providers, including primary care physicians, specialists and hospitals.
In addition to competitive pressures affecting our ability to obtain new customers or retain existing customers, our membership can be affected by
reductions in workforce by existing customers due to soft economic conditions, especially in the geographies where our membership is
concentrated.

Our Insured products compete with local and regional health care benefits plans, in addition to health care benefits and other plans sponsored by
other large commercial health benefit insurance companies and Blue Cross/Blue Shield plans. Additional competitors include other types of medical
and dental provider organizations, various specialty service providers (including pharmacy benefit providers), integrated health care delivery
organizations, and, for certain plans, programs sponsored by the federal or state governments.

Our ASC plans compete primarily with other large commercial health benefit insurance companies, Blue Cross/Blue Shield plans and third party
administrators.

Factors Affecting Forward-Looking Information
Information regarding certain important factors that may materially affect Health Care’s business and our statements concerning future events is
included in the “Outlook for 2009” and “Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors” sections of the MD&A, beginning on pages 3 and 32 of the
Annual Report, respectively, which are incorporated herein by reference.
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Group Insurance
Principal Products
Group Insurance products consist primarily of the following:

·

Life Insurance Products consist principally of group term life insurance coverage, the amounts of which may be fixed or linked to

·

Disability Insurance Products provide employee income replacement benefits for both short-term and long-term disability. We also offer

·

Long-Term Care Insurance Products provide benefits to cover the cost of care in private home settings, adult day care, assisted living or

individual employee wage levels. We also offer voluntary spouse and dependent term life coverage, and group universal life and accidental
death and dismemberment coverage. We offer life products on an Insured basis.

disability products with additional case management features. Similar to Health Care products, we offer disability benefits on both an
Insured and employer-funded basis. We also provide absence management services, including short-term and long-term disability
administration and leave management, to employers.

nursing facilities. Long-term care benefits were offered primarily on an Insured basis. The product was available on both a service
reimbursement and disability basis. We no longer solicit or accept new long-term care customers, and we are working with our customers on
an orderly transition of this product to other carriers.

Principal Markets and Sales
We offer our Group Insurance products in 49 states as well as Washington, D.C., Guam, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands and
Canada. Depending on the product, we market to a range of customers from small employer groups to large, multi-site and/or multi-state employer
programs.
We market Group Insurance products and services primarily to employers that sponsor our products for the benefit of their employees and their
employees’ dependents. Frequently, employers offer employees a choice of benefits, from which the employee makes his or her selection during a
designated annual open enrollment period. Typically, employers pay all of the monthly premiums to us and, through payroll deductions, obtain
reimbursement from employees for a percentage of the premiums that is determined by each employer. Some Group Insurance products are sold
directly to employees of employer groups on a fully employee-paid basis. In some cases, we bill the covered individual directly.

Group Insurance products are sold through our sales personnel, as well as through independent brokers, agents and consultants who assist in the
production and servicing of business. For large plan sponsors, independent consultants and brokers are frequently involved in employer plan
selection decisions and sales. We pay commissions, fees and other amounts to brokers, agents, consultants and sales representatives who place
business with us. We support our marketing and sales efforts with an advertising program that may include television, radio, billboards and print
media, supplemented by market research and direct marketing efforts.
Pricing
For Insured Group Insurance plans, employer group contracts containing the pricing and other terms of the relationship are generally established in
advance of the policy period. We use prospective and retrospective rating methodologies to determine the premium rates charged to employer
groups. These are typically offered with rate guarantees that generally range from one to three years.

Under prospective rating, a fixed premium rate is determined at the beginning of the policy period. We cannot recover unanticipated increases in
mortality or morbidity costs in the current policy period; however, we may consider prior experience for a product in the aggregate or for a specific
customer, among other factors, in determining premium rates for future policy periods.
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Under retrospective rating, we determine a premium rate at the beginning of the policy period. After the policy period has ended, the actual claim and
cost experience is reviewed. If the experience is favorable (i.e., actual claim costs and other expenses are less than expected), we may issue a refund
to the plan sponsor. If the experience is unfavorable, we consider the deficit in setting future premium levels, and in certain instances, we may
recover the deficit through contractual provisions such as offsets against refund credits that develop for future policy periods. However, we may not
recover the deficit if a plan sponsor elects to terminate coverage. Retrospective rating is most often used for Insured employer funded plans that
cover more than 3,000 lives and pay more than $500,000 in annual premiums.
Competition
For the group insurance industry, we believe that the significant factors that distinguish competing companies are cost, quality of service, financial
strength of the insurer, comprehensiveness of coverage, and product array and design. We believe we are competitive on each of these factors. The
group life and group disability markets remain highly competitive.

Reinsurance
We currently have several reinsurance agreements with nonaffiliated insurers that relate to both group life and long-term disability products. Most
reinsurance arrangements are established on a case by case basis and a subset of our reinsurance agreements cover closed blocks of business and
cancelled cases. We also have reinsurance that provides a limited degree of catastrophic risk protection for certain of our life products. We
frequently evaluate reinsurance opportunities and refine our reinsurance and risk management strategies on a regular basis.

Group Life Insurance In Force and Other Statistical Data
The following table summarizes changes in group life insurance in force before deductions for reinsurance ceded to other companies for the years
indicated:

(Dollars in Millions)

$
$

In force, end of year
Terminations (lapses and all other)
Number of policies and contracts in force, end of year:

Group Life Contracts (1)

2008
441,306
310,872

$
$

2007
461,952
67,793

$
$

2006
438,303
184,154

22,180

21,963

19,813

Group Conversion Policies (2)
19,493
(1)
Due to the diversity of coverages and size of covered groups, statistics are not provided for average size of policies in force.

20,439

21,405

(2)

Reflects conversion privileges exercised by insureds under group life policies to replace those policies with individual life policies.

Factors Affecting Forward-Looking Information
Information regarding certain important factors that may materially affect Group Insurance’s business and our statements concerning future events is
included in the “Outlook for 2009” and “Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors” sections of the MD&A, beginning on pages 3 and 32,
respectively, of the Annual Report, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Large Case Pensions
Principal Products
Large Case Pensions manages a variety of retirement products (including pension and annuity products) primarily for tax qualified pension
plans. Contracts provide non-guaranteed, experience-rated and guaranteed investment options through general and separate account products. Large
Case Pensions’ products that use separate accounts provide contract holders with a vehicle for investments under which the contract holders assume
the investment risk. Large Case Pensions earns a management fee on these separate accounts.

In 1993, we discontinued our fully guaranteed Large Case Pensions products. Information regarding these products is incorporated herein by
reference to Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 81 in the Annual Report. We do not actively market Large
Case Pensions products, but continue to accept deposits from existing customers and manage the run-off of our existing business.
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Factors Affecting Forward-Looking Information
Information regarding certain important factors that may materially affect Large Case Pensions’ business and our statements concerning future events
is included in the “Outlook for 2009” and “Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors” sections of the MD&A, beginning on pages 3 and 32,
respectively, of the Annual Report, which are incorporated herein by reference.
Other Matters

Access to Reports
Our reports to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, if any, are available without charge on our website at
www.aetna.com as soon as practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. The information on our website is not
0 H

incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. Copies of these reports are also available, without charge, from Aetna’s Investor Relations
Department, 151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, CT 06156.

Regulation
Information regarding significant regulations affecting us is included in the “Regulatory Environment” and “Forward-Looking Information/Risk
Factors” sections of the MD&A, beginning on pages 24 and 32, respectively, of the Annual Report, which are incorporated herein by reference.

Patents and Trademarks

The patent on our CareEngine ® expires in 2021. We own the trademarks Aetna®, We Want You To Know® and CareEngine ®, together with the
corresponding Aetna design logo. We consider our CareEngine ® and these trademarks and our other trademarks and trade names important in the
operation of our business. However, our business, including that of each of our individual segments, is not dependent on any individual patent,
trademark or trade name.

Ratings
Information regarding our ratings is included in the “Ratings” section of the MD&A, on page 17 of the Annual Report, which is incorporated
herein by reference.
Miscellaneous
We had approximately 35,500 employees at December 31, 2008.

The federal government is a significant customer of both the Health Care segment and the Company. Premiums and fees and other revenue paid by
the federal government accounted for approximately 21% of the Health Care segment’s revenue and 20% of our total consolidated revenue in
2008. Contracts with CMS for coverage of Medicare-eligible individuals accounted for 78% of our federal government premiums and fees and
other revenue, with the balance coming from federal employee related benefit programs. No other individual customer, in any of our segments,
accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated revenues in 2008. Our segments are not dependent upon a single customer or a few customers, the
loss of which would have a significant effect on the earnings of a segment. The loss of business from any one, or a few, independent brokers or
agents would not have a material adverse effect on our earnings or the earnings of any of our segments. Refer to Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, beginning on page 79 of the Annual Report, which is incorporated herein by reference, regarding segment information.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

The information contained in the “Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors” section of the MD&A, which begins on page 32 of the Annual
Report, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is a building complex located at 151 Farmington Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut that is approximately 1.7 million square feet
in size. Our principal office is used by all of our business segments. We also own or lease other space in the greater Hartford area; Blue Bell,
Pennsylvania; and various field locations in the United States and several foreign countries. Such properties are primarily used by our Health Care
segment. We believe our properties are adequate and suitable for our business as presently conducted.
The foregoing does not include numerous investment properties that we hold in our general and separate accounts.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The information contained under Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which begins on
page 77 of the Annual Report, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Aetna’s Chairman is elected by Aetna’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) and all of Aetna’s other executive officers listed below are appointed by
the Board, generally at its Annual Meeting, and such persons hold office until the next Annual Meeting of the Board or until their successors are
elected or appointed. None of these officers has a family relationship with any other executive officer or Director. In addition, there exist no
arrangements or understandings, other than those with Directors or officers acting solely in their capacities as such, pursuant to which these
executive officers were appointed.

Name of Executive Officer

Position*

Age *

Ronald A. Williams

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

59

Mark T. Bertolini

President

52

Joseph M. Zubretsky

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Enterprise Risk

52

William J. Casazza

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

53

Gery J. Barry

Chief Strategy Officer

56

Lonny Reisman, M.D.

Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer

53

Officer

*As of February 27, 2009
Executive Officers’ Business Experience During Past Five Years

Ronald A. Williams became Chairman on October 1, 2006, has served as Chief Executive Officer since February 14, 2006 and served as
President from May 27, 2002 to July 24, 2007. Mr. Williams is a Director of American Express Company (financial services) and is a trustee of
The Conference Board. He also serves on the Massachusetts Institute of Technology North American Executive Board and is a member of MIT’s
Alfred P. Sloan Management Society.
Mark T. Bertolini became President on July 24, 2007, having served as Executive Vice President and Head of Business Operations since May 3,
2007. Prior to that, he had served as Executive Vice President, Regional Businesses from February 1, 2006, and as Senior Vice President, Regional
Businesses from September 2005 to February 1, 2006. He served as Senior Vice President, Specialty Group from April 2005 to September 2005 and
as Senior Vice President, Specialty Products from February 2003 to April 2005.
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Joseph M. Zubretsky became Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer on April 20, 2007 having served as Executive Vice President,
Finance since February 28, 2007. Mr. Zubretsky also has served as the Company’s Chief Enterprise Risk Officer since April 27, 2007. Prior to
joining Aetna, Mr. Zubretsky served as Senior Executive Vice President for Finance, Investments and Corporate Development at UnumProvident
Corporation, a position he assumed in March 2005. Prior to that, Mr. Zubretsky was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of GAB Robins Group,
a global insurance services company, as well as a partner specializing in insurance industry investments with Brera Capital Partners, a New Yorkbased private equity firm, since 1999.

William J. Casazza became Senior Vice President and General Counsel on September 6, 2005. He served as Senior Vice President and Deputy
General Counsel from July 6, 2004 to September 6, 2005. Prior to that, he served as Vice President and Deputy General Counsel from December 2000
to July 6, 2004. Mr. Casazza also served as Corporate Secretary from October 2000 to January 27, 2006.

Gery J. Barry became Chief Strategy Officer on August 11, 2008. Prior to joining Aetna, Mr. Barry was President and Chief Executive Officer
of Blue Cross Blue Shield of Louisiana since November 2004. Prior to that, Mr. Barry served as a consultant for Barry & Associates since 2003.
Lonny Resiman, M.D., became Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer on November 12, 2008, having served as ActiveHealth
Management’s Chief Executive Officer and as a director of that company since October 1998. Aetna acquired ActiveHealth Management in 2005.

Part II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common shares (“common stock”) are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, where they trade under the symbol AET. As of January 31,
2009, there were 10,157 record holders of our common stock.
On June 27, 2008, we announced that our Board authorized a share repurchase program for the repurchase of up to $750 million of common
stock. During the three months ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased approximately 5 million shares of common stock at a cost of
approximately $115 million under this program. At December 31, 2008, we had authorization to repurchase up to $614 million of common stock
remaining under the June 27, 2008 authorization. On February 27, 2009, the Board authorized an additional $750 million share repurchase program
which will commence upon completion of the June 27, 2008 authorization.

The following table provides information about our monthly share repurchases, all of which were purchased as part of a publicly announced
program, for the three months ended December 31, 2008:
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(Millions, except per share amounts)

October 1, 2008 - October 31, 2008
November 1, 2008 - November 30, 2008
December 1, 2008 - December 31, 2008
Total

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
-

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Average Price
Announced
Paid Per Share Plans or Programs

$

-

-

4.7
.7

$

21.53
20.38
21.38

4.7
.7

5.4

5.4

$

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares
that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs
729.1

628.6
614.2
N/A

We declared, and subsequently paid, an annual cash dividend in the amount of $.04 per share of common stock in each of 2008 and
2007. Information regarding restrictions on our present and future ability to pay dividends is included in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources”
section of the MD&A and Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on pages 14 and 75, respectively, of the Annual Report
which are incorporated herein by reference. Information regarding quarterly common stock prices is incorporated herein by reference to the Quarterly
Data (unaudited) included on page 86 of the Annual Report.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The information contained in Selected Financial Data on page 43 of the Annual Report is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information contained in the MD&A, beginning on page 2 of the Annual Report, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information contained in the “Risk Management and Market-Sensitive Instruments” section of the MD&A, on page 14 of the Annual Report,
is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information contained in Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm and Quarterly Data (unaudited), beginning on page 44 of the Annual Report, is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, which are designed to ensure that information that we are required to disclose in the reports we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

An evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2008 was conducted under the supervision and with
the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2008 were effective and designed to ensure that
material information relating to Aetna Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries would be made known to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer by others within those entities, particularly during the periods when periodic reports under the Exchange Act are being prepared. Refer to the
Certifications by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer filed as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this Form 10-K.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, which begins on page 84 of the Annual Report, is incorporated herein by
reference.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, which begins on page 85 of the Annual Report, is incorporated herein by reference.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting, identified in connection with the evaluation of such control, that occurred
during our fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

Part III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Information concerning the Executive Officers of Aetna Inc. is included in Part I pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K.
Information concerning our Directors, our Directors’ and certain of our executives’ compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, our Code
of Conduct (our written code of ethics) and our audit committee and audit committee financial experts is incorporated herein by reference to the
information under the captions “Nominees for Directorships,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Aetna’s Code of
Conduct” and “Board and Committee Membership; Committee Descriptions” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Director Compensation Philosophy and Elements,” “Executive
Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Report of the Committee on Compensation and Organization”
in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors, Nominees and Executive Officers” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
The following table gives information about our common shares that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrants and rights under all of
our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2008:
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available

Number of securities
to be issued upon
Weighted-average
exercise of
exercise price of
outstanding options, outstanding options,
warrants and rights warrants and rights
(a)
(b)

Plan Category
(Millions, except per share amounts)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders

(1)

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

37.6
(2)

7.6
45.2

Total
(1)
(2)

$

for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)

29.41

28.8

18.10
N/A

11.3
40.1

Includes the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Includes the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan and the Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan.

2002 Stock Incentive Plan
The 2002 Stock Incentive Plan is designed to promote our interests and those of our shareholders and to further align the interests of shareholders and
employees by tying awards to total return to shareholders, enabling plan participants to acquire additional equity interests in Aetna and providing
compensation opportunities dependent upon our performance. The plan has not been submitted to shareholders for approval.

Under the plan, eligible participants may be granted stock options to purchase shares of common stock, stock appreciation rights, time vesting and/or
performance vesting incentive stock or incentive units and other stock-based awards. The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be
issued under the plan was
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approximately 18 million shares at December 31, 2008, subject to adjustment for corporate transactions. If an award is paid solely in cash, no shares
are deducted from the number of shares available for issuance.

Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan
The Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan permits Aetna’s eligible Directors to receive shares of common stock in recognition of their
contributions. The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the plan was approximately .9 million shares at December
31, 2008, subject to adjustment for corporate transactions. The plan has not been submitted to shareholders for approval.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information under the captions “Director Independence” and “Related Party Transaction Policy” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein
by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the captions “Fees Incurred for 2008 and 2007 Services Performed by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm”
and “Nonaudit Services and Other Relationships Between the Company and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

Financial statements
The Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,
which begin on pages 44, 48 and 85, respectively, of the Annual Report, are incorporated herein by reference.

Financial statement schedule
The Condensed Financial Information of Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only) is included in this Item 15. Refer to Index to Financial Statement
Schedules on page 19.

Exhibits*
Exhibits to this Form 10-K are as follows:
3

3.1

Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Aetna Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 8-K
filed on May 2, 2007.

3.2

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Aetna Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 8-K filed on May 2,
2007.

4
4.1

Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures
Form of Aetna Inc. Common Share certificate, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aetna Inc.’s Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on December 1, 2000.

4.2

Senior Indenture between Aetna Inc. and U. S. Bank National Association, successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2001.

4.3

Form of Subordinated Indenture between Aetna Inc. and U. S. Bank National Association, successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust
Company, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Aetna Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on January 19, 2001.
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10

10.1

Material contracts
Form of Distribution Agreement between Aetna’s former parent company and Aetna Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Annex C to
Aetna’s former parent company’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on October 18, 2000.

10.2

Term Sheet for Agreement between Aetna’s former parent company and Aetna Inc. in respect of the CityPlace property, situated at 185
Asylum Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut 06103, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Aetna Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form 10 filed on September 1, 2000.

10.3

$1,500,000,000 Amended and Restated Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of March 27, 2008, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
99.1 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 8-K filed on April 1, 2008.

10.4

Amended and Restated Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. **

10.5

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Stock Appreciation Right Terms Of Award, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on October 26, 2006. **

10.6

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Restricted Stock Unit Terms Of Award, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on October 26, 2006. **

10.7

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Aetna Performance Unit Award Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on October 26, 2006. **

10.8

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Aetna Performance Stock Unit Terms of Award, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 29, 2008. **

10.9

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Restricted Stock Unit Terms of Award, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q/A filed on August 1, 2008. **

10.10

Form of Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan - Restricted Stock Unit Terms Of Award (with non-compete provision), incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q/A filed on August 1, 2008. **

10.11

Amended and Restated Aetna Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. **

10.12

Amended and Restated Aetna Inc. 2001 Annual Incentive Plan. **

10.13

Aetna Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan as Amended through December 5, 2008. **

10.14

Form of Aetna Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Plan - Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on October 26, 2006. **

10.15

1999 Director Charitable Award Program, as Amended and Restated on January 25, 2008, incorporated herein by referenced to Exhibit
10.15 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 29, 2008. **

10.16

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of December 5, 2003 by and between Aetna Inc. and Ronald A. Williams,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2004. **

10.17

Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of January 27, 2006 between Aetna Inc. and Ronald A. Williams, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2006. **
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10.18

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement dated as of December 31, 2008 between Aetna Inc. and Ronald A. Williams. **

10.19

Incentive Stock Unit Agreement between Aetna Inc. and Ronald A. Williams dated as of February 14, 2006, pursuant to the Aetna Inc. 2000
Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on March 1, 2006. **

10.20

Employment Agreement dated as of July 24, 2007, between Aetna Inc. and Mark T. Bertolini, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on July 26, 2007. **

10.21

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated as of December 31, 2008 between Aetna Inc. and Mark T. Bertolini. **

10.22

Letter agreement dated January 25, 2007 between Aetna Inc. and Joseph M. Zubretsky, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to
Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2007. **

10.23

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated as of December 17, 2008 between Aetna Inc. and Joseph M. Zubretsky. **

10.24

Letter agreement dated July 20, 2000 between Aetna Inc. and William J. Casazza, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Aetna
Inc.’s From 10-Q filed on April 24, 2008. **

10.25

Memorandum dated January 6, 1997 from Mary Ann Champlin to Timothy A. Holt, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to
Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2004. **

10.26

Memorandum dated July 20, 2000 from Elease E. Wright to Timothy A. Holt, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Aetna
Inc.’s Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2004. **

10.27

Consulting agreement made as of October 1, 2006 between Aetna Inc. and John W. Rowe, M.D., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to Aetna Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on October 26, 2006. **

10.28

Description of certain arrangements not embodied in formal documents, as described under the headings “2008 Nonmanagement Director
Compensation” and “Additional Director Compensation Information” are incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement. **

11

Statement re: computation of per share earnings
Computation of per share earnings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 56 of
the Annual Report.

11.1
12

12.1
13

13.1

Statement re: computation of ratios
Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges.
Annual report to security holders
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Selected Financial Data, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Management’s
Responsibility for Financial Statements, Audit Committee Oversight, Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and
Quarterly Data (unaudited) are incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report and filed herewith in electronic format.

14
14.1

Code of Ethics
Aetna Inc. Code of Conduct, as amended on February 8, 2008.

21

Subsidiaries of the registrant
Subsidiaries of Aetna Inc.

21.1
23

23.1

Consents of experts and counsel
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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24
24.1

Power of Attorney
Power of Attorney.

31

31.1

Rule 13a – 14(a)/15d – 14(e) Certifications
Certification.

31.2

Certification.

32

32.1

Section 1350 Certifications
Certification.

32.2

Certification.

*

Copies of exhibits will be furnished without charge upon written request to the Office of the Corporate Secretary, Aetna Inc., 151
Farmington Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut 06156.
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

**
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Aetna Inc.
Under the date of February 27, 2009, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Aetna Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2008, as contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. In
connection with our audits of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related financial statement schedule listed in
the accompanying index. The financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
February 27, 2009
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Schedule I –Financial Information of Aetna Inc.

Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007

(Millions)

2006

$
10.5
$
26.0
$
29.2
Net investment income
(11.6)
(.9)
5.5
Net realized capital (losses) gains
(1.1)
25.1
34.7
Total revenue
69.9
112.7
133.5
Operating expenses
236.0
180.3
148.1
Interest expense
305.9
293.0
281.6
Total expenses
(307.0)
(267.9)
(246.9)
Loss before income tax benefit and equity in earnings of affiliates, net
86.6
97.1
78.3
Income tax benefit
1,604.5
2,001.8
1,854.2
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net *
1,384.1
1,831.0
1,685.6
Income from continuing operations
16.1
Income from discontinued operations
$ 1,384.1
$ 1,831.0
$ 1,701.7
Net income
*
Includes amortization of other acquired intangible assets after tax of $70.3 million, $63.4 million and $55.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Refer to accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets
At December 31,

2008

(Millions)

2007

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investments
Other receivables
Income taxes receivable
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Total current assets
Investment in affiliates *
Long-term investments
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term assets
Total assets

$

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities:

$

Short-term debt
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Employee benefit liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock and additional paid-in capital ($.01 par value, 2.7 billion shares authorized
and 456.3 million shares issued and outstanding in 2008; 2.8 billion shares authorized and
496.3 million issued and outstanding in 2007)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

*
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$

12,689.3

-

67.4

539.7
27.5
13,505.2

1,184.7
14,279.3

215.7
262.3
478.0
3,638.3
1,169.6

65.2
38.6
337.9

-

$

$

99.7

258.8
358.5
3,138.5

5,318.8

601.0
112.9
30.0
4,240.9

351.2
9,716.5
(1,881.3)
8,186.4
13,505.2

188.8
10,138.0
(288.4)
10,038.4
14,279.3

32.9

$

12.3
91.3
114.3
16.2

63.4
99.3
16.1
63.0
19.2
294.8
12,643.2

-

Includes goodwill and other acquired intangible assets of $5.8 billion and $5.9 billion at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Refer to accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

33.8

$

Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Common

(Millions)

Number of

Stock and

Common

Additional

Shares
Outstanding

Paid-in

Balance at December 31, 2005
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency losses
Net derivative gains
Pension liability adjustment
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Adjustment to initially recognize the funded
status of pension and OPEB plans
Common shares issued for benefit plans,
including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2006
Cumulative effect of new accounting
standards
Beginning balance at January 1, 2007, as adjusted
Comprehensive income:

Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency gains
Net derivative losses
Pension and OPEB plans
Other comprehensive income

566.5

Accumulated
Other

Capital

$

2,414.7

$

7,723.7

-

-

1,701.7

-

-

-

-

-

9.8
(60.3)

$

-

516.0

366.2

9,403.6

-

-

1,831.0

-

-

-

-

including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2007
Comprehensive income:

Net income
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency losses
Net derivative losses
Pension and OPEB plans
Other comprehensive loss

13.5
(33.2)

415.0

(625.7)

281.5
(2,330.0)
(20.8)
9,145.1

113.9
(511.8)

9,258.0
1,831.0

(13.2)
3.6
(15.8)
248.8
223.4

(20.0)

-

-

496.3

188.8

10,138.0

-

-

1,384.1

-

-

-

including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2008

2.9
(42.9)

162.9
(.5)

-

456.3

-

$

351.2

Refer to accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

223.4
2,054.4

$

1,384.1

$

(1,592.9
(208.8

(20.0)

1,384.1

(282.6)
(7.3)
(8.4)
(1,294.6)
(1,592.9)

(282.6)
(7.3)
(8.4)
(1,294.6)
(1,592.9)

-

(1,881.3)

$

10,038.4

-

$

1,831.0

415.0

(288.4)

-

(1,787.2)
(18.4)
9,716.5

$

(1,669.0)

Total comprehensive loss
Common shares issued for benefit plans,

(23.6
1,678.1

(13.2)
3.6
(15.8)
248.8
223.4

-

(1,076.6)

$

112.9

-

-

(592.4)

1,701.7

(652.4)

Total comprehensive income
Common shares issued for benefit plans,

$

(37.6)
(.4)
8.7
5.7
(23.6)

-

(1.0)

10,188.7
1,701.7

(652.4)

(20.8)
9,404.6

366.2

$

(37.6)
(.4)
8.7
5.7
(23.6)

-

516.0

50.3

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Equity

-

-

281.5
(2,330.0)

Total
Shareholders'

Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Retained
Earnings

$

162.9
(1,787.7)
(18.4)
8,186.4

Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007

(Millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used for operating activities:
Equity earnings of affiliates *
Stock-based compensation expense

1,384.1

$

(1,604.5)
95.7

Physician class action settlement insurance-related charge

Net realized capital losses (gains)
Discontinued operations
Net change in other assets and other liabilities
Net cash used for operating activities of continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net
Net cash used for operating activities

73.7
72.4

11.6

.9

(5.5)

-

-

(16.1)
(294.9)
(322.9)
49.7
(273.2)

(119.3)
(199.8)
-

(199.8)

78.0

46.1

-

(85.3)
1,577.8

(14.5)
842.4

(1.3)

1,355.2

(2.2)

-

-

1,431.9

827.9

1,536.4

484.8
116.5

663.9

1,978.9

-

-

99.5

(20.0)
(628.2)

21.5
12.3

33.8

-

(1,150.0)
115.8
89.6
(2,322.5)
(20.8)
(1,309.0)

170.8
153.2
(1,695.6)

29.7

27.8
(1,787.7)
(18.4)
(1,147.3)

$

(1,854.2)

-

-

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

1,701.7

-

(263.1)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of issuance costs
Net issuance of short-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Common shares issued under benefit plans
Stock-based compensation tax benefits
Common shares repurchased
Dividends paid to shareholders
Net cash used for financing activities

$

(2,001.8)
89.4

(150.0)
(263.1)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Cost of investments
Dividends received from affiliates, net
Cash used for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Net cash provided by investing activities

1,831.0

2006

$

(.1)
12.4
12.3

(45.8)
58.2
$

12.4

Supplemental cash flow information:
$
227.1 $
177.3 $
159.2
Interest paid
236.6
292.8
171.2
Income taxes refunded
*
Includes amortization of other acquired intangible assets after tax of $70.3 million, $63.4 million and $55.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Refer to accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Aetna Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organization
The financial statements reflect financial information for Aetna Inc. (a Pennsylvania corporation) only (the “Parent Company”). The financial
information presented herein includes the balance sheet of Aetna Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related statements of income,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. The accompanying financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in the Annual Report.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on page 48 of the Annual Report, for the summary of significant
accounting policies.

3. Acquisitions and Dispositions
Refer to Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 55 of the Annual Report, for a description of acquisitions and dispositions.

4. Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Refer to Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on page 62 of the Annual Report, for a description of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

5. Debt
Refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on page 70 of the Annual Report, for a description of debt.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Aetna Inc.

Date: February 27, 2009

By: /s/ Rajan Parmeswar
Rajan Parmeswar
Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signer

Title

/s/ Ronald A. Williams

Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 27, 2009

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

February 27, 2009

Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

February 27, 2009

Rajan Parmeswar
Frank M. Clark *
Betsy Z. Cohen *
Molly J. Coye, M.D. *
Roger N. Farah *
Barbara Hackman Franklin *
Jeffrey E. Garten *
Earl G. Graves *
Gerald Greenwald *
Ellen M. Hancock *
Richard J. Harrington *
Edward J. Ludwig *
Joseph P. Newhouse *

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Ronald A. Williams

/s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky
Joseph M. Zubretsky

/s/ Rajan Parmeswar

* By: /s/ Rajan Parmeswar
Rajan Parmeswar
Attorney-in-fact
February 27, 2009
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Exhibit 10.4
Amended 9/28/01
Amended 12/16/02
Amended 3/11/05
Amended 2/17/06
Amended 12/5/08

AMENDED TO REFLECT 2-for-1 STOCK SPLIT EFFECTIVE 3/11/05 & 2/17/06
AETNA INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

SECTION 1.

PURPOSE.

The purposes of this Plan are to promote the interests of the Company and its shareholders, and further align the interests of shareholders and
Participants by:
(i) motivating Participants through Awards tied to total return to shareholders (i.e., stock price appreciation and dividends);

(ii) attracting and retaining outstanding individuals as Participants;
(iii) enabling Participants to acquire additional equity interests in the Company;

(iv) providing compensation opportunities dependent upon the Company's performance relative to its competitors and changes in its
own performance over time; and

(v) providing for the grant of Adjusted Options in connection with the transactions under the Merger Agreement pursuant to which
the Company ceased to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aetna, Inc., a Connecticut corporation (the “ Former Parent”).

SECTION 2.

DEFINITIONS.

“ADJUSTED OPTION ” shall mean an Option which is granted under Section 10 in substitution for an outstanding option previously
granted by the Former Parent.
“AFFILIATE” shall mean any corporation or other entity (other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries) in which the Company
directly or indirectly owns at least twenty percent (20%) of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity or at least twenty percent
(20%) of the ownership interests in such entity.
“AWARD” shall mean an Adjusted Option and any other grant or award under the Plan, as evidenced in a written document delivered to a
Participant as provided in Section 13(b).
“BOARD” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

“CAUSE” shall mean (i) the willful failure by the Participant to perform substantially the Participant’s duties as an employee
of the Company (other than due to physical or mental illness) after reasonable notice to the Participant, (ii) the Participants engaging in
serious misconduct that is injurious to the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (iii) the Participants having been convicted of, or
entered a plea of nolo contendere to, a crime that constitutes a felony, (iv) the breach by the Participant of any written covenant or
agreement not to compete with the Company,

1

any Subsidiary or any Affiliate or (v) the breach by the Participant of his or her duty of loyalty to the Company which shall include, without
limitation, (A) the disclosure by the Participant of any confidential information pertaining to the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (B) the
harmful interference by the Participant in the business or operations of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (C) any attempt by the
Participant directly or indirectly to induce any employee, insurance agent, insurance broker or broker-dealer of the Company, any Subsidiary or any
Affiliate to be employed or perform services elsewhere, (D) any attempt by the Participant directly or indirectly to solicit the trade of any customer or
supplier, or prospective customer or supplier, of the Company or (E) any breach or violation of the Companys Code of Conduct.
“CODE” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations thereunder.

"COMMITTEE " shall mean a committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board to administer the Plan, which, to the extent
necessary to comply with Section 16 of the Exchange Act and Section 162 (m) of the Code, shall consist of at least two directors of the Company
chosen by the Board each of whom is a "non-employee director" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and an "outside
director" within the meaning of Section 162(m).

“COMMON STOCK ” shall mean the common stock, $.01 par value, of the Company.
“COMPANY” shall mean Aetna Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation.
“ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE ” shall mean each employee of the Company, its Subsidiaries or its Affiliates, but shall not include directors
who are not employees of such entities; provided that, in the case of the Adjusted Options, the term Eligible Employee shall mean each person who is
eligible to receive an Adjusted Option. Any individual the Company designates as, or otherwise determines to be, an independent contractor shall not
be considered an Eligible Employee, and such designation or determination shall govern regardless of whether such individual is ultimately determined
to be an employee pursuant to the Code or any other applicable law.
"EMPLOYMENT " shall mean, for purposes of determining whether a termination of employment has occurred under the Plan, continuous
and regular salaried employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, which shall include (unless the Committee shall otherwise determine)
any period of vacation, any approved leave of absence or any salary continuation or severance pay period and, at the discretion of the Committee, may
include service with any former Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company. For this purpose, regular salaried employment means scheduled employment
of at least 20 hours per week.

“EXCHANGE ACT ” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.
“EXECUTIVE OFFICER ” shall mean those persons who are officers of the Company within the meaning of Rule 16a-l(f) of the
Exchange Act.
“FAIR MARKET VALUE” shall mean on any date, with respect to a share of Common Stock, the closing price of a share of Common
Stock as reported by the Consolidated Tape of New York Stock Exchange Listed Shares on such date, or, if no shares were traded on such
Exchange on such date, on the next date on which the Common Stock is traded.
“FUNDAMENTAL CORPORATE EVENT” shall mean any stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, recapitalization,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, exchange of shares, offering to purchase Common Stock at a price
substantially below fair market value, or other similar event.
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“INCENTIVE STOCK ” shall mean an Award of Common Stock granted under Section 7 which may become vested and nonforfeitable
upon the passage of time and/or the attainment, in whole or in part, of performance objectives determined by the Committee.
“INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION ” shall mean an option which is intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code.
“INCENTIVE UNIT ” shall mean an Award of a contractual right granted under Section 7 to receive Common Stock (or, at the discretion
of the Committee, cash based on the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock) which may become vested and nonforfeitable upon either the passage
of time and/or the attainment, in whole or in part, of performance objectives determined by the Committee.
“MERGER AGREEMENT ” shall mean the Agreement and Plan of Restructuring and Merger among ING America Insurance Holdings,
Inc., ANB Acquisition Corp., the Former Parent and for limited purposes only, ING Groep N.V., dated as of July 19, 2000.
“MERGER DATE” shall mean the date of the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.
“NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION” shall mean an Option which is not intended to be an Incentive Stock Option.
“OPTION” shall mean the right granted under Section 5 to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock specified by the Committee, at
a price and for the term fixed by the Committee in accordance with the Plan and subject to any other limitations and restrictions as this Plan and the
Committee shall impose, and shall include both Incentive Stock Options and Nonstatutory Stock Options.
“OTHER STOCK-BASED AWARD” shall mean any right granted under Section 8.
“PARTICIPANT” shall mean an Eligible Employee who is selected by the Committee to receive an Award under the Plan and any recipient
of an (i) Adjusted Option granted under Section 10 or (ii) Substitute Award as contemplated under Section 4(c).
“PLAN” shall mean the Aetna Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, described herein, and as may be amended from time to time.
“PRIOR PLAN ” shall mean, collectively, the Aetna Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan and the Aetna Inc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan.
“RESTRICTED PERIOD ” shall mean the period during which a grant of Incentive Stock or Incentive Units is subject to forfeiture.
“SECTION 409A ” shall mean Section 409A of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder, as may be amended from time to time.
“STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT ” shall mean a right granted under Section 6.
“SUBSIDIARY” shall mean any entity of which the Company possesses directly or indirectly fifty percent (50%) or more of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity.
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“SUBSTITUTE AWARDS” shall mean Awards granted in assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by
a company acquired by the Company or with which the Company combines.
SECTION 3.

ADMINISTRATION.

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have the responsibility of construing and interpreting the Plan and of
establishing and amending such rules and regulations as it deems necessary or desirable for the proper administration of the Plan. Any decision or
action taken or to be taken by the Committee, arising out of or in connection with the construction, administration, interpretation and effect of the Plan
and of its rules and regulations, shall, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, be within its absolute discretion (except as otherwise
specifically provided herein) and shall be conclusive and binding upon all Participants and any person claiming under or through any Participant.

Subject to the terms of the Plan and applicable law, and in addition to other express powers and authorizations conferred on the Committee by
the Plan, the Committee shall have full power and authority to: (i) designate Participants; (ii) determine the type or types of Awards, if any, to be
granted to an Eligible Employee: (iii) determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by, or with respect to which payments, rights,
or other matters are to be calculated in connection with, Awards: (iv) determine the terms and conditions of any Award: (v) determine whether, to what
extent, and under what circumstances Awards may be settled or exercised in cash, Common Stock, other securities, other Awards or other property,
or canceled, forfeited, or suspended and the method or methods by which Awards may be settled, exercised, canceled, forfeited, or suspended; (vi)
determine whether, to what extent, and under what circumstances, cash, Common Stock, other securities, other Awards, other property, and other
amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either automatically or at the election of the holder thereof or of the Committee: (vii)
interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or agreement relating to, or Award made under, the Plan; (viii) establish, amend, suspend, or waive
such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it shall deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan: and (ix) make any other
determination and take any other action that the Committee deems necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan (including authorizing
another committee of the Board to designate Participants or make Awards under the Plan within limits prescribed by the Committee).

SECTION 4.

SHARES AVAILABLE FOR AWARDS.

(a) Shares Available for Issuance. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock in respect of which Awards may be made under
the Plan shall be a total of 7,000,000 shares of Common Stock plus (i) the number of shares of Common Stock to be delivered upon exercise of the
Adjusted Options and (ii) the number of shares required to satisfy any outstanding incentive unit awards under the Prior Plan. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, but subject to the provisions of Section 4(b), in no event shall the number of shares of Common Stock issued under the Plan with respect
to (x) Incentive Stock Options exceed 5,000,000, (y) Incentive Stock or Incentive Units exceed 2,235,000 or (z) Other Stock-Based Awards exceed
1,000,000. Shares of Common Stock may be made available from the authorized but unissued shares of the Company or from shares held in the
Companys treasury and not reserved for some other purpose. In the event that any Award is paid solely in cash, no shares shall be deducted from the
number of shares available for issuance by reason of such Award. Shares of Common Stock subject to Awards that are forfeited, terminated,
canceled or settled without the delivery of Common Stock under the Plan will again be available for Awards under the Plan, as will (A) shares of
Common Stock tendered (either actually or by attestation) to the Company in satisfaction or partial satisfaction of the exercise price of any Award
under either the Plan and (B) shares of Common Stock repurchased on the open market with remittances from the exercise of options granted under
the Plan (including authorizing another Committee of the Board to designate Participants or make Awards under the Plan within limits prescribed by the
Committee). (As of 3/11/05 the remaining shares available for issuance
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were adjusted to reflect the Company’s 2-for-one stock split.) ( As of 2/17/06 the remaining shares available for issuance were
adjusted to reflect the Company’s 2-for-one stock split.)
(b) Adjustment for Corporate Transactions. In the event that the Committee shall determine that any Fundamental Corporate Event
affects the Common Stock such that an adjustment is required to preserve, or to prevent enlargement of, the benefits or potential benefits made
available under this Plan, then the Committee shall, in such manner as the Committee may deem equitable, adjust any or all of (i) the number and kind
of shares which thereafter may be awarded or optioned and sold or made the subject of Awards under the Plan, (ii) the number and kinds of shares
subject to outstanding Awards and (iii) the grant, exercise or conversion price with respect to any of the foregoing. Additionally, the Committee may
make provisions for a cash payment to a Participant or a person who has an outstanding Award; to the extent such an Award constitutes “deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A, no such provision shall change the timing or form of payment of such Award unless such
change is permitted under Section 409A. However, the number of shares subject to any Award shall always be a whole number.

(c) Substitute Awards. Any shares of Common Stock underlying Substitute Awards shall not, except in the case of shares with respect to
which Substitute Awards are granted to Participants who are officers or directors of the Company for purposes of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or
any successor section thereto, be counted against the Shares available for Awards under the Plan.
SECTION 5.

STOCK OPTIONS.

(a) Grant. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority to grant Options to an Eligible Employee and to
determine (i) the number of shares to be covered by each Option, (ii) subject to Section 5(b), the exercise price of the Option and (iii) the conditions
and limitations applicable to the exercise of the Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee grant any Participant Options
(i) for more than 3,200,000 shares of Common Stock in respect of any year in which the Plan is in effect, as such number may be adjusted pursuant
to Section 4(b). In the case of Incentive Stock Options, the terms and conditions of such grants shall be subject to and comply with Section 422 of
the Code and the regulations thereunder.

(b) Exercise Price. Except in the case of Adjusted Options, Substitute Awards or Options granted in lieu of payment for compensation
earned by an Eligible Employee of the Company, the exercise price of an Option shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date of
grant.

(c) Exercise. Each Option shall be exercised at such times and subject to such-terms and conditions as the Committee may specify at the
time of the applicable Award or thereafter. No shares shall be delivered pursuant to any exercise of an Option unless arrangements satisfactory to the
Committee have been made to assure full payment of the exercise price therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, payment of the
exercise price may be made in cash or its equivalent or, if and to the extent permitted by the Committee, by exchanging shares of Common Stock
owned by the optionee (which are not the subject of any pledge or other security interest or which, in the case of Incentive Stock, are fully vested)
either actually or by attestation, or by a combination of the foregoing, provided that the combined value of all cash and cash equivalents and the Fair
Market Value of any such Common Stock so tendered to the Company, valued as of the date of such tender, is at least equal to such exercise price.
(d) Incentive Stock Option Annual Limit. The aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the date the Incentive Stock Option is
granted) of the Common Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by an Eligible Employee during any
calendar year (counting Incentive Stock Options under this Plan and under any other stock option
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plan of the Company or a subsidiary) shall not exceed $100,000. If an Option intended to be an Incentive Stock Option is granted to an Eligible
Employee and the Option may not be treated in whole or in part as an Incentive Stock Option pursuant to the $100,000 limitation, the Option shall be
treated as an Incentive Stock Option to the extent it may be so treated under the limitation and as a Nonstatutory Stock Option as to the remainder. For
purposes of determining whether an Incentive Stock Option would cause the limitation to be exceeded, Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into
account in the order granted. The annual limit set forth above shall not apply to Nonstatutory Stock Options.

SECTION 6.

STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS.

(a) Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee shall have the authority to grant Stock Appreciation Rights in tandem with an
Option, in addition to an Option, or freestanding and unrelated to an Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee grant any
Participant Stock Appreciation Rights (i) for more than 2,000,000 shares of Common Stock in respect of any year in which the Plan is in effect, as
such number may be adjusted pursuant to Section 4(b) and (ii) with a term exceeding 10 years (or the term of the underlying Incentive Stock Option
in the case of a Stock Appreciation Right granted in tandem with an Incentive Stock Option). Stock Appreciation Rights granted in tandem with an
option may be granted either at the same time as the Option or at a later time.

(b) Exercise Price. The exercise price of an SAR shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on
the date the SAR was granted; provided that if an SAR is granted retroactively in tandem with or in substitution for an Option, the exercise price may
be the exercise price of the Option to which it is related.

(c) Exercise of Stock Appreciation Rights. A Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle the Participant to receive from the Company an
amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right over the
base price thereof. The Committee shall determine the time or times at which or the event or events (including, without limitation, a change of control)
upon which a Stock Appreciation Right may be exercised in whole or in part, the method of exercise and whether such Stock Appreciation Right
shall be settled in cash, shares of Common Stock or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock; provided, however, that unless
otherwise specified by the Committee at or after grant, a Stock Appreciation Right granted in tandem with an Option shall be exercisable at the same
time or times as the related option is exercisable.
SECTION 7.

INCENTIVE AWARDS.

(a) Incentive Stock and Incentive Units. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority to grant time
vesting and/or performance vesting Incentive Stock or Incentive Units to any Eligible Employee and to determine (i) the number of shares of
Incentive Stock and the number of Incentive Units to be granted to each Participant and (ii) the other terms and conditions of such Awards; provided
that, to the extent necessary to comply with applicable law, Incentive Stock shall only be awarded to an Eligible Employee who has been employed
for such minimum period of time as shall be determined by the Committee. The Restricted Period related to Incentive Stock or Incentive Units shall
lapse upon the passage of time and/or the determination by the Committee that the performance objectives established by the Committee have been
attained, in whole or in part. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be subject to any performance-based Awards of Incentive
Stock and Incentive Units (whether payable in cash or shares) granted to an Executive Officer with respect to a Restricted Period shall not exceed
2,000,000 shares, as such number may be adjusted pursuant to Section 4(b). The performance objectives with respect to an Award made to an
Executive officer shall be related to at least one of the following criteria, which may be determined solely by reference to the performance of the
Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate (or any business unit thereof) or based on comparative performance relative to other companies: (i) net income,
(ii)
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earnings before income taxes, (iii) earnings per share, (iv) return on shareholders equity, (v) expense management, (vi) profitability of
an identifiable business unit or product, (vii) ratio of claims to revenues, (viii) revenue growth, (ix) earnings growth, (x) total
shareholder return, (xi) cash flow, (xii) return on assets, (xiii) pretax operating income, (xiv) net economic profit (operating earnings
minus a charge for capital), (xv) customer satisfaction, (xvi) provider satisfaction, (xvii) employee satisfaction, (xviii) quality of
networks, (xix) strategic innovation or (xx) any combination of the foregoing.
(b) Certificates . Any certificates issued in respect of Incentive Stock shall be registered in the name of the Participant and deposited by
such Participant, together with a stock power endorsed in blank, with the Company. At the expiration of the Restricted Period with respect to any
award of Incentive Stock, unless otherwise forfeited, the Company shall deliver such certificates to the Participant or to the Participants legal
representative. Payment for Incentive Stock Units shall be made by the Company in shares of Common Stock, cash or in any combination thereof, as
determined by the Committee.
SECTION 8.

OTHER STOCK-BASED AWARDS.

The Committee shall have authority to grant to eligible Employees an "Other Stock-Based Award", which shall consist of any right which is
(i) not an Award described in Sections 5 through 7 above and (ii) an Award of Common Stock or an Award denominated or payable in, valued in
whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to, Common Stock (including, without limitation, securities convertible into
Common Stock), as deemed by the Committee to be consistent with the purposes of the Plan; provided that any such rights must comply, to the
extent deemed desirable by the Committee, with Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act and applicable law. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any
applicable award agreement, the Committee shall determine the terms and conditions of any such Other Stock-Based Award.

SECTION 9.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS.

The Committee may provide that any Award shall include dividends or dividend equivalents, payable in cash, Common Stock, securities or
other property on a current or deferred basis, including payment contingencies.

SECTION 10.

ADJUSTED OPTIONS.

Effective as of the Merger Date, holders of options to purchase shares of common stock of the Former Parent may in substitution thereof, to
the extent determined by the committee administering the Prior Plan and the Committee, be granted an option to purchase Common Stock in
accordance with the provisions of the Merger Agreement and the Exhibits thereto. Except as modified by the Merger Agreement, such options shall
be governed by the terms of the incentive plans and award agreements under which they were originally granted, which terms are incorporated herein
by reference.
SECTION 11.

STOCK IN LIEU OF CASH.

The Committee may grant Awards in lieu of all or a portion of compensation or an Award otherwise payable in cash to an Executive officer
pursuant to any bonus or incentive compensation plan of the Company.

If shares are issued in lieu of cash, the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be the greatest number of whole shares which
has an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date the cash would otherwise have been payable pursuant to the terms of such other plan equal to or less
than the amount of such cash.
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SECTION 12.

DEFERRAL.

The Committee shall have the discretion to determine whether, to what extent, and under what circumstances cash, shares of Common
Stock, other securities, other Awards, other property, and other amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either automatically or at
the election of the holder thereof or of the Committee. The timing of the election to defer any elective deferral shall comply with Section 409A. At
the time of any automatic or elective deferral, the time and form of payment shall be established consistent with the requirements of Section 409A. If
the time or form of payment is not so established, the form of payment shall be a lump sum and the time of payment shall be the date the Participant
experiences a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A. Gains from the exercise of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights
shall not be eligible for automatic or elective deferral.

SECTION 13.

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(a) Withholding. The Company shall have the right to deduct from all amounts paid to a Participant in cash (whether under this Plan or
otherwise) any taxes required by law to be withheld in respect of Awards under this Plan. In the case of any Award satisfied in the form of Common
Stock, no shares shall be issued unless and until arrangements satisfactory to the Company shall have been made to satisfy any withholding tax
obligations applicable with respect to such Award. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Committee may impose, the Company shall have the right to retain, or the Committee may, subject to such terms and conditions as it may establish
from time to time, permit Participants to elect to use shares of Common Stock (including Common Stock issuable in respect of an Award) to satisfy,
in whole or in part, the amount required to be withheld.

(b) Award Agreement. Each Award hereunder shall be evidenced in writing. The written agreement shall be delivered to the Participant and
shall incorporate the terms of the Plan by reference and specify the terms and conditions thereof and any rules applicable thereto.

(c) Nontransferability . Unless the Committee shall permit (on such terms and conditions as it shall establish) an Award to be transferred
to a member of the Participants immediate family or to a trust or similar vehicle for the benefit of such immediate family members (collectively, the
"Permitted Transferees"), no Award shall be assignable or transferable except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and except to the
extent required by law, no right or interest of any Participant shall be subject to any lien, obligation or liability of the Participant. All rights with respect
to Awards granted to a Participant under the Plan shall be exercisable during the Participants lifetime only by such Participant or, if applicable, the
Permitted Transferees or the Participants legal representative.
(d) No Right to Employment . No person shall have any claim or right to be granted an Award, and the grant of an Award shall not be
construed as giving a Participant the right to be retained in the employ of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate. Further, the Company and
each Subsidiary and Affiliate expressly reserves the right at any time to dismiss a Participant free from any liability, or any claim under the Plan,
except as provided herein or in any agreement entered into with respect to an Award.
(e) No Rights to Awards, No Shareholder Rights. No Participant or Eligible Employee shall have any claim to be granted any Award
under the Plan, and there is no obligation of uniformity of treatment of Participants and Eligible Employees. Subject to the provisions of the Plan and
the applicable Award, no person shall have any rights as a shareholder with respect to any shares of Common Stock to be issued under the Plan prior
to the issuance thereof.

(f) Construction of the Plan. The validity, construction, interpretation, administration and effect of the Plan and of its rules and
regulations, and rights relating to the Plan, shall be determined solely in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut.
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(g) Effective Date. Subject to the approval of the Companys shareholders and the shareholders of the Former Parent, the Plan shall be
effective on the Merger Date.
(h) Amendment or Termination of Plan. The Board or the Committee may terminate or suspend the Plan at any time, but the termination
or suspension will not adversely affect any vested Awards then outstanding under the Plan. No Award may be granted under the Plan after November
30, 2010 or such earlier date as the Plan is terminated by action of the Board or the Committee, The Plan may be amended or terminated at any time by
the Board, except that no amendment may be made without shareholder approval if the Committee determines that such approval is necessary to
comply with any tax or regulatory requirement, including any approval requirement which is a prerequisite for exemptive relief from Section 16 of
the Exchange Act, for which or with which the Committee determines that it is desirable to qualify or comply; and, provided further, that, except with
respect to any action or adjustment taken in connection with a Fundamental Corporate Event, any amendment or action to reduce the exercise price of
any option previously granted under the Plan shall be subject to the approval of the Companys shareholders. The Committee may amend the term of
any Award or Option granted, retroactively or prospectively, but no amendment may adversely affect any vested Award or Option without the holders
consent.
(i) Compliance with Legal and Exchange Requirements. The Plan, the granting and exercising of Awards thereunder, and the other
obligations of the Company under the Plan, shall be subject to all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by
any regulatory or governmental agency as may be required. The Company, in its discretion, may postpone the granting and exercising of Awards, the
issuance or delivery of Common Stock under any Award or any other action permitted under the Plan to permit the Company, with reasonable
diligence, to complete such stock exchange listing or registration or qualification of such Common Stock or other required action under any federal
or state law, rule, or regulation and may require any Participant to make such representations and furnish such information as it may consider
appropriate in connection with the issuance or delivery of Common Stock in compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations. The Company
shall not be obligated by virtue of any provision of the Plan to recognize the exercise of any Award or to otherwise sell or issue Common Stock in
violation of any such laws, rules, or regulations; and any postponement of the exercise or settlement of any Award under this provision shall not
extend the term of such Awards, and neither the Company nor its directors or officers shall have any obligations or liability to the Participant with
respect to any Award (or stock issuable thereunder) that shall lapse because of such postponement.
(j) Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Plan shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included.

(k) Incapacity . Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a minor, an incompetent person or other person incapable of receipting therefor
shall be deemed paid when paid to such persons guardian or to the party providing or reasonably appearing to provide for the care of such person, and
such payment shall fully discharge any liability or obligation of the Committee, the Board, the Company and all other parties with respect thereto.

(1) Headings and Captions . The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience only, shall not be
considered part of this Plan, and shall not be employed in the construction of this Plan.
(m) Compliance with Section 409A. Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Incentive Stock granted under the Plan are intended
to be exempt from the requirements of Section 409A. All other Awards, including Incentive Units granted under the Plan are intended to be either
exempt from the requirements of Section 409A as short-term deferrals or, if not exempt, to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A. The
provisions of the Plan and any Awards granted
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under the Plan shall be construed in a manner consistent with such intent. In addition, notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan
or an Award agreement to the contrary, the Company will not pay or accelerate the payment of any amount that constitutes “deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A, in violation of Section 409A. To the extent any amount of “deferred
compensation” as defined in Section 409A would otherwise vest and become payable upon a Change in Control or upon a Disability, as
set forth herein or in an Award agreement, any such Award may vest but payment shall not be accelerated unless the Change in Control
or the Disability also satisfies the definition of change in control or disability as set forth in Section 409A.
Any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and is payable under the Plan solely by reason of
a Participant’s termination of employment shall be payable only if the Participant has experienced a “separation from service” within the meaning of
Section 409A, provided that if the Participant is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A at the time of such separation from
service, as determined by the Company in accordance with Section 409A, no payments shall be made before the six-month anniversary of the
Participant’s separation from service, at which time all payments that would otherwise have been made during such six-month period shall be paid to
the Participant in a lump sum.
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Exhibit 10.11
Amended and restated 9/26/2003
Restated 3/11/2005
Restated 2/17/2006
Amended 12/5/08

Restated to reflect 2-for-one Stock Split effective 3/11/05 & 2/17/06

AETNA INC.
2002 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

SECTION 1.

PURPOSE.

The purposes of this Plan are to promote the interests of the Company and its shareholders, and further align the interests of shareholders and
Participants by:

(i) motivating Participants through Awards tied to total return to shareholders (i.e., stock price appreciation and dividends);
(ii) attracting and retaining outstanding individuals as Participants;
(iii) enabling Participants to acquire additional equity interests in the Company; and

(iv) providing compensation opportunities dependent upon the Company's performance relative to its competitors and changes in its
own performance over time.
SECTION 2.

DEFINITIONS.

"AFFILIATE" shall mean any corporation or other entity (other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries) in which the Company directly
or indirectly owns at least twenty percent (20%) of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity or at least twenty percent (20%)
of the ownership interests in such entity.

“AWARD” shall mean any grant or award under the Plan, as evidenced in a written document delivered to a Participant as provided in
Section 12(b).
“BOARD” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
“CAUSE” shall mean (i) the willful failure by the Participant to perform substantially the Participants duties as an employee of the Company
(other than due to physical or mental illness) after reasonable notice to the Participant, (ii) the Participants engaging in serious misconduct that is
injurious to the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (iii) the Participants having been convicted of, or entered a plea of nolo contendere to, a
crime that constitutes a felony, (iv) the breach by the Participant of any written covenant or agreement not to compete with the Company, any
Subsidiary or any Affiliate or (v) the breach by the Participant of his or her duty of loyalty to the Company which shall include, without limitation,
(A) the disclosure by the Participant of any confidential information pertaining to the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (B) the harmful
interference by the Participant in the business or operations of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate, (C) any attempt by the Participant
directly or indirectly to induce any employee, insurance agent, insurance broker or broker-dealer of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate to
be employed or perform services elsewhere, (D) any attempt by the Participant
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directly or indirectly to solicit the trade of any customer or supplier, or prospective customer or supplier, of the Company or (E) any
breach or violation of the Companys Code of Conduct.
“CODE” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations thereunder.
“COMMITTEE ” shall mean a committee of the Board as may be designated by the Board to administer the Plan.
“COMMON STOCK ” shall mean the common stock, $.01 par value, of the Company.
“COMPANY” shall mean Aetna Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation.
“ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE ” shall mean each employee of the Company, its Subsidiaries or its Affiliates, but shall not include directors
who are not employees of such entities and Executive Officers of the Company. Any individual the Company designates as, or otherwise determines
to be, an independent contractor shall not be considered an Eligible Employee, and such designation or determination shall govern regardless of
whether such individual is ultimately determined to be an employee pursuant to the Code or any other applicable law.
“EMPLOYMENT ” shall mean, for purposes of determining whether a termination of employment has occurred under the Plan, continuous
and regular salaried employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, which shall include (unless the Committee shall otherwise determine)
any period of vacation, any approved leave of absence or any salary continuation or severance pay period and, at the discretion of the Committee, may
include service with any former Subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company. For this purpose, regular salaried employment means scheduled employment
of at least 20 hours per week.
“EXCHANGE ACT ” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.
“EXECUTIVE OFFICER ” shall mean those persons who are officers of the Company within the meaning of Rule 16a-l(f) of the
Exchange Act.
“FAIR MARKET VALUE” shall mean on any date, with respect to a share of Common Stock, the closing price of a share of Common
Stock as reported by the Consolidated Tape of New York Stock Exchange Listed Shares on such date, or, if no shares were traded on such
Exchange on such date, on the next date on which the Common Stock is traded.
“FUNDAMENTAL CORPORATE EVENT” shall mean any stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, recapitalization,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, exchange of shares, offering to purchase Common Stock at a price
substantially below fair market value, or other similar event.
“INCENTIVE STOCK ” shall mean an Award of Common Stock granted under Section 7 which may become vested and nonforfeitable
upon the passage of time and/or the attainment, in whole or in part, of performance objectives determined by the Committee.
“INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION ” shall mean an option which is intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code.
“INCENTIVE UNIT ” shall mean an Award of a contractual right granted under Section 7 to receive Common Stock (or, at the discretion
of the Committee, cash based on the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock) which may become vested and nonforfeitable upon either the
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passage of time and/or the attainment, in whole or in part, of performance objectives determined by the Committee.
“NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION” shall mean an Option which is not intended to be an Incentive Stock Option.
“OPTION” shall mean the right granted under Section 5 to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock specified by the Committee, at
a price and for the term fixed by the Committee in accordance with the Plan and subject to any other limitations and restrictions as this Plan and the
Committee shall impose, and shall include both Incentive Stock Options and Nonstatutory Stock Options.
“OTHER STOCK-BASED AWARD” shall mean any right granted under Section 8.
“PARTICIPANT” shall mean an Eligible Employee who is selected by the Committee to receive an Award under the Plan and Substitute
Award as contemplated under Section 4(c).
“PLAN” shall mean the Aetna Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, described herein, and as may be amended from time to time.
“RESTRICTED PERIOD ” shall mean the period during which a grant of Incentive Stock or Incentive Units is subject to forfeiture.
“SECTION 409A” shall mean Section 409A of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder, as may be amended from time to time.

“STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT ” shall mean a right granted under Section 6.
“SUBSIDIARY” shall mean any entity of which the Company possesses directly or indirectly fifty percent (50%) or more of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity.
"SUBSTITUTE AWARDS" shall mean Awards granted in assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by a
company acquired by the Company or with which the Company combines.

SECTION 3.

ADMINISTRATION.

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have the responsibility of construing and interpreting the Plan and of
establishing and amending such rules and regulations as it deems necessary or desirable for the proper administration of the Plan. Any decision or
action taken or to be taken by the Committee, arising out of or in connection with the construction, administration, interpretation and effect of the Plan
and of its rules and regulations, shall, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, be within its absolute discretion (except as otherwise
specifically provided herein) and shall be conclusive and binding upon all Participants and any person claiming under or through any Participant.

Subject to the terms of the Plan and applicable law, and in addition to other express powers and authorizations conferred on the Committee by
the Plan, the Committee shall have full power and authority to: (i) designate Participants; (ii) determine the type or types of Awards, if any, to be
granted to an Eligible Employee: (iii) determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by, or with respect to which payments, rights,
or other matters are to be calculated in connection with, Awards: (iv) determine the terms and conditions of any Award: (v) determine whether, to
what extent, and under what circumstances Awards may be settled or exercised in
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cash, Common Stock, other securities, other Awards or other property, or canceled, forfeited, or suspended and the method or methods by which
Awards may be settled, exercised, canceled, forfeited, or suspended; (vi) determine whether, to what extent, and under what circumstances, cash,
Common Stock, other securities, other Awards, other property, and other amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either
automatically or at the election of the holder thereof or of the Committee: (vii) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or agreement
relating to, or Award made under, the Plan; (viii) establish, amend, suspend, or waive such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it shall
deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan: and (ix) make any other determination and take any other action that the Committee deems
necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan (including authorizing another Committee of the Company to designate Participants or make
Awards under the Plan within limits prescribed by the Committee).

SECTION 4.

SHARES AVAILABLE FOR AWARDS.

(a) Shares Available for Issuance. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock in respect of which Awards may be made under
the Plan shall be a total of 7,500,000 shares of Common Stock. Shares of Common Stock may be made available from the authorized but unissued
shares of the Company or from shares held in the Companys treasury and not reserved for some other purpose. In the event that any Award is paid
solely in cash, no shares shall be deducted from the number of shares available for issuance by reason of such Award. Shares of Common Stock
subject to Awards that are forfeited, terminated, canceled or settled without the delivery of Common Stock under the Plan will again be available for
Awards under the Plan. (As of 3/11/2005 the remaining shares available for issuance were adjusted to reflect the Company’s 2-for-one stock
split.) (As of 2/17/06 the remaining shares available for issuance were adjusted to reflect the Company’s 2-for-one stock split.)

(b) Adjustment for Corporate Transactions. In the event that the Committee shall determine that any Fundamental Corporate Event
affects the Common Stock such that an adjustment is required to preserve, or to prevent enlargement of, the benefits or potential benefits made
available under this Plan, then the Committee shall, in such manner as the Committee may deem equitable, adjust any or all of (i) the number and kind
of shares which thereafter may be awarded or optioned and sold or made the subject of Awards under the Plan, (ii) the number and kinds of shares
subject to outstanding Awards and (iii) the grant, exercise or conversion price with respect to any of the foregoing. Additionally, the Committee may
make provisions for a cash payment to a Participant or a person who has an outstanding Award; to the extent such an Award constitutes “deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A, no such provision shall change the timing or form of payment of such Award unless such
change is permitted under Section 409A. However, the number of shares subject to any Award shall always be a whole number.

(c) Substitute Awards. Any shares of Common Stock underlying Substitute Awards shall not be counted against the Shares available for
Awards under the Plan.

SECTION 5.

STOCK OPTIONS.

(a) Grant. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority to grant Options to an Eligible Employee and to
determine (i) the number of shares to be covered by each Option, (ii) subject to Section 5(b), the exercise price of the Option and (iii) the conditions
and limitations applicable to the exercise of the Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee grant any Participant Options
(i) for more than 3,200,000 shares of Common Stock in respect of any year in which the Plan is in effect, as such number may be adjusted pursuant
to Section 4(b). In the case of Incentive Stock Options, the terms and conditions
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of such grants shall be subject to and comply with Section 422 of the Code and the regulations thereunder.
(b) Exercise Price. Except in the case of, Substitute Awards or Options granted in lieu of payment for compensation earned by an
Eligible Employee of the Company, the exercise price of an Option shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date of grant.

(c) Exercise. Each Option shall be exercised at such times and subject to such-terms and conditions as the Committee may specify at the
time of the applicable Award or thereafter. No shares shall be delivered pursuant to any exercise of an Option unless arrangements satisfactory to the
Committee have been made to assure full payment of the exercise price therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, payment of the
exercise price may be made in cash or its equivalent or, if and to the extent permitted by the Committee, by exchanging shares of Common Stock
owned by the optionee (which are not the subject of any pledge or other security interest or which, in the case of Incentive Stock, are fully vested)
either actually or by attestation, or by a combination of the foregoing, provided that the combined value of all cash and cash equivalents and the Fair
Market Value of any such Common Stock so tendered to the Company, valued as of the date of such tender, is at least equal to such exercise price.
(d) Incentive Stock Option Annual Limit. The aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the date the Incentive Stock Option is
granted) of the Common Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by an Eligible Employee during any
calendar year (counting Incentive Stock Options under this Plan and under any other stock option plan of the Company or a subsidiary) shall not
exceed $100,000. If an Option intended to be an Incentive Stock Option is granted to an Eligible Employee and the Option may not be treated in whole
or in part as an Incentive Stock Option pursuant to the $100,000 limitation, the Option shall be treated as an Incentive Stock Option to the extent it may
be so treated under the limitation and as a Nonstatutory Stock Option as to the remainder. For purposes of determining whether an Incentive Stock
Option would cause the limitation to be exceeded, Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into account in the order granted. The annual limit set forth
above shall not apply to Nonstatutory Stock Options.
SECTION 6.

STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS.

(a) Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee shall have the authority to grant Stock Appreciation Rights in tandem with an
Option, in addition to an Option, or freestanding and unrelated to an Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Committee grant any
Participant Stock Appreciation Rights (i) for more than 2,000,000 shares of Common Stock in respect of any year in which the Plan is in effect, as
such number may be adjusted pursuant to Section 4(b) and (ii) with a term exceeding 10 years (or the term of the underlying Incentive Stock Option
in the case of a Stock Appreciation Right granted in tandem with an Incentive Stock Option). Stock Appreciation Rights granted in tandem with an
option may be granted either at the same time as the Option or at a later time.

(b) Exercise Price. The exercise price of an SAR shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on
the date the SAR was granted; provided that if an SAR is granted retroactively in tandem with or in substitution for an Option, the exercise price may
be the exercise price of the Option to which it is related.

(c) Exercise of Stock Appreciation Rights. A Stock Appreciation Right shall entitle the Participant to receive from the Company an
amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right over the
base price thereof. The Committee shall determine the time or times at which or the event or events (including, without limitation, a change of control)
upon which a Stock Appreciation Right may be exercised in whole or in part, the method of exercise and whether such Stock Appreciation
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Right shall be settled in cash, shares of Common Stock or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock; provided, however, that
unless otherwise specified by the Committee at or after grant, a Stock Appreciation Right granted in tandem with an Option shall be
exercisable at the same time or times as the related option is exercisable.
SECTION 7.

INCENTIVE AWARDS.

(a) Incentive Stock and Incentive Units. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority to grant time
vesting and/or performance vesting Incentive Stock or Incentive Units to any Eligible Employee and to determine (i) the number of shares of
Incentive Stock and the number of Incentive Units to be granted to each Participant and (ii) the other terms and conditions of such Awards; provided
that, to the extent necessary to comply with applicable law, Incentive Stock shall only be awarded to an Eligible Employee who has been employed
for such minimum period of time as shall be determined by the Committee. The Restricted Period related to Incentive Stock or Incentive Units shall
lapse upon the passage of time and/or the determination by the Committee that the performance objectives established by the Committee have been
attained, in whole or in part.

(b) Certificates . Any certificates issued in respect of Incentive Stock shall be registered in the name of the Participant and deposited by
such Participant, together with a stock power endorsed in blank, with the Company. At the expiration of the Restricted Period with respect to any
award of Incentive Stock, unless otherwise forfeited, the Company shall deliver such certificates to the Participant or to the Participants legal
representative. Payment for Incentive Stock Units shall be made by the Company in shares of Common Stock, cash or in any combination thereof, as
determined by the Committee.
SECTION 8.

OTHER STOCK-BASED AWARDS.

The Committee shall have authority to grant to eligible Employees an "Other Stock-Based Award", which shall consist of any right which is
(i) not an Award described in Sections 5 through 7 above and (ii) an Award of Common Stock or an Award denominated or payable in, valued in
whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to, Common Stock (including, without limitation, securities convertible into
Common Stock), as deemed by the Committee to be consistent with the purposes of the Plan. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable
award agreement, the Committee shall determine the terms and conditions of any such Other Stock-Based Award.

SECTION 9.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS.

The Committee may provide that any Award shall include dividends or dividend equivalents, payable in cash, Common Stock, securities or
other property on a current or deferred basis, including payment contingencies.

SECTION 10.

STOCK IN LIEU OF CASH.

The Committee may grant Awards in lieu of all or a portion of compensation or an Award otherwise payable in cash to an Executive officer
pursuant to any bonus or incentive compensation plan of the Company.

If shares are issued in lieu of cash, the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued shall be the greatest number of whole shares which
has an aggregate Fair Market Value on the
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date the cash would otherwise have been payable pursuant to the terms of such other plan equal to or less than the amount of such cash.
SECTION 11.

DEFERRAL.

The Committee shall have the discretion to determine whether, to what extent, and under what circumstances cash, shares of Common
Stock, other securities, other Awards, other property, and other amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either automatically or at
the election of the holder thereof or of the Committee. The timing of the election to defer any elective deferral shall comply with Section 409A. At
the time of any automatic or elective deferral, the time and form of payment shall be established consistent with the requirements of Section 409A. If
the time or form of payment is not so established, the form of payment shall be a lump sum and the time of payment shall be the date the Participant
experiences a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A. Gains from the exercise of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights
shall not be eligible for automatic or elective deferral.

SECTION 12.

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(a) Withholding. The Company shall have the right to deduct from all amounts paid to a Participant in cash (whether under this Plan or
otherwise) any taxes required by law to be withheld in respect of Awards under this Plan. In the case of any Award satisfied in the form of Common
Stock, no shares shall be issued unless and until arrangements satisfactory to the Company shall have been made to satisfy any withholding tax
obligations applicable with respect to such Award. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Committee may impose, the Company shall have the right to retain, or the Committee may, subject to such terms and conditions as it may establish
from time to time, permit Participants to elect to use shares of Common Stock (including Common Stock issuable in respect of an Award) to satisfy,
in whole or in part, the amount required to be withheld.

(b) Award Agreement. Each Award hereunder shall be evidenced in writing. The written agreement shall be delivered to the Participant and
shall incorporate the terms of the Plan by reference and specify the terms and conditions thereof and any rules applicable thereto.

(c) Nontransferability . Unless the Committee shall permit (on such terms and conditions as it shall establish) an Award to be transferred
to a member of the Participants immediate family or to a trust or similar vehicle for the benefit of such immediate family members (collectively, the
"Permitted Transferees"), no Award shall be assignable or transferable except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and except to the
extent required by law, no right or interest of any Participant shall be subject to any lien, obligation or liability of the Participant. All rights with respect
to Awards granted to a Participant under the Plan shall be exercisable during the Participants lifetime only by such Participant or, if applicable, the
Permitted Transferees or the Participants legal representative.
(d) No Right to Employment . No person shall have any claim or right to be granted an Award, and the grant of an Award shall not be
construed as giving a Participant the right to be retained in the employ of the Company, any Subsidiary or any Affiliate. Further, the Company and
each Subsidiary and Affiliate expressly reserves the right at any time to dismiss a Participant free from any liability, or any claim under the Plan,
except as provided herein or in any agreement entered into with respect to an Award.
(e) No Rights to Awards, No Shareholder Rights. No Participant or Eligible Employee shall have any claim to be granted any Award
under the Plan, and there is no obligation of uniformity of treatment of Participants and Eligible Employees. Subject to the provisions of the
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Plan and the applicable Award, no person shall have any rights as a shareholder with respect to any shares of Common Stock to be issued
under the Plan prior to the issuance thereof.

(f) Construction of the Plan. The validity, construction, interpretation, administration and effect of the Plan and of its rules and
regulations, and rights relating to the Plan, shall be determined solely in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut.
(g) Effective Date. January 25, 2002.
(h) Amendment or Termination of Plan. The Board or the Committee may terminate or suspend the Plan at any time, but the termination
or suspension will not adversely affect any vested Awards then outstanding under the Plan. No Award may be granted under the Plan after January 25,
2012 or such earlier date as the Plan is terminated by action of the Board or the Committee, The Plan may be amended or terminated at any time by the
Board, except that no amendment may be made without shareholder approval if the Committee determines that such approval is necessary to comply
with any tax or regulatory requirement, including any approval requirement which is a prerequisite for exemptive relief from Section 16 of the
Exchange Act, for which or with which the Committee determines that it is desirable to qualify or comply. The Committee may amend the term of
any Award or Option granted, retroactively or prospectively, but no amendment may adversely affect any vested Award or Option without the holders
consent.
(i) Compliance with Legal and Exchange Requirements. The Plan, the granting and exercising of Awards thereunder, and the other
obligations of the Company under the Plan, shall be subject to all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by
any regulatory or governmental agency as may be required. The Company, in its discretion, may postpone the granting and exercising of Awards, the
issuance or delivery of Common Stock under any Award or any other action permitted under the Plan to permit the Company, with reasonable
diligence, to complete such stock exchange listing or registration or qualification of such Common Stock or other required action under any federal
or state law, rule, or regulation and may require any Participant to make such representations and furnish such information as it may consider
appropriate in connection with the issuance or delivery of Common Stock in compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations. The Company
shall not be obligated by virtue of any provision of the Plan to recognize the exercise of any Award or to otherwise sell or issue Common Stock in
violation of any such laws, rules, or regulations; and any postponement of the exercise or settlement of any Award under this provision shall not
extend the term of such Awards, and neither the Company nor its directors or officers shall have any obligations or liability to the Participant with
respect to any Award (or stock issuable thereunder) that shall lapse because of such postponement.
(j) Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Plan shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included.

(k) Incapacity . Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a minor, an incompetent person or other person incapable of receipting therefor
shall be deemed paid when paid to such persons guardian or to the party providing or reasonably appearing to provide for the care of such person, and
such payment shall fully discharge any liability or obligation of the Committee, the Board, the Company and all other parties with respect thereto.

(1) Headings and Captions . The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience only, shall not be
considered part of this Plan, and shall not be employed in the construction of this Plan.
(m) Compliance with Section 409A. Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Incentive Stock granted under the Plan are intended
to be exempt from the requirements of Section 409A. All other Awards, including Incentive Units, granted under the Plan are intended to be
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either exempt from the requirements of Section 409A as short-term deferrals or, if not exempt, to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A. The
provisions of the Plan and any Awards granted under the Plan shall be construed in a manner consisted with such intent. In addition, notwithstanding
any other provision of this Plan or an Award agreement to the contrary, the Company will not pay or accelerate the payment of any amount that
constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of 409A, in violation of Section 409A. To the extent an Award that constitutes” deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A would otherwise vest and become payable upon a Change in Control or upon a Disability, as
provided herein or in an Award agreement, such Award shall vest as so provided but payment shall not be accelerated unless the Change in Control or
the Disability also satisfies the broadest definition of change in control or disability, as the case may be, permitted under Section 409A.

Any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and is payable under the Plan solely by reason of
a Participant’s termination of employment or separation from service shall be payable as soon as, and no later than, the Participant experiences a
“separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A, provided that if the Participant is a “specified employee” within the meaning of
Section 409A at the time of such separation from service, as determined by the Company in accordance with Section 409A, no payments shall be
made before the six-month anniversary of the Participant’s separation from service, at which time all payments that would otherwise have been made
during such six-month period shall be paid to the Participant in a lump sum.

Approved
Aetna Board of Directors
January 25, 2002
Amended and Restated as of September 26, 2003
Restated 3/11/2005
Restated 2/17/2006
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Exhibit 10.12
Amended 12/5/08

AETNA INC.
2001 ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN
(EFFECTIVE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2001)
SECTION 1. PURPOSE.
The purpose of this Plan is to provide a general incentive for designated key executive employees of the Companies in order to improve operating
results of the Companies and to reward such employees for the accomplishment of financial and strategic objectives of the Companies.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS.
Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words as used in the Plan shall have the meanings ascribed to each below, it being
understood that masculine, feminine and neuter pronouns are used interchangeably and that each comprehends the others.

(a) “Aetna” means Aetna Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation.

(b) “Board” means the Board of Directors of Aetna.

(c) “Change in Control” means the happening of any of the following:
(i) When any “person” as defined in Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and as used
in Sections 13(d) and 14 (d) thereof, including a “group” as defined in Section 13 (d) of the Exchange Act but excluding Aetna and any
subsidiary thereof and any employee benefit plan sponsored or maintained by Aetna or any subsidiary (including any trustee of such plan
acting as trustee), directly or indirectly, becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, as amended
from time to time), of securities of Aetna representing 20 percent or more of the combined voting power of Aetna’s then outstanding
securities;

(ii) When, during any period of 24 consecutive months, the individuals who, at the beginning of such period, constitute the Board (the
“Incumbent Directors”) cease for any reason other than death to constitute at least a majority thereof, provided that a director who was not a
director at the beginning of such 24-month period shall be deemed to have satisfied such 24-month requirement (and be an Incumbent
Director) if such director was elected by, or on the recommendation of or with the approval of, at least two-thirds of the directors
who then qualified as Incumbent Directors either actually (because they were directors at the beginning of such 24-month
period) or by prior operation of this paragraph (ii); or
(iii) The occurrence of a transaction requiring stockholder approval for the acquisition of Aetna by an entity other than Aetna or a Subsidiary
through purchase of assets, or by merger, or otherwise.

(d) “Committee” means the Committee on Compensation and Organization of the Board (or such other committee of the Board that the Board shall
designate from time to time) or any subcommittee thereof consisting of two or more directors each of whom is an “outside director” within the
meaning of Section 162 (m) and a “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

(e) “Common Stock” means the common stock, $.01 par value, of Aetna.

(f) “Companies” means one or more of Aetna, any of Aetna’s affiliated companies, and any other entity as to which (i) Aetna or any of Aetna’s
affiliated companies holds or is seeking to acquire an ownership interest, and (ii) has been included in the Plan by the Committee.
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(g) “Covered Employee” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 162(m).
(h) “Deferral Period” means the period of time during which payment of any amount otherwise payable under the Plan is deferred (i) at the
direction of the Committee pursuant to Section 6(b) or (ii) at the election of a Participant pursuant to Section 6(c).
(i) “Disability” means the occurrence of an event that would entitle a Participant to the payment of disability income under a specific long-term
disability income plan approved by the Companies and under which the Participant is enrolled, as such plan may be amended from time to time,
or if such Participant is not enrolled in a specific plan, as defined in a plan covering similarly situated executive officers of Aetna.
(j) “Fair Market Value” means on any date, with respect to a share of Common Stock, the closing price of a share of Common Stock as reported
by the Consolidated Tape of New York Stock Exchange Listed Shares on such date, or, if no shares were traded on such Exchange on such
date, on the next date on which the Common Stock is traded.

(k) “Participant” means (i) each Covered Employee and (ii) each other executive officer of Aetna as defined in Rule 3b-7 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 whom Aetna designates as a participant under the Plan.

(1) “Performance Period” means the calendar year or such other period as may be designated by the Committee.
(m) “Plan” means the Aetna Inc. 2001 Annual Incentive Plan, as set forth herein and as may be amended from time to time.

(n) “Retirement” means the retirement of a Participant from active service with the Companies at or after the age at which full pension benefits are
provided under a specific retirement plan maintained or contributed to by any of the Companies and under which the Participant has an accrued
benefit, as such plan may be amended from time to time, or if such Participant does not have an accrued benefit under any such plan, the age at
which full pension benefits are provided under a retirement plan covering similarly situated executive officers of Aetna.

(o) “Section 162(m)” means Section 162 (m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.
(p) “Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any regulations promulgated thereunder.
(q) “Share” means a share of Common Stock.

(r) “Stock Unit” means a unit representing the contractual right to receive the value of one Share.

(s) “Stock Unit Account” means, with respect to any Participant who has elected to have deferred amounts deemed invested in Stock Units, a
bookkeeping account established to record such Participant’s interest under the Plan related to such Stock Units.

(t) “Subsidiary” means any entity of which the Company possesses directly or indirectly fifty percent (50%) or more of the total combined voting
power of all classes of stock of such entity.

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATION.
The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have the responsibility of construing and interpreting the Plan, provided
that, in no event shall the Plan be interpreted in a manner which would cause any award to a Covered Employee to fail to qualify as performance-based
compensation under Section 162(m). The Committee shall establish the performance objectives for any Performance Period in accordance with
Section 5 and certify whether such performance objectives have been obtained. Any determination made or decision or action taken or to be taken by
the Committee, arising out of or in connection with the construction, administration, interpretation and effect of the Plan and of its rules and
regulations, shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law (but subject to the limitations on the discretion of the Committee applicable to awards intended
to be qualified as

2

performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)), be within the Committee’s absolute discretion and shall be conclusive and binding on any
and all Participants, any person claiming under or through a Participant and each of the Companies. The Committee may employ such legal counsel,
consultants and agents (including counsel or agents who are employees of any Company) as it may deem desirable for the administration of the Plan
and may rely upon any opinion received from any such counsel or consultant or agent and any computation received from such consultant or agent.
All expenses incurred in the administration of the Plan, including, without limitation, for the engagement of any counsel, consultant or agent, shall be
paid by the Companies. No member or former member of the Board or the Committee shall be liable for any act, omission, interpretation, construction
or determination made in connection with the Plan other than as a result of such individual’s willful misconduct.

SECTION 4. DETERMINATION OF PARTICIPANTS.
In addition to the Covered Employees, the Committee may designate as a Participant in the Plan any executive officer of Aetna as defined in Rule

3b-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Members of the Board who are not employees of any of the Companies shall not be eligible to
participate in the Plan.

SECTION 5. BONUSES.

(a) Performance Criteria. On or before the end of the first 90 days of each Performance Period (or such other date as may be required or
permitted under Section 162(m)), the Committee shall establish the performance objective or objectives that must be satisfied in order for a Participant
to receive a bonus for such Performance Period. Any such performance objectives will be based upon the relative or comparative achievement of one
or more of the following criteria, as determined by the Committee: (i) net income, (ii) earnings before income taxes, (iii) earnings per share, (iv)
return on shareholders equity, (v) expense management, (vi) profitability of an identifiable business unit or product, (vii) ratio of claims to revenues,
(viii) revenue growth, (ix) earnings growth, (x) total shareholder return, (xi) cash flow, (xii) return on assets, (xiii) pretax operating income, (xiv)
net economic profit (operating earnings minus a charge for capital), (xv) customer satisfaction, (xvi) provider satisfaction, (xvii) employee
satisfaction, (xviii) quality of networks, (xix) strategic innovation or (xx) any combination of the foregoing.

(b) Maximum Amount Payable. If the Committee certifies in writing that any one of the performance objectives established for the relevant
Performance Period under Section 5(a) has been satisfied, each Participant who is employed by the Companies on the last day of the Performance
Period for which the bonus is payable shall be entitled to receive a bonus in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000.

(c) Negative Discretion. Notwithstanding anything else contained in Section 5(b) to the contrary, the Committee shall have the right, in its
discretion, (i) to reduce or eliminate the amount otherwise payable to any Participant under Section 5(b) and (ii) to establish rules or procedures that
have the effect of limiting the amount payable to each Participant to an amount that is less than the maximum amount otherwise authorized under
Section 5(b).
(d) Affirmative Discretion. Notwithstanding any other provision in the Plan to the contrary, (i) the Committee shall have the right, in its
discretion, to pay to any Participant who is not a Covered Employee a bonus for a Performance Period in an amount up to the maximum bonus payable
under Section 5(b), based on individual performance or any other criteria that the Committee, in its discretion, deems to warrant the payment of such
a bonus, and (ii) in connection with the hiring of any person who is or becomes a Covered Employee, the Committee may provide for a minimum
bonus amount for such Covered Employee with respect to the Performance Period in which such Covered Employee is hired and/or for the next
following Performance Period, which would be payable to such Covered Employee regardless of whether the relevant performance objectives are
attained with respect to the relevant Performance Period.
(e) Methodology for Determinations. In making any determination under Section 5(c) or 5(d), the Committee shall give consideration to
such factors as it deems appropriate, including, without limitation, the degree to which the established performance objectives have been obtained and
whether the Participant has materially contributed to the overall results of the Companies. To assist it in making its determination under such Sections,
the Chairman of Aetna will furnish the Committee with specific recommendations (except with respect to the Chairman’s own award) and the
Committee may request such other advice and recommendations as it deems appropriate.
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SECTION 6. PAYMENT OF AWARDS.

(a) General Rule. Except as otherwise expressly provided hereunder, payment of any bonus amount determined under Section 5 shall be
made to each Participant as soon as practicable after the Committee certifies that one or more of the applicable performance objectives have been
attained (or, in the case of any bonus payable under the provisions of Section 5(d), after the Committee determines the amount of any such bonus),
provided, however, that payment shall be made during the first 2½ months of the calendar year following the end of the Performance period. Any
such payments shall be made in cash or, at the discretion of the Committee in awards under the Aetna Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan.

(b) Mandatory Deferral. Notwithstanding Section 6(a), the Committee may specify that a percentage of the bonus payable with respect to
any Participant, all Participants or any class of Participants for any Performance Period be mandatorily deferred for a Deferral Period specified by the
Committee. The percentage to be so deferred shall be determined by the Committee in its discretion. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee at
or after the date of such deferral, any amount payable in respect of an amount mandatorily deferred pursuant to this Section 6(b) shall be forfeited by
the Participant if

(i) the Participant’s employment with each of the Companies is terminated for cause (as determined in the discretion of the Committee under the
generally applicable practices and policies of whichever of the Companies employs the Participant);

(ii) the Participant voluntarily terminates employment, other than by reason of death, Disability or Retirement, prior to the end of the Deferral
Period specified by the Committee with respect to such mandatorily deferred amount; or
(iii) the Participant engages in any activity or conduct which, in the reasonable opinion of the Committee, is inimical to the best interest of the
Companies.

(c) Voluntary Deferral. Notwithstanding Section 6(a), the Committee may permit a Participant to defer payment of any portion of an award
that is not mandatorily deferred pursuant to Section 6(b) or to defer payment of an amount mandatorily deferred to a date or event later than that
specified by the Committee. Any such election shall be made in the calendar year prior to the start of the Performance period during which it will be
earned or, if permitted under Section 409A, at least six months prior to the end of such Performance Period.
(d) Accounting for Deferrals. Any amount deferred under this Section 6 shall be credited to one or more bookkeeping accounts for the
benefit of such Participant on the books and records of whichever of the Companies employs the Participant. Unless a Participant otherwise elects to
have such amounts deemed invested in Stock Units in accordance with Section 6(e), such amounts shall be deemed held in cash and shall be credited
with such rate of interest or such deemed rate of earnings as the Committee shall specify from time to time; provided that, unless the Committee
otherwise determines, no interest or earnings shall be credited during the Deferral Period specified by the Committee in respect of amounts mandatorily
deferred.
(e) Stock Units. The Committee may permit any Participant, all Participants or any class of Participants to elect that any or all amounts deferred
under the Plan (including amounts mandatorily deferred pursuant to Section 6(b)) be deemed invested, in whole or in part, in a number of whole or
fractional Stock Units. Any such Stock Units shall be credited to a Stock Unit Account for the benefit of such Participant. The number of whole and
fractional Stock Units credited to a Stock Unit Account in respect of any amount deferred under this Section 6 shall be equal to the quotient of (i) the
amount deferred divided by (ii) the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date such amount would have been paid under the Plan but for such deferral.
Whenever a dividend other than a dividend payable in the form of Shares is declared with respect to the Shares, the number of Stock Units in the
Participant’s Stock Unit Account shall be increased by the number of Stock Units determined by dividing (i) the product of (A) the number of Stock
Units in the Participant’s Stock Unit Account on the related dividend record date and (B) the amount of any cash dividend declared by the Company
on a Share (or, in the case of any dividend distributable in property other than Shares, the per share value of such dividend, as determined by the
Company for purposes of income tax reporting) by (ii) the Fair Market Value of a Share on the related dividend payment date. In the case of any
dividend declared on Shares which is payable in Shares, each Participant’s Stock Unit Account shall be increased by the number of Stock Units equal
to the product of (i) the number of Units credited to the Participant’s Stock Unit Account on the related dividend record date and (ii) the number of
Shares (including any fraction thereof)
4

distributable as a dividend on a Share. In the event of any stock split, recapitalization, reorganization or other corporate transaction affecting the
capital structure of Aetna, the Committee shall make such adjustments to the number of Stock Units credited to each Participant’s Stock Unit Account
as the Committee shall deem necessary or appropriate to prevent the dilution or enlargement of such Participant’s rights.

(f) Payment of Deferred Amounts. Payment of any amounts deferred under Section 6(b) or 6(c) shall be made in a lump sum on the date the
Participant experiences a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A unless another time and form of payment is elected or
otherwise established at the time of the mandatory or elective deferral, consistent with the requirements of Section 409A. The Participant may elect
payment in a lump sum or in five, ten or such other number of annual installments as shall be permitted by the Committee. The Committee may, in its
discretion, accelerate the payment of all or any portion of any Participant’s deferred amounts (regardless of whether the applicable Deferral Period or
period have terminated) in the event of an “unforeseeable emergency” within the meaning of Section 409A.
Any payment to be made in respect of deferred amounts shall be made in cash. For purposes of any cash distribution in respect of a Participant’s
Stock Units, the cash payable shall equal the product of (i) the number of whole and fractional Stock Units being distributed and (ii) the Fair Market
Value of a Share on the date as of which the distribution is to be made.

(g) Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, all performance objectives for the then current Performance Period shall
be deemed to have been achieved at target levels of performance and the Committee shall cause each Participant to be paid an amount in cash based on
such assumed performance for the entire Performance Period as soon as practicable but in no event later than 10 business days following the
occurrence of such Change in Control.
SECTION 7. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION.
Notwithstanding Section 8(a), the Board or the Committee may at any time amend, suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan; provided,
however, that no such action shall be effective without approval by the shareholders of Aetna to the extent necessary to continue to qualify the
amounts payable to Covered Employees as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment,
suspension, discontinuance or termination of the Plan shall adversely affect the rights of any Participant or beneficiary in respect of any award that the
Committee has determined to be payable to a Participant in accordance with the terms hereof or as to any amounts awarded, but payment of which has
been deferred, in accordance with Section 6.

SECTION 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(a) Effectiveness of the P1an. Subject to the approval of Aetna’s shareholders and the shareholders of Aetna Inc., a Connecticut corporation,
the Plan shall be effective with respect to calendar years beginning on or after January 1, 2001 and ending on or before December 31, 2010, unless
the term hereof is extended by action of the Board or the Committee.

(b) Designation of Beneficiary . Each Participant may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries (which beneficiary may be an entity other than
a natural person) to receive any payments which may be made following the Participant’s death. Such designation may be changed or canceled at any
time without the consent of any such beneficiary. Any such designation, change or cancellation must be made in a form approved by the Committee
and shall not be effective until received by the Committee. If no beneficiary has been named, or the designated beneficiary or beneficiaries shall have
predeceased the Participant, the beneficiary shall be the Participant’s spouse or, if no spouse survives the Participant, the Participant’s estate. If a
Participant designates more than one beneficiary, the rights of such beneficiaries shall be payable in equal shares, unless the Participant has designated
otherwise.

(c) No Right of Continued Employment. Nothing contained in this Plan shall create any rights of employment in any Participant or in any
way affect the right and power of any of the Companies to discharge any Participant or otherwise terminate the Participant’s employment at any time
with or without cause or to change the terms of employment in any way.
(d) No Limitation on Corporate Actions. Nothing contained in the Plan shall be construed to prevent any of the Companies from taking any
corporate action (including, without limitation, making provision for the payment of
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other incentive compensation, whether payable in cash or otherwise, or whether pursuant to a plan or otherwise) which is deemed by it
to be appropriate or in its best interest, whether or not such action would have an adverse effect on any awards made under the Plan. No
employee, beneficiary or other person shall have any claim against any of the Companies as a result of any such action.
(e) No Right to Specific Assets. Nothing contained in the Plan (including, without limitation, the provisions of Section 6 hereof) shall be
construed to create in any Participant or beneficiary any claim against, right to or lien on any particular assets of any of the Companies or to require
any of the Companies to segregate or otherwise set aside any assets or create any fund to meet any of its obligations hereunder.

(f) No Contractual Right to Bonus. Nothing in this Plan shall be construed to give any Participant any right, whether contractual or
otherwise, to receive any bonus with respect to any Performance Period unless and until the Committee shall have expressly determined that such a
Participant is entitled to receive such an award pursuant to the terms of the Plan.
(g) Nonalienation of Benefits. Except as expressly provided herein, no Participant or beneficiary shall have the power or right to transfer,
anticipate, or otherwise encumber the Participant’s interest under the Plan.
(h) Withholding. Any amount payable to a Participant or a beneficiary under this Plan shall be subject to any applicable Federal, state and local
income and employment taxes and any other amounts that any of the Companies is required at law to deduct and withhold from such payment.
(i) Severability. If any provision of this Plan is held unenforceable, the remainder of the Plan shall continue in full force and effect without
regard to such unenforceable provision and shall be applied as though the unenforceable provision were not contained in the Plan.
(j) Governing Law . The Plan shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Connecticut, without reference
to the principles of conflict of laws.

(k) Headings. Headings are inserted in this Plan for convenience of reference only and are to be ignored in a construction of the provisions of
the Plan.

(l) Compliance with Section 409A. The payment of bonuses under this Plan is intended to be exempt from the requirements of Section
409A as short-term deferrals. To the extent not exempt (i.e., in the case of deferrals permitted under Section 6(b) and (c)), payment is intended to
satisfy the requirements of Section 409A. The provisions of this Plan shall be construed in a manner consistent with such intent. The Company will
not pay or accelerate the payment of any deferred compensation in violation of Section 409A. To the extent an amount that constitutes “deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A would otherwise vest and become payable upon a Change in Control, such amount shall vest as
so provided but payment shall not be accelerated unless the Change in Control also satisfies the broadest definition of change in control permitted
under Section 409A.
Any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and is payable under this Plan solely by reason of a
Participant’s termination of employment or separation from service shall be payable as soon as, and no later than, the Participant experiences a
“separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A, provided that if the Participant is a “specified employee” within the meaning of
Section 409A at the time of such separation from service, as determined by the Company in accordance with Section 409A, no payments shall be
made before the six-month anniversary of the Participant’s separation from service, at which time all payments that would otherwise have been made
during such six-month period shall be paid to the Participant in a lump sum.
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AETNA INC.
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION PLAN
SECTION 1.

ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN; PURPOSE.

The Plan is hereby established to permit Eligible Directors of the Company, in recognition of their contributions to the Company, to receive
Shares in the manner described below. The Plan is intended to enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate qualified Directors and to enhance
the long-term mutuality of interest between Directors and stockholders of the Company.

SECTION 2.

DEFINITIONS.

When used in this Plan, the following terms shall have the definitions set forth in this Section:

“Accounts ” shall mean an Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account and Interest Account, as described in Section 9.
“Affiliate” shall mean any corporation or other entity (other than the Company or one of its Subsidiaries) in which the Company directly or
indirectly owns at least twenty percent (20%) of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity or at least twenty percent (20%) of
the ownership interests in such entity.
“Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations thereunder.
“Committee ” shall mean the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors or such other committee of the
Board as the Board shall designate from time to time.
“Company ” shall mean Aetna U.S. Healthcare Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation. Following consummation of the transactions contemplated
by the Merger Agreement, Aetna U.S. Healthcare Inc. will change its name to Aetna Inc.
“Compensation ” shall mean the annual retainer fees earned by an Eligible Director for service as a Director, the annual retainer fee, if any,
earned by an Eligible Director for service as a member of a committee of the Board of Directors; and any fees earned by an Eligible Director for
attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors and any of its committees.
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“Director” shall mean any member of the Board of Directors, whether or not such member is an Eligible Director.
“Disability ” shall mean an illness or injury that lasts at least six months, is expected to be permanent and renders a Director unable to carry
out his/her duties.

“Effective Date ” shall mean the date on which the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are consummated.
“Eligible Director” shall mean a member of the Board of Directors who is not an employee of the Company.
“Exchange Act” shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
“Fair Market Value” shall mean on any date, with respect to a Share, the closing price of a Share as reported by the Consolidated Tape of
the New York Stock Exchange Listed Shares on such date, or if no shares were traded on such Exchange on such date, on the next date on which
the Common Stock is traded.
“Government Service ” shall mean the appointment or election of the Eligible Director to a position with the federal, state or local
government or any political subdivision, agency or instrumentality thereof.
“Grant” shall mean a grant of Units under Section 5, Options under Section 7 and Other Stock Based Awards under Section 12.
“Interest Account” shall mean the bookkeeping account established to record the interests of an Eligible Director with respect to deferred
Compensation that is not deemed invested in Units.
“Merger Agreement” shall mean the Agreement and Plan of Restructuring and Merger among ING America Insurance Holdings, Inc.,
ANB Acquisition Corp., the Former Parent and for limited purposes only, ING Groep N.V., dated as of July 19, 2000.

“Option” shall mean the right granted under Section 7 to purchase the number of shares of Stock specified by the Board of Directors, at a
price and for the term fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Plan and subject to any other limitations and restrictions as this Plan and
the Board of Directors shall impose, which such option is not intended to qualify as an “incentive stock option” under Section 422 of the Code.
“Other Stock Based Awards” means any right granted under Section 12.
“Prior Plan ” shall mean the Aetna Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferred Stock and Deferred Compensation Plan.
“Retirement” shall mean (i) with respect to Units outstanding on January 26, 2007 and (ii) with respect to Units issued after January 26,
2007, termination of service as a Director on or after age 72.
“Section 409A ” shall mean Section 409A of the Code and the regulations issued thereunder, as amended from time to time.
“Shares” shall mean shares of Stock.
“Stock” shall mean the Common Shares, $.01 par value, of the Company.
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“Stock Unit Account ” shall mean, with respect to an Eligible Director who has elected to have deferred amounts deemed invested in Units,
a bookkeeping account established to record such Eligible Director’s interest under the Plan related to such Units.
“Subsidiary ” shall mean any entity of which the Company possesses directly or indirectly fifty percent (50%) or more of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of such entity.
“Unit” shall mean a contractual obligation of the Company to deliver a Share or pay cash based on the Fair Market Value of a Share to an
Eligible Director or the beneficiary or estate of such Eligible Director as provided herein.
“Year of Service as a Director” shall mean a period of 12 months of service as a Director, measured from the effective date of a Unit.
SECTION 3.

ADMINISTRATION.

The Plan shall be administered by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the responsibility of construing and interpreting
the Plan and of establishing and amending such rules and regulations as it deems necessary or desirable for the proper administration of the Plan. Any
decision or action taken or to be taken by the Board of Directors, arising out of or in connection with the construction, administration, interpretation
and effect of the Plan and of its rules and regulations, shall, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, be within its absolute discretion
(except as otherwise specifically provided herein) and shall be conclusive and binding upon all Eligible Directors and any person claiming under or
through any Eligible Director.

Subject to the terms of the Plan and applicable law, and in addition to other express powers and authorizations conferred on the Board of
Directors by the Plan, the Board of Directors shall have full power and authority to: (i) determine the number of Shares to be covered by, or with
respect to which payments, rights, or other matters are to be calculated in connection with, Units and Options; (ii) determine the terms and conditions
of any Option; (iii) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument or agreement relating to, or Grant made under, the Plan; (iv) establish, amend,
suspend, or waive such rules and regulations and appoint such agents as it shall deem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan; and (v)
make any other determination and take any other action that the Board of Directors deems necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan.
The Plan shall be administered such that awards under the Plan shall be deemed to be exempt under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act (“Rule 16b-3”), as such Rule is in effect on the Effective Date of the Plan and as it may be
subsequently amended from time to time.

SECTION 4.

SHARES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE.

4.1
Maximum Number of Shares. The aggregate number of Shares with respect to which Grants may be awarded to Eligible
Directors under the Plan shall not exceed 250,000 Shares, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.2 below, plus that number of Shares equal to
the aggregate number of Shares credited to each Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account as a result of transfers of stock units from the Prior Plan
pursuant to Section 9.10. If any Unit or Option is settled in cash or is forfeited without a distribution of Shares, the Shares otherwise subject to such
Unit or Option shall again be available for Grants hereunder. [As of March 11, 2005, the shares available for issuance under the Plan were
adjusted pursuant to Section 4.2 as a result of the Company’s 2005 2-for-1 stock split. As of February 17, 2006, the shares available
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for issuance under the Plan were adjusted pursuant to Section 4.2 as a result of the Company’s 2006 2-for-1 stock split.]
4.2
Adjustment for Corporate Transactions. In the event that any stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, recapitalization,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, exchange of shares, warrants or rights offering to purchase Stock at a price
substantially below Fair Market Value, or other similar event affects the Stock such that an adjustment is required to preserve, or to prevent
enlargement of, the benefits or potential benefits made available under the Plan, then the Board of Directors shall adjust the number and kind of shares
which thereafter may be awarded under the Plan and the number of Units and Options and the exercise price thereof that have been, or may be,
granted under the Plan. Additionally, the Board of Directors may make provisions for a cash payment to an Eligible Director; to the extent any amount
constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A, no such provision shall change the timing or form of payment of such
amount unless such changes are permitted under Section 409A.
SECTION 5.

UNIT GRANTS.

5.1
Unit Awards. Each Eligible Director (other than any Eligible Director who has received an award under the Prior Plan) who is
first elected or appointed to the Board of Directors on or after the Effective Date of the Plan shall be awarded 6,000 Units on such date (or such other
number of Units as the Board shall determine). In addition, on the date of each Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company occurring after 2000
and during the term of the Plan an eligible Director serving as a Director on such date shall be awarded such number of Units as the Board shall
determine.
5.2
Delivery of Shares. Subject to satisfaction of the applicable vesting requirements set forth in Section 6 and except as otherwise
provided in Section 8 or in the award agreement, all Shares that are subject to any Units shall be delivered to an Eligible Director and transferred on
the books of the Company on the date which is the first business day of the month immediately following the termination of such Eligible Director’s
service as a Director. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Eligible Director may elect that all or a portion of his or her Units shall be payable in cash on
the first business day of the month immediately following the termination of such Eligible Director’s service as a Director. Any fractional Shares to
be delivered in respect of Units shall be settled in cash based upon the Fair Market Value on the date any whole Shares are transferred on the books of
the Company to the Eligible Director or the Eligible Director’s beneficiary. The amount of any cash payment shall be determined by multiplying the
number of Units and the number of Units subject to a cash payment election by the Fair Market Value on the last business day preceding the payment
date. Upon the delivery of a Share (or cash with respect to a whole or fractional Share) pursuant to the Plan, the corresponding Unit (or fraction
thereof) shall be canceled and be of no further force or effect. If an award agreement provides for accelerated payment upon acceptance of a position
in Government Service, such acceleration shall be made only to the extent permitted under Section 409A (including those provisions relating to
compliance with ethics agreements with the Federal Government, ethics laws and conflict of interest laws).
5.3
Dividend Equivalents. An Eligible Director shall have no rights as a shareholder of the Company with respect to any Units until
Shares are delivered to the Director pursuant to this Section 5 hereof; provided that, each Eligible Director shall have the right to receive an amount
equal to the dividend per Share for the applicable dividend payment date (which, in the case of any dividend distributable in property other than
Shares, shall be the per Share value of such dividend, as determined by the Company for purposes of income tax reporting) times the number of
Units held by such Eligible Director on the record date for the payment of such dividend (a “Dividend Equivalent”). Each Eligible Director may
elect, prior to any calendar year, whether the Dividend Equivalent will be (i) paid in cash, on each date on which dividends are paid to shareholders
with respect to Shares; (ii) treated as reinvested in an additional
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number of Units determined by dividing (A) the cash amount of any such dividend by (B) the Fair Market Value on the related dividend
payment date (in which case, such additional Units shall be payable as provided herein); or (iii) deferred and credited to the Eligible
Director’s Interest Account pursuant to Section 9.4.
SECTION 6.

UNIT VESTING.

6.1
Service Requirements. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 6 or Section 8, an Eligible Director shall vest in his or her
Units as provided in this Section 6.1. If an Eligible Director terminates service prior to the completion of three Years of Service as a Director, the
number of Shares to be delivered to such Eligible Director in respect of Units granted upon his or her election to the Board shall equal the amount
obtained by multiplying 6,000 by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full months of service completed by such Director from the
applicable date of Unit grant (counting any partial month of service as a full month) and the denominator of which is 36. If an Eligible Director
terminates service prior to the completion of
one Year of Service as a Director from the date of Unit grant with respect to any annual grant of Units made hereunder, the number of Shares to be
delivered to such Eligible Director in respect of such Unit grant shall equal the amount obtained by multiplying the number of Units subject to such
Unit grant by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full months of service completed by such Director from the applicable date of the
Unit grant (counting any partial month of service as a full month) and the denominator of which is 12. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and except as
provided in Section 6.2, if the Eligible Director terminates service by reason of his/her death, Disability, Retirement, or acceptance of a position in
Government Service prior to the completion of the period of service required to be performed to fully vest in any Unit grant, all Shares that are the
subject of such Unit grant (or, if elected by the Eligible Director, the value thereof in cash) shall be delivered to such Eligible Director (or the Eligible
Director’s beneficiary or estate).
6.2
Six Months’ Minimum Service. If an Eligible Director has completed less than six consecutive months of service as a Director,
all Units held by such Eligible Director shall be immediately forfeited. If an Eligible Director has completed less than six consecutive months of
service from any date on which any annual grant of Units is made, all Units held by such Eligible Director that relate to such annual grant of units
shall be immediately forfeited.
6.3
Distribution on Death. Except as provided in Section 6.2, in the event of the death of an Eligible Director, the Shares
corresponding to such Units or, at the election of the Eligible Director’s beneficiary or estate, the Fair Market Value thereof in cash shall be delivered
to the beneficiary designated by the Eligible Director on a form provided by the Company, or, in the absence of such designation, to the Eligible
Director’s estate.
SECTION 7.

STOCK OPTIONS.

(a) Grant. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to award Options to an Eligible Director
and to determine (i) the number of Shares to be covered by each Option, (ii) subject to Section 7(b), the exercise price of the Option and (iii) the
conditions and limitations applicable to the exercise of the Option.

(b) Exercise Price. The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the date of grant.

(c) Exercise. Each Option shall be exercised at such times and subject to such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may specify
at the time of the award of such Option or thereafter. No shares shall be delivered pursuant to any exercise of an Option unless arrangements
satisfactory to the Board of Directors have been made to assure full payment of the exercise price therefor. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, payment of the exercise price may be made in cash or its equivalent or, if and to the extent permitted by the Board of Directors by
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exchanging Shares owned by the Eligible Director (which are not the subject of any pledge or other security interest) either actually or
by attestation, or by a combination of the foregoing, provided that the combined value of all cash and cash equivalents and the Fair
Market Value of any such Shares so tendered to the Company, valued as of the date of such tender, is at least equal to such exercise
price.
(d) No Eligible Director shall have any rights as a shareholder with respect to any Shares to be issued pursuant to any Option under the Plan
prior to the issuance thereof.
SECTION 8.

CHANGE IN CONTROL.

8.1
Immediate Vesting. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, each Eligible Director’s right and interest in Units and Options
which have not previously vested shall become vested and nonforfeitable.
8.2
Cash Settlement. (a) (i) Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, in lieu of delivering Shares with respect to the Units then
held by an Eligible Director, the Company shall pay such Eligible Director, not later than 60 days after the Change in Control occurs, cash in an
aggregate amount equal to the product of (x) the number of Shares that are subject to all Units credited to such Eligible Director at the time of the
Change in Control multiplied by (y) the Fair Market Value on the date of the Change in Control.
(ii)
Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company shall pay to each Eligible Director cash in an amount equal to the
accrued value of such Eligible Director’s Interest Account.

(b)
Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, in lieu of delivering Shares with respect to each Option then held by an Eligible
Director, the Company shall pay such Eligible Director, not later than 60 days after the Change in Control occurs, cash in an aggregate amount equal
to the product of (i) the number of Shares that are subject to each Option held by such Eligible Director at the time of the Change in Control multiplied
by (ii) the amount by which the Fair Market Value on the date of the Change of Control exceeds the exercise price of such Option.
(c)
Notwithstanding (a) and (b) above, payment of any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” under Section 409A shall
vest as provided above but payment shall not be accelerated due to the Change in Control unless the Change in Control also satisfies the broadest
definition of change in control permitted under Section 409A.

8.3

Definition. “Change in Control” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

(i)
When any “person” as defined in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) thereof,
including a “group” as defined in Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act but excluding the Company and any Subsidiary thereof and any employee
benefit plan sponsored or maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary (including any trustee of such plan acting as trustee), directly or indirectly,
becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, as amended from time to time), of securities of the Company
representing 20 percent or more of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding securities;

(ii)
When, during any period of 24 consecutive months the individuals who, at the beginning of such period, constitute the Board (the
“Incumbent Directors”) cease for any reason other than death to constitute at least a majority thereof, provided that a Director who was not a Director
at the beginning of such 24-month period shall be deemed to have satisfied such 24-month requirement (and be an Incumbent Director) if such
Director was elected by, or on the
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recommendation of or with the approval of, at least two-thirds of the Directors who then qualified as Incumbent Directors either
actually (because they were directors at the beginning of such 24-month period) or by prior operation of this Paragraph (ii); or
(iii)
The occurrence of a transaction requiring stockholder approval for the acquisition of the Company by an entity other than the
Company or a Subsidiary through purchase of assets, or by merger, or otherwise.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall a Change in Control be deemed to have occurred (i) as a result of the formation of a
Holding Company, or (ii) with respect to a Director if the Director is part of a “group”, within the meaning of Section 13(a)(3) of the
Exchange Act as in effect on the effective date of the Change in Control transaction. In addition, for purposes of the definition of “Change
in Control” a person engaged in the business as an underwriter of securities shall not be deemed to be a “beneficial owner” of, or to
“beneficially own”, any securities acquired through such person’s participation in good faith in a firm commitment underwriting until the
expiration of forty days after the date of such acquisition.

For purposes of this Section 8.3, the term Holding Company means an entity that becomes a holding company for the Company or
its business as part of any reorganization, merger, consolidation or other transaction, provided that the outstanding shares of common stock
of such entity and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such entity entitled to vote generally in the election
of directors is, immediately after such reorganization, merger, consolidation or other transaction, beneficially owned, directly or indirectly,
by all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of Common Stock and the
combined voting power of the outstanding voting securities, respectively, of the Company immediately prior to such reorganization, merger,
consolidation or other transaction in substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to such reorganization, merger,
consolidation or other transaction, of such outstanding voting stock.

SECTION 9.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM.

9.1
Election to Defer. On or before December 31 of any calendar year, an Eligible Director may elect to defer receipt of all or any
part of any Compensation payable in respect of the calendar year following the year in which such election is made, and to have such amounts
credited, in whole or in part, to a Stock Unit Account or an Interest Account. Any person who shall become an Eligible Director during any calendar
year may elect, not later than the 30th day after his or her term as a Director begins, to defer payment of all or any part of his or her Compensation
payable for the portion of such calendar year following such election period.
9.2
Method of Election. A deferral election shall be made by written notice filed with the Corporate Secretary of the Company. Such
election shall continue in effect (including with respect to Compensation payable for subsequent calendar years) unless and until the Eligible Director
revokes or modifies such election by written notice filed with the Corporate Secretary of the Company. Any such revocation or modification of a
deferral election shall become effective as of the end of the calendar year in which such notice is given and only with respect to Compensation
payable for services rendered thereafter. Amounts credited to the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account prior to the effective date of any such
revocation or modification of a deferral election shall not be affected by such revocation or modification and shall be distributed only in accordance
with the otherwise applicable terms of the Plan. An Eligible Director who has revoked an election to participate in the Plan may file a new election to
defer Compensation payable for services to be rendered in the calendar year following the year in which such election is filed.
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9.3
Investment Election. At the time an Eligible Director elects to defer receipt of Compensation pursuant to Section 9.1, the Eligible
Director shall designate in writing the portion of such Compensation, stated as a whole percentage, to be credited to the Interest Account (or such
other account as may be established from time to time by the Committee) and the portion to be credited to the Stock Unit Account. If an Eligible
Director fails to notify the Corporate Secretary as to how to allocate any Compensation between the Accounts, 100% of such Compensation shall be
credited to the Interest Account. By written notice to the Corporate Secretary of the Company, an Eligible Director may change the manner in which
the Compensation payable with respect to services rendered after the end of such calendar year are allocated among the Accounts.

9.4
Dividend Equivalents. In addition to the deferral of Compensation permitted under Section 9.1, an Eligible Director may elect,
in the manner and at the time described in Section 5.3, to have Dividend Equivalents payable in respect of his or her Units credited to his or her
Interest Account in the manner and at the time described in such Section 5.3.
9.5
Interest Account. Any Compensation allocated to the Interest Account shall be credited to the Interest Account as of the date such
Fees would have been paid to the Eligible Director. Any amounts credited to the Interest Account shall be credited with interest at the same rate and in
the manner in which interest is credited under the Fixed Investment Fund (or, if such fund no longer exists, the fund with the investment criteria most
clearly comparable to that of such Fund) under the Aetna Inc. Incentive Savings Plan (or any successor thereto).
9.6
Stock Unit Account. Any Compensation allocated to the Stock Unit Account shall be deemed to be invested in a number of Units
equal to the quotient of (i) such Compensation divided by (ii) the Fair Market Value on the date the Fees then being allocated to the Stock Unit
Account would otherwise have been paid. Fractional Units shall be credited, but shall be rounded to the nearest hundredth percentile, with amounts
equal to or greater than .005 rounded up and amounts less than .005 rounded down. Whenever a dividend other than a dividend payable in the form of
Shares is declared with respect to the Shares, the number of Units in the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account shall be increased by the number of
Units determined by dividing (i) the product of (A) the number of Units in the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account on the related dividend record
date, and (B) the amount of any cash dividend declared by the Company on a Share (or, in the case of any dividend distributable in property other than
Shares, the per share value of such dividend, as determined by the Company for purposes of income tax reporting), by (ii) the Fair Market Value on
the related dividend payment date. In the case of any dividend declared on Shares which is payable in Shares, the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit
Account shall be increased by the number of Units equal to the product of (i) the number of Units credited to the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit
Account on the related dividend record date, and (ii) the number of Shares (including any fraction thereof) distributable as a dividend on a Share.
9.7
Distribution Election. At the time an Eligible Director makes a deferral election pursuant to Section 9.1, the Eligible Director
shall also file with the Corporate Secretary of the Company a written election ( a “Distribution Election”) with respect to whether:
(i) the aggregate amount, if any, credited to the Interest Account at any time and the value of any Units credited to the Stock Unit Account
shall be distributed in cash, in Shares or in a combination thereof at the election of the Director;

(ii) such distribution shall commence on the first business day of the calendar month following the date the Eligible Director ceases to be a
Director or on the first business day of any calendar year following the calendar year in which the Eligible Director ceases to be a Director; and
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(iii) such distribution shall be in one lump sum payment or in such number of annual installments (not to exceed ten) as the Eligible Director
may designate.

The amount of any installment payment shall be determined by multiplying the amount credited to the Accounts of an Eligible Director
immediately prior to the distribution by a fraction, the numerator of which is one and the denominator of which is the number of installments
(including the current installment) remaining to be paid. An Eligible Director may change the timing or form of distribution under (ii) or (iii) above
only if such change: (I) is made at least twelve (12) months before the distribution otherwise would be made, (II) does not take effect until twelve
(12) months after it is made, (III) delays commencement of the distribution by at least five (5) years, and (IV) otherwise complies with the
requirements of Section 409A.

9.8
Financial Hardship Withdrawal. If an Eligible Director experiences an “unforeseeable emergency” as defined in Section
409A, the Eligible Director may submit to the Corporate Secretary of the Company a written request for a distribution, including such documentation
as the Committee may request. The Committee shall review the request and make a determination approving or denying the requested distribution. If
approved, distribution shall be made on the first business day of the month following the approval and shall be limited to such amount as is reasonably
necessary to alleviate the Eligible Director’s emergency need, taking into account other assets available to the Director to the extent required by
Section 409A.
9.9
Timing and Form of Distributions. Any distribution to be made hereunder, whether in the form of a lump sum payment or
installments, following the termination of an Eligible Director’s service as a Director shall commence in accordance with the Distribution Election
made by the Eligible Director pursuant to Section 9.7. If an Eligible Director fails to specify a form of payment for a distribution in accordance with
Section 9.7, the distribution from the Interest Account shall be made in cash and the distribution from the Stock Unit Account shall be made in
Shares. If an Eligible Director fails to specify in accordance with Section 9.7 a commencement date for a distribution or whether such distribution
shall be made in a lump sum payment or a number of installments, such distribution shall be made in a lump sum payment and commence on the first
business day of the month immediately following the date on which the Eligible Director ceases to be a Director. In the case of any distribution being
made in annual installments, each installment after the first installment shall be paid on the first business day of each subsequent calendar year until the
entire amount subject to such Distribution Election shall have been paid.
9.10
Effect on Prior Plan. Subject to approval of the Company’s sole shareholder and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the amounts standing to the credit of each Eligible Director’s stock unit account under the Prior Plan shall be
transferred to the Plan and credited to the Eligible Director’s Stock Unit Account. Any elections in effect under such Prior Plan shall be deemed to be
an election made pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of this Section 9 unless and until the Eligible Director elects to change such elections
in accordance with the provisions of this Section 9.

SECTION 10.

UNFUNDED STATUS.

The Company shall be under no obligation to establish a fund or reserve in order to pay the benefits under the Plan. A Unit represents a
contractual obligation of the Company to deliver Shares or pay cash to a Director as provided herein. The Company has not segregated or earmarked
any Shares or any of the Company’s assets for the benefit of a Director or his/her beneficiary or estate, and the Plan does not, and shall not be
construed to, require the Company to do so. The Director and his/her beneficiary or estate shall have only an unsecured, contractual right against the
Company with respect to any Units granted or amounts credited to a Director’s Accounts hereunder, and such right shall not be deemed superior to the
right of any other creditor. Units shall not be deemed to constitute options or rights to purchase Stock.
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SECTION 11.

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION.

The Plan may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors, provided that, except as provided in Section 4.2, the Board of Directors
may not, without approval of the shareholders of the Company increase the number of Shares which may be awarded under the Plan. The Plan shall
terminate on April 30, 2010. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment or termination of the Plan shall materially and adversely affect any rights
of any Director under any Grant made pursuant to the Plan. Unless the Board otherwise specifies at the time of such termination, a termination of the
Plan will not result in the distribution of the amounts credited to an Eligible Director’s Accounts.

SECTION 12.

OTHER STOCK-BASED AWARDS.

The Board of Directors shall have authority to grant to Eligible Directors an “Other Stock-Based Award”, which shall consist of any right
which is (i) not a Grant described in Sections 5 or 7 above and (ii) a Grant of Shares or a Grant denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part
by reference to, or otherwise based on or related to, Shares (including, without limitation, securities convertible into Shares ), as deemed by the Board
of Directors to be consistent with the purposes of the Plan; provided that any such rights must comply, to the extent deemed desirable by the Board
of Directors, with Rule 16b-3 and applicable law. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable award agreement, the Board of Directors shall
determine the terms and conditions of any such Other Stock-Based Award.

SECTION 13.

GENERAL PROVISIONS.

13.1
No Right to Serve as a Director. This Plan shall not impose any obligations on the Company to retain any Eligible Director as a
Director nor shall it impose any obligation on the part of any Eligible Director to remain as a Director of the Company.
13.2
Construction of the Plan. The validity, construction, interpretation, administration and effect of the Plan, and the rights relating
to the Plan, shall be determined solely in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut.
13.3
No Right to Particular Assets. Nothing contained in this Plan and no action taken pursuant to this Plan shall create or be
construed to create a trust of any kind or any fiduciary relationship between the Company and any Eligible Director, the executor, administrator or
other personal representative or designated beneficiary of such Eligible Director, or any other persons. Any reserves that may be established by the
Company in connection with Units granted under this Plan shall continue to be treated as the assets of the Company for federal income tax purposes
and remain subject to the claims of the Company’s creditors. To the extent that any Eligible Director or the executor, administrator, or other personal
representative of such Eligible Director, acquires a right to receive any payment from the Company pursuant to this Plan, such right shall be no greater
than the right of an unsecured general creditor of the Company.

13.4
Listing of Shares and Related Matters. If at any time the Board of Directors shall determine that listing, registration or
qualification of the Shares covered by this Plan upon any national securities exchange or under any state or federal law, or the consent or approval of
any governmental regulatory body, is necessary as a condition of, or in connection with, the delivery of Shares under this Plan, no Shares will be
delivered unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval shall have been effected or obtained, or otherwise provided for.
13.5
Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Plan shall be held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not effect any other provisions hereof, and this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included.
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13.6
Incapacity. Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a minor, an incompetent person or other person incapable of receipting
therefor shall be deemed paid when paid to such person’s guardian or to the party providing or reasonably appearing to provide for the care of such
person, and such payment shall fully discharge any liability or obligation of the Board of Directors, the Company and all other parties with respect
thereto.
13.7
Nontransferability. No Grant may be assigned or transferred, in whole or in part, either directly or by operation of law (except
in the event of an Eligible Director’s death by will or applicable laws of descent and distribution), including, but not by way of limitation, by
execution, levy, garnishment, attachment, pledge, bankruptcy or in any other manner, and no such right or interest of any Eligible Director in the Plan
shall be subject to any obligation or liability of such Eligible Director.
13.8
Headings and Captions. The headings and captions herein are provided for reference and convenience only, shall not be
considered part of this Plan, and shall not be employed in the construction of this Plan.
13.9
409A Compliance. All awards granted under the Plan are intended to be exempt from the requirements of Section 409A or, if
not exempt, to satisfy the requirements of Section 409A and the provisions of the Plan, and any awards granted under the Plan shall be construed in a
manner consistent therewith. In addition, notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan or an award agreement to the contrary, the Company will
not pay or accelerate the payment of any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A, in violation of
Section 409A. To the extent any amount of “deferred compensation” as defined in Section 409A would otherwise vest and become payable upon a
Change in Control or upon a Disability, as provided herein or in an award agreement, any such award shall vest as so provided but payment shall not
be accelerated unless the Change in Control or the Disability also satisfies the broadest definition of change in control or disability (as the case may
be) permitted under Section 409A.
Any amount that constitutes “deferred compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A and is payable under the Plan solely by reason of
an Eligible Director’s termination or cessation of service as a Director shall be payable as soon as, and no later than, the Eligible Director experiences
a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.
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Exhibit 10.18

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement
Amendment Number 2 to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of December 5, 2003 (the “Employment Agreement”) as
further amended on January 27, 2006, by and between Aetna Inc. (“Aetna”), a Pennsylvania corporation and Ronald A. Williams (“Executive”).

Whereas, Aetna and Executive have previously entered into the Employment Agreement;
Whereas, the Employment Agreement was amended on January 27, 2006 (“Amendment Number 1”);

Whereas, Aetna and Executive wish to further amend the Employment Agreement to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 and the regulations issued thereunder, as amended from time to time (“Section 409A”);
Now, Therefore, the Employment Agreement is further amended effective December 31, 2008, as follows:

1. Section 2.02(a) is amended to add the following sentence at the end thereof: “All bonuses shall be paid no later than March 15th of the
calendar year immediately following the year to which such bonuses relate.”

2.

Section 2.03(c) is amended to add the following sentence at the end thereof: “Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, the parties agree that
Executive is not entitled to any vested benefit under his prior employer’s defined benefit plan and therefore no offset shall be applied.”

3. Section 2.03(d) is amended to delete the last sentence thereof and replace it with the following sentence: “The Pension Benefit shall be
payable in the form and at the times provided, from time to time, in the Retirement Plan and the Supplemental Pension Benefit Plan, as
applicable.”

4.

Section 3.02(b)(i) is amended to add the following sentence at the end thereof:

“The payment date with respect to restricted stock units (RSUs) shall be the vesting date, provided, however, that to the extent any Award
constitutes ‘deferred compensation’ within the meaning of Section 409A, such Award shall vest as provided herein but payment shall not
accelerate unless the Change in Control would also be treated as having resulted in the occurrence of a ‘change in control event’ as such term
is defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(5)(i) (a “ 409A Change in Control”).”

5. Section 3.02(b)(ii) is amended to add the following at the end of the last sentence thereof: “, including the last sentence thereof”.
6. Section 3.03(y) is amended to add the following phrase at the end thereof: “, provided that a Change in Control must occur within six (6)
months following the Qualifying Event for this Section 3.03(y) to be applicable.

7. Section 3.03(a) is amended to (i) delete the words “as soon as practicable”; (ii) add the following phrase after the words “document
business expenses”: “, payable in accordance with the Company’s payroll practice or applicable plan, policy or program”; and (iii) add the
following phrase after the words “(the “Pro-Rata Bonus Amount”)”: “, payable on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Qualifying Event.”.

8. Section 3.03(b) is amended to delete the words “as soon as practicable a lump sum amount”.
9. Section 3.03 is amended to add a new paragraph (d) as follows:
“(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing:

(i) if the Qualifying Event occurs after a Change in Control and such Change in Control is also a 409A Change in
Control, then (A) the amounts provided in Section 3.04(b)(i) shall be paid in a lump sum amount on the sixtieth (60th) day
following the Qualifying Event (and subject to the Delay Period, if applicable) and (B) the excess of the amounts provided in
Section 3.03(b)(i) and (ii) over the amounts provided in Section 3.04(b)(i) shall be paid in a lump sum amount on the date
that is six (6) months and one (1) day following the Qualifying Event;
(ii) if the Qualifying Event occurs after a Change in Control and such Change in Control is not a 409A Change in Control,
then (A) the amounts provided in Section 3.04(b)(i) shall be paid in accordance with such Section 3.04(b)(i), (B) the excess
of the amounts provided in Section 3.03(b)(i) and (ii) over the amounts provided in Section 3.04(b)(i) shall be paid in a lump
sum amount on the date that is six (6) months and one (1) day following the Qualifying Event and (C) all other benefits and
payments provided in Section 3.04(b) shall be paid or provided in accordance with such Section 3.04(b) and any excess of
benefits and payments provided in Section 3.03 shall be paid or provided in accordance with such Section 3.03;
(iii) If a Contemplation of a Change in Control is applicable and a Change in Control occurs after a Qualifying Event
(whether or not such Change in Control is also a 409A Change in Control), then (A) the amounts provided in Section
3.04(b)(i) shall continue to be paid

in accordance with such Section 3.04(b)(i), (B) the excess of the amounts provided in Section 3.03(b)(i) and (ii) over the
amounts provided in Section 3.04(b)(i) shall be paid in a lump sum amount on the date that is six (6) months and one (1) day
following the Qualifying Event and (C) all other benefits and payments provided in Section 3.04(b) shall be paid or provided
in accordance with such Section 3.04(b) and any excess of benefits and payments provided in Section 3.03 shall be paid or
provided in accordance with such Section 3.03.

10.

Section 3.04(b)(i) is amended to add the following language at the end thereof: “provided that such release shall be signed and returned
to the Company not later than 60 days following the Qualifying Event and provided further that any payment required hereunder shall not
begin until the sixtieth (60th) day following a Qualifying Event.”

11.

Section 3.06 is deleted in its entirety.

12.

Section 4.02(b) is amended to delete the last sentence thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “In the event that the
Payments are subject to reduction hereunder, the Company will reduce first the Payments made under Section 3.03(b) (or 3.04(b)(i), as
the case may be) and then, if necessary, will reduce other Payments pro-rata.”

13.

Section 4.04(a) is amended to add the following at the end thereof: “; provided, however, that entitlement to payment under this Section
4.04(a) shall not accelerate payment of, or change the form of payment with respect to, the original Payments that were reduced under
Section 4.02(b).”

14.

Section 4.04(b) is amended to delete the second sentence thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “In the event that the
Redetermined Payments are subject to reduction under this paragraph and any such portion of the Redetermined Payments has not yet
been paid to Executive, the Company will reduce first the portion of such unpaid Redetermined Payments that is attributable to amounts
payable under Section 3.03(b) (or 3.04(b)(i), as the case may be) and then, if necessary, will reduce other portions of the Redetermined
Payments pro-rata.”

15.

Section 6.02 is amended to (i) delete the words “or connection with a termination in a Contemplation of a Change in Control” and (ii)
add the following at the end thereof: “or the arbitrator determines that a termination occurred in connection with a Contemplation of a
Change in Control, provided that payment for Executive’s legal fees and expenses shall be made within sixty (60) days following the
applicable determination.”

16.

Section 6.17 is amended in its entirety to add the following paragraphs:

“(a)
The intent of the parties is that payments and benefits under this Agreement comply with or be exempt from Internal Revenue
Code Section 409A and the regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (collectively “ Code Section 409A ”) and, accordingly, to the
maximum extent permitted, this Agreement shall be interpreted to be in compliance therewith. If Executive notifies the Company (with
specificity as to the reason therefor) that Executive believes that any provision of this Agreement (or of any award of compensation,
including equity compensation or benefits) would cause Executive to incur any additional tax or interest under Code Section 409A or the
Company independently makes such determination, the Company shall, after consulting with Executive, reform such provision to try to
comply with or be exempt from Code Section 409A through good faith modifications to the minimum extent reasonably appropriate to
conform with Code Section 409A. To the extent that any provision hereof is modified in order to comply with Code Section 409A, such
modification shall be made in good faith and shall, to the maximum extent reasonably possible, maintain the original intent and economic
benefit to Executive and the Company of the applicable provision without violating the provisions of Code Section 409A.
(b)
A termination of employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of any provision of this Agreement providing for
the payment of any amounts or benefits upon or following a termination of employment unless such termination is also a “separation from
service” within the meaning of Code Section 409A and, for purposes of any such provision of this Agreement, references to a
“termination,” “termination of employment” or like terms shall mean “separation from service.” If Executive is deemed on the date of
termination to be a “specified employee” within the meaning of that term under Code Section 409A(a)(2)(B), then with regard to any
payment that is considered deferred compensation under Code Section 409A payable on account of a “separation from service,” such
payment or benefit shall be made or provided at the date which is the earlier of (i) the expiration of the six (6)-month period measured from
the date of such “separation from service” of Executive, and (ii) the date of Executive’s death (the “Delay Period”). Upon the expiration of
the Delay Period, all payments and benefits delayed pursuant to this Section 6.17(b) (whether they would have otherwise been payable in a
single sum or in installments in the absence of such delay) shall be paid or reimbursed to Executive in a lump sum, and any remaining
payments and benefits due under this Agreement shall be paid or provided in accordance with the normal payment dates specified for them
herein.

(c)
Any reimbursements or in-kind benefits provided under this Agreement shall be administered in accordance with Code Section
409A, such that: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during one year shall not affect the
expenses eligible for reimbursement or the in-kind benefits provided in any other year; (ii) reimbursement of eligible expenses shall be made
on or before December 31 of the year following the year in which the expense was incurred; and (iii) Executive’s right to reimbursement or

in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or to exchange for another benefit. Any tax gross-up payment as provided herein shall be
made in any event no later than the end of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which Executive remits the related
taxes, and any reimbursement of expenses incurred due to a tax audit or litigation shall be made no later than the end of the calendar year
immediately following the calendar year in which the taxes that are the subject of the audit or litigation are remitted to the taxing authority, or,
if no taxes are to be remitted, the end of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the audit or litigation is completed.

(d)
For purposes of Code Section 409A, Executive’s right to receive any installment payments pursuant to this Agreement shall be
treated as a right to receive a series of separate and distinct payments. Whenever a payment under this Agreement specifies a payment period
with reference to a number of days ( e.g., “payment shall be made within thirty (30) days following the date of termination”), the actual date
of payment within the specified period shall be within the sole discretion of the Company.
[Signature Page to Follow]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Amendment Number 2 to be executed this 31 day of December, 2008.

AETNA, INC.

/s/ Elease E. Wright
By:
Title:
EXECUTIVE

/s/ Ronald A. Williams
Ronald A. Williams
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Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement

Amendment Number 1 to the Employment Agreement dated as of July 24, 2007 (the “Agreement”) by and between Aetna Inc. (“Aetna”), a
Pennsylvania corporation and Mark T. Bertolini (“Executive”).

WHEREAS, Aetna and Executive have previously entered into the Agreement;
WHEREAS, Aetna and Executive wish to amend the Agreement to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the
regulations issued thereunder (“Section 409A”);
NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement is hereby amended effective December 31, 2008, as follows:

1. Section 3.02(b)(i) is amended to add the following additional language at the end thereof: “To the extent that any Award constitutes ‘deferred
compensation’ within the meaning of Section 409A, such Award shall vest as herein provided upon a change in control, but payment under
the applicable award agreement shall not accelerate unless the change in control also satisfies the broadest definition of change in control
permitted under Section 409A.”
2.

Section 3.02(c) is amended to add the following sentence at the end thereof: “To the extent that any Award constitutes ‘deferred
compensation’ within the meaning of Section 409A, such Award shall vest as herein provided upon the Executive’s Disability, but payment
under the applicable award agreement shall not accelerate unless the Disability also satisfies the broadest definition of disability permitted
under Section 409A.”

3. Exhibit B is amended to delete the last sentence of Section 2(b) thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “In the event that the
Payments are subject to reduction hereunder, the Company will reduce first the Payments made under Section 3.03(b)(i) and then, if
necessary, will reduce other Payments pro-rata.”

4.

Exhibit B is further amended to add the following sentence at the end of Section 2(c) thereof: “The Gross-Up Payment shall be paid to the
Executive no later than the end of the year following the year in which Executive remits the related taxes, in accordance with Section 409A
or, if earlier, as otherwise provided herein.”

5. Exhibit B is further amended to add the following at the end of Section 4(a) thereof: “; provided, however, that entitlement to payment under
this Section 4(a) shall not accelerate payment of, or change the form of payment with respect to, the original Payments that were reduced
pursuant to Section 2(b).”

6. Exhibit B is further amended to delete the second sentence of Section 4(b) thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “In the
event that the Redetermined Payments are subject to reduction under this paragraph and any such portion of the Redetermined Payments has
not yet been paid to Executive, the Company will reduce first the portion of such unpaid Redetermined Payments that is attributable to
amounts payable under Section 3.03(b)(i) and then, if necessary, will reduce other portions of the Redetermined Payments pro-rata.”

7. Exhibit B is further amended to delete the last sentence of Section 4(c) thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “Any
Supplemental Gross-Up Payment shall be paid to the Executive no later than the end of the year following the year in which Executive remits
the related taxes, in accordance with Section 409A or, if earlier, as otherwise provided herein.”

8. Section 6.17 is amended to add the following paragraphs at the end thereof:
When used in connection with any payments subject to Section 409A required to be made hereunder, the phrase “termination of
employment” and correlative terms shall mean separation from service as defined in Section 409A.

Unless such payments are otherwise exempt from Section 409A, any reimbursements or in-kind benefits provided under Sections
2.03, 2.04, 3.03, 3.04 or 6.02 this Agreement shall be administered in accordance with Section 409A, such that: (I) the amount of
expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during one year shall not affect the expenses eligible for
reimbursement or the in-kind benefits provided in any other year; (II) reimbursement of eligible expenses shall be made on or before
December 31 of the year following the year in which the expense was incurred; and (III) the Executive’s right to reimbursement or
in-kind benefits shall not be subject to liquidation or to exchange for another benefit.

For purposes of Section 409A, Executive’s right to receive any installment payments pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as a
right to receive a series of separate and distinct payments.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Amendment to be executed this 31 day of December, 2008

Aetna Inc.

By:
Its

/s/ Elease E. Wright
Sr. V. P. Human Resources

Executive

/s/ Mark T. Bertolini
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Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement

Reference is made to the letter agreement by and between Aetna Inc. (the “Company”), a Pennsylvania corporation, and Joseph M. Zubretsky
(“Executive” or “you”), dated as of January 25, 2007 (the “Agreement”).

WHEREAS, Aetna and Executive have previously entered into the Agreement;
WHEREAS, Aetna and Executive wish to amend the Agreement to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the
regulations issued thereunder (“Section 409A”);
NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement is hereby amended effective December 17, 2008, as follows:

1. The second paragraph on page 3 (regarding the Deferred Compensation Account) is amended by replacing the last sentence thereof with the
following two sentences:

“The vested amount will be paid to you in a lump sum six (6) months following your termination of employment with the Company. The
Deferred Compensation Account will be governed by the terms of the Aetna Inc. Deferred Compensation Program (or the successor thereto),
as it may be amended from time to time.”

2. The third paragraph on page 4 (which continues onto the top of page 5) is amended to read as follows:
a. the following language is added to the first sentence thereof: “;provided that such release shall be signed and returned to the
Company not later than 60 days following termination of employment and provided further that any payment required hereunder
shall not begin until the end of such 60-day period (subject to any applicable further delay imposed by paragraph 8 of Amendment
No. 1).”

b. the following language is added as a new sentence after the end of the third sentence thereof: “The right to installment payments
described above with respect to salary continuation and target bonus payable following an involuntary termination of employment,
shall be treated as a right to a series of separate payments under Section 409A.”

c. the following language is added at the end of such paragraph: “Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon your “disability” (within the
meaning of Section 409A), your RSUs will immediately vest and be paid; provided that, with respect to your RSUs, an involuntary
termination of employment due to a
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disability that does not satisfy the Section 409A definition of disability will be treated as an involuntary termination without Cause, as
described above.”

3. Exhibit A is amended to delete the last sentence of Section 2(b) thereof and to replace it with the following sentence:
“In the event that the Payments are subject to reduction hereunder, the Company will reduce first the salary continuation payments described
in the last paragraph on page 4 of the Agreement and then, if necessary, will reduce other Payments pro-rata.”
4. Exhibit A is further amended to add the following sentence at the end of Section 2(c) thereof: “Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Exhibit A, any Gross-Up Payment shall be paid to you no later than the end of the year following the year in which you remit the related
taxes, in accordance with Section 409A.”

5. Exhibit A is further amended to add the following at the end of Section 4(a) thereof: “; provided, however, that entitlement to payment
under this Section 4(a) shall not accelerate payment of, or change the form of payment with respect to, the original Payments that were
reduced pursuant to Section 2(b).”
6. Exhibit A is further amended to delete the second sentence of Section 4(b) thereof and to replace it with the following sentence: “In the
event that the Redetermined Payments are subject to reduction under this paragraph and any such portion of the Redetermined Payments has
not yet been paid to you, the Company will reduce first the portion of such unpaid Redetermined Payments that is attributable to amounts
payable pursuant to the last paragraph on page 4 of the Agreement and then, if necessary, will reduce other portions of the Redetermined
Payments pro-rata.”

7. Exhibit A is further amended to delete the last sentence of Section 4(c) thereof and to replace it with the following
sentence: “Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Exhibit A, any Supplemental Gross-Up Payment shall be paid to you no later
than the end of the year following the year in which you remit the related taxes, in accordance with Section 409A.”
8. The Agreement is further amended to add the following new paragraphs after the end of the second full paragraph on page 5:
With respect to any payment of “deferred compensation” as defined in Section 409A that is payable or commences to be payable under this
Agreement solely by reason of your termination of employment or separation from service, such amount shall be payable or commence to be
payable as soon as, and no later than, the you experience a “separation from service” as defined in Section 409A, subject to the six-month
delay described below, if applicable. In addition, nothing in the Agreement shall require the Company to, and the Company shall
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not, accelerate the payment of any amounts that constitute “deferred compensation” except to the extent permitted under Code Section 409A.

If you are a “Specified Employee” within the meaning of Section 409A at the time of your separation from service and any payment to
which you become entitled under this Agreement by virtue of your separation from service is considered “deferred compensation” within the
meaning of Section 409A, then any such payments to which you would otherwise be entitled during the first six months following your
separation from service shall be delayed and accumulated for a period of six months and paid in a lump sum on the first day of the seventh
month. The salary continuation and target bonus payments described on page 4 of the Agreement are intended to, and shall be construed to,
fit within the short-term deferral and separation pay exceptions to Section 409A to the maximum permissible extent.
Any reimbursements or in-kind benefits provided to you shall be administered in accordance with Section 409A, such that: (I) the amount
of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during one year shall not affect the expenses eligible for
reimbursement or the in-kind benefits provided in any other year; (II) reimbursement of eligible expenses shall be made on or before
December 31 of the year following the year in which the expense was incurred; and (III) your right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits
shall not be subject to liquidation or to exchange for another benefit.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Amendment to be executed this 17 day of December, 2008

By:

/s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky

Its

Aetna Inc.

By:
Its

/s/ Elease E.Wright
Elease E. Wright
Senior Vice President Human Resources
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Exhibit 12.1
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
The computation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

$

2008
2,174.2
297.9
2,472.1

$

236.4

(Millions)

Pretax income from continuing operations
Add back fixed charges
Income as adjusted
Fixed charges:
Interest on indebtedness
Portion of rents representative of interest factor
Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

$

$
$

$

61.5

$

297.9

8.30

$

2007
2,796.4
234.3
3,030.7

180.6
53.7
234.3
12.94

$
$

$
$

2006
2,586.6
199.5
2,786.1

148.3
51.2
199.5
13.97

$
$

$
$

2005
2,453.3
177.5
2,630.8

122.8
54.7
177.5
14.82

$

2004
1,760.0
165.5
1,925.5

$

104.7

$

60.8
165.5

$

11.63

Exhibit 13.1
2008 Aetna Annual Report, Financial Report to Shareholders

Unless the context otherwise requires, references to the terms we, our, or, us, used throughout this 2008 Annual Report, Financial
Report to Shareholders (the “Annual Report”) refer to Aetna Inc. (a Pennsylvania corporation) (“Aetna”) and its subsidiaries.
For your reference, we provide the following index to the Annual Report:

Page
Description
2 - 42 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) The MD&A provides
a review of our operating results for the years 2006 through 2008, as well as our financial condition at December 31, 2008 and
2007. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. The MD&A is
comprised of the following:

2

Overview – We begin our MD&A with an overview of earnings and cash flows for the years 2006 through 2008,
as well as our outlook for 2009. In this section, we also discuss significant changes to our management and
Board of Directors.

5

Health Care – We provide a quantitative and qualitative discussion about the factors affecting Health Care
revenues and operating earnings in this section.

8

Group Insurance – We provide a quantitative and qualitative discussion about the factors affecting Group
Insurance revenues and operating earnings in this section.

10

Large Case Pensions – We provide a quantitative and qualitative discussion about the factors affecting Large
Case Pensions operating earnings, including the results of discontinued products, in this section.

12

Investments – As an insurer, we have substantial investment portfolios that support our liabilities. In this
section, we provide a quantitative and qualitative discussion of our investments and realized capital gains and
losses and describe our evaluation of the risk of our market-sensitive instruments.

14

Liquidity and Capital Resources – In this section, we discuss our cash flows, financing resources, contractual
obligations and other key matters that may affect our liquidity and cash flows.

18

Critical Accounting Estimates – In this section, we discuss the accounting estimates we consider critical in
preparing our financial statements, including why we consider them critical and the key assumptions used in
making these estimates.

24

Regulatory Environment – In this section, we provide a discussion of the regulatory environment in which we
operate.

32

Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors – We conclude our MD&A with a discussion of certain risks and
uncertainties that, if developed into actual events, could have a material adverse impact on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

43

Selected Financial Data – We provide selected annual financial data for the most recent five years.

44

Consolidated Financial Statements – Includes our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2008. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

48

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

84

Reports of Management and our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm – We include a report from management on
its responsibilities for internal control over financial reporting and financial statements, the oversight of our Audit Committee and
KPMG LLP’s opinion on our consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting.

86

Quarterly Data (unaudited) – We provide selected quarterly financial data for each of the quarters in 2008 and 2007.

86

Corporate Performance Graph – We provide a graph comparing the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock to
the cumulative total return on certain published indices from December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2008.
Annual Report - Page 1

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”)

OVERVIEW
We are one of the nation’s leading diversified health care benefits companies, serving approximately 36.5 million people with information and
resources to help them make better informed decisions about their health care. We offer a broad range of traditional and consumer-directed health
insurance products and related services, including medical, pharmacy, dental, behavioral health, group life and disability plans, and medical
management capabilities and health care management services for Medicaid plans. Our customers include employer groups, individuals, college
students, part-time and hourly workers, health plans, governmental units, government-sponsored plans, labor groups and expatriates. Our operations
are conducted in three business segments: Health Care, Group Insurance and Large Case Pensions.

Summarized Results
2008

(Millions)

Revenue:
Health Care
Group Insurance
Large Case Pensions
Total revenue
Net income

$

28,775.0
1,710.7
465.0
30,950.7
1,384.1

2007

$

24,768.6
2,139.5
691.5
27,599.6
1,831.0

2006

$

22,240.5
2,152.1
753.1
25,145.7
1,701.7

Operating earnings: (1)

1,895.4
1,770.9
1,572.7
Health Care
140.0
145.5
132.7
Group Insurance
39.2
38.1
38.9
Large Case Pensions
2,206.9
2,065.5
1,688.3
Cash flows from operations
(1)
Our discussion of operating results for our reportable business segments is based on operating earnings, which is a non-GAAP measure of net income (the term
“GAAP” refers to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles). Refer to Segment Results and Use of Non-GAAP Measures in this MD&A on page 4 for a
discussion of non-GAAP measures. Refer to pages 5, 9 and 10 for a reconciliation of operating earnings to net income for Health Care, Group Insurance and Large
Case Pensions, respectively.

Net income for 2008 includes after tax net realized capital losses of $482 million, primarily reflecting approximately $327 million of yield-related
other-than-temporary impairments (“OTTI”) and approximately $92 million of credit-related OTTI of debt securities. The losses resulted from
declines in the market value in our investment portfolio as a result of deteriorating global economic conditions. Refer to Net Realized Capital Gains
and Losses beginning on page 13 for additional information. We analyze our results of operations based on operating earnings, which exclude net
realized capital gains and losses as well as other items from net income. The combination of total revenue growth and higher underwriting margins
contributed to an improvement in our operating earnings in each of the last three years. Operating earnings in 2008 reflect lower net investment income
compared to 2007, reflecting the difficult investment climate experienced primarily in the latter half of 2008. We also achieved strong cash flows
from operations in 2008 and 2007 (refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources beginning on page 14).

During 2008 and 2007, our Health Care medical membership grew, increasing by 848,000 in 2008 (refer to Health Care – Membership on page 8) and
1.4 million in 2007. This growth occurred in both our Insured (where we assume all or a majority of risk for medical and dental care costs) and our
administrative services contract (“ASC”) (where the plan sponsor assumes all or a majority of the risk for medical and dental care costs) medical
products in 2008 and 2007. In addition, during 2008 and 2007 we had growth in our dental and pharmacy products. At December 31, 2008, we
served approximately 17.7 million medical members, 14.1 million dental members and 11.1 million pharmacy members.
During 2008 and 2007, premium rates increased as well. Together with the growth in membership, these rate increases contributed to the expansion of
our total revenue, which increased approximately $3.4 billion in 2008 and $2.5 billion in 2007.
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Underwriting margins in our Health Care segment, which represent the amount of premiums in excess of health care costs, improved in 2008 and
2007 on a total dollar basis, when compared to the prior periods, reflecting membership growth and premium rate increases as well as our focus on
medical cost management.
During 2008 and 2007, we managed our capital in support of both new and ongoing initiatives.
During 2008 and 2007, we generated substantial cash flow from our businesses. We used this capital to support our organic growth strategies
and repurchase our common stock. During 2007, we also used our capital to fund targeted acquisitions in support of our strategy.
In 2008 and 2007, we repurchased approximately 43 million and 33 million shares of common stock at a cost of approximately $1.8 billion and $1.7
billion, respectively, under share repurchase programs authorized by Aetna’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) in order to return available capital to
shareholders.

In addition, we continue to invest in the development of our business by acquiring companies that support our strategy as well as continuing the
introduction or enhancement of new products and services. In 2007, we completed two acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
$613 million, expanding our Health Care product offerings by acquiring a leading provider of health care management services for Medicaid plans
and a leading managing general underwriter (or underwriting agent) for international private medical insurance that offers expatriate benefits to
individuals, small and medium enterprises, and large multinational clients around the world.
In 2008 and 2007, we issued $500 million and $700 million of senior notes, respectively, to secure long-term capital at favorable rates. Refer to
Liquidity and Capital Resources beginning on page 14 and Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 70 for
additional information.

Outlook for 2009
We expect the current economic downturn and economic challenges to continue throughout 2009, resulting in continued capital markets volatility and
downward pressure on our investment income and lower interest rates. We expect unemployment to rise, leading to in-group membership attrition for
our existing customers. We also expect to see upward pressure on medical provider unit costs as providers seek to adjust to their own economic
challenges.

Our goals for 2009 are to: profitably grow membership and earnings; deliver superior medical quality and total cost management; improve our expense
structure through enhanced productivity; create customer value through innovation and technology; deliver a best-in-class customer experience; and
enhance our diverse, high performance culture and work force. Our 2009 outlook is as follows:

Our operating expense ratio is expected to be higher from a significant increase in pension expense. As a result of investment
losses experienced by our pension plan assets in 2008, we expect our 2009 pension expense to increase approximately $383 million pretax
compared to 2008. However, we continue to take actions to improve the efficiency of our operations, including efforts to leverage existing
infrastructure to support additional growth as well as improvements in systems and processes. We will continue to focus 2009 spending on
operational improvements, including self-service and administrative technologies that will yield future benefits.

Health Care membership is targeted for growth in 2009. We continue to take actions to increase membership in 2009, including
efforts to reach customers via an integrated product approach in order to generate sales to new customers, as well as increased cross-sell
penetration within our existing membership base and via targeted geographic marketing. We expect the majority of our membership growth
to be in ASC medical members. We also expect to expand the use of our medical management processes to lower health care costs, which
could result in expanded underwriting margins. If we achieve these projected membership increases combined with medical management
initiatives and price increases, it would contribute to higher revenue in our Health Care segment.

Corporate interest expense is expected to increase in 2009. We expect corporate interest expense to increase due to the increase in
average debt outstanding resulting from our 2008 financing activities.
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Capital deployment. In 2009, we intend to continue to pursue strategic acquisitions and other business development activities that support
our strategy for growth and profitability. We also intend to continue to deploy our capital through share repurchases.

Refer to Forward-Looking Information/Risk Factors beginning on page 32 for information regarding other important factors that may materially
affect us.
Executive Management and Board Updates
During 2008, we announced the following changes to the Board and our management team:

·

Richard J. Harrington was appointed to the Board in September 2008. Mr. Harrington is Chairman of the Thomson Reuters Foundation. He
also serves on the Board’s Audit Committee and Investment and Finance Committee. With the addition of Mr. Harrington, the Board consists
of thirteen directors.

·

Lonny Reisman, M.D., was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer in November 2008 and succeeded Troyen A.
Brennan, M.D., who resigned.

·

Rajan Parmeswar, Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer, joined Aetna in August 2008 and succeeded Ronald M.
Olejniczak, who retired in July 2008.

·

Gery J. Barry, Chief Strategy Officer, joined Aetna in August 2008.

·

Additionally, Timothy A. Holt, Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer, retired in February 2008. Mr. Holt’s successor, Jean
LaTorre, reports to Joseph M. Zubretsky, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

Segment Results and Use of Non-GAAP Measures in this Document
The discussion of our results of operations that follows is presented based on our reportable segments in accordance with FAS No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” and is consistent with our segment disclosure included in Note 19
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 79. Each segment’s discussion of results is based on operating earnings, which is
the measure reported to our Chief Executive Officer for purposes of assessing the segment’s financial performance and making operating decisions,
such as allocating resources to the segment. Our operations are conducted in three business segments: Health Care, Group Insurance and Large Case
Pensions.
Our discussion of the results of operations of each business segment is based on operating earnings, which exclude net realized capital gains and
losses as well as other items, if any, from net income reported in accordance with GAAP. We believe excluding net realized capital gains and losses
from net income to arrive at operating earnings provides more meaningful information about our underlying business performance. Net realized
capital gains and losses arise from various types of transactions, primarily in the course of managing a portfolio of assets that support the payment of
liabilities; however these transactions do not directly relate to the underwriting or servicing of products for our customers and are not directly related
to the core performance of our business operations. We also may exclude other items that do not relate to the ordinary course of our business from
net income to arrive at operating earnings. In each segment discussion that follows, we present a table that reconciles operating earnings to net income
reported in accordance with GAAP. Each table details the net realized capital gains and losses and any other items excluded from net income, and the
footnotes to each table describe the nature of each other item and why we believe it is appropriate to exclude that item from net income in calculating
operating earnings.
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HEALTH CARE
Health Care consists of medical, pharmacy benefits management, dental, behavioral health and vision plans offered on both an Insured basis and an
ASC basis. Medical products include point-of-service (“POS”), preferred provider organization (“PPO”), health maintenance organization

(“HMO”) and indemnity benefit plans. Medical products also include health savings accounts and Aetna HealthFund ®, consumer-directed health
plans that combine traditional POS or PPO and/or dental coverage, subject to a deductible, with an accumulating benefit account. We also offer
Medicare and Medicaid products and services and specialty products, such as medical management and data analytics services, and stop loss
insurance, as well as products that provide access to our provider network in select markets. We separately track premiums and health care costs for
Medicare and Medicaid products. The grouping referred to as Commercial includes all medical, dental and other insured products, except Medicare
and Medicaid.
Operating Summary
2008

(Millions)

Premiums:
Commercial
Medicare

$

Medicaid
Total premiums
Fees and other revenue
Net investment income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Total revenue
Health care costs
Operating expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets
Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

20,096.2
4,816.1
595.0
25,507.3
3,202.6
341.3
(276.2)
28,775.0
20,785.5

2007

$

$

17,356.5
1,787.7
9.3

19,153.5
2,743.7
334.2
9.1

24,768.6
17,294.8

22,240.5
15,301.0

966.6

867.4
3,618.6
4,486.0
80.4
19,867.4
2,373.1
847.6
1,525.5

3,708.3
4,674.9

101.3

$

$

370.9
(33.7)

1,055.2
4,281.8
5,337.0
26,223.8
2,551.2
924.5
1,626.7

18,656.8
2,598.3
245.0
21,500.1
2,931.3

2006

90.7
22,060.4
2,708.2
959.2
1,749.0

$

The table presented below reconciles operating earnings to net income reported in accordance with GAAP:
(Millions)
Net income
Net realized capital losses (gains)

$

Severance and facility charge (1)

Contribution for the establishment of an out-of-network pricing database
Physician class action settlement insurance-related charge

(1)

(1)

2008
1,626.7
213.1

$

2007
1,749.0
21.9

$

2006
1,525.5
(8.0)

35.6

-

20.0

-

-

-

-

47.1

-

Debt refinancing charge (1)
8.1
$
1,895.4 $
1,770.9 $
1,572.7
Operating earnings
(1)
The following other items are excluded from operating earnings because we believe they neither relate to the ordinary course of our business nor reflect our underlying
business performance:
· In 2008, we recorded a severance and facility charge of $35.6 million ($54.7 million pretax) related to actions taken.
· As a result of our agreement with the New York Attorney General to discontinue the use of Ingenix databases at a future date, we have committed to contribute $20.0
million to a non-profit organization to help create a new independent database for determining out-of-network reimbursement rates.
· As a result of a trial court’s ruling in 2006, we concluded that a $47.1 million ($72.4 million pretax) receivable from third party insurers related to certain litigation we
settled in 2003 was no longer probable of collection for accounting purposes. As a result, we wrote-off this receivable in 2006.
· In connection with the issuance of $2.0 billion of our senior notes in 2006, we redeemed all $700 million of our 8.5% senior notes due 2041. In connection with this
redemption, we wrote-off debt issuance costs associated with the redeemed notes and recognized the deferred gain from the interest rate swaps that had hedged the
redeemed notes. As a result of the foregoing, we recorded an $8.1 million ($12.4 million pretax) net charge in 2006.
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Higher revenue and underwriting margins as well as operating expense efficiencies contributed to earnings growth in 2008 and 2007
Operating earnings for 2008 increased $125 million from 2007, which had increased $198 million from 2006. These increases in operating earnings
reflect growth in premiums and fees and other revenue, as well as higher underwriting margins and improved operating expense efficiencies (total
operating expenses divided by total revenue). The growth in premiums and fees and other revenue resulted from increases in membership levels (refer
to Membership on page 8) and premium rate increases for renewing membership. Furthermore, growth in premiums and fees and other revenue in
2008 and 2007 reflect our recent acquisitions. Refer to Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 55 for a discussion of our
acquisitions. Premium growth in 2008 and 2007 was also attributed to our new Private-Fee-for-Service Medicare plan (“PFFS”) product, which we

began offering effective January 1, 2007.
Underwriting margins (premiums less health care costs) increased in 2007 and 2008 over the prior year, reflecting growth in premiums (as discussed
above) partially offset by higher health care costs.

Although we became more efficient based on our operating expenses as a percentage of revenue, our total operating expenses increased in 2008 and
2007 over the prior years (primarily due to the growth in our membership). Total operating expenses increased due to higher general and administrative
expenses as a result of higher employee related costs, outside services and other expenses associated with higher membership and higher selling
expenses (reflecting an increase in commissionable premiums and premium taxes both from membership growth). Total operating expenses in 2008
also reflect the $55 million pretax severance and facility charge and the $20 million contribution for the establishment of a new independent database
for determining out-of-network reimbursement rates.

We calculate our medical benefit ratio (“MBR”) by dividing health care costs by premiums. Our MBRs by product for the years ended December
31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Commercial
Medicare
Medicaid

Total
(1)

2008
80.3%
85.6%

2007
79.5%
86.8%

2006
79.3%
85.2%

87.4%
81.5%

88.4%
80.4%

n/m (1)
79.9%

Our Medicaid results were not meaningful prior to the 2007 acquisition of Schaller Anderson, Incorporated.

Refer to the following discussion of Commercial, Medicare and Medicaid results for an explanation of the changes in our MBR.
The operating results of our Commercial products continued to grow in 2008 and 2007
Commercial premiums increased approximately $1.4 billion in 2008 compared to 2007, and increased approximately $1.3 billion in 2007 compared to
2006. The increases in 2008 and 2007 reflect premium rate increases on renewing business and increases in membership levels (refer to Membership
on page 8).

Our Commercial MBRs were 80.3% for 2008, 79.5% for 2007 and 79.3% for 2006. The Commercial MBRs in 2008 and 2007 increased when
compared to the prior year MBRs reflecting a percentage increase in our per member health care costs that outpaced the percentage increase in per
member premiums. The increase in per member health care costs in 2008 was driven primarily by increases in costs related to physician services,
laboratory services, emergency room and ancillary services as well as moderate increases in hospital inpatient and outpatient costs. Increases in per
member health care costs in 2007 were due to increases across all medical categories, with larger increases in inpatient and outpatient costs than other
categories.
We had no significant development of prior period health care cost estimates that affected results of operations in 2008, 2007 or 2006. The calculation
of Health Care Costs Payable is a critical accounting estimate (refer to Critical Accounting Estimates – Health Care Costs Payable beginning on
page 18 for additional information).
Medicare results reflects growth in 2008 and 2007
Our Medicare Advantage contracts with the federal government are renewable for a one-year period on a calendar-year basis. We expanded our
Medicare Advantage HMO and PPO offerings into select additional markets in 2008 and 2007 and now offer Medicare Advantage HMO and PPO
products in 224 counties in 19 states and Washington,
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D.C. We have been a national provider of PDP since 2006. In 2007, we began offering Medicare Advantage PFFS products in select markets for
individuals and nationally for employer groups. Medicare Advantage PFFS complements our PDP product, forming an integrated fully insured
Medicare product nationwide. We intend to continue providing each of our Medicare Advantage as well as our PDP products in 2009.
Medicare premiums increased approximately $2.2 billion in 2008, compared to 2007, and increased approximately $811 million in 2007 compared to
2006. The increase in 2008 and 2007 primarily reflects the introduction of our new PFFS product, which was effective January 1, 2007, including
the conversion of a large customer’s membership from a Commercial ASC plan to a Medicare Insured plan in 2008. The increase in 2008 and 2007
was also due to increases in premiums as a result of higher membership levels, rate increases from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
(“CMS”) and premium rate increases.

Our Medicare MBRs were 85.6% for 2008, 86.8% for 2007 and 85.2% for 2006. We had no significant development of prior period health care
cost estimates that affected results of operations in 2008, 2007 or 2006. The decrease in our Medicare MBR in 2008 reflects a percentage increase in
our per member premiums that outpaced the percentage increase in per member health care costs. The increase in our Medicare MBR in 2007
compared to 2006 reflects a change in our product mix as a result of the introduction of PFFS as well as a percentage increase in our per member
health care costs that outpaced the percentage increase in per member premiums. The increases in our per member health care costs during 2007 were
primarily due to increases in pharmaceutical costs.
Medicaid results for 2008 and 2007 reflect growth from the Schaller Anderson, Incorporated (“Schaller Anderson”) acquisition.
Medicaid premiums increased approximately $350 million in 2008 compared to 2007 and increased approximately $236 million in 2007 compared to
2006. These increases primarily reflect an increase in premiums as a result of our acquisition of Schaller Anderson in July 2007. The Medicaid
MBRs were 87.4% for 2008 and 88.4% for 2007 (the 2006 Medicaid MBR was not meaningful prior to the acquisition of Schaller Anderson). We
had no significant development of prior period health care cost estimates that affected results of operations in 2008 or 2007.
Other Sources of Revenue
Fees and other revenue for 2008 increased $271 million compared to 2007 and increased $188 million in 2007 compared to 2006, reflecting revenue
from our recent acquisitions of Schaller Anderson and Goodhealth Worldwide (Bermuda) Limited (“Goodhealth”) as well as growth in ASC
membership.

Net investment income for 2008 decreased $30 million compared to 2007 primarily reflecting lower income from alternative investments. Net
investment income for 2007 increased $37 million compared to 2006, primarily reflecting higher average asset levels and higher average yields on debt
securities.
Net realized capital losses in 2008 and 2007 were due primarily to OTTI of debt securities (refer to our discussion of Investments – Net Realized
Capital Gains and Losses on page 13 for additional information).
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Membership
Health Care’s membership at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:
2008
(Thousands)

2007

Insured

ASC

Total

Insured

ASC

Total

5,595

10,893

16,488

5,390

10,453

15,843

366

-

366

193

14

207

207

640

166

637

6,168

11,533

847
17,701

5,749

11,104

803
16,853

Medical:

Commercial (1)
Medicare
Medicaid (1)

Total Medical Membership
Consumer-Directed Health Plans (2)
Dental:
Commercial

Medicare and Medicaid (1)

Network Access (3)
Total Dental Membership

1,431

994

5,012

7,494

12,506

5,037

7,269

12,306

229

374

603

190

398

588

-

1,015
8,883

1,015
14,124

-

938
8,605

938
13,832

5,241

5,227

Pharmacy:

Commercial (1)
Medicare PDP (stand-alone)
Medicare Advantage PDP
Medicaid (1)

Total Pharmacy Benefit Management Services
Mail Order (4)

9,846
375
195

9,613
311
151

25
10,441

10,096

21

657
636
11,098
10,732
Total Pharmacy Membership
(1)
Approximately 28,000 State Children’s Health Insurance Program (“SCHIP”) medical members and 21,000 of both SCHIP pharmacy and dental members at December
31, 2007 were reclassified from Commercial to Medicaid in 2008. Additionally, dental membership at December 31, 2007 was revised to include Schaller Anderson
(Medicaid) membership to conform with the 2008 presentation.
(2)
Represents members in consumer-directed health plans included in Commercial medical membership above.
(3)
Represents members in products that allow these members access to our dental provider network for a nominal fee.
(4)
Represents members who purchased medications through our mail order pharmacy operations during the fourth quarter of 2008 and 2007, respectively, and are included
in pharmacy membership above.

Total medical membership at December 31, 2008 increased compared to 2007. The increase in medical membership was primarily due to growth in
our Commercial and Medicare products. Growth in Commercial membership was driven by membership growth within existing plan sponsors and
new customers, net of lapses. Growth in Medicare membership was primarily due to growth in our group PFFS plans, including the conversion of a
large customer from a Commercial ASC plan to a Medicare Insured plan.
Total dental membership at December 31, 2008 increased compared to 2007 primarily due to membership growth from both new and current
customers.
Total pharmacy membership increased at December 31, 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to growth in our pharmacy benefit management services
and mail order operations. Our pharmacy benefit management services growth was due in part to an increase in Commercial pharmacy membership as
well as Medicare Part D prescription drug program membership. Mail order operations reflected an increase in member utilization during this time
period.

GROUP INSURANCE

Group Insurance primarily includes group life insurance products offered on an Insured basis, including basic and supplemental group term life
insurance, group universal life, supplemental or voluntary programs and accidental death and dismemberment coverage. Group Insurance also
includes (i) group disability products offered to employers on both an Insured and an ASC basis, which consist primarily of short-term and long-term
disability insurance (and products which combine both), (ii) absence management services offered to employers, which include short-term and longterm disability administration and leave management, and (iii) long-term care products that were offered primarily on an Insured basis, which provide
benefits covering the cost of care in private home settings, adult
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day care, assisted living or nursing facilities. We no longer solicit or accept new long-term care customers, and we are working with our customers
on an orderly transition of this product to other carriers.
Operating Summary
2008

(Millions)

Premiums:
Life

$

1,062.7
534.6
86.3
1,683.6
97.9
240.4
(311.2)
1,710.7
1,468.8

Disability

Long-term care
Total premiums
Fees and other revenue
Net investment income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Total revenue
Current and future benefits
Operating expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets
Total benefits and expenses
(Loss) income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net (loss) income

$

94.4
305.7
400.1
6.9
1,875.8
(165.1)
(53.0)
(112.1)

2007

$

1,201.4
478.8
93.8
1,774.0
101.1
303.0
(38.6)
2,139.5
1,619.2

2006

$

1,257.6
401.5
102.8
1,761.9
84.6
294.1

11.5
2,152.1
1,646.8
85.3

94.3
261.9
356.2
6.9

232.3
317.6

1,982.3
157.2
36.8
$

120.4

$

$

2007
120.4

$

5.2
1,969.6
182.5
48.6
133.9

The table presented below reconciles operating earnings to net income reported in accordance with GAAP:
(Millions)
Net (loss) income
Net realized capital losses (gains)

Allowance on reinsurance recoverable

$
(1)

Acquisition-related software charge (1)

Operating earnings
(1)

$

2008
(112.1)
224.7

25.1

2006
133.9
(7.4)

27.4

-

-

-

-

6.2
132.7

140.0

$

145.5

$

The following other items are excluded from operating earnings because we believe they neither relate to the ordinary course of our business nor reflect our underlying
business performance:
· As a result of the liquidation proceedings of Lehman Re Ltd. (“Lehman Re”), a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., we recorded an allowance against our
reinsurance recoverable from Lehman Re of $27.4 million ($42.2 million pretax) in 2008. This reinsurance is on a closed block of paid-up group whole life insurance
business.
· As a result of the acquisition of Broadspire Disability in 2006, we acquired certain software which eliminated the need for similar software we had been developing
internally. As a result, we ceased our own software development and impaired amounts previously capitalized, resulting in a $6.2 million ($8.3 million pretax) charge
to net income, reflected in general and administrative expenses for 2006.

Operating earnings for 2008 decreased $6 million when compared to 2007, reflecting lower net investment income partially offset by a higher
underwriting margin due to favorable disability and long-term care results. Lower net investment income in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due
to lower income from alternative investments. Operating earnings for 2007 increased $13 million compared to 2006, reflecting a higher underwriting
margin and higher net investment income partially offset by higher general and administrative expenses. The 2007 growth in fees and other revenue
and general and administrative expenses primarily related to the March 2006 acquisition of Broadspire Disability.

Life premiums decreased in 2008 compared to 2007 reflecting the lapse of several large customers, however these lapses did not materially affect
operating earnings.

Our group benefit ratios were 87.2% for 2008, 91.3% for 2007 and 93.5% for 2006. The decrease in our group benefit ratio for 2008 compared to
2007 was primarily due to favorable disability and long-term care experience. The decrease in our group benefit ratio in 2007 compared to 2006 was
primarily due to favorable life and disability experience.
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Net realized capital losses for 2008 and 2007 were due primarily to losses on OTTI of debt securities (refer to our discussion of Investments - Net
Realized Capital Gains and Losses beginning on page 13 for additional information).

LARGE CASE PENSIONS
Large Case Pensions manages a variety of retirement products (including pension and annuity products) primarily for tax qualified pension
plans. These products provide a variety of funding and benefit payment distribution options and other services. The Large Case Pensions segment
includes certain discontinued products.
Operating Summary
2008
193.2
328.3
12.0

(Millions)

$

Premiums
Net investment income
Other revenue
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Total revenue
Current and future benefits
General and administrative expenses
Reduction of reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products
Total benefits and expenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

(68.5)
465.0
469.9
14.4
(43.8)
440.5
24.5
1.3
23.2

$

2007
205.3
476.0
11.6

$

2006
194.1
536.4
11.0
11.6
753.1
672.2
17.0
(115.4)

$

(1.4)

691.5
628.9
15.3
(64.3)

579.9
111.6
32.6
79.0

$

573.8
179.3

56.7

$

122.6

The table presented below reconciles operating earnings to net income reported in accordance with GAAP:
(Millions)
Net income
Net realized capital losses (gains)

$

2008
23.2
44.5

$

2007
79.0
.9

$

2006
122.6

(8.7)

Reduction of reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products (1)
(28.5)
(41.8)
(75.0)
$
39.2 $
38.1 $
38.9
Operating earnings
(1)
In 1993, we discontinued the sale of our fully guaranteed large case pension products and established a reserve for anticipated future losses on these products, which we
review quarterly. Changes in this reserve are recognized when deemed appropriate. We reduced the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products by
$28.5 million ($43.8 million pretax) in 2008, $41.8 million ($64.3 million pretax) in 2007 and $75.0 million ($115.4 million pretax) in 2006. We believe excluding any
changes to the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products provides more meaningful information as to our continuing products and is consistent with the
treatment of the results of operations of these discontinued products, which are credited or charged to the reserve and do not affect our results of operations.

Net realized capital losses in 2008 were primarily due to OTTI of debt securities (refer to our discussion of Investments - Net Realized Capital Gains
and Losses beginning on page 13 for additional information).
Discontinued Products in Large Case Pensions
Prior to 1993, we sold single-premium annuities (“SPAs”) and guaranteed investment contracts (“GICs”), primarily to employer sponsored pension
plans. In 1993, we discontinued selling these products, and now we refer to these products as discontinued products.

We discontinued selling these products because they were generating losses for us and we projected that they would continue to generate future losses
over their life (which is greater than 30 years), so we established a reserve for anticipated future losses at the time of discontinuance. We provide
additional information on this reserve, including key assumptions and other important information, in Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page 81. Please refer to this note for additional information.
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The operating summary for Large Case Pensions on page 10 includes revenues and expenses related to our discontinued products with the exception
of net realized capital gains and losses which are recorded as part of current and future benefits. Since we established a reserve for future losses on
discontinued products, as long as our expected future losses remain consistent with prior projections, the operating results of our discontinued
products are applied against the reserve and do not impact operating earnings or net income for Large Case Pensions. However, if actual or expected
future losses are greater than we currently estimate, we may have to increase the reserve, which could adversely impact net income. If actual or
expected future losses are less than we currently estimate, we may have to decrease the reserve, which could favorably impact net income. In those
cases, we disclose such adjustment separately in the operating summary.
The activity in the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:
(Millions)

$

Reserve, beginning of period
Operating (loss) income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Reserve reduction
Reserve, end of period

$

2008
1,052.3

$

(93.4)
(124.7)
(43.8)
790.4

2007
1,061.1
28.5
27.0

$

(64.3)

$

1,052.3

$

2006
1,052.2
85.7
38.6
(115.4)
1,061.1

During 2008, our discontinued products reflected an operating loss and net realized capital losses, both attributable to the unfavorable investment
conditions that existed in the latter half of 2008. The operating loss in 2008 reflects lower net investment income than we experienced in 2007,
primarily related to alternative investments. Net realized capital losses in 2008 are comprised substantially of OTTI of debt securities, a majority of
which are yield-related and were caused by the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in
2008. Accounting guidance requires us to recognize OTTI on these securities in order to maintain our flexibility in managing this portfolio; however,
these securities continue to perform and are generating investment income to support the cash flows of our discontinued products. We have evaluated
the operating losses and the yield-related OTTI in 2008 against our expectations of future cash flows assumed in estimating the reserve and do not
believe an adjustment to the reserve is required at December 31, 2008.
Management reviews the adequacy of the discontinued products reserve quarterly and, as a result, $44 million ($29 million after tax), $64 million
($42 million after tax) and $115 million ($75 million after tax) was released in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The 2008 reserve reduction was
primarily due to favorable mortality and retirement experience compared to assumptions we previously made in estimating the reserve. The 2007 and
2006 reserve reductions were primarily due to favorable investment performance and favorable mortality and retirement experience compared to
assumptions we previously made in estimating the reserve. The current reserve reflects management’s best estimate of anticipated future losses.

Assets Managed by Large Case Pensions
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, Large Case Pensions assets under management consisted of the following:
2008

(Millions)

Assets under management: (1)
Fully guaranteed discontinued products

$

Experience-rated

3,840.2
4,226.8

2007

$

4,225.1
4,554.3

Non-guaranteed (2)
2,630.5
15,376.2
$
10,697.5 $
24,155.6
Total assets under management
(1)
Excludes net unrealized capital (losses) gains of ($111.2) million and $143.4 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
(2)
In 2008, approximately $12.4 billion of our mortgage loan and real estate Separate Account assets transitioned out of our business. Refer to Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 48 for additional information.
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Assets supporting experience-rated products (where the contract holder, not us, assumes investment and other risks subject to, among other things,
certain minimum guarantees) may be subject to contract holder or participant withdrawals. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
experience-rated contract holder and participant-directed withdrawals were as follows:
2008

(Millions)

Scheduled contract maturities and benefit payments

(1)

Contract holder withdrawals other than scheduled contract maturities and benefit payments (2)

$

338.8

2007

$

31.1

353.6

2006

$

361.3

39.4

202.2

(2)

Participant-directed withdrawals
3.9
6.0
16.9
(1)
Includes payments made upon contract maturity and other amounts distributed in accordance with contract schedules.
(2)
Approximately $524.3 million, $534.9 million and $515.5 million at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, of experience-rated pension contracts allowed for
unscheduled contract holder withdrawals, subject to timing restrictions and formula-based market value adjustments. Further, approximately $93.2 million, $118.7 million
and $127.8 million at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, of experience-rated pension contracts supported by general account assets could be withdrawn or
transferred to other plan investment options at the direction of plan participants, without market value adjustment, subject to plan, contractual and income tax provisions.

INVESTMENTS
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, our investment portfolio consisted of the following:
(Millions)

Debt and equity securities
Mortgage loans
Other investments
Total investments

$

$

2008
13,993.3
1,679.9
1,196.2
16,869.4

$

$

2007
15,131.9
1,512.6
1,247.1
17,891.6

The risks associated with investments supporting experience-rated pension and annuity products in our Large Case Pensions business are assumed by
the contract holders and not by us (subject to, among other things, certain minimum guarantees). Anticipated future losses associated with
investments supporting discontinued fully guaranteed Large Case Pensions products are provided for in the reserve for anticipated future losses on
discontinued products.
As a result of the foregoing, investment risks associated with our experience-rated and discontinued products generally do not impact our results of
operations (refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 48 for additional information). Our total investments
supported the following products at December 31, 2008 and 2007:
(Millions)

Supporting experience-rated products
Supporting discontinued products
Supporting remaining products

$

Total investments

$

2008
1,582.8
3,635.1
11,651.5
16,869.4

$

$

2007
1,854.9
4,184.3
11,852.4
17,891.6

The decrease in investments in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to the decline in the value of our debt securities as a result of the adverse
market conditions in 2008. Refer to Debt and Equity Securities and Net Realized Capital Gains and Losses beginning on pages 12 and 13,
respectively, for additional information.

Debt and Equity Securities
The debt securities in our portfolio had an average quality rating of A+ at December 31, 2008 and 2007, with approximately $4.3 billion at December
31, 2008 and $5.3 billion at December 31, 2007 rated AAA. Total debt securities that were rated below investment grade (that is, having a quality
rating below BBB-/Baa3) at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $640 million and $791 million, respectively (of which 18% at December 31, 2008
and 24% at December 31, 2007 supported our discontinued and experience-rated products).

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we held approximately $824 million and $627 million, respectively, of municipal debt securities and $64 million
and $142 million, respectively, of structured product debt securities that were guaranteed by third parties, collectively representing approximately 5%
and 4%, respectively, of our total
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investments. These securities had an average credit rating of AA- at December 31, 2008 and AAA at December 31, 2007 with the
guarantee. Without the guarantee, the average credit rating of the municipal debt securities was A+ on each date. The structured product debt
securities are not rated by the rating agencies on a standalone basis. We do not have any significant concentration of investments with third party
guarantors (either direct or indirect).

We classify our debt and equity securities as available for sale, carrying them at fair value on our balance sheet. Approximately 3% of our debt and
equity securities at December 31, 2008 are valued using inputs that reflect our own assumptions (categorized as Level 3 inputs in accordance with
FAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements”). Refer to Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 72 for additional
information on the methodologies and key assumptions we use to determine the fair value of investments.
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, our debt and equity securities had net unrealized (losses) gains of $(500) million and $209 million, respectively, of
which $(123) million and $145 million, respectively, related to our experience-rated and discontinued products. Certain of our individual debt
securities, primarily those of issuers in the financial services sector, have higher levels of unrealized capital losses at December 31, 2008 due to
increases in credit spreads relative to interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in 2008, rather than unfavorable changes in the credit quality of such
securities. We have reviewed these individual debt securities for OTTI (see below) and have the intent and ability to hold these securities until market
recovery. We had no material unrealized capital losses on individual debt or equity securities at December 31, 2007.

Refer to Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 58 for details of net unrealized capital gains and losses by major
security type, as well as details on our debt and equity securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2008 and 2007. We regularly review our debt
and equity securities to determine if a decline in fair value below the carrying value is other-than-temporary. If we determine a decline in fair value is
other-than-temporary, the carrying amount of the security is written down, and the amount of the write down is included in our results of
operations. Accounting for OTTI of our investment securities is considered a critical accounting estimate. Refer to Critical Accounting Estimates Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investment Securities beginning on page 22 for additional information.
Net Realized Capital Gains and Losses
Net realized capital (losses) gains were $(656) million in 2008, $(74) million in 2007 and $32 million in 2006. Included in net realized capital losses
were $502 million for 2008 and $125 million for 2007, of yield-related OTTI losses.
Yield-related OTTI losses were primarily due to the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in 2008 and
increases in the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in 2007. During 2008, significant declines in the U.S. housing market resulted in the credit
and other capital markets experiencing volatility and limitations on the ability of companies to issue debt or equity securities. The lack of available
credit, lack of confidence in the financial sector, increased volatility in the financial markets and reduced business activity resulted in credit spreads
widening during 2008.

Included in net realized capital losses for 2008 were $141 million credit-related OTTI losses of which $105 million related to investments in debt
securities of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and Washington Mutual, Inc. We had no other individually material realized capital losses on debt or
equity securities that impacted our results of operations during 2008 or 2007. Refer to Critical Accounting Estimates - Other-Than-Temporary
Impairments of Investment Securities beginning on page 22 for additional information.

Mortgage Loans
Our mortgage loan portfolio (which is collateralized by commercial real estate) represented 10% and 8 % of our total invested assets at December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. At December 31, 2008, our mortgage loans continued to be performing assets. In accordance with our accounting
policies, there were no specific impairment reserves on these loans at December 31, 2008 or 2007. Refer to Notes 2 and 8 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on pages 48 and 58, respectively, for additional information.
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Risk Management and Market-Sensitive Instruments
We manage interest rate risk by seeking to maintain a tight match between the durations of our assets and liabilities where appropriate. We manage
credit risk by seeking to maintain high average quality ratings and diversified sector exposure within our debt securities portfolio. In connection with
our investment and risk management objectives, we also use derivative financial instruments whose market value is at least partially determined by,
among other things, levels of or changes in interest rates (short-term or long-term), duration, prepayment rates, equity markets or credit
ratings/spreads. Our use of these derivatives is generally limited to hedging purposes and has principally consisted of using interest rate swap
agreements, warrants, forward contracts, futures contracts and credit default swaps. These instruments, viewed separately, subject us to varying
degrees of interest rate, equity price and credit risk. However, when used for hedging, we expect these instruments to reduce overall risk.
We regularly evaluate our risk from market-sensitive instruments by examining, among other things, levels of or changes in interest rates (short-term
or long-term), duration, prepayment rates, equity markets or credit ratings/spreads. We also regularly evaluate the appropriateness of investments
relative to our management-approved investment guidelines (and operate within those guidelines) and the business objectives of our portfolios.
On a quarterly basis, we review the impact of hypothetical net losses in our investment portfolio on our consolidated near-term financial position,
results of operations and cash flows assuming the occurrence of certain reasonably possible changes in near-term market rates and prices. We
determine the potential effect of interest rate risk on near-term net income, cash flow and fair value based on commonly used models. The models
project the impact of interest rate changes on a wide range of factors, including duration, prepayment, put options and call options. We also estimate
the impact on fair value based on the net present value of cash flows using a representative set of likely future interest rate scenarios. The assumptions
used were as follows: an immediate increase of 100 basis points in interest rates (which we believe represents a moderately adverse scenario and is
approximately equal to the historical annual volatility of interest rate movements for our intermediate-term available-for-sale debt securities) and an
immediate decrease of 25% in prices for domestic equity securities.
Based on our overall exposure to interest rate risk and equity price risk, we believe that these changes in market rates and prices would not materially
affect our consolidated near-term financial position, results of operations or cash flows as of December 31, 2008.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows
Generally, we meet our operating cash requirements by maintaining appropriate levels of liquidity in our investment portfolio and using overall cash
flows from premiums, deposits and income received on investments. We monitor the duration of our portfolio of debt securities (which is highly
marketable) and mortgage loans, and execute purchases and sales of these investments with the objective of having adequate funds available to satisfy
our maturing liabilities. Overall cash flows are used primarily for claim and benefit payments, operating expenses and share repurchases.
Presented in the following table is a condensed statement of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. We present net cash
flows used for operating activities of continuing operations and net cash flows provided by investing activities separately for our Large Case Pensions
segment because changes in the insurance reserves for the Large Case Pensions segment (which are reported as cash used for operating activities) are
funded from the sale of investments (which are reported as cash provided by investing activities). Refer to the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows on page 47 for additional information.
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(Millions)
Cash flows from operating activities
Health Care and Group Insurance (including corporate interest)
Large Case Pensions

2008

$

$

(190.7)

Cash flows from investing activities
Health Care and Group Insurance
Large Case Pensions
Net cash used for investing activities

$

1,917.6
(279.0)

2,065.5

1,638.6

-

-

49.7

2,206.9

2,065.5

1,688.3

(1,485.2)

(1,391.5)
353.7
(1,037.8)

411.9
(1,073.3)

$

2,367.7

2006

(302.2)

2,206.9

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash used for financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

2,397.6

2007

(1,208.1)
(74.5)

$

(653.7)
374.0

(931.3)

378.0
(553.3)

$

(1,447.6)
(312.6)

Cash Flow Analysis

Cash flows provided by operating activities for Health Care and Group Insurance were approximately $2.4 billion in both 2008 and 2007 and $1.9
billion in 2006. Included in these amounts were payments of approximately $45 million pretax in both 2008 and 2007 and $245 million pretax in 2006
in voluntary contributions to our tax-qualified pension plan. The cash flow provided by operating activities in 2008 reflects the receipt of $127
million in premium stabilization funds from a large customer.

During 2007 and 2006, we spent $613 million and $156 million on acquisitions we expect will enhance our existing product capabilities and future
growth opportunities. This use of cash was reported as cash flows used in investing activities.
Cash flows used for financing activities primarily reflect share repurchases partially offset by our issuance of debt in 2008 and 2007. Refer to Short
and Long-Term Debt below for additional information. During the period 2006 through 2008, we repurchased common stock under various
repurchase programs authorized by our Board. In 2008, we repurchased approximately 43 million shares of common stock at a cost of $1.8
billion. In 2007, we repurchased approximately 33 million shares of common stock at a cost of $1.7 billion. In 2006, we repurchased approximately
60 million shares of common stock at a cost of $2.3 billion. At December 31, 2008, the capacity remaining under our Board-approved share
repurchase program was approximately $614 million.

On September 26, 2008, our Board declared an annual cash dividend of $.04 per common share to shareholders of record at the close of business on
November 13, 2008. The dividend was paid on November 28, 2008. While our Board reviews our common stock dividend annually, we currently
intend to maintain an annual dividend of $.04 per common share. Among the factors considered by our Board in determining the amount of dividends
are our results of operations and the capital requirements, growth and other characteristics of our businesses.

Short and Long-Term Debt
In September 2008, we issued $500 million of senior notes and used the proceeds to repay commercial paper borrowings. In December 2007, we
issued $700 million of senior notes and used the proceeds to repay commercial paper borrowings. In June 2006, we issued $2 billion of senior notes
and used the proceeds to redeem $700 million senior notes with a higher interest rate, repay approximately $400 million of commercial paper
borrowings and for general corporate purposes, including share repurchases.

We use short-term borrowings from time to time to address timing differences between cash receipts and disbursements. The maximum amount of
commercial paper borrowings outstanding during 2008 was $978 million.

Our committed short-term borrowing capacity consists of a $1.5 billion revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) which terminates in March
2013. The Facility also provides for the issuance of letters of credit at our request, up to $200 million, which count as usage of the available
commitments under the Facility. The Facility permits the aggregate commitments under the Facility to be expanded to a maximum of $2.0 billion upon
our agreement with one or more financial institutions. There were no amounts outstanding under the Facility at any time during 2008.
Our total debt to total capital ratio (total debt divided by the sum of shareholders’ equity plus total debt) was approximately 32% and 25% at December
31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We continually monitor existing and alternative financing sources to support our capital and liquidity needs,
including, but not limited to, debt issuance, preferred or common stock issuance and pledging or selling of assets.
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Refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 70 for additional information on our short-term and long-term debt.

After-tax interest expense was $154 million for 2008, $117 million for 2007 and $96 million for 2006. The increase in interest expense in 2008 was
due to higher overall average long-term debt levels as a result of our issuance of senior notes in September 2008 and December 2007. The increase in
interest expense for 2007 compared to 2006 was related to higher overall average debt levels as a result of our issuance of senior notes in December
2007 and June 2006. Refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 70 for additional information.
Restrictions on Certain Payments
In addition to general state law restrictions on payments of dividends and other distributions to shareholders applicable to all corporations, HMOs and
insurance companies are subject to further regulations that, among other things, may require those companies to maintain certain levels of equity
(referred to as surplus) and restrict the amount of dividends and other distributions that may be paid to their equity holders. These regulations are not
directly applicable to Aetna as a holding company, since Aetna is not an HMO or an insurance company. The additional regulations applicable to our
HMO and insurance company subsidiaries are not expected to affect our ability to service our debt, meet our other financing obligations or pay
dividends, or the ability of any of our subsidiaries to service other financing obligations, if any. Under regulatory requirements, at December 31,
2008, the amount of dividends that our insurance and HMO subsidiaries could pay to Aetna without prior approval by regulatory authorities was
approximately $1.6 billion in the aggregate.

We maintain capital levels in our operating subsidiaries at or above targeted and/or required capital levels and dividend amounts in excess of these
levels to meet our liquidity requirements, including the payment of interest on debt and shareholder dividends. In addition, at our discretion, we use
these funds for other purposes such as funding share repurchase programs, investments in new businesses and other purposes we consider necessary.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have guarantees or other off-balance sheet arrangements that we believe, based on historical experience and current business plans, are
reasonably likely to have a material impact on our current or future results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. Refer to Notes 8 and 18
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 58 and 76, respectively, for additional detail of our variable interest entities and
guarantee arrangements, respectively, at December 31, 2008.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes certain estimated future obligations by period at December 31, 2008, under our various contractual obligations. The
table below does not include future payments of claims to health care providers or pharmacies because certain terms of these payments are not
determinable at December 31, 2008 (for example, the timing and volume of future services provided under fee-for-service arrangements and future
membership levels for capitated arrangements). We believe that funds from future operating cash flows, together with cash, investments and other
funds available under our credit agreements or from public or private financing sources, will be sufficient to meet our existing commitments as well as
our liquidity needs associated with future operations, including strategic transactions.
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2009
239.1

(Millions)

$

Long-term debt obligations, including interest
Operating lease obligations (1)
Purchase obligations

Other liabilities reflected on our balance sheet:

Future policy benefits

$

2010 - 2011
1,334.6

(3)

(4)

(5)

Total

Thereafter

$

5,336.0

$

7,265.2

224.7
191.3

59.4

93.2
16.4

573.2
475.9

163.9

91.4

(2)

(3) (4)

759.7

1,437.1

1,141.5

4,186.8

7,525.1

Unpaid claims (3)

559.8

428.6

283.9

558.7

1,831.0

Policyholders' funds (3) (4)

754.4

103.8

83.4

674.7

1,616.3

1,806.6
$
4,492.3
We did not have any material capital lease obligations at December 31, 2008.

156.3
3,876.4

108.6
2,123.7

250.5
11,116.3

Total
(2)

2012 - 2013
355.5

208.8

Other liabilities (5)
(1)

$

$

$

$

2,322.0
21,608.7

$

Payments of other long-term liabilities exclude Separate Account liabilities of approximately $5.9 billion because these liabilities are supported by assets that are legally
segregated (i.e., Separate Account assets) and are not subject to claims that arise out of our business.
Payments of future policy benefits, unpaid claims and policyholders’ funds include approximately $797.7 million, $49.7 million and $186.6 million, respectively, of
reserves for contracts subject to reinsurance. We expect the assuming reinsurance carrier to fund these obligations and have reflected these amounts as reinsurance
recoverable assets on our consolidated balance sheet.
Customer funds associated with group life and health contracts of approximately $347.7 million have been excluded from the table above because such funds may be used
primarily at the customer’s discretion to offset future premiums and/or refunds, and the timing of the related cash flows cannot be determined. Additionally, net
unrealized capital losses on debt and equity securities supporting experience-rated products of $37.9 million have been excluded from the table above.
Other liabilities in the table above include general expense accruals and other related payables and exclude the following:
· Employee-related benefit obligations of $1.3 billion including our pension, other postretirement and post-employment benefit obligations and certain deferred
compensation arrangements. These liabilities do not necessarily represent future cash payments we will be required to make, or such payment patterns cannot be
determined. However, other long-term liabilities include anticipated voluntary pension contributions to our tax-qualified defined pension plan of $45.0 million in 2009 and
expected benefit payments of approximately $495.8 million over the next ten years for our nonqualified pension plan and our postretirement benefit plans, which we
primarily fund when paid by the plans.

· Deferred gains of $79.6 million related to prior cash payments which will be recognized in our earnings in the future in accordance with GAAP.
· Net unrealized capital losses of $16.0 million supporting discontinued products.
· Minority interests of $86.3 million consisting of subsidiaries less than 100% owned by us. This amount does not represent future cash payments we will be required
to make.
· Income taxes payable of $20.1 million related to uncertain tax positions .

Ratings
As of February 26, 2009, the credit ratings of Aetna and Aetna Life Insurance Company (“ALIC”) from the respective nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations (“Rating Agencies”) were as follows:

Aetna (senior debt) (1)
Aetna (commercial paper)

Moody's Investors

Standard

A.M. Best
bbb+

Fitch

Service

& Poor's

A-

A3

A-

AMB-2

F1

P-2

A-2

AA-

Aa3

A+

A
ALIC (financial strength) (1)
(1)
All rating agencies have stated the outlook of Aetna’s se nior debt and ALIC’s financial strength is stable.

Solvency Regulation
The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”) utilizes risk-based capital (“RBC”) standards for insurance companies that are
designed to identify weakly capitalized companies by comparing each company’s adjusted surplus to its required surplus (“RBC Ratio”). The RBC
Ratio is designed to reflect the risk profile of insurance companies. Within certain ratio ranges, regulators have increasing authority to take action as
the RBC Ratio decreases. There are four levels of regulatory action, ranging from requiring insurers to submit a comprehensive plan to the state
insurance commissioner to requiring the state insurance commissioner to place the insurer under regulatory control. At December 31, 2008, the RBC
Ratio of each of our primary insurance subsidiaries was above the level that would require regulatory action. The RBC framework described above
for insurers has been extended by the NAIC to health organizations, including HMOs. Although not all states had adopted these rules at December
31, 2008, at that date, each of our active HMOs had a surplus that exceeded either the applicable state net worth requirements or, where adopted, the
levels that would require regulatory action under the NAIC’s RBC rules. External rating agencies use their own RBC standards when they determine a
company’s rating.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The application of GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect our consolidated financial statements and related notes. The accounting estimates described below are those we consider
critical in preparing our consolidated financial statements. We use information available to us at the time the estimates are made; however, as described
below, these estimates could change materially if different information or assumptions were used. Also, these estimates may not ultimately reflect the
actual amounts of the final transactions that occur.
Health Care Costs Payable
Health care costs payable include estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to us and of those which have
been reported to us but not yet paid (collectively “IBNR”). At December 31, 2008 and 2007, our IBNR reserves represented approximately 86% and
80%, respectively, of total health care costs payable. The remainder of health care costs payable is primarily comprised of pharmacy and capitation
payables and accruals for state assessments. We develop our IBNR estimates using actuarial principles and assumptions that consider numerous
factors. Of those factors, we consider the analysis of historical and projected claim payment patterns (including claims submission and processing
patterns) and the assumed health care cost trend rate to be the most critical assumptions. In developing our estimate of health care costs payable, we
consistently apply these actuarial principles and assumptions each period, with consideration to the variability of related factors.

We analyze historical claim payment patterns by comparing claim incurred dates (i.e., the date services were provided) to claim payment dates to
estimate “completion factors.” We estimate completion factors by aggregating claim data based on the month of service and month of claim payment
and estimating the percentage of claims incurred for a given month that are complete by each month thereafter. For any given month, substantially all
claims are paid within six months of the date of service, but it can take up to 48 months or longer before all of the claims are completely resolved and
paid. These historically derived completion factors are then applied to claims paid through the financial statement date to estimate the ultimate claim
cost for a given month’s incurred claim activity. The difference between the estimated ultimate claim cost and the claims paid through the financial
statement date represents our estimate of claims remaining to be paid as of the financial statement date and is included in our health care costs payable.
We use completion factors predominantly to estimate reserves for claims with claim incurred dates greater than three months prior to the financial
statement date. The completion factors we use reflect judgments and possible adjustments based on data such as claim inventory levels, claim
submission and processing patterns and, to a lesser extent, other factors such as changes in health care cost trend rates, changes in membership and
product mix. If claims are submitted or processed on a faster (slower) pace than prior periods, the actual claims may be more (less) complete than
originally estimated using our completion factors, which may result in reserves that are higher (lower) than the ultimate cost of claims.
Because claims incurred within three months prior to the financial statement date have less activity (i.e., a large portion of health care claims are not
submitted to us and/or processed until after the end of the quarter in which services are rendered by providers to our members), estimates of the
ultimate cost of claims incurred for these months are not based primarily on the historically derived completion factors. Rather, the estimates for these
months also reflect increased emphasis on the assumed health care cost trend rate, which may be influenced by seasonal patterns, and changes in
membership and product mix.

Our health care cost trend rate is affected by changes in per member utilization of medical services as well as changes in the unit cost of such
services. Many factors influence the health care cost trend rate, including our ability to manage health care costs through underwriting criteria,
product design, negotiation of favorable provider contracts and medical management programs. The aging of the population and other demographic
characteristics, advances in medical technology and other factors continue to contribute to rising per member utilization and unit costs. Changes in
health care practices, inflation, new technologies, increases in the cost of prescription drugs, direct-to-consumer marketing by pharmaceutical
companies, clusters of high cost cases, changes in the regulatory environment, health care provider or member fraud and numerous other factors also
contribute to the cost of health care and our health care cost trend rate.
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For each reporting period, we use an extensive degree of judgment in the process of estimating our health care costs payable, and as a result,
considerable variability and uncertainty is inherent in such estimates, and the adequacy of such estimates is highly sensitive to changes in assumed
completion factors and the assumed health care cost trend rates. For each reporting period we recognize our best estimate of health care costs payable
considering the potential volatility in assumed completion factors and health care cost trend rates, as well as other factors. We believe our estimate of
health care costs payable is reasonable and adequate to cover our obligations at December 31, 2008; however, actual claim payments may differ from
our estimates. A worsening (or improvement) of our health care cost trend rates or changes in completion factors from those that we assumed in
estimating health care costs payable at December 31, 2008 would cause these estimates to change in the near term, and such a change could be
material.

Each quarter, we re-examine previously established health care costs payable estimates based on actual claim payments for prior periods and other
changes in facts and circumstances. Given the extensive degree of judgment in this estimate, it is possible that our estimates of health care costs
payable could develop either favorably (i.e., our actual health care costs for the period were less than we estimated) or unfavorably. The changes in
our estimate of health care costs payable may relate to a prior fiscal quarter, prior fiscal year or earlier periods. We also consider the results of these
re-examinations when we determine our current year liabilities. Because of the uncertainty involved in establishing estimates of health care costs
payable each period, changes in prior period health care cost estimates may be offset by current period health care costs when we establish our
estimate of current period health care costs. Our reserving practice is to consistently recognize the actuarial best estimate of our ultimate liability for
health care costs payable. When significant decreases (increases) in prior periods’ health care cost estimates occur that we believe significantly
impact our current period results of operations, we disclose that amount as favorable (unfavorable) development of prior period health care cost
estimates. We had no significant amount of favorable (unfavorable) development of prior period health care cost estimates that affected our results of
operations in 2008 or 2007 (refer to Health Care beginning on page 5 and Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 57 for
additional information).
During 2008 and 2007, we have observed an increase in our completion factors as a result of an increase in the speed of our provider claim
submission and our processing times. After considering the claims paid in 2008 and 2007 with dates of service prior to the fourth quarter of the
previous year, we observed the assumed weighted average completion factors were approximately .2% and .5%, respectively, higher than previously
estimated, resulting in a reduction of approximately $39 million in 2008 and $66 million in 2007 in health care costs payable that related to the prior
year. We have considered this continued increase in completion factors when determining the completion factors used in our estimates of IBNR at
December 31, 2008. However, based on our historical claim experience, it is reasonably possible that our assumed completion factors may vary by
plus or minus .5% from our assumed rates, which could impact health care costs payable by approximately plus or minus $26 million pretax.

Also during 2008 and 2007, we observed that our health care cost trend rates for claims with dates of service three months or less before the financial
statement date were slightly lower than previously estimated. Specifically, after considering the claims paid in 2008 and 2007 with dates of service for
the fourth quarter of the previous year, we observed health care cost trend rates that were approximately 3.7% and 4.5%, respectively, lower than
previously estimated for claims associated with combined Commercial and Medicare IBNR, resulting in a reduction of approximately $108 million in
2008 and $111 million in 2007 in health care costs payable that related to the prior year. The lower than anticipated health care cost trend rates we
observed in 2008 for claims incurred in 2007 were due primarily to moderating outpatient and lower pharmacy trends. The lower than anticipated
health care cost trend rates we observed in 2007 for claims incurred in 2006 were due to moderating outpatient and physician trends, and lower
pharmacy trends. Historical health care cost trend rates are not necessarily representative of current trends. Therefore, we consider historical trend
rates together with our knowledge of recent events that may impact current trends when developing our estimates of current trend rates. When
establishing our reserves at December 31, 2008, we decreased our assumed health care cost trend rates to account for the lower than anticipated health
care cost trend rates recently observed. However, based on our historical claim experience, it is reasonably possible that our estimated health care cost
trend rates may vary by plus or minus 3.0 percentage points from our assumed rates, which could impact health care costs payable by approximately
plus or minus $137 million pretax.
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Health care costs payable as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following products:
(Millions)
Commercial
Medicare
Medicaid
Total health care costs payable

$

$

2008
1,936.6
390.9
65.7
2,393.2

$

2007
1,881.8

$

227.9
67.7
2,177.4

Premium Deficiency Reserves
We recognize a premium deficiency loss when it is probable that expected future health care costs will exceed our existing reserves plus anticipated
future premiums and reinsurance recoveries. Anticipated investment income is considered in the calculation of expected losses for certain
contracts. Any such reserves established would normally cover expected losses until the next policy renewal dates for the related policies. We did not
have any material premium deficiency reserves for our Health Care business at December 31, 2008 or 2007.
Other Insurance Liabilities
We establish insurance liabilities other than health care costs payable for benefit claims related to our Group Insurance segment. We refer to these
liabilities as other insurance liabilities. These liabilities relate to our life, disability and long-term care products.

Life and Disability
The liabilities for our life and disability products reflect benefit claims that have been reported to us but not yet paid, estimates of claims that have been
incurred but not yet reported to us and future policy benefits earned under insurance contracts. We develop these reserves and the related benefit
expenses using actuarial principles and assumptions that consider, among other things, discount, recovery and mortality rates (each discussed
below). Completion factors are also evaluated when estimating our reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported for life products. We also
consider the benefit payments from the U.S. Social Security Administration for which our disability members may be eligible and which may offset
our liability for disability claims (this is known as the Social Security offset). Each period, we estimate these factors, to the extent relevant, based
primarily on historical data, and use these estimates to determine the assumptions underlying our reserve calculations. Given the extensive degree of
judgment and uncertainty used in developing these estimates, it is possible that our estimates could develop either favorably or unfavorably.
The discount rate is the interest rate at which future benefit cash flows are discounted to determine the present value of those cash flows. The
discount rate we select is a critical estimate, because higher discount rates result in lower reserves. We determine the discount rate based on the
current and estimated future yield of the asset portfolio supporting our life and disability reserves. If the discount rate we select in estimating our
reserves is lower (higher) than our actual future portfolio returns, our reserves may be higher (lower) than necessary. Our discount rates for life and
disability reserves at December 31, 2008 increased by .17% and .04%, respectively, when compared to the rates used at December 31, 2007. Our
discount rates for life and disability reserves at December 31, 2007 increased by .06% and .12%, respectively, when compared to the rates used at
December 31, 2006. The discount rates we selected for disability and life reserves at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were higher than the rates we
selected in the previous year as a result of increasing investment yields on the portfolio of assets supporting these reserves. Based on our historical
experience, it is reasonably possible that the assumed discount rates for our life and disability reserves may vary by plus or minus .25% from year to
year. A .25% decrease in the discount rates selected for both our life and disability reserves would have increased current and future life and disability
benefit costs by approximately $14 million pretax for 2008.

For disability claims and a portion of our life claims, we must estimate the timing of benefit payments, which takes into consideration the maximum
benefit period and the probabilities of recovery (i.e., recovery rate) or death (i.e., mortality rate) of the member. Benefit payments may also be affected
by a change in employment status of a disabled member, for example if the member returns to work on a part-time basis. Estimating the recovery and
mortality rates of our members is complex. Our actuaries evaluate our current and historical claim patterns, the timing and amount of any Social
Security offset (for disability only), as well as other factors including the relative ages of covered members and the duration of each member’s
disability when developing these assumptions. For disability reserves, if our actual recovery and mortality rates are lower (higher) than our estimates,
our reserves will be lower (higher) than required to cover future disability benefit payments. For certain life reserves, if the actual
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recovery rates are lower (higher) than our estimates or the actual mortality rates are higher (lower) than our estimates, our reserves will be lower
(higher) than required to cover future life benefit payments. We use standard industry tables and our historical claim experience to develop our
estimated recovery and mortality rates. Claim reserves for our disability and life claims are sensitive to these assumptions. Our historical experience
has been that our recovery or mortality rates for our life and disability reserves vary by less than one percent during the course of a year. A one percent
less (more) favorable assumption for our recovery or mortality rates would have increased (decreased) current and future life and disability benefit
costs by approximately $6 million pretax for 2008. When establishing our reserves at December 31, 2008, we have adjusted our estimates of these
rates based on recent experience.

We estimate our reserve for claims incurred but not yet reported to us for life products largely based on completion factors. The completion factors
we use are based on our historical experience and reflect judgments and possible adjustments based on data such as claim inventory levels, claim
payment patterns, changes in business volume and other factors. If claims are submitted or processed on a faster (slower) pace than historical
periods, the actual claims may be more (less) complete than originally estimated using our completion factors, which may result in reserves that are
higher (lower) than required to cover future life benefit payments. At December 31, 2008, we held approximately $192 million in reserves for life
claims incurred but not yet reported to us.

Long-term Care
We establish a reserve for future policy benefits for our long-term care products at the time each policy is issued based on the present value of
estimated future benefit payments less the present value of estimated future premiums. In establishing this reserve, we must evaluate assumptions
about mortality, morbidity, lapse rates and the rate at which new claims are submitted to us. We estimate the future policy benefits reserve for longterm care products using these assumptions and actuarial principles. For long-duration insurance contracts, we use our original assumptions
throughout the life of the policy and do not subsequently modify them unless we deem the reserves to be inadequate. A portion of our reserves for
long-term care products also reflect our estimates relating to future payments to members currently receiving benefits. These reserves are estimated
primarily using recovery and mortality rates, as described above.

Premium Deficiency Reserves
We recognize a premium deficiency loss when it is probable that expected future policy benefit costs will exceed our existing reserves plus anticipated
future premiums and reinsurance recoveries. Anticipated investment income is considered in the calculation of expected losses for certain
contracts. Any such reserves established would normally cover expected losses until the next policy renewal dates for the related policies. We did not
have any material premium deficiency reserves for our Group Insurance business at December 31, 2008 or 2007.

Large Case Pensions Discontinued Products Reserve
We discontinued certain Large Case Pensions products in 1993 and established a reserve to cover losses expected during the run-off period. Since
1993, we have made several adjustments to reduce this reserve that have increased our net income. These adjustments occurred primarily because our
investment experience as well as our mortality and retirement experience have been better than the experience we projected at the time we discontinued
the products. In 2008, 2007 and 2006, $44 million, $64 million and $115 million, respectively, of reserves were released for these reasons. There
can be no assurance that adjustments to the discontinued products reserve will occur in the future or that they will increase net income. Future
adjustments could negatively impact our operating results.
Recoverability of Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
We have made acquisitions that included a significant amount of goodwill and other intangible assets. Goodwill is subject to an annual (or under
certain circumstances more frequent) impairment test based on its estimated fair value. Other intangible assets that meet certain criteria continue to be
amortized over their useful lives and are also subject to a periodic impairment test. For these impairment evaluations, we use an implied fair value
approach, which uses a discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation methodologies. These impairment evaluations use many assumptions and
estimates in determining an impairment loss, including certain assumptions and estimates related to future earnings. If we do not achieve our earnings
objectives, the assumptions and estimates underlying these impairment evaluations could be adversely affected, which could result in an asset
impairment charge that would negatively impact our operating results.
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Measurement of Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
We sponsor defined benefit pension (“pension”) and other postretirement benefit (“OPEB”) plans for our employees and retirees. Refer to Note 12
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 64 for additional information. Major assumptions used in the accounting for these
plans include the expected return on plan assets and the discount rate. We select our assumptions based on our information and market indicators, and
we evaluate our assumptions at each annual measurement date (December 31). A change in any of our assumptions would have an effect on our
pension and OPEB plan costs.

Our expected return on plan assets assumption is based on many factors, including forecasted capital market real returns over a long-term horizon,
forecasted inflation rates, historical compounded asset returns and patterns and correlations on those returns. Expectations for modest increases in
interest rates, normal inflation trends and average capital market real returns led us to an expected return on pension plan assets assumption of 8.5%
for both 2008 and 2007 and an expected return on OPEB plan assets assumption of 5.5% for both 2008 and 2007. Our expected return on pension
plan assets is based on asset range allocations assumptions of 55% – 75% U.S. and international public and private equity securities, 10% – 30%
fixed income securities and 5% – 25% real estate and other assets. We regularly review actual asset allocations and periodically rebalance our
investments to the mid-point of our targeted allocation ranges when we consider it appropriate. At December 31, 2008, our actual asset allocations
were consistent with our asset allocation assumptions. Investment returns can be volatile. Although our return on plan assets is a long-term
assumption, shorter-term volatility in our annual pension costs can occur if investment returns differ from the assumed rate. For example, a onepercent deviation from our long-term 8.5% return assumption would impact our annual pension costs by approximately $5 million after tax and
would have a negligible effect on our annual OPEB costs.
The discount rates we used in accounting for our pension and OPEB plans were calculated using a yield curve as of our annual measurement
date. The yield curve consists of a series of individual discount rates, with each discount rate corresponding to a single point-in-time, based on high
quality bonds (that is, bonds with a rating of Aa or better from Moody’s Investors Service or a rating of AA or better from Standard and Poor’s). We
project the benefits expected to be paid from each plan at each point in the future based on each participant’s current service (but reflecting expected
future pay increases). These projected benefit payments are then discounted to the measurement date using the corresponding rate from the yield
curve. A lower discount rate increases the present value of benefit obligations and increases costs. In 2008, we increased our assumed discount rate
to 6.89% and 6.92% for our pension and OPEB plans, respectively, up from 6.56% and 6.35%, respectively, at the previous measurement date in
2007. A one-percentage point decrease in the assumed discount rate would increase our annual pension costs by approximately $32 million after tax
and would have a negligible effect on our annual OPEB costs.
At December 31, 2008, the pension and OPEB plans had aggregate actuarial losses of $2.6 billion. These losses are primarily due to investment
losses incurred in 2008. The accumulated actuarial loss is amortized over the remaining service life of pension plan participants (estimated at 9.6 years
at December 31, 2008) and the expected life of OPEB plan participants (estimated at up to 16.2 years at December 31, 2008) to the extent the loss is
outside of a corridor established in accordance with GAAP. The corridor is established based on the greater of 10% of the plan assets or 10% of the
projected benefit obligation. At December 31, 2008, $2.1 billion of the actuarial loss was outside of the corridor, resulting in amortization of
approximately $143 million after tax in our 2009 pension and OPEB expense.

Our expected return on plan assets and discount rate discussed above will not affect the cash contributions we are required to make to our pension and
OPEB plans because we have met all minimum funding requirements. We will not have a minimum funding requirement for our pension or OPEB
plans in 2009. However, we currently intend to make a voluntary pension contribution of approximately $45 million in 2009.
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investment Securities
We regularly review our debt and equity securities to determine whether a decline in fair value below the carrying value is other-than-temporary. If a
decline in fair value is considered other-than-temporary, the cost basis/carrying amount of the security is written down, and the amount of the writedown is included in our results of operations. This analysis requires significant diligence and involves judgment. We analyze all facts and
circumstances we believe are relevant for each investment when performing this analysis, in accordance with the guidance of FAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments” and the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 59, “Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable & Equities Securities.”
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Among the factors considered in evaluating whether a decline is other-than-temporary, we consider whether the decline in fair value results from a
change in the quality of the investment security itself, whether the decline results from a downward movement in the market as a whole, the prospects
for realizing the carrying value of the security based on the investment’s current and short-term prospects for recovery and other factors. For
unrealized losses deemed to be the result of market conditions (for example, increasing interest rates and volatility due to conditions in the overall
market) or industry-related events, we determine if sufficient market recovery can occur within a reasonable period of time and whether we have the
intent and ability to hold the investment until market recovery, which may be until maturity. In such a case, an other-than-temporary impairment is not
recognized.

Securities in an unrealized loss position for which we believe the decline is a result of the quality of the security or the credit-worthiness of the issuer
are categorized as credit-related OTTI. Securities in an unrealized loss position for which we do not have the intent and ability to hold until recovery
in value are categorized as yield-related OTTI. Recognizing a yield-related OTTI loss requires significant diligence and judgment. We carefully
evaluate all relevant facts and circumstances for each investment in our analyses. We have concluded that the investments for which a yield-related
OTTI was recognized continue to be performing assets generating investment income to support the needs of our businesses. However, accounting
guidance requires us to assert our intent and ability to hold such securities until market recovery to avoid loss recognition. In order to maintain
appropriate flexibility in managing our investment portfolio, we do not make this assertion and therefore we record these as yield-related OTTI
losses. We write down the carrying value of securities that are impaired (both credit-related and yield-related OTTI) to fair value.
In determining our ability to hold a security until full recovery of value, we consider the following factors, among others:
· forecasted recovery period, based on our internal credit analysts’ expectations, as well as research performed by external rating agencies;
· whether the expected investment return is sufficient relative to other funding sources; and
· our projected cash flow and capital requirements.
We have the ability and intent to hold the securities that were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2008 until such securities recover in
value.

The risks inherent in assessing the impairment of an investment include the risk that market factors may differ from our expectations and the risk that
facts and circumstances factored into our assessment may change with the passage of time. Unexpected changes to market factors and circumstances
that were not present in past reporting periods may result in a current period decision to sell securities that were not impaired in prior reporting periods.
Revenue Recognition (Allowance for Estimated Terminations and Uncollectable Accounts)
Our revenue is principally derived from premiums and fees billed to customers in the Health Care and Group Insurance businesses. In Health Care,
revenue is recognized based on customer billings, which reflect contracted rates per employee and the number of covered employees recorded in our
records at the time the billings are prepared. Billings are generally sent monthly for coverage during the following month. In Group Insurance,
premium for group life and disability products is recognized as revenue, net of allowances for uncollectable accounts, over the term of
coverage. Amounts received before the period of coverage begins are recorded as unearned premiums.
Health Care billings may be subsequently adjusted to reflect changes in the number of covered employees due to terminations or other factors. These
adjustments are known as retroactivity adjustments. We estimate the amount of future retroactivity each period and adjust the recorded revenue
accordingly. We also estimate the amount of uncollectable receivables each period and establish an allowance for uncollectable amounts. We base
such estimates on historical trends, premiums billed, the amount of contract renewal activity during the period and other relevant information. As
information regarding actual retroactivity and uncollectable amounts becomes known, we refine our estimates and record any required adjustments to
revenues in the period they arise. A significant difference in the actual level of retroactivity or uncollectable amounts when compared to our estimated
levels would have a significant effect on Health Care’s results of operations.
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NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, beginning on page 48, for a discussion of recently issued accounting standards.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
General
Our operations are subject to comprehensive federal, state, local and international regulation in the jurisdictions in which we do business. The laws
and rules governing our business and interpretations of those laws and rules continue to become more restrictive each year and are subject to frequent
change. Further we must obtain and maintain regulatory approvals to market many of our products. Supervisory agencies, including state health,
insurance and managed care departments and state boards of pharmacy and the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”), have broad
authority to:

·
·
·
·
·

Grant, suspend and revoke our licenses to transact business;
Regulate many aspects of the products and services we offer;
Assess fines, penalties and/or sanctions;
Monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy; and/or
Regulate our investment activities on the basis of quality, diversification and other quantitative criteria.

Our operations and accounts and other books and records are subject to examination at regular intervals by these agencies. In addition, our current
and past business practices are subject to review by, and we from time to time receive subpoenas and other requests for information from, these
agencies and other state and federal authorities. These reviews may result, and have resulted, in changes to or clarifications of our business practices,
as well as fines, penalties or other sanctions.
The federal and state governments continue to enact and seriously consider many legislative and regulatory proposals that have or could materially
impact various aspects of the health care system. For example, in 2008, the U.S. Congress reduced funding for Medicare Advantage plans beginning
in 2010 and imposed new marketing requirements on Medicare Advantage and PDP plans beginning in 2009. In addition, proposals that would address
the issues of affordability and availability of health insurance, including ways to reduce the number of uninsured, are currently pending in many
states, and we anticipate that similar measures will be considered at the federal level under President Obama’s administration. The proposals vary, and
include individual insurance requirements, the expansion of eligibility under existing Medicaid and/or Federal Employees Health Benefit Plan
programs, minimum medical benefit ratios for health plans, mandatory issuance of insurance coverage and requirements that would limit the ability of
health plans and insurers to vary premiums based on assessments of underlying risk. While certain of these measures would adversely affect us, at
this time we cannot predict the extent of the impact of these proposals on our business or results of operations.
Health Care Regulation

General
The federal, state and foreign governments have adopted laws and regulations that govern our business activities in various ways. These laws and
regulations restrict how we conduct our business and result in additional burdens and costs to us. Areas of governmental regulation include:

·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Licensure
Policy forms, including plan design and disclosures
Premium rates and rating methodologies
Medical benefit ratios
Underwriting rules and procedures
Benefit mandates
Market conduct
Utilization review activities

Annual Report - Page 24

·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Payment of claims, including timeliness and accuracy of payment
Member rights and responsibilities
Sales and marketing activities
Quality assurance procedures
Disclosure of medical and other information
In network and out-of-network provider rates of payment
General assessments
Provider contract forms
Pharmacy and pharmacy benefit management operations
Required participation in coverage arrangements for high-risk insureds, either directly or through an assessment or other risk pooling
mechanism
Delegation of risk and other financial arrangements
Producer licensing and compensation
Financial condition (including reserves) and
Corporate governance.

These laws and regulations are different in each jurisdiction.
States generally require health insurers and HMOs to obtain a certificate of authority prior to commencing operations. To establish a new insurance
company or an HMO in a state, we generally would have to obtain such a certificate. The time necessary to obtain such a certificate varies from state
to state. Each health insurer and HMO must file periodic financial and operating reports with the states in which it does business. In addition, health
insurers and HMOs are subject to state examination and periodic license renewal. These laws also restrict the ability of our regulated subsidiaries to
pay dividends. In addition, some of our business and related activities may be subject to PPO, managed care organization, utilization review or thirdparty administrator-related regulations and licensure requirements. These regulations differ from state to state, but may contain network, contracting,
product and rate, financial and reporting requirements. There also are laws and regulations that set specific standards for our delivery of services,
payment of claims, fraud prevention, protection of consumer health information and covered benefits and services. With the amendment of the
Annual Financial Reporting Model Regulation by the NAIC to incorporate elements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we expect states will
continue to expand their regulation of the corporate governance and internal control activities of HMOs and insurance companies.
Pricing and Underwriting Restrictions
Pricing and underwriting regulation by states limits our underwriting and rating practices and that of other health insurers, particularly for small
employer groups and individuals. These laws and regulations vary by state. In general, they apply to certain business segments and limit our ability to
set prices or renew business, or both based on specific characteristics of the group or the group’s prior claim experience. In some states, these laws
and regulations restrict our ability to price for the risk we assume and/or reflect reasonable costs in our pricing, including by specifying minimum
medical benefit ratios or requiring us to issue policies at specific prices to certain members. For example, on July 8, 2008, the state of New Jersey
enacted legislation mandating a minimum medical benefit ratio of 80% for individual and small group insured health business in that state beginning

January 1, 2009.

Many of these laws and regulations limit the differentials in rates insurers and other carriers may charge between new and renewal business, and/or
between groups or individuals based on differing characteristics. They may also require that carriers disclose to customers the basis on which the
carrier establishes new business and renewal rates, restrict the application of pre-existing condition exclusions and limit the ability of a carrier to
terminate coverage of an employer group.
The federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) generally requires insurers and other carriers that cover small
employer groups in any market to accept for coverage any small employer group applying for a basic and standard plan of benefits. HIPAA also
mandates guaranteed renewal of health care coverage for most employer groups, subject to certain defined exceptions, and provides for specified
employer notice periods in connection with product and market withdrawals. The law further limits exclusions based on pre-existing
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conditions for individuals covered under group policies to the extent the individuals had prior creditable coverage within a specified time
frame. HIPAA is structured as a “floor” requirement, allowing states latitude to enact more stringent rules governing each of these restrictions. For
example, certain states have modified HIPAA’s definition of a small group (2-50 employees) to include groups of one employee.

In addition, a number of states provide for a voluntary reinsurance mechanism to spread small group risk among participating insurers and other
carriers. In a small number of states, participation in this pooling mechanism is mandatory for all small group carriers. In general, we have elected not
to participate in voluntary pools, but even in the voluntary pool states, we may be subject to certain supplemental assessments related to the state’s
small group experience.
HIPAA Administrative Simplification and Privacy; Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
The regulations under the administrative simplification provisions of HIPAA also impose a number of additional obligations on issuers of health
insurance coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. The law authorizes the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) to issue
standards for electronic transactions, as well as privacy and security of medical records and other individually identifiable health information
(“Administrative Simplification”).

Administrative Simplification requirements apply to self-funded group health plans, health insurers and HMOs, health care clearinghouses and health
care providers who transmit health information electronically (“Covered Entities”). Regulations adopted to implement Administrative Simplification
also require that business associates acting for or on behalf of these Covered Entities be contractually obligated to meet HIPAA standards. The
Administrative Simplification regulations establish significant criminal penalties and civil sanctions for noncompliance.

Under Administrative Simplification, HHS has released rules mandating the use of standard formats in electronic health care transactions (for
example, health care claims submission and payment, plan eligibility, precertification, claims status, plan enrollment and disenrollment, payment and
remittance advice, plan premium payments and coordination of benefits). HHS also has published rules requiring the use of standardized code sets
and unique identifiers for employers and providers.

The HIPAA privacy regulations adopted by HHS established limits on the use and disclosure of medical records and other individually identifiable
health information by Covered Entities. In addition, the HIPAA privacy regulations provide patients with new rights to understand and control how
their health information is used. The HIPAA privacy regulations do not preempt more stringent state laws and regulations that may apply to us and
other Covered Entities, including laws that place stricter controls on the release of information relating to specific diseases or conditions, and
complying with additional state requirements could require us to make additional investments beyond those we have made to comply with the HIPAA
regulations. HHS has also adopted security regulations designed to protect member health information from unauthorized use or disclosure.
In addition, states have adopted regulations to implement provisions of the Financial Modernization Act of 1999 (also known as Gramm-LeachBliley Act (“GLBA”)) which generally require insurers to provide customers with notice regarding how their non-public personal health and financial
information is used and the opportunity to “opt out” of certain disclosures before the insurer shares such information with a non-affiliated third
party. In addition to health insurance, the GLBA regulations apply to life and disability insurance. Like HIPAA, this law sets a “floor” standard,
allowing states to adopt more stringent requirements governing privacy protection. GLBA also gives banks and other financial institutions the ability
to affiliate with insurance companies, which may lead to new competitors in the insurance and health benefits businesses.
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Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives
There has been a continuing trend of increased legislative activity concerning health care reform and regulation at both the federal and state levels. For
example, Massachusetts has enacted comprehensive reform, including an individual health coverage mandate. A number of other state legislatures
have contemplated but have not yet enacted significant reform of their health insurance markets. In 2009, we expect a number of states to consider an
individual health coverage mandate and a number of states to consider an employer health care mandate. Other states are expected to consider these
types of reforms as well as more modest reforms aimed at expanding Medicaid and SCHIP eligibility. These proposals include provisions affecting
both public programs and privately-financed health insurance arrangements, and some of these proposals could have the longer-term effect of
materially altering the current role of employers in providing health benefits. Broadly stated, these proposals attempt to increase the number of insured
by expanding eligibility for Medicaid and other public programs and compelling individuals and employers to purchase health insurance coverage. At
the same time, these proposals could change the underwriting and marketing practices of health plans, for example by placing restrictions on pricing
and mandating minimum medical benefit ratios.
Legislation, regulation and initiatives relating to this continuing trend include among other things, the following:

· Amending or supplementing ERISA to impose greater requirements on the administration of employer-funded benefit plans or limit the
scope of current ERISA pre-emption, which would among other things expose us and other health plans to expanded liability for punitive
and other extra-contractual damages and additional state regulation

· Imposing assessments on (or to be collected by) health plans or health carriers, which may or may not be passed onto their customers. These
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

assessments may include assessments for insolvency, assessments for uninsured or high-risk pools, assessments for uncompensated care, or
assessments to defray provider medical malpractice insurance costs.
Reducing government funding of government-sponsored health programs in which we participate.
Mandating minimum medical benefit ratios or otherwise restricting health plans’ profitability.
Extending malpractice and other liability exposure for decisions made by health plans.
Mandating coverage for certain conditions and/or specified procedures, drugs or devices (for example, treatment for autism and infertility
and experimental pharmaceuticals).
Mandating expanded employer and consumer disclosures and notices.
Regulating e-connectivity.
Mandating health insurance access and/or affordability.
Mandating or regulating the disclosure of provider fee schedules and other data about our payments to providers.
Mandating or regulating disclosure of provider outcome and/or efficiency information.
Imposing substantial penalties for our failure to pay claims within specified time periods.
Imposing payment levels for services rendered to our members by providers who do not have contracts with us.
Exempting physicians from the antitrust laws that prohibit price fixing, group boycotts and other horizontal restraints on competition.
Restricting health plan claim processing, review, payment and related procedures.
Mandating internal and external grievance and appeal procedures (including expedited decision making and access to external claim review).
Enabling the creation of new types of health plans or health carriers, which in some instances would not be subject to the regulations or
restrictions that govern our operations.
Allowing individuals and small groups to collectively purchase health care coverage without any other affiliations.

·
· Imposing requirements and restrictions on operations of pharmacy benefit managers, including restricting or eliminating the use of
formularies for prescription drugs or the use of average wholesale price.

· Creating or expanding state-sponsored health benefit purchasing pools, in which we may be required to participate.
· Creating a single payer system where the government oversees or manages the provision of health care coverage.
· Imposing requirements and restrictions on consumer-driven health plans and/or health savings accounts.
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· Restricting the ability of health plans to establish member financial responsibility.
· Regulating the individual coverage market by restricting or mandating premium levels, restricting our underwriting discretion or restricting
our ability to rescind coverage based on a member’s misrepresentations or omissions.

· Requiring employers to provide health care coverage for their employees.
· Requiring individuals to purchase health care coverage.
· Allowing significantly expanded access to Medicaid, Medicare, the Federal Employees Health Benefit Plan or other government-based
health insurance programs, or creating other government-run insurance programs that would compete with commercial health plans.

For example, on October 3, 2008, the Paul Wellstone-Pete Domenici Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act 2008 (the “Mental Health Parity
Act”) was enacted into law as part of an end of session package that included the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008. The Mental
Health Parity Act will become effective for plan years beginning one year after enactment and will require employers that voluntarily provide both
medical and mental health benefits to provide such benefits on the same terms and conditions with respect to financial requirements and treatment
limitations. The Mental Health Parity Act does not prescribe the method(s) employers and group health plans may use to achieve this “parity”
requirement.

Some of the changes, if enacted, could provide us with business opportunities. However, it is uncertain whether we can counter the potential adverse
effects of such potential legislation or regulation, including whether we can recoup, through higher premiums, expanded membership or other
measures, the increased costs of mandated benefits, assessments or other increased costs.
We also may be adversely impacted by court and regulatory decisions that expand the interpretations of existing statutes and regulations or impose
medical malpractice or bad faith liability. Among other issues, federal and state courts continue to consider cases addressing group life insurance
payment practices and the pre-emptive effect of ERISA on state laws. In general, limitations to ERISA pre-emption have the effect of increasing our
costs, liability exposures, or both. The legislative initiatives discussed above include proposals in the U.S. Congress to restrict the pre-emptive effect
of ERISA and state legislative activity in several states that, should it result in enacted legislation that is not pre-empted by ERISA, could increase our
liability exposure and could result in greater state regulation of our operations.
The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”)
The provision of services to certain employee benefit plans, including certain Health Care, Group Insurance and Large Case Pensions benefit plans, is
subject to ERISA, a complex set of laws and regulations subject to interpretation and enforcement by the Internal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor (the “DOL”). ERISA regulates certain aspects of the relationships between us and employers who maintain employee benefit
plans subject to ERISA. Some of our administrative services and other activities may also be subject to regulation under ERISA.

DOL regulations under ERISA set standards for claim payment and member appeals along with associated notice and disclosure
requirements. Recent final and proposed regulations would require additional disclosures to employers of certain types of indirect compensation we
receive. We have invested significant resources to comply with these standards, which represent an additional regulatory burden for us.
Certain Large Case Pensions and Group Insurance products and services are also subject to potential issues raised by certain judicial interpretations
relating to ERISA. Under those interpretations, together with DOL regulations, we may have ERISA fiduciary duties with respect to certain general
account assets held under contracts that are not guaranteed benefit policies. As a result, certain transactions related to those assets are subject to
conflict of interest and other restrictions, and we must provide certain disclosures to policyholders annually. We must comply with these restrictions
or face substantial penalties.

Federal Employees Health Benefits (“FEHB”) Program
Our subsidiaries contract with the Office of Personnel Management (“OPM”) to provide managed health care services under the FEHB Program in
their service area. These contracts with the OPM and applicable government regulations establish premium rating arrangements for this program. The
OPM conducts periodic audits of its contractors to, among other things, verify that the premiums established under its contracts are in compliance
with
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the community rating and other requirements under FEHB Program. The OPM may seek premium refunds or institute other sanctions against health
plans that participate in the program if the health plan is found to be non-compliant with the program requirements.

Medicare
Our Medicare products are regulated by CMS. CMS has the right to audit our performance to determine compliance with CMS contracts and
regulations and the quality of care being given to Medicare beneficiaries. The regulations and contractual requirements applicable to us and other
participants in Medicare programs are complex and subject to change. Although we have invested significant resources to comply with these
standards and believe our compliance efforts are adequate, our Medicare compliance efforts will continue to require significant resources. If we fail
to comply with the standards, CMS may prohibit us from continuing to market and/or enroll members in one or more Medicare products.

As a result of funding and other reforms contained in the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Medicare
Act”):

·
·
·
·

In each year from 2005 through and including 2009, we elected to expand our participation in the Medicare Advantage program in selected
markets;
In January 2006, we began offering PDP products in all 34 CMS designated regions; and
In 2007, we began to offer PFFS plans in select markets for individuals and PFFS plans for employer groups that can cover retirees
nationwide.
In 2008, we began to offer a Medicare Advantage Special Needs Plan in select markets to individuals who are eligible for both Medicare and
Medicaid benefits.

This expansion of the Medicare markets we serve and Medicare products we offer increases our exposure to changes in government policy with
respect to and/or regulation of the Medicare programs in which we participate, including changes in the amounts payable to us under those
programs. For example, on July 15, 2008, the U.S. Congress overrode the President’s veto and passed a Medicare funding bill that reduces amounts
payable to health plans that offer Medicare Advantage plans beginning in 2010, requires health plans that offer Medicare Advantage plans to have
contracts with the providers their members utilize beginning in 2011, and imposes new marketing requirements for Medicare Advantage and Medicare
Part D Prescription Drug plans beginning in 2009. In addition, the Obama administration and various congressional leaders have signalled their interest
in reducing payments to private plans offering Medicare Advantage. Depending on the extent and phasing of these potential reductions, the number of
individuals participating in Medicare Advantage and the industry-wide earnings from these plans may fall. However, although it is not possible to
predict the longer term adequacy of payments we receive under these programs and although there are economic and political pressures to continue to
reduce spending on these programs, we currently believe that the payments we receive and will receive in the near term are adequate to justify our
continued participation in these programs.

Going forward, we expect the U.S. Congress to closely scrutinize each component of the Medicare program (including PDP) and possibly seek to
limit the private insurers’ role. For example, the federal government may seek to negotiate drug prices for the PDP, a function we currently perform as
a PDP sponsor. It is not possible to predict the outcome of this Congressional oversight or any legislative activity, either of which could adversely

affect us.
Medicaid
In 2007, we substantially increased our Medicaid product offerings through our acquisition of Schaller Anderson. As a result, we also increased our
exposure to changes in government policy with respect to and/or regulation of the various Medicaid programs in which we participate, including the
amounts payable to us under those programs. Medicaid premiums are paid by each state and differ from state to state. The federal government and the
states in which we have Medicaid business are presently considering proposals and legislation that would implement certain Medicaid reforms or
redesigns, including changes to reimbursement or payment levels or eligibility criteria. Future levels of Medicaid funding and premium rates may be
affected by continuing government efforts to contain health care costs and may be further affected by state and federal budgetary constraints. In
addition, our Medicaid contracts with states are subject to cancellation by the state after a short notice period without cause or in the event of
insufficient state funding. Our Medicaid products are also regulated by CMS, which has the right to audit our performance to determine compliance
with CMS contracts and regulations. In addition, our
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Medicaid products and State Children’s Health Insurance Program contracts are subject to federal and state regulations and oversight by state
Medicaid agencies regarding the services provided to Medicaid enrollees, payment for those services and other aspects of these programs. The
regulations and contractual requirements applicable to us and other participants in Medicaid programs are complex and subject to change. Although
we have invested significant resources to comply with these standards and believe our compliance efforts are adequate, our Medicaid compliance
efforts will continue to require significant resources. If we fail to comply with the standards, CMS may prohibit us from continuing to market and/or
enroll members in one or more Medicaid products.
HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws
A number of states, including Pennsylvania and Connecticut, regulate affiliated groups of HMOs and insurers such as the Company under holding
company statutes. These laws may require us and our subsidiaries to maintain certain levels of equity. Holding company laws and regulations
generally require insurance companies and HMOs within an insurance holding company system to register with the insurance department of each state
where they are domiciled and to file reports with those states’ insurance departments regarding capital structure, ownership, financial condition,
intercompany transactions and general business operations. In addition, various notice or prior regulatory approval requirements apply to transactions
between insurance companies, HMOs and their affiliates within an insurance holding company system, depending on the size and nature of the
transactions.

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidiaries have statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, requirements for health and other insurance companies
and HMOs based on the RBC Model Act. These RBC requirements are intended to assess the capital adequacy of life and health insurers and
HMOs, taking into account the risk characteristics of a company’s investments and products. The RBC Model Act sets forth the formula for
calculating the RBC requirements, which are designed to take into account asset risks, insurance risks, interest rate risks and other relevant risks with
respect to an individual company’s business. In general, under these laws, an insurance company or HMO must submit a report of its RBC level to
the insurance department or insurance commissioner of its state of domicile for each calendar year.

The RBC Model Act requires increasing degrees of regulatory oversight and intervention as a company’s RBC declines and provides for four
different levels of regulatory attention depending on the ratio of a company’s total adjusted capital (defined as the total of its statutory capital, surplus
and asset valuation reserve) to its risk-based capital. The level of regulatory oversight ranges from requiring the company to inform and obtain
approval from the domiciliary insurance commissioner of a comprehensive financial plan for increasing its RBC, to mandatory regulatory intervention
requiring a company to be placed under regulatory control in a rehabilitation or liquidation proceeding. As of December 31, 2008, the RBC levels of
our insurance and HMO subsidiaries exceeded all RBC thresholds.
For information regarding restrictions on certain payments of dividends or other distributions by HMO and insurance company subsidiaries of our
company, refer to Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 75.
The holding company laws for the states of domicile of Aetna and certain of its subsidiaries also restrict the ability of any person to obtain control of
an insurance company or HMO without prior regulatory approval. Under those statutes, without such approval (or an exemption), no person may
acquire any voting security of an insurance holding company (such as our parent company, Aetna Inc.) that controls an insurance company or HMO,
or merge with such a holding company, if as a result of such transaction such person would control the insurance holding company. Control is
generally defined as the direct or indirect power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person and is presumed to exist if
a person directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or more of the voting securities of another person.
Audits and Investigations; Fraud and Abuse Laws
We typically have been and are currently involved in various governmental investigations, audits and reviews, the frequency and depth of which
continue to increase. These include routine, regular and special investigations, audits and reviews by CMS, state insurance and health and welfare
departments, state attorneys general, the Office of the Inspector General, the Office of Personnel Management, U.S. Congressional committees, the
U.S. Department of Justice, U.S. Attorneys and other governmental authorities. Such government actions can result in changes in our business
practices, assessment of damages, civil or criminal fines or penalties, or other sanctions, including the loss of licensure or exclusion from
participation in government programs. For example, in January 2009, we agreed to
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discontinue the use of the Ingenix database at a future date. We currently use the Ingenix database to determine reimbursement rates when our
members utilize providers who do not have a contract with us. Refer to Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page 77 for more information.
Federal and state governments have made investigating and prosecuting health care fraud and abuse a priority. Fraud and abuse prohibitions
encompass a wide range of activities, including kickbacks for referral of members, billing for unnecessary medical services, improper marketing,
and violations of patient privacy rights. Companies involved in public health care programs such as Medicare and Medicaid are often the subject of
fraud and abuse investigations. The regulations and contractual requirements applicable to us and other participants in these public-sector programs
are complex and subject to change. Although we believe our compliance efforts are adequate, ongoing vigorous law enforcement and the highly
technical regulatory scheme mean that our compliance efforts in this area will continue to require significant resources.

State and/or federal regulatory scrutiny of life and health insurance company and HMO marketing and advertising practices, including the adequacy
of disclosure regarding products and their administration, is increasing as are the penalties being imposed for inappropriate practices. Products
offering limited benefits, such as those we issue and sell through Strategic Resource Company, which we acquired in January 2005, in particular may
attract increased regulatory scrutiny.

Guaranty Fund Assessments/Solvency Protection
Under guaranty fund laws existing in all states, insurers doing business in those states can be assessed (up to prescribed limits) for certain obligations
of insolvent insurance companies to policyholders and claimants. Assessments generally are based on a formula relating to our premiums in the state
compared to the premiums of other insurers. While we historically have recovered more than half of guaranty fund assessments through statutorily
permitted premium tax offsets, significant increases in assessments could jeopardize future recovery of these assessments. Some states have similar
laws relating to HMOs. In addition, changes to regulations or their interpretation due to regulators’ increasing concerns regarding insurance company
and/or HMO solvency due, among other things, to the current economic downturn, could negatively impact our business in various ways, including
through increases in solvency fund assessments, requirements that the Company hold greater levels of capital and/or delays in approved dividends
from regulated subsidiaries.
Regulation of Pharmacy Operations
We own two mail-order pharmacy facilities and one specialty pharmacy facility. One mail order pharmacy is located in Missouri and the specialty
pharmacy and our second mail order pharmacy are located in Florida. These facilities dispense pharmaceuticals throughout the U.S. The pharmacy
practice is generally regulated at the state level by state boards of pharmacy. Our pharmacies also must register with the U.S. Drug Enforcement
Administration and individual state controlled substance authorities in order to dispense controlled substances. Each of our pharmacies is licensed in
the state where it is located, as well as in the states that require registration or licensure with the state’s board of pharmacy or similar regulatory
body. Loss or suspension of any such licenses or registrations could have a material effect on our pharmacy business and/or operating results.
Regulation of Pharmacy Benefit Management Operation
Our pharmacy benefit management (“PBM”) operation is regulated directly and indirectly at the federal and state levels. These laws and regulations
govern, and proposed legislation may govern, critical PBM practices, including disclosure, receipt and retention of rebates and other payments
received from pharmaceutical manufacturers, drug utilization management practices, the level of duty a PBM owes its customers and registration or
licensing of PBMs. Failure to comply with these laws or regulations could have a material effect on our PBM operation and/or operating results.
Annual Report - Page 31

Life and Disability Insurance
Our life insurance and disability operations are subject to extensive regulation. Changes in these regulations, such as expanding the definition of
disability or changing claim determination, settlement and/or payment practices, could have a material impact on our life insurance and/or disability
insurance operations and/or operating results.
International Regulation
Certain of our Health Care operations are conducted in foreign countries. These international operations are subject to different legal and regulatory
requirements in different jurisdictions, including various privacy, insurance, tax, tariff and trade laws and regulations, as well as corporate,
employment, intellectual property and investment laws and regulations.
Anti-Money Laundering Regulations
Certain of our lines of business are subject to United States Department of the Treasury anti-money laundering regulations. Those lines of business
have implemented anti-money laundering policies designed to insure their affected products comply with the regulations.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION/RISK FACTORS
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “1995 Act”) provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements, so long as (1)
those statements are identified as forward-looking, and (2) the statements are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements that identify important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in the statement. We want to take advantage of these safe harbor
provisions.
Certain information contained in this MD&A is forward-looking within the meaning of the 1995 Act or Securities and Exchange Commission
rules. This information includes, but is not limited to: the Outlook for 2009 beginning on page 3 and Risk Management and Market-Sensitive
Instruments on page 14. In addition, throughout this MD&A, we use the following words, or variations or negatives of these words and similar
expressions, when we intend to identify forward-looking statements:

·
·
·

Expects
Projects
Anticipates

·
·
·

Intends
Plans
Believes

·
·
·

Seeks
Estimates
May

·
·

Will

Should

· Potential
· Continue

Forward-looking statements rely on a number of assumptions concerning future events, and are subject to a number of significant uncertainties and
other factors, many of which are outside our control, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those statements. You should not put
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Risk Factors
You should carefully consider each of the following risks and all of the other information set forth in this MD&A or elsewhere in our Annual Report
or our Annual Report on Form 10-K. These risks and other factors may affect forward-looking statements, including those we make in this MD&A
or elsewhere, such as in news releases or investor or analyst calls, meetings or presentations. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the
only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect
our business. Any of these risks or uncertainties could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations and the expected results
discussed in our forward-looking statements. You should not consider past results to be an indication of future performance.

If any of the following risks or uncertainties develops into actual events, this could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
or operating results. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline materially.
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We must continue to differentiate our products and services from those of our competitors; we operate in an evolving industry that requires
us to anticipate changes in customer preferences and to innovate and deliver products and services that demonstrate value to our customers.
We operate in a highly competitive environment and in an industry that is subject to significant ongoing changes from market pressures brought about
by customer demands, as well as business consolidations, strategic alliances, legislative and regulatory changes and marketing practices. In addition,
our customers generally, and our larger customers particularly, are well informed and organized and have significant flexibility in moving between us
and our competitors. These factors require us to differentiate our products and services by anticipating changes in customer preferences and
innovating and delivering products and services that demonstrate value to our customers. Failure to anticipate changes in customer preferences or to
innovate and deliver products and services that demonstrate value to our customers can affect our ability to retain or grow profitable membership
which can adversely affect our operating results.

Our ability to anticipate and detect medical cost trends and achieve appropriate pricing affects our profitability.
Premium revenues from our Insured Health Care products comprised approximately 82% of our total consolidated revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2008. We continue to be vigilant in our pricing and have generally increased our premium rates for Insured business that will be under
contract in 2009. Our health care premiums are generally fixed for one-year periods. Accordingly, future cost increases in excess of health care or
other benefit cost projections reflected in our pricing cannot be recovered in the contract year through higher premiums. As a result, our profits are
particularly sensitive to the accuracy of our forecasts of the increases in health care and other benefit costs that we expect to occur during the fixed
premium period. Those forecasts typically are made several months before the fixed premium period begins and are dependent on our ability to
anticipate and detect medical cost trends. There can be no assurance regarding the accuracy of the health care or other benefit cost projections
reflected in our pricing, and our health care and other benefit costs can be affected by external events over which we have no control. Relatively
small differences between predicted and actual health care costs as a percentage of premium revenues can result in significant changes in our results
of operations. If the rate of increase in our health care or other benefit costs in 2009 were to exceed the levels reflected in our pricing or if we are not
able to obtain appropriate pricing on new or renewal business, our operating results would be adversely affected.
Our ability to manage health care costs affects our profitability.
Our profitability depends in large part on our ability to appropriately manage future health care costs through underwriting criteria, product design,
negotiation of favorable provider contracts and medical management programs. The aging of the population and other demographic characteristics,
advances in medical technology and other factors continue to contribute to rising health care costs. Changes in health care practices, general
economic conditions such as inflation and employment levels, new technologies, increases in the cost of prescription drugs, direct-to-consumer
marketing by pharmaceutical companies, clusters of high cost cases, changes in the regulatory environment, health care provider or member fraud and
numerous other factors affecting the cost of health care can be beyond any health plan’s control and may adversely affect our ability to manage health
care costs, which can adversely affect our operating results
We face risks from industry, public policy and economic forces that can change the fundamentals of the health and related benefits industry
and adversely affect our business and operating results.
Various factors particular to the health and related benefits industry may affect our business model. Those factors include, among others, the rapid
evolution of the business model, shifts in public policy, consumerism, pricing actions by competitors, competitor and supplier consolidation and a
declining number of commercially insured people. We also face the potential of competition from existing or new companies that have not
historically been in the health or group insurance industries. For example, the GLBA gives banks and other financial institutions the ability to affiliate
with insurance companies, which may lead to new competitors with significant financial resources in the insurance and health benefits fields. If we
are unable to anticipate, detect and deploy meaningful responses to these external factors, our business and operating results may be adversely

affected.
Adverse economic conditions in the U.S. and abroad can significantly and adversely affect our businesses and profitability, and we do not
expect these conditions to improve in the near future.
Serious concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit and other capital, the U.S. mortgage market,
consumer spending, a declining U.S. real estate market and other factors have contributed
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to a slowing global economy and significantly diminished expectations for the global economy, particularly the U.S. economy, and this is expected to
continue going forward. Our customers, medical providers and the other companies with which we do business are generally headquartered in the
U.S.; however many of our largest customers are global companies with operations around the world. As a result, adverse economic conditions in the
U.S. and abroad can significantly and adversely affect our businesses and profitability by:
· Leading to reductions in force by our customers, which would reduce both our revenues and the number of members we serve.
· Leading our customers and potential customers, particularly those with the most members, and state and local governments, to force us to
compete more vigorously on factors such as price and service to retain or obtain their business.
· Leading our customers and potential customers to purchase fewer products and/or products that generate less profit for us than the ones they
currently purchase or otherwise would have purchased.
· Leading our customers and potential customers, particularly smaller employers and individuals, to forego obtaining or renewing their health
and other coverage with us.
· Causing unanticipated increases and volatility in utilization of medical and other covered services by our members and/or increases in medical

unit costs, each of which would increase our costs and limit our ability to accurately detect, forecast, manage and reserve for our and our
self-insured customers’ medical cost trends and future health care costs.
· Increasing our medical unit costs as hospitals and other providers attempt to maintain revenue levels in their efforts to adjust to their own
economic challenges.
· Causing, over time, inflation that could cause interest rates to increase and thereby increase our interest expense and reduce our operating
results, as well as decrease the value of the debt securities we hold in our investment portfolio, which would reduce our operating results
and/or financial position.
· Weakening the ability or perceived ability of the issuers and/or guarantors of the debt or other securities we hold in our investment portfolio
to perform on their obligations to us, which could result in defaults in those securities or reduce the value of those securities and create net
realized capital losses for us that reduce our operating results.

· Weakening the ability of our customers, medical providers and the other companies with which we do business to perform their obligations
to us or causing them not to perform those obligations, either of which could reduce our operating results.

Adverse conditions in the U.S. and global capital markets can significantly and adversely affect the value of our investments in debt and
equity securities, mortgage loans, alternative investments and other investments, our profitability and/or our financial position, and we do
not expect these conditions to improve in the near future.
The global capital markets, including credit markets, have experienced extreme volatility, uncertainty and disruption during 2008 and the beginning of
2009. As an insurer, we have a substantial investment portfolio that supports our policy liabilities and is comprised particularly of debt securities of
issuers located in the U.S. As a result, the income we earn from our investment portfolio is largely driven by the level of interest rates in the U.S., and
to a lesser extent the overseas, financial markets, and volatility, uncertainty and/or disruptions in the global capital markets, particularly the U.S. credit
markets, and governments’ monetary policy, particularly the easing of U.S. monetary policy, can significantly and adversely affect the value of our
investment portfolio, our profitability and/or our financial position by:
· Significantly reducing the value of the debt securities we hold in our investment portfolio, and creating net realized capital losses that reduces
our operating results and/or net unrealized capital losses that reduce our shareholders’ equity.
· Reducing interest rates on high quality short-term debt securities and thereby materially reducing our net investment income and operating
results.
· Making it more difficult to value certain of our investment securities, for example if trading becomes less frequent, which could lead to

significant period-to-period changes in our estimates of the fair values of those securities and cause period-to-period volatility in our
operating results and shareholders’ equity.

· Reducing our ability to issue short-term debt securities at attractive interest rates, thereby increasing our interest expense and decreasing our
operating results.

· Reducing our ability to issue other securities.
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Although we seek, within guidelines we deem appropriate, to match the duration of our assets and liabilities and to manage our credit exposures, a
failure to adequately do so could adversely affect our results of operations and our financial condition.

Our business success and profitability depend in part on effective information technology systems and on continuing to develop and
implement improvements in technology; we have several significant multiyear strategic information technology projects in process.
Our businesses depend in large part on our information and other technology systems to adequately price our products and services, process claims
and interact with providers, employer plan sponsors and members in an efficient and uninterrupted fashion, and we have many different information
systems supporting our businesses. Our business strategy involves providing customers with easy to use products that leverage information to meet
the needs of those customers. Our success therefore is dependent in large part on maintaining the effectiveness of existing technology systems and
on continuing to develop, redesign and enhance technology systems that support our business processes in a cost and resource efficient manner,
including through technology outsourcing within the context of our existing business partnership relationships, a limited budget of human resources
and capital. Certain of our technology systems (including software) are older, legacy systems that are less efficient and require an ongoing
commitment of significant capital and human resources to maintain. We also need to develop new systems to meet current and expected standards and
keep pace with continuing changes in information processing technology, evolving industry and regulatory standards and customer demands. We
have several significant multiyear strategic information technology projects in process. System development and other information technology
projects are long-term in nature and may take longer and cost more than we expect to complete and may not deliver the benefits we project once they
are complete. If we do not effectively and efficiently manage and upgrade our technology portfolio, we could, among other things, have problems
determining health care cost estimates and/or establishing appropriate pricing, meeting the needs of providers, employer plan sponsors and members,
or keeping pace with industry and regulatory standards, and our operating results may be adversely affected.
We are subject to potential changes in public policy that can adversely affect the markets for our products and our profitability.
It is not possible to predict with certainty or eliminate the impact of fundamental public policy changes that could adversely affect us. Examples of
these changes include policy changes that would fundamentally change the dynamics of our industry, such as the federal or one or more state
governments assuming a larger role in the health care industry or fundamentally restructuring or reducing the funding available for Medicare or
Medicaid programs. Legislative and regulatory proposals that would significantly reform the health care system are currently pending in many states
and could be advanced at the federal level by the newly-elected president or Congress in 2009. Our operating results could be adversely affected by
such changes even if we correctly predict their occurrence. For more information on these matters, refer to Regulatory Environment – Legislative
and Regulatory Initiatives beginning on page 27.
We are subject to funding and other risks with respect to revenue received from our participation in Medicare and Medicaid programs and

subject to retroactive adjustments to certain premiums.
We continue to increase our focus on the non-Commercial part of our Health Care segment as part of our business diversification efforts. In
government-funded health programs such as Medicare and Medicaid, our revenues are dependent on annual funding from the federal government
and/or applicable state governments, and state governments have the right to cancel their contracts with us on short notice if funds are not
available. Funding for these programs is dependent on many factors outside our control, including general economic conditions at the federal or
applicable state level and general political issues and priorities. Our government customers also determine the premium levels and other aspects of
these programs that affect the number of persons eligible or enrolled in these programs and our administrative and health care costs under these
programs. In the past, determinations of this type have adversely affected our financial results from and willingness to participate in such programs,
and similar conditions may exist in the future. For example, if a government customer reduces the premium levels or increases premiums by less than
the increase in our costs and we cannot offset the impact of these actions with supplemental premiums and/or changes in benefit plans, then our
business and operating results could be adversely affected. In addition, premiums for certain federal government employee groups, Medicare
members and Medicaid beneficiaries are subject to retroactive adjustments by the federal and applicable state governments. Any such adjustments
could materially adversely affect our business and operating results.
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We must continue to provide quality service to our customers that meets their expectations.
Our ability to attract and retain membership is dependent upon providing quality customer service operations (such as call center operations, claim
processing, mail order pharmacy prescription delivery, specialty pharmacy prescription delivery and customer case installation) that meet or exceed
our customers’ expectations. Failure to provide service that meets our customers’ expectations, including failures resulting from operational
performance issues, can affect our ability to retain or grow profitable membership which can adversely affect our operating results.

Loss of membership or failure to achieve profitable membership growth and diversify the geographic concentrations in our core Insured
membership (including strategies to increase membership for targeted product types and customers, such as commercial or public sector
business) could materially adversely affect our profitability.
Competitive factors (including our customers’ flexibility in moving between us and our competitors), the current recession and ongoing changes in
the health benefits industry create pressure to contain premium price increases despite being faced with increasing health care costs. Our customer
contracts are subject to negotiation as customers seek to contain their benefit costs, particularly in a slowing economy. Customers may elect to selfinsure or to reduce benefits in order to limit increases in their benefit costs. Such elections may result in reduced membership in our more profitable
Insured products and/or lower premiums for our Insured products, although such elections also may reduce our health care costs. Alternatively, our
customers may purchase different types of products from us that are less profitable, or move to a competitor to obtain more favorable pricing. Our
membership is also concentrated in certain geographic areas, and increased competition in those geographic areas could therefore have a
disproportionate adverse effect on our operating results. Among other factors, we compete on the basis of overall cost, plan design, customer service,
quality and sufficiency of medical provider networks and quality of medical management programs. In addition to competitive pressures affecting our
ability to obtain new customers or retain existing customers, our membership can be affected by reductions in workforce by existing customers due to
soft general economic conditions, especially in the geographies where our membership is concentrated. Failure to profitably grow and diversify our
membership geographically or by product type may adversely affect our revenue and operating results.

Our ability to manage general and administrative expenses affects our profitability.
Our profitability depends in part on our ability to drive our general and administrative expenses to competitive levels through controlling salaries and
related benefits and information technology and other general and administrative costs, while being able to attract and retain key employees, maintain
robust management practices and controls, implement improvements in technology and achieve our strategic goals.
Our business activities are highly regulated; new laws or regulations or changes in existing laws or regulations or their enforcement could also
materially adversely affect our business and profitability.
Our business is subject to extensive regulation and oversight by state, federal and international governmental authorities. The laws and regulations
governing our operations change frequently and generally are designed to benefit and protect members and providers rather than our investors. The
federal and many state governments have enacted and continue to consider legislative and regulatory changes related to health products and changes in
the interpretation and/or enforcement of existing laws and regulations, and the likelihood of adverse changes is increasing due to state and federal
budgetary pressures. We must monitor these changes and promptly implement any revisions to our business processes that these changes require. At
this time, we are unable to predict the impact of future changes, although we anticipate that some of these measures, if enacted, could materially affect
our health operations and/or operating results including:

· Restricting our ability to price for the risk we assume and/or reflect reasonable costs or profits in our pricing, including mandating minimum
·
·
·
·
·
·

medical benefit ratios,
Affecting premium rates,
Reducing our ability to manage health care costs,
Increasing health care costs and operating expenses,
Increasing our exposure to lawsuits and other adverse legal proceedings,
Regulating levels and permitted lines of business,
Restricting our ability to underwrite and operate our individual health business,
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· Imposing or increasing taxes and financial assessments, and/or
· Regulating business practices.
For example, decisions by health plans to rescind coverage and decline payment to treating providers after a member has received medical services
have generated public attention, particularly in California. As a result, there has been both legislative and regulatory action in connection with this
issue. On September 30, 2008, the state of California enacted legislation requiring health care service plans and health insurers that have rescinded an
individual policy to reinstate coverage, on a guarantee issue basis, for the individual(s) whose information in the application for coverage and related
communications did not lead to the rescission.
In addition, our Medicare, Medicaid and specialty and mail order pharmacy products are more highly regulated than our Commercial products.

There continues to be a heightened review by federal and state regulators of the health care insurance industry’s business and reporting practices,
including utilization management, payment of providers with whom the payor does not have contracts and other claim payment practices, as well as
heightened review of the general insurance industry’s brokerage practices. As one of the largest national health and related benefits providers, we are
regularly the subject of regulatory market conduct and other reviews, audits and investigations by state insurance and health and welfare departments
and attorneys general, CMS, the Office of the Inspector General, the Office of Personnel Management, the U.S. Department of Justice and U.S.
Attorneys. Several such reviews, audits and investigations currently are pending, some of which may be resolved during 2009. These regulatory
reviews, audits and investigations could result in changes to or clarifications of our business practices, and also could result in significant or material
fines, penalties, civil liabilities, criminal liabilities or other sanctions, including exclusion from participation in government programs. For example, in
January 2009, Aetna and the New York Attorney General announced an agreement relating to an industry-wide investigation into certain payment
practices with respect to out-of-network providers. The agreement provides that Aetna will contribute $20 million towards the establishment of an
independent database system to provide fee information regarding out-of-network reimbursement rates. Our business also may be adversely impacted
by judicial and regulatory decisions that change and/or expand the interpretations of existing statutes and regulations, impose medical or bad faith
liability, increase our responsibilities under ERISA, or reduce the scope of ERISA pre-emption of state law claims.
For more information regarding these matters, refer to Regulatory Environment beginning on page 24 and Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings in
Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 76.

Our products providing pharmacy benefit management services face regulatory and other risks and uncertainties associated with the PBM
industry that may differ from the risks of our core business of providing managed care and health insurance products.
The following are some of the PBM and pharmacy related risks that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
operating results:

· Federal and state anti-kickback and other laws that govern our PBM and mail order and specialty mail order pharmacies’ relationship with
pharmaceutical manufacturers, customers and consumers.

· Compliance requirements for PBM fiduciaries under ERISA, including compliance with fiduciary obligations under ERISA in connection
with the development and implementation of items such as drug formularies and preferred drug listings.

· A number of federal and state legislative proposals are being considered that could adversely affect a variety of pharmacy benefit industry

practices, including without limitation the receipt or required disclosure of rebates from pharmaceutical manufacturers, the regulation of the
development and use of formularies, legislation imposing additional rights to access to drugs for individuals enrolled in health care benefits
plans, and restrictions on the use of average wholesale prices.
· The application of federal, state and local laws and regulations to the operation of our mail order pharmacy and mail order specialty pharmacy
products.
· The risks inherent in the dispensing, packaging and distribution of pharmaceuticals and other health care products, including claims related to
purported dispensing errors.
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The failure to adhere to the laws and regulations that apply to our PBM and/or pharmacies’ products could expose our PBM and/or pharmacy
subsidiaries to civil and criminal penalties and/or have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
We would be adversely affected if our prevention, detection or control systems fail to detect and implement required changes to maintain
regulatory compliance.
Failure of our prevention, detection or control systems related to regulatory compliance and/or compliance with our internal policies, including data
systems security issues and/or unethical conduct by managers and/or employees, could adversely affect our reputation and also expose us to litigation
and other proceedings, fines and/or penalties, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.
We face risks related to litigation and regulatory proceedings.
We are growing by expanding into certain segments and subsegments of the health care marketplace. Some of the segments and subsegments we have
targeted for growth include Medicare, Medicaid, individual, public sector and labor customers who are not subject to ERISA’s limits on state law
remedies. In addition, over the last several years we have entered product lines in which we previously did not participate, including Insured
Medicaid, Medicaid plan management, international managing general underwriting, Medicare PDP, mail order pharmacy, specialty pharmacy and
ActiveHealth. These products subject us to regulatory and other risks that are different from the risks of providing Commercial managed care and
health insurance products and may increase the risks we face from litigation, regulatory reviews, audits and investigations and other adverse legal
proceedings. For example, our Medicaid products are more highly regulated than our Commercial products, and we are dispensing medications at our
mail order and specialty pharmacies directly to members. In addition to the risks of purported dispensing and other operational errors, failure to adhere
to the laws and regulations applicable to the dispensing of pharmaceuticals could subject our pharmacy subsidiaries to civil and criminal penalties.

In addition, we are party to a number of lawsuits, certain of which are purported to be class actions. The majority of these cases relate to the conduct
of our health care operations and allege various violations of law. Many of these cases seek substantial damages (including non-economic or punitive
damages and treble damages) and may also seek changes in our business practices. We may also be subject to additional litigation and other adverse
legal proceedings in the future. Litigation and other adverse legal proceedings could materially adversely affect our business or operating results
because of reputational harm to us caused by such proceedings, the costs of defending such proceedings, the costs of settlement or judgments against
us, or the changes in our operations that could result from such proceedings. For example, Aetna and the New York Attorney General announced an
agreement relating to an industry-wide investigation into certain payment practices with respect to out-of-network providers. Among other things, the
agreement provides that Aetna will contribute $20 million towards the establishment of an independent database system to provide fee information
regarding out-of-network reimbursement rates. Refer to Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements beginning on page 76 for more information. Also, we made certain changes to our business practices in connection with the settlement in
2003 of a large provider class action that we must continue to implement effectively.
Managing CEO succession and retention of key executive talent is critical to our success.
We would be adversely affected if we fail to adequately plan for succession of our CEO and senior management and retention of key
executives. While we have succession plans in place and we have employment arrangements with certain key executives, these do not guarantee that
the services of these executives will continue to be available to us.
We would be adversely affected if we fail to adequately protect member health related and other sensitive information.
The use and disclosure of personal health and other sensitive information is regulated at the federal, state and international levels, and we collect,
process and maintain large amounts of personal health and financial information and other sensitive data about our members in the ordinary course of
our business. Our business therefore depends substantially on our members’ and customers’ willingness to entrust us with their health related and
other sensitive information. Events that negatively affect that trust, including failing to maintain appropriate safeguards to keep sensitive information
secure, whether as a result of our action or inaction or that of one of our vendors, could adversely affect our reputation and also expose us to
litigation and other proceedings, fines and/or penalties, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.
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We would be adversely affected if we do not effectively deploy our capital .
Our operations generate significant capital, and we have the ability to raise additional capital. In deploying our capital to fund our investments in
operations (including information technology and other strategic projects), share repurchases, potential acquisitions or other capital uses, our financial
position and operating results could be adversely affected if we do not appropriately balance the risks and opportunities that are inherent in each
method of deploying our capital.
In order to remain competitive, we must further integrate our businesses and processes; significant acquisitions and/or our ability to

manage multiple multi-year strategic projects could make this integration more challenging; we expect to continue to pursue acquisitions.
Ineffective integration of our businesses and processes may adversely affect our ability to compete by, among other things, increasing our costs
relative to competitors. This integration task may be made more complex by significant acquisitions and multi-year strategic projects. For example,
as a result of our acquisition activities, we have acquired a number of information technology systems that we must effectively and efficiently
consolidate with our own systems. Our strategy includes effectively investing our capital in appropriate acquisitions, strategic projects and current
operations in addition to share repurchases.
Our strategic projects include, among other things, addressing rising health care costs, achieving profitable membership growth, further improving the
efficiency of our operations, managing certain significant technology projects, further improving relations with health care providers, negotiating
contract changes with customers and providers, and implementing other business process improvements. The future performance of our businesses
will depend in large part on our ability to design and implement these initiatives, some of which will occur over several years. If these initiatives result
in increased health care costs or do not achieve their objectives, our operating results could be adversely affected.
We have completed a number of acquisitions over the last several years, and we expect to continue to pursue acquisitions as part of our growth
strategy. In addition to integration risks, some additional risks we face with respect to acquisitions include:

·
·
·
·
·
·
·

The acquired business may not perform as projected;
We may assume liabilities that we do not anticipate, including those that were not disclosed to us;
We may be unable to successfully integrate acquired businesses and other processes to realize anticipated economic and other benefits on a timely
basis, which could result in substantial costs or delays or other operational or financial problems;
Acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing business, distract management, divert resources and make it difficult to maintain our current business
standards, controls and procedures;
We may finance future acquisitions by issuing common stock for some or all of the purchase price, which could dilute the ownership interests of
our shareholders;
We may incur additional debt related to future acquisitions; and
We frequently compete with other firms, some of which may have greater financial and other resources and a greater tolerance for risk, to acquire
attractive companies.

We face a wide range of risks, and our success depends on our ability to identify, prioritize and appropriately manage our enterprise risk

exposures.
As a large company operating in a complex industry, we encounter a variety of risks. The risks we face include, among other matters, the range of
industry, competitive, regulatory, financial, operational or external risks identified in this Risk Factors discussion. We continue to devote resources to
further develop and integrate our enterprise-wide risk management processes. Failure to identify, prioritize and appropriately manage or mitigate these
risks, including risk concentrations across different industries, segments and geographies, can adversely affect our profitability, our ability to retain or
grow business, or, in the event of extreme circumstances, our financial condition or business operations.
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Our profitability may be adversely affected if we are unable to contract with providers on competitive terms and otherwise maintain
favorable provider relationships.
Our profitability is dependent in part upon our ability to contract competitively while maintaining favorable relationships with hospitals, physicians,
pharmaceutical benefit service providers, pharmaceutical manufacturers and other health benefits providers. That ability is affected by the rates we
pay providers for services rendered to our members, by our business practices and processes and by our provider payment and other provider relations
practices, as well as factors not associated with us that impact these providers. The breadth and quality of our networks of available providers is also
an important factor when customers consider our products and services. Our contracts with providers generally may be terminated by either party
without cause on short notice. The failure to maintain or to secure new cost-effective health care provider contracts may result in a loss in
membership, higher health care costs, less desirable products for our customers and/or difficulty in meeting regulatory or accreditation requirements,
any of which could adversely affect our operating results.

In addition, some providers that render services to our members do not have contracts with us. In those cases, we do not have a pre-established
understanding with these providers about the amount of compensation that is due to these providers for services rendered to our members. In some
states, the amount of compensation due to these non-participating providers is defined by law or regulation, but in most instances it is either not
defined or it is established by a standard that is not clearly translatable into dollar terms. In such instances providers may believe that they are
underpaid for their services and may either litigate or arbitrate their dispute with us or try to recover from our members the difference between what we
have paid them and the amount they charged us. For example, we are currently involved in litigation with non-participating providers, and we recently
entered into an agreement with the New York Attorney General that will change the source of information we use to determine the amount we pay nonparticipating providers. These matters are described in more detail in Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements beginning on page 76.
Our reputation is one of our most important assets; negative public perception of the health benefits industry, or of the industry’s or our
practices, can adversely affect our profitability.
The health benefits industry is subject to negative publicity, which can arise either from actual or perceived shortfalls regarding the industry’s or our
own business practices and/or products. The risk of negative publicity is particularly high at the beginning of a new president’s term. This risk may
be increased as we continue to offer new products, such as products with limited benefits, targeted at market segments, such as the uninsured, part
time and hourly workers and those eligible for Medicaid, beyond those in which we traditionally have operated. Negative publicity of the health
benefits industry in general or Aetna in particular can further increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our profitability and our stock
price by:

·
·
·
·

Adversely affecting the Aetna brand particularly;
Adversely affecting our ability to market and sell our products and/or services;
Requiring us to change our products and/or services; and/or
Increasing the regulatory and legislative requirements with which we must comply.

Sales of our products and services are dependent on our ability to attract, retain and provide support to a network of internal sales personnel
and third party brokers, consultants and agents.
Our products are sold primarily through our sales personnel, who frequently work with independent brokers, consultants and agents who assist in the
production and servicing of business. The independent brokers, consultants and agents generally are not dedicated to us exclusively and may
frequently also recommend and/or market health benefits products of our competitors, and we must compete intensely for their services and
allegiance. Our sales could be adversely affected if we are unable to attract or retain sales personnel and third party brokers, consultants and agents or
if we do not adequately provide support, training and education to this sales network regarding our product portfolio, which is complex, or if our
sales strategy is not appropriately aligned across distribution channels.
We hold reserves for expected claims, which are estimated, and these estimates involve an extensive degree of judgment; if actual claims
exceed reserve estimates, our operating results could be materially adversely affected; moreover any requirement to restate financial results
due to the inappropriate application of accounting principles or other matters could also have a material adverse effect on us and/or the
trading price of our common stock.
Our reported health care costs payable for any particular period reflect our estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been incurred by our
members but not yet reported to us and claims that have been reported to us but not yet paid. We estimate health care costs payable periodically, and
any resulting adjustments are reflected in currentAnnual Report - Page 40

period operating results within health care costs. Our estimates of health care costs payable are based on a number of factors, including those derived
from historical claim experience. A large portion of health care claims are not submitted to us until after the end of the quarter in which services are
rendered by providers to our members. As a result, an extensive degree of judgment is used in this estimation process, considerable variability is
inherent in such estimates, and the adequacy of the estimate is highly sensitive to changes in medical claims payment patterns and changes in medical
cost trends. A worsening (or improvement) of medical cost trend or changes in claim payment patterns from those that were assumed in estimating
health care costs payable at December 31, 2008 would cause these estimates to change in the near term, and such a change could be
material. Furthermore, if we are not able to accurately estimate the cost of incurred but not yet reported claims or reported claims that have not been
paid, our ability to take timely corrective actions may be limited, which would further exacerbate the extent of any negative impact on our results of
operations. Refer to our discussion of Critical Accounting Estimates – Health Care Costs Payable beginning on page 18 for more information.

The appropriate application of accounting principles in accordance with GAAP is required to ensure the soundness and accuracy of our financial
statements. An inappropriate application of these principles may lead to a restatement of our financial results and/or a deterioration in the soundness
and accuracy of our reported financial results. If we experienced such a deterioration, users of our financial statements may lose confidence in our
reported results, which could adversely affect the trading price of our common stock and/or our access to capital markets.
We are dependent on our ability to manage, engage and retain a very large workforce.
Our products and services and our operations require a large number of employees. Our business could be adversely affected if our retention,
development, succession and other human resource management techniques are not aligned with our strategic objectives.

Epidemics, pandemics, terrorist attack, natural disasters or other extreme events or the continued threat of these extreme events could
materially increase health care utilization, pharmacy costs and/or life and disability claims and impact our business continuity, and we
cannot predict with certainty whether any such events will occur.
Extreme events, including terrorism, can affect the U.S. economy in general, our industry and us specifically. Such events could adversely affect
our business and operating results, and in the event of extreme circumstances, our financial condition or viability. Other than obtaining insurance
coverage for our facilities, there are few, if any, commercial options through which to transfer the exposure from terrorism away from us. In
particular, in the event of bioterrorism attacks, epidemics or other extreme events, we could face significant health care (including behavioral health),
life insurance and disability costs depending on the government’s actions and the responsiveness of public health agencies and other insurers. In
addition, our life insurance members and our employees and those of our vendors are concentrated in certain large, metropolitan areas which may be
exposed to these events. Our business could also be adversely affected if we do not maintain adequate procedures to ensure disaster recovery and
business continuity during and after such events.

We must demonstrate that our products and processes lead to access by our members to quality care by their providers, or delivery of care

by us.
Failure to demonstrate that our products and processes (such as disease management and patient safety programs, provider credentialing and other
quality of care and information management initiatives) lead to access by our members to quality care by providers or delivery of quality care by us
would adversely affect our ability to differentiate our product and/or service offerings from those of competitors and could adversely affect our
operating results.
We outsource and obtain certain information technology systems or other services from independent third parties, and also delegate selected
functions to independent practice associations and specialty service providers; portions of our operations are subject to their performance.
Although we take steps to monitor and regulate the performance of independent third parties who provide services to us or to whom we delegate
selected functions, these arrangements may make our operations vulnerable if those third parties fail to satisfy their obligations to us, whether because
of our failure to adequately monitor and regulate their performance, or changes in their own financial condition or other matters outside our
control. In recent years, certain third parties to whom we delegated selected functions, such as independent practice associations and specialty
services providers, have experienced financial difficulties, including bankruptcy, which may subject us to increased
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costs and potential health benefits provider network disruptions, and in some cases cause us to incur duplicative claims expense. Certain
legislative authorities have in recent years also discussed or proposed legislation that would restrict outsourcing and, if enacted, could
materially increase our costs. We also could become overly dependent on key vendors, which could cause us to lose core competencies
if not properly monitored.
Our pension plan expenses are affected by general market conditions, interest rates and the accuracy of actuarial estimates of future benefit

costs.
We have pension plans that cover a large number of current employees and retirees. Unfavorable investment performance, interest rate changes or
changes in estimates of benefit costs, if significant, could adversely affect our operating results or financial condition by significantly increasing our
pension plan expense and obligations. For example, due to market driven unfavorable investment performance in 2008, our pension expense is
expected to increase in 2009.
We also face other risks that could adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition, which include:
· Health benefits provider fraud that is not prevented or detected and impacts our medical cost trends or those of our self-insured customers;
· Financial loss from inadequate insurance coverage due to self insurance levels or unavailability of insurance and reinsurance coverage for credit or
other reasons;
· A significant failure of internal control over financial reporting;
· Failure to protect our proprietary information; and
· Failure of our corporate governance policies or procedures, for example significant financial decisions being made at an inappropriate level in our
organization.
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Selected Financial Data
(Millions, except per common share data)

Revenue
Income from continuing operations
Net income
Net realized capital (losses) gains, net of tax
Assets
Short-term debt
Long-term debt
Shareholders' equity
Per common share data:
Dividends declared
Income from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Net income:
Basic
Diluted

$

$

2008
30,950.7
1,384.1
1,384.1
(482.3)
35,852.5
215.7
3,638.3
8,186.4

.04

$

$

2.91

2.83
2.91

2.83

For the Years Ended December 31,
2007
2006
2005
27,599.6 $
25,145.7 $
22,491.9
1,831.0
1,685.6
1,573.3
1,831.0
1,701.7
1,573.3
(47.9)
24.1
21.1
50,724.7
47,626.4
44,433.3
130.7
45.0
3,138.5
2,442.3
1,605.7
10,038.4
9,145.1
10,188.7

.04

$

.04

$

.02

$

-

1,609.7
9,161.8

$

.01

3.60
3.47

3.09
2.96

2.72
2.60

1.86

3.60
3.47

3.12
2.99

2.72
2.60

3.56

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A for significant events affecting the comparability of results as well as material
uncertainties.
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2004
19,904.1
1,124.8
2,154.8
45.9
42,214.1

1.79

3.43

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007

(Millions, except per common share data)

Revenue:
Health care premiums
Other premiums
Fees and other revenue *
Net investment income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Total revenue
Benefits and expenses:
Health care costs **
Current and future benefits
Operating expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses
Interest expense
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets
Reduction of reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products
Total benefits and expenses
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 21)
Net income
Earnings per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income

$

25,507.3
1,876.8
3,312.5

$

910.0

$

27,599.6

25,145.7

20,785.5
1,938.7

17,294.8
2,248.1

15,301.0
2,319.0

1,149.6
4,601.9
5,751.5
236.4
108.2
(43.8)
28,776.5
2,174.2
790.1
1,384.1

1,060.9
3,985.5
5,046.4
180.6

952.7
3,867.9
4,820.6
148.3
85.6
(115.4)
22,559.1
2,586.6

32.2

(73.7)

97.6
(64.3)

24,803.2
2,796.4
965.4
1,831.0

-

901.0

1,685.6

-

$

1,384.1

$

1,831.0

$

$

2.91

$

3.60

$

2.91

$

3.60

$

$

2.83

$

3.47

$

-

2.83

16.1
1,701.7

-

$

$

19,153.5
1,956.0
2,839.3
1,164.7

(655.9)
30,950.7

-

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income

21,500.1
1,979.3
3,044.0
1,149.9

2006

-

$

3.47

$

3.09
.03
3.12

2.96
.03
2.99

* Fees and other revenue include administrative services contract member co-payments and plan sponsor reimbursements related to our mail order and specialty pharmacy
operations of $60 million, $52 million and $38 million (net of pharmaceutical and processing costs of $1.6 billion, $1.4 billion and $1.4 billion) for 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

** Health care costs have been reduced by fully insured member co-payments related to our mail order and specialty pharmacy operations of $111 million, $102 million and $96
million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Refer to accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
At December 31,

2008

(Millions)

2007

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

1,179.5

$

706.0
616.4

Investments
Premiums receivable, net
Other receivables, net
Accrued investment income
Collateral received under securities loan agreements
Income taxes receivable
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Total current assets
Long-term investments
Reinsurance recoverables

554.3
193.6
749.6
164.9
301.5
452.6

Goodwill

Other acquired intangible assets, net
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term assets
Separate Accounts assets (Note 2)
Total assets

$

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities:

Health care costs payable
Future policy benefits
Unpaid claims
Unearned premiums
Policyholders' funds
Collateral payable under securities loan agreements
Short-term debt
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Future policy benefits
Unpaid claims
Policyholders' funds
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Separate Accounts liabilities (Note 2)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock ($.01 par value; 2.7 billion shares authorized and 456.3 million shares issued
and outstanding in 2008; 2.8 billion shares authorized and 496.3 million shares issued and
outstanding in 2007) and additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Refer to accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

4,918.4
16,163.4
1,010.3
5,085.6
667.4
467.5
778.7
841.3
5,919.9
35,852.5

2,393.2
759.7
559.8
238.6
754.4
749.6
215.7
1,883.8
7,554.8
6,765.4
1,271.2
1,171.7
3,638.3

-

321.7
438.7

5,266.4
17,040.1
1,093.2
5,081.0
780.4
364.0
-

$

$

1,850.2
19,249.4
50,724.7

1,344.8
5,919.9
27,666.1

2,177.4
763.8
625.9
198.4
668.2
1,142.4
130.7
1,967.9
7,674.7
7,253.2
1,234.1
1,225.7
3,138.5
146.4
764.3
19,249.4
40,686.3

351.2
9,716.5
(1,881.3)
8,186.4
35,852.5

188.8
10,138.0
(288.4)
10,038.4
50,724.7

-

$

1,254.0
851.5
479.8
589.1
189.2
1,142.4

$

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Number of
Common
Shares
Outstanding

Common
Stock and
Additional
Paid-in

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Total
Shareholders'
Equity

Capital

Retained
Earnings

566.5

$ 2,414.7

$ 7,723.7

-

-

1,701.7

-

1,701.7

-

-

-

(37.6)
(.4)
8.7
5.7
(23.6)

(37.6)
(.4)
8.7
5.7
(23.6)

-

-

-

(652.4)

(652.4)

including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)

9.8
(60.3)
-

281.5
(2,330.0)
-

(20.8)

-

281.5
(2,330.0)
(20.8)

Balance at December 31, 2006

516.0
516.0

366.2
366.2

9,404.6
(1.0)
9,403.6

(625.7)
113.9
(511.8)

9,145.1
112.9
9,258.0

-

-

1,831.0

-

1,831.0

-

-

-

(13.2)
3.6
(15.8)
248.8
223.4

(13.2)
3.6
(15.8)
248.8
223.4

13.5
(33.2)
-

415.0
(592.4)
-

(1,076.6)
(20.0)

-

415.0
(1,669.0)
(20.0)

496.3

188.8

10,138.0

(288.4)

10,038.4

-

-

1,384.1

-

1,384.1

-

-

-

(282.6)
(7.3)
(8.4)
(1,294.6)
(1,592.9)

(282.6)
(7.3)
(8.4)
(1,294.6)
(1,592.9)

2.9
(42.9)
456.3

162.9
(.5)
351.2

(1,787.2)
(18.4)
$ 9,716.5

$ (1,881.3)

162.9
(1,787.7)
(18.4)
8,186.4

(Millions)
Balance at December 31, 2005
Comprehensive income:
Net income

Other comprehensive loss (Note 10):
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency losses
Net derivative gains
Pension liability adjustment
Other comprehensive loss

$

50.3

$

10,188.7

Total comprehensive income

Adjustment to initially recognize the funded
status of pension and OPEB plans
Common shares issued for benefit plans,

Cumulative effect of new accounting standards
Beginning balance at January 1, 2007, as adjusted
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income (Note 10):
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency gains

Net derivative losses
Pension and OPEB plans
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Common shares issued for benefit plans,
including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2007
Comprehensive income:
Net income

Other comprehensive loss (Note 10):
Net unrealized losses on securities
Net foreign currency losses
Net derivative losses
Pension and OPEB plans
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive loss

Common shares issued for benefit plans,
including tax benefit
Repurchases of common shares
Dividends declared ($.04 per share)
Balance at December 31, 2008

$

Refer to accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$ 1,701.7

(23.6)
$ 1,678.1

$ 1,831.0

223.4
$ 2,054.4

$ 1,384.1

(1,592.9)
$ (208.8)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31,
2008
2007

(Millions)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net realized capital losses (gains)

1,384.1

$

655.9
378.3
95.7
159.1
(15.2)

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net
(Accretion) amortization of net investment (discount) premium
Physician class action settlement insurance-related charge
Discontinued operations
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued investment income
Premiums due and other receivables
Income taxes
Other assets and other liabilities
Health care and insurance liabilities
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
Discontinued operations (Note 21)
Net cash provided by operating activities

1.8
(61.2)
29.9
(205.7)
(106.1)

28.8
23.8

(6.5)
1,638.6

(1.2)

2,065.5

-

-

49.7

2,206.9

2,065.5

1,688.3

11,681.2

10,577.0
(10,642.2 )
(400.4)
(572.2)
(1,037.8)

11,837.6
(11,939.5)
(290.5)

-

(1,073.3)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of issuance costs
Net issuance of short-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Deposits and interest credited for investment contracts
Withdrawals of investment contracts
Common shares issued under benefit plans
Stock-based compensation tax benefits
Common shares repurchased
Dividends paid to shareholders
Net cash used for financing activities

27.8
(1,787.7)
(18.4)
(1,208.1)

9.7
(21.2)
170.8
153.2
(1,695.6)
(20.0)
(653.7)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(74.5)
1,254.0
1,179.5

880.0
1,254.0

484.8
85.6

(160.9)

(553.3)

1,978.9
45.0
(1,150.0)
28.2
(211.8)
115.8
89.6
(2,322.5)
(20.8)
(1,447.6)

663.9

85.5

-

-

8.5
(38.4)
29.7
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72.4
(16.1)

(119.0)

(12,307.9 )
(446.6)

Refer to accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

18.7

(6.1)
(91.7)

(4.5)
2,206.9

1,701.7
(32.2)
270.4
73.7
(102.2)

-

(4.4)
(106.2)
(143.4)
(110.4)
(82.1)

$

$

73.7
321.5
89.4
(88.3)
3.6

-

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Cost of investments
Additions of property, equipment and software
Cash used for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Net cash used for investing activities

1,831.0

2006

374.0

$

(312.6)

$

1,192.6
880.0

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization
We conduct our operations in three business segments:
·

Health Care consists of medical, pharmacy benefits management, dental and vision plans offered on both an Insured basis (where we
assume all or a majority of the risk for medical and dental care costs) and an employer-funded basis (where the plan sponsor under an
administrative services contract (“ASC”) assumes all or a majority of this risk). Medical products include point-of-service (“POS”),
preferred provider organization (“PPO”), health maintenance organization (“HMO”) and indemnity benefit plans. Medical products also
include health savings accounts (“HSAs”) and Aetna HealthFund ®, consumer-directed health plans that combine traditional POS or PPO
and/or dental coverage, subject to a deductible, with an accumulating benefit account (which may be funded by the plan sponsor and/or the
member in the case of HSAs). We also offer Medicare and Medicaid products and services and specialty products, such as medical
management and data analytics services, behavioral health plans and stop loss insurance, as well as products that provide access to our
provider network in select markets.

·

Group Insurance primarily includes group life insurance products offered on an Insured basis, including basic and supplemental group term
life insurance, group universal life, voluntary programs and accidental death and dismemberment coverage. Group Insurance also includes
(i) group disability products offered to employers on both an Insured and an ASC basis which consist primarily of short-term and long-term
disability insurance (and products which combine both), (ii) absence management services offered to employers, which include short-term
and long-term disability administration and leave management, and (iii) long-term care products that were offered primarily on an Insured
basis, which provide benefits covering the cost of care in private home settings, adult day care, assisted living or nursing facilities. We no
longer solicit or accept new long-term care customers, and we are working with our customers on an orderly transition of this product to
other carriers.

·

Large Case Pensions manages a variety of retirement products (including pension and annuity products) primarily for tax qualified pension
plans. These products provide a variety of funding and benefit payment distribution options and other services. The Large Case Pensions
segment includes certain discontinued products (refer to Note 20 beginning on page 81 for additional information).

Our three business segments are distinct businesses that offer different products and services. Our Chief Executive Officer evaluates financial
performance and makes resource allocation decisions at these segment levels. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2 below. We evaluate the performance of these business segments based on
operating earnings (net income or loss, excluding net realized capital gains and losses and certain other items) (refer to Note 19 beginning on page 79
for segment financial information).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Aetna and the subsidiaries that we control. All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 financial information to conform with the 2008 presentation.
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New Accounting Standards

Cumulative Effect of New Accounting Standards in 2007
Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the measurement date provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, ” which resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment to
the opening balance of shareholders’ equity at January 1, 2007 comprised of a $4 million increase to retained earnings and a $114 million decrease to
accumulated other comprehensive loss. In addition we adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “ Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1, 2007 of
$5 million.

Fair Value Measurements
Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted FAS 157, “ Fair Value Measurements.” FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. FAS 157 does not require new fair value measurements. In February
2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement
No. 157,” which delays the effective date of FAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities until January 2009. Refer to Note 15 beginning on
page 72 for additional information on our fair value measurements.

In October 2008, the FASB released FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-3 “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the
Market for That Asset is Not Active,” which clarifies the application of FAS 157 in situations in which the market for a financial asset is
inactive. FSP FAS 157-3 was effective for us on September 30, 2008, but did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations.

Investment Impairments
In January 2009, the FASB released FSP EITF 99-20-1, “Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-20,” which
amends the impairment guidance in EITF Issue No. 99-20, “ Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased Beneficial
Interests and Beneficial Interests That Continue to Be Held by a Transferor in Securitized Financial Assets.” FSP EITF 99-20-1 was
effective for us on December 31, 2008, but did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
Future Application of Accounting Standards

Business Combinations and Noncontrolling Interests
In December 2007, the FASB released FAS 141R, “Business Combinations” and FAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements.” Both standards will be effective for transactions that occur after January 1, 2009.
FAS 141R applies to all business combinations and will require the acquiring entity to recognize the assets and liabilities acquired at their respective
fair value. This standard changes the accounting for business combinations in several areas. Some of these changes will result in increased volatility
in our results of operations and financial position. For example, transaction costs, which are currently capitalized in a business combination, will be
expensed as incurred. Additionally, pre-acquisition contingencies (such as in-process lawsuits acquired) and contingent consideration (such as
additional consideration contingent on specified events in the future) will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with subsequent changes in
fair value reflected in our results of operations. Under current accounting guidance, adjustments to these contingencies are reflected in the allocation
of purchase price if they occur within a certain period of time after the acquisition date.

FAS 160 amends previous guidance and establishes accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary (often otherwise
referred to as minority interests) and for deconsolidation of the subsidiary.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes. We consider the following accounting estimates critical
in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements: health care costs payable, other insurance liabilities, recoverability of
goodwill and other acquired intangible assets, measurement of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans, other-than-temporary
impairment of investment securities and revenue recognition. We use information available to
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us at the time estimates are made; however, these estimates could change materially if different information or assumptions were used. Additionally,
these estimates may not ultimately reflect the actual amounts of the final transactions that occur.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other debt securities with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. The carrying value
of cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these investments.
Investments

Debt and Equity Securities
Debt and equity securities consist primarily of U.S. Treasury and agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, corporate and foreign bonds and
other debt and equity securities. Debt securities are classified as either current or long-term investments based on their contractual maturities unless
we intend to sell an investment within the next twelve months, in which case it is classified as current. We have classified our debt and equity
securities as available for sale and carry them at fair value. Refer to Note 15 beginning on page 72 for additional information on how we estimate the
fair value of our debt and equity securities. The cost for mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities is adjusted for unamortized premiums
and discounts, which are amortized using the interest method over the estimated remaining term of the securities, adjusted for anticipated
prepayments. We regularly review our debt and equity securities to determine whether a decline in fair value below the carrying value is other-thantemporary. If a decline in fair value is considered other-than-temporary, the carrying amount of the security is written down to fair value through our
results of operations. We do not accrue interest on debt securities when management believes the collection of interest is unlikely.

We lend certain debt and equity securities from our investment portfolio to other institutions for short periods of time. Borrowers must post collateral,
primarily cash, in the amount of 102% to 105% of the fair value of the loaned security. The fair value of the loaned securities is monitored on a daily
basis, with additional collateral obtained or refunded as the fair value of the loaned securities fluctuates. The collateral is retained and invested by a
lending agent according to our guidelines to generate additional income for us.

Mortgage Loans
We carry the value of our mortgage loan investments on our balance sheet at the unpaid principal balance, net of impairment reserves. A mortgage
loan may be impaired when it is a problem loan (i.e., more than 60 days delinquent, in bankruptcy or in process of foreclosure), a potential problem
loan (i.e., high probability of default within 3 years) or a restructured loan. For impaired loans, a specific impairment reserve is established for the
difference between the recorded investment in the loan and the estimated fair value of the collateral. We apply our loan impairment policy
individually to all loans in our portfolio. We record full or partial charge-offs of loans at the time an event occurs affecting the legal status of the
loan, typically at the time of foreclosure or upon a loan modification giving rise to forgiveness of debt. Interest income on an impaired loan is
accrued to the extent we deem it collectable and the loan continues to perform under its original or restructured terms. Interest income on problem
loans is recognized on a cash basis. Cash payments on loans in the process of foreclosure are treated as a return of principal. Mortgage loans with a
maturity date or a committed prepayment date of less than one year from the balance sheet date are reported in current assets on our balance sheets.

Other Investments
Other investments consist primarily of alternative investments (which are comprised of private equity and hedge fund limited partnerships),
investment real estate and derivatives. Alternative investments are accounted for under the equity method unless we control the entity, in which case
we consolidate the entity. We invest in real estate for the production of income. We carry the value of our investment real estate on our balance sheet
at depreciated cost, including capital additions, net of write-downs for other-than-temporary declines in fair value. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of each asset. If any of our real estate investments is considered held-for-sale, we carry it
at the lower of its carrying value or fair value less estimated selling costs. We generally estimate fair value using a discounted future cash flow
analysis in conjunction with comparable sales information. At the time of the sale, we record the difference between the sales price and the carrying
value as a realized capital gain or loss.
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We make limited use of derivatives in order to manage interest rate, foreign exchange, price risk and credit exposure. The derivatives we use consist
primarily of futures contracts, forward contracts, interest rate swaps, credit default swaps and warrants. Derivatives are reflected at fair value on our
balance sheets.

When we enter into a derivative contract, if certain criteria are met, we may designate the derivative as one of the following: a hedge of the fair value
of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment; a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be
received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability; or a foreign currency fair value or cash flow hedge.
Net Investment Income and Realized Capital Gains and Losses
Net investment income and realized capital gains and losses on investments supporting Health Care’s and Group Insurance’s liabilities and Large Case
Pensions’ products (other than experience-rated and discontinued products) are reflected in our results of operations. Realized capital gains and
losses are determined on a specific identification basis. Unrealized capital gains and losses are reflected in shareholders’ equity, net of tax, as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss. We reflect purchases and sales of debt and equity securities and alternative investments on the
trade date. We reflect purchases and sales of mortgage loans and investment real estate on the closing date.

Experience-rated products are products in the Large Case Pensions business where the contract holder, not us, assumes investment and other risks,
subject to, among other things, minimum guarantees provided by us. The effect of investment performance is allocated to contract holders’ accounts
daily, based on the underlying investment’s experience and, therefore, does not impact our results of operations (as long as minimum guarantees are
not triggered). Realized and unrealized capital gains and losses on investments supporting experience-rated products in the Large Case Pensions
business are reflected in policyholders’ funds in our balance sheets. Net investment income supporting Large Case Pensions’ experience-rated
products is included in net investment income in our statements of income and is credited to contract holders in current and future benefits.
When we discontinued the sale of our fully guaranteed Large Case Pensions products, we established a reserve for anticipated future losses from
these products and segregated the related investments. These investments are managed as a separate portfolio. Investment income and net realized
capital gains and losses on this separate portfolio are ultimately credited/charged to the reserve and, therefore, do not impact our results of
operations. Unrealized capital gains or losses on this separate portfolio are reflected in other current liabilities in our balance sheets. Refer to Note 20
beginning on page 81 for additional information on our discontinued products.
Reinsurance
We utilize reinsurance agreements primarily to facilitate the acquisition or disposition of certain insurance contracts. Ceded reinsurance agreements
permit us to recover a portion of our losses from reinsurers, although they do not discharge our primary liability as direct insurer of the risks
reinsured. Failure of reinsurers to indemnify us could result in losses, however we do not expect charges for unrecoverable reinsurance to have a
material effect on our results of operations or financial position. We evaluate the financial position of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of
credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of our reinsurers. At December 31, 2008, our reinsurance
recoverables consisted primarily of amounts due from third parties that are rated consistent with companies that are considered to have the ability to
meet their obligations.
In the normal course of business, we enter into agreements with other insurance companies under which we assume reinsurance, primarily related to
our group life and health products (refer to Note 17 beginning on page 75 for additional information). We do not transfer any portion of the
financial risk associated with our HMO products to third parties, except in areas that we participate in state-mandated health insurance pools. We did
not have material premiums ceded to or assumed from other insurance companies in the three years ended December 31, 2008.
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Goodwill
We evaluate goodwill for impairment (at the reporting unit level) annually, or more frequently if circumstances indicate a possible impairment, by
comparing an estimate of the fair value of the applicable reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying value exceeds fair
value, we compare the implied fair value of the applicable goodwill to its carrying amount to measure the amount of goodwill impairment, if any. Our
reporting units with goodwill are our Health Care and Group Insurance segments. Impairments, if any, would be classified as an operating
expense. After performing our analysis, we determined that there was no impairment of goodwill in the three years ended December 31, 2008.

Our annual impairment tests were based on an evaluation of future discounted cash flows. These evaluations utilized the best information available to
us at the time, including supportable assumptions and projections we believe are reasonable. Collectively, these evaluations were our best estimates of
projected future cash flows. Our discounted cash flow evaluations used a range of discount rates that corresponds to our weighted-average cost of
capital. This discount rate range is consistent with that used for investment decisions and takes into account the specific and detailed operating plans
and strategies of the Health Care and Group Insurance reporting units. Certain other key assumptions utilized, including changes in membership,
revenue, health care costs, operating expenses and effective tax rates, are based on estimates consistent with those utilized in our annual planning
process that we believe are reasonable. If we do not achieve our earnings objectives, the assumptions and estimates underlying these goodwill
impairment evaluations could be adversely affected, and we may impair a portion of our goodwill, which would adversely affect our operating results
in the period of impairment.
Property and Equipment and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
We report property and equipment and other acquired intangible assets at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation or amortization. At
December 31, 2008 and 2007, the historical cost of property and equipment was approximately $1.1 billion and $983 million, respectively, and the
related accumulated depreciation was approximately $615 million and $619 million, respectively. We calculate depreciation and amortization
primarily using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets ranging from three to forty years.

We regularly evaluate whether events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of property and equipment or other acquired
intangible assets may not be recoverable. If we determine that an asset may not be recoverable, we estimate the future undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from future use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the
carrying value of the asset, we recognize an impairment loss for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value. There
were no impairment losses for the three years ended December 31, 2008.

Separate Accounts
Separate Account assets and liabilities in the Large Case Pensions business represent funds maintained to meet specific objectives of contract holders
who bear the investment risk. These assets and liabilities are carried at fair value. Investment income and capital gains and losses accrue directly to
such contract holders. The assets of each account are legally segregated and are not subject to claims arising from our other businesses. Deposits,
withdrawals, net investment income and realized and unrealized capital gains and losses on Separate Account assets are not reflected in our statements
of income or cash flows. Management fees charged to contract holders are included in fees and other revenue and recognized over the period
earned.

In 1996, we entered into a contract with UBS Realty Investors, LLC (formerly known as Allegis Realty Investors, LLC) under which mortgage
loan and real estate Separate Account assets would transition out of our business. During 2008, approximately $12.4 billion of our mortgage loan and
real estate Separate Account assets and corresponding liabilities transitioned out of our business. These transitions did not impact our shareholders’
equity, results of operations or cash flows.

Health Care and Other Insurance Liabilities

Health Care Costs Payable
Health care costs payable consist principally of unpaid fee-for-service medical, dental and pharmacy claims, capitation costs and other amounts due
to health care providers pursuant to risk-sharing arrangements related to Health Care’s POS, PPO, HMO, Indemnity, Medicare and Medicaid
products. Unpaid health care claims include
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our estimate of payments we will make on claims reported to us but not yet paid and for health care services rendered to members but not yet reported
to us as of the balance sheet date (collectively, “IBNR”). Also included in these estimates is the cost of services that will continue to be rendered
after the balance sheet date if we are obligated to pay for such services in accordance with contractual or regulatory requirements. Such estimates are
developed using actuarial principles and assumptions which consider, among other things, historical and projected claim submission and processing
patterns, medical cost trends, historical utilization of health care services, claim inventory levels, changes in membership and product mix,
seasonality and other relevant factors. We reflect changes in these estimates in health care costs in our results of operations. Capitation costs
represent contractual monthly fees paid to participating physicians and other medical providers for providing medical care, regardless of the medical
services provided to the member. Less than 6% of our health care costs related to capitated arrangements in each of the last three years. Amounts
due under risk-sharing arrangements are based on the terms of the underlying contracts with the providers and consider claims experience under the
contracts through the balance sheet date.

Future policy benefits
Future policy benefits consist primarily of reserves for limited payment pension and annuity contracts in the Large Case Pensions business and longduration group life and long-term care insurance contracts in the Group Insurance business. Reserves for limited payment contracts are computed in
accordance with GAAP, with consideration given to actuarial principles and are based upon assumptions reflecting anticipated mortality, retirement,
expense and interest rate experience. Such assumptions generally vary by plan, year of issue and policy duration. Assumed interest rates on such
contracts ranged from 2.0% to 11.3% in both 2008 and 2007. We periodically review mortality assumptions against both industry standards and our
experience. Reserves for long-duration group life and long-term care contracts represent our estimate of the present value of future benefits to be
paid to or on behalf of policyholders less the present value of future net premiums. Assumed interest rates on such contracts ranged from 2.5% to
8.8% in both 2008 and 2007. Our estimate of the present value of future benefits under such contracts is based upon mortality, morbidity and interest
rate assumptions.

Unpaid claims
Unpaid claims consist primarily of reserves associated with certain short-duration group disability and term life insurance contracts in the Group
Insurance business, including an estimate for IBNR as of the balance sheet date. Reserves associated with certain short-duration group disability
and term life insurance contracts are based upon our estimate of the present value of future benefits, which is based on assumed investment yields
and assumptions regarding mortality, morbidity and recoveries from the U.S. Social Security Administration. We develop our reserves for IBNR
using actuarial principles and assumptions which consider, among other things, contractual requirements, claim incidence rates, claim recovery
rates, seasonality and other relevant factors. We discount certain claim liabilities related to group long-term disability and premium waiver
contracts. The discounted unpaid claim liabilities were $1.6 billion and $1.5 billion at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
undiscounted value of these unpaid claim liabilities was $2.5 billion and $2.4 billion at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The discount
rates generally reflect our expected investment returns for the investments supporting these liabilities and ranged from 6.0% to 6.4% in 2008 and
6.0% to 6.2% in 2007. The discount rates for retrospectively-rated contracts are set at contractually specified levels. Our estimates of unpaid claims
are subject to change due to changes in the underlying experience of the insurance contracts, changes in investment yields or other factors, and these
changes are recorded in current and future benefits in our statements of income in the period they are determined.

Policyholders’ funds
Policyholders’ funds consist primarily of reserves for pension and annuity investment contracts in the Large Case Pensions business and customer
funds associated with group life and health contracts in the Health Care and Group Insurance businesses. Reserves for such contracts are equal to
cumulative deposits less withdrawals and charges plus credited interest thereon, net of experience-rated adjustments. In 2008, interest rates for
pension and annuity investment contracts ranged from 3.3% to 9.7% and interest rates for group life and health contracts ranged from .1% to
4.7%. In 2007, interest rates for pension and annuity investment contracts ranged from 3.3% to 9.6% and interest rates for group life and health
contracts ranged from 1.5% to 4.9%. Reserves for contracts subject to experience rating reflect our rights as well as the rights of policyholders and
plan participants.
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We review health care and insurance liabilities periodically. We reflect any necessary adjustments during the current period in results of
operations. While the ultimate amount of claims and related expenses are dependent on future developments, it is our management’s opinion that the
liabilities that have been established are adequate to cover such costs. The health care and insurance liabilities that are expected to be paid within one
year from the balance sheet date are classified as current liabilities in our balance sheets.

Premium Deficiency Reserves
We evaluate our health care and group insurance contracts to determine if it is probable that a loss will be incurred. We would recognize a premium
deficiency loss when it is probable that expected future claims, including maintenance costs (for example, claim processing costs), will exceed
existing reserves plus anticipated future premiums and reinsurance recoveries on existing contracts. Anticipated investment income is considered in
the calculation of premium deficiency losses for short-duration contracts. For purposes of determining premium deficiency losses, contracts are
grouped in a manner consistent with our method of acquiring, servicing and measuring the profitability of such contracts. We did not have any
material premium deficiency reserves at December 31, 2008 or 2007.
Health Care Contract Acquisition Costs
Health care products included in the Health Care segment are cancelable by either the customer or the member monthly upon written
notice. Acquisition costs related to our prepaid health care and health indemnity contracts are expensed as incurred.
Revenue Recognition
Health care premiums are recognized as income in the month in which the enrollee is entitled to receive health care services. Health care premiums are
reported net of an allowance for estimated terminations and uncollectable amounts. Other premium revenue for group life, long-term care and
disability products is recognized as income, net of allowances for termination and uncollectable accounts, over the term of the coverage. Other
premium revenue for Large Case Pensions’ limited payment pension and annuity contracts is recognized as revenue in the period received. Premiums
related to unexpired contractual coverage periods are reported as unearned premiums in our balance sheets.

The balance of the allowance for estimated terminations and uncollectable accounts on premiums receivable was $82 million and $76 million at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and is reflected as a reduction of premiums receivable in our balance sheets. The balance of the
allowance for uncollectable accounts on other receivables was $61 million and $78 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and is
reflected as a reduction of other receivables in our balance sheets.

Some of our contracts allow for premiums to be adjusted to reflect actual experience. Such adjustments are reasonably estimable (based on actual
experience of the customer emerging under the contract and the terms of the underlying contract) and are recognized as the experience emerges.
Fees and other revenue consists primarily of ASC fees which are received in exchange for performing certain claims processing and member services
for health and disability members and are recognized as revenue over the period the service is provided. Some of our contracts include guarantees
with respect to certain functions such as customer service response time, claim processing accuracy and claim processing turnaround time, as well as
certain guarantees that claim expenses to be incurred by plan sponsors will fall within a certain range. With any of these guarantees, we are financially
at risk if the conditions of the arrangements are not met, although the maximum amount at risk is typically limited to a percentage of the fees otherwise
payable to us by the customer involved. We accrue for any such exposure upon occurrence.

In addition, fees and other revenue also include charges assessed against contract holders’ funds for contract fees, participant fees and asset charges
related to pension and annuity products in the Large Case Pensions business. Other amounts received on pension and annuity investment-type
contracts are reflected as deposits and are not recorded as revenue. Some of our Large Case Pension contract holders have the contractual right to
purchase annuities with life contingencies using the funds they maintain on deposit with us. Since these products are considered an insurance
contract, when the contract holder makes this election, we treat the accumulated investment balance as a single premium and reflect it as both
premiums and current and future benefits in our statements of income.
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Accounting for the Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Program (“PDP”)
On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) was signed into law. The Act
expanded Medicare, primarily by adding a voluntary prescription drug benefit for Medicare eligible individuals beginning in 2006. We were selected
by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) to be a national provider of PDP in all 50 states to both individuals and employer
groups in 2006 and 2007 and again in 2008. Under these annual contracts, CMS pays us a portion of the premium, a portion of, or a capitated fee
for, catastrophic drug costs and a portion of the health care costs for low-income Medicare beneficiaries and provides a risk sharing arrangement to
limit our exposure to unexpected expenses.
We recognize premiums received from, or on behalf of, members or CMS and capitated fees as premium revenue ratably over the contract
period. We expense the cost of covered prescription drugs as incurred. Costs associated with low-income Medicare beneficiaries (deductible,
coinsurance, etc.) and the catastrophic drug costs paid in advance by CMS are recorded as a liability and offset health care costs when incurred. For
individual PDP coverage, the risk sharing arrangement provides a risk corridor whereby the target amount (what we received in premiums from
members and CMS based on our annual bid amount less administrative expenses) is compared to our actual drug costs incurred during the contract
year. Based on the risk corridor provision and PDP activity to date, an estimated risk sharing receivable or payable is recorded on a quarterly basis as
an adjustment to premium revenue. We perform a reconciliation of the final risk sharing, low-income subsidy and catastrophic amounts after the end
of each contract year.
Allocation of Operating Expenses
We allocate to the business segments centrally incurred costs associated with specific internal goods or services provided to us, such as employee
services, technology services and rent, based on a reasonable method for each specific cost (such as membership, usage, headcount, compensation
or square footage occupied). Interest expense on third-party borrowings is not allocated to the reporting segments, since it is not used as a basis for
measuring the operating performance of the segments. Such amounts are reflected in Corporate Interest in our segment financial information. Refer
to Note 19 beginning on page 79 for additional information.
Income Taxes
We are taxed at regular corporate rates after adjusting income reported for financial statement purposes for certain items. We recognize deferred
income tax assets and liabilities for the differences between the financial and income tax reporting basis of assets and liabilities based on enacted tax
rates and laws. Valuation allowances are provided when it is considered more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred
income tax expense or benefit primarily reflects the net change in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year.

Our current income tax provision reflects the tax results of revenues and expenses currently taxable or deductible. Penalties and interest on our tax
positions are classified as a component of our income tax provision.

3.

Acquisitions

During 2007, we invested approximately $613 million in the following transactions, which we believe will enhance our existing product capabilities
and future growth opportunities. All acquisitions were funded with available cash.
·

Schaller Anderson, Incorporated (“Schaller Anderson”) is a leading provider of health care management services for Medicaid plans that we
acquired in July 2007 for approximately $535 million.

·

Goodhealth Worldwide (Bermuda) Limited (“Goodhealth”) is a leading managing general underwriter (or underwriting agent) for
international private medical insurance that offers expatriate benefits to individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises, and large multinational
clients around the world. We acquired Goodhealth in October 2007 for approximately $78 million.

We recorded goodwill related to these transactions of approximately $455 million. All of the goodwill related to these acquisitions was assigned to
our Health Care segment. Refer to Note 7 beginning on page 57 for additional information.
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4.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing income from continuing operations (i.e., the numerator) by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding (i.e., the denominator) during the period. Diluted EPS is computed in a manner similar to basic EPS, except that the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding is adjusted for the dilutive effects of stock options, stock appreciation rights and other
dilutive financial instruments, but only in the periods in which such effect is dilutive.

The computations of basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations for 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
2008
1,384.1

(Millions, except per common share data)

Income from continuing operations

$

Weighted average shares used to compute basic EPS

Dilutive effect of outstanding stock-based compensation awards

$

475.5
(1)

12.8
488.3

Weighted average shares used to compute diluted EPS

Basic EPS

$

2.91

$

Diluted EPS

$

2.83

$

(1)

Approximately 9.7 million and 2.6 million stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) (with exercise prices ranging from $25.94 to $59.76 and $44.22 to $59.76, respectively)
were not included in the calculation of diluted EPS for 2008 and 2007, respectively, and approximately 1.6 million stock options (with exercise prices ranging from $33.38
to $42.35) were not included in the calculation of diluted EPS for 2008 as their exercise prices were greater than the average market price during the applicable period.

5. Operating Expenses
For 2008, 2007 and 2006, selling expenses (which include broker commissions, the variable component of our internal sales force compensation and
premium taxes) and general and administrative expenses were as follows:
(Millions)
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses:
Salaries and related benefits

Other general and administrative expenses

$

(1)

2008
1,149.6

$

2007
1,060.9

$

2006
952.7

2,619.8

2,343.6

2,305.3

1,982.1
4,601.9 (2)
5,751.5
$

1,641.9
3,985.5
5,046.4

1,562.6

3,867.9
Total general and administrative expenses
$
$
4,820.6
Total operating expenses
(1)
Includes the following charges for 2008: a $42.2 million allowance on a reinsurance recoverable and a $20.0 million contribution for the establishment of an out-of-network
pricing database. Includes the following charges for 2006: a physician class action settlement insurance-related charge of $72.4 million pretax; a debt refinancing charge of
$12.4 million pretax and an acquisition-related software charge of $8.3 million pretax. Refer to the reconciliation of operating earnings to income from continuing
operations in Note 19 beginning on page 79 for additional information.
(2)
In 2008, we recorded a $54.7 million severance and facility charge related to actions taken. This charge is reflected in total general and administrative expenses. Refer to
the reconciliation of operating earnings to income from continuing operations in Note 19 beginning on page 79 for additional information.
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6.

Health Care Costs Payable

The following table shows the components of the change in health care costs payable during 2008, 2007 and 2006:
(Millions)
Health care costs payable, beginning of the period

$

Less: Reinsurance recoverables
Health care costs payable, beginning of the period - net
Acquisition of businesses
Add: Components of incurred health care costs
Current year

Prior years (1)
Total incurred health care costs
Less: Claims paid
Current year
Prior years
Total claims paid
Health care costs payable, end of period - net
Add: Reinsurance recoverables

$

$

2007
1,927.5

2006
1,817.0
5.5
1,811.5

$

3.7

-

1,923.8
58.1

20,948.5

17,472.0

(163.0)

Health care costs payable, end of the period
(1)

2008
2,177.4
2.9
2,174.5

-

15,495.4

(177.2)

(194.4)

20,785.5

17,294.8

15,301.0

18,726.4
1,842.4
20,568.8
2,391.2
2.0
2,393.2

15,528.5
1,573.7
17,102.2
2,174.5

13,761.9
1,426.8
15,188.7
1,923.8
3.7
1,927.5

$

2.9
2,177.4

$

The favorable development of prior period health care cost estimates was primarily the result of the actual claim submission time being faster than we anticipated as well as
lower than expected health care cost trends. We had no significant development of prior period health care cost estimates that affected results of operations in 2008, 2007 or
2006.

7. Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
We increased the carrying value of goodwill in 2008 and 2007 as follows:
(Millions)

$

Balance, beginning of the period
Goodwill acquired:
Schaller Anderson
Goodhealth

2008
5,081.0
1.0
3.6

Other
Balance, end of the period
(1)

2007
4,603.6

$

377.0
73.4
27.0

(1)

$

5,085.6

$

5,081.0

Approximately $5.0 billion of goodwill was assigned to the Health Care segment and $104 million of goodwill was assigned to the Group Insurance segment at both
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Other acquired intangible assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were comprised of the following:
Accumulated

Cost

(Millions)

Net Balance

Amortization

Amortization
Period (Years)

2008
Other acquired intangible assets:
Provider networks

$

Customer lists

(1)

399.9

(1)

25.3
38.1

Technology

Other
Trademarks
Total other acquired intangible assets

703.2

$

$

14.7

15.7

(1)

22.3

$

340.2

150.8

-

1,188.8

$

521.4

$

$

310.8

$

363.0

12-25

249.1
10.6

4-10

22.4
22.3
667.4

2-15

3-5
Indefinite

2007
Other acquired intangible assets:
Provider networks

Customer lists
Technology

$

701.0

(1)

390.2

12-25

384.4

(1)

93.6

290.8

4-10

61.8

(1)

37.9

23.9

3-5

71.0 (1)
17.8
53.2
3-15
Other
22.3
22.3
Trademarks
Indefinite
$
1,240.5
$
460.1 $
780.4
Total other acquired intangible assets
(1)
As a result of our acquisitions in 2007, we preliminarily assigned $133.8 million to customer lists, $42.5 million to other, $5.3 million to technology and $4.8 million to
provider networks. We completed the valuation for these acquisitions in 2008, and as a result, we assigned an additional $15.5 million to customer lists and $2.2 million to
provider networks and reduced other by $22.5 million.
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We estimate annual pretax amortization for other acquired intangible assets over the next five years to be as follows:
(Millions)

$

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

8.

96.5
91.0

83.6
72.1
62.9

Investments

Total investments at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
2008
(Millions)
Debt and equity securities available for sale
Mortgage loans

Other investments
Total investments

Current

$

$

633.8
70.4
1.8
706.0

2007
Total

Long-term

$

$

13,359.5
1,609.5
1,194.4
16,163.4

$

13,993.3
1,679.9
1,196.2
16,869.4

$

Current

$

$

822.9
27.3
1.3
851.5

Total

Long-term

$

$

14,309.0
1,485.3
1,245.8
17,040.1

$

$

15,131.9
1,512.6
1,247.1
17,891.6

Debt and Equity Securities
Debt and equity securities available for sale at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Gross

Gross

Amortized

Unrealized

Unrealized

Cost

Gains

Losses

(Millions)

2008
Debt securities:
U.S. government securities
States, municipalities and political subdivisions
U.S. corporate securities
Foreign securities
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities
Redeemable preferred securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Total debt and equity securities (1)

2007
Debt securities:
U.S. government securities
States, municipalities and political subdivisions
U.S. corporate securities
Foreign securities
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities
Redeemable preferred securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Total debt and equity securities (2)
(1)

(2)

$

890.7
1,942.8
6,343.8
2,134.0
2,737.9

$

115.3

$

23.3
228.2
103.0

$

124.9
299.0
107.0
1,020.3
12.1

56.1
6.6
532.5
.2

400.4
14,449.6
43.4

.4
72.5
416.5

Fair
Value

1,005.6
1,893.6
6,155.5
2,112.1
2,495.0
300.0

13,961.8
31.5

$

14,493.0

$

532.7

$

1,032.4

$

13,993.3

$

1,369.8
1,656.5
6,343.3
2,187.1
2,818.0
509.6
14,884.3
38.7

$

63.4
22.0
157.1
92.1
37.0
9.2

$

.5
5.3
98.4
18.5
28.4

$

1,432.7
1,673.2
6,402.0
2,260.7
2,826.6
491.6
15,086.8
45.1

14,923.0

$

$

15,131.9

$

27.2
178.3
.4

380.8
6.8
387.6

$

178.7

Includes investments with a fair value of $3.7 billion, gross unrealized gains of $211.3 million and gross unrealized losses of $334.7 million that support our experience-rated
and discontinued products at December 31, 2008. Changes in net unrealized capital gains (losses) on these securities are not reflected in accumulated other comprehensive
loss. Refer to Note 2 beginning on page 48 for additional information.
Includes investments with a fair value of $4.7 billion, gross unrealized gains of $205.6 million and gross unrealized losses of $60.9 million that support our experience-rated
and discontinued products at December 31, 2007. Changes in net unrealized capital gains (losses) on these securities are not reflected in accumulated other comprehensive
loss. Refer to Note 2 beginning on page 48 for additional information.
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The fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2008 is shown below by contractual maturity. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because securities may be restructured, called or prepaid.
Fair
Value

(Millions)

Due to mature:
One year or less
After one year, through five years
After five years, through ten years
After ten years
Mortgage-backed securities
Other asset-backed securities

$

$

Total

614.5
3,159.2
3,496.4
4,196.5
2,111.6
383.6
13,961.8

The maturity dates for debt securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2008 were as follows:
Supporting discontinued
and experience-rated products
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

(Millions)

Due to mature:
Less than one year
One year through five years

$

26.8

(1)

After five years through ten years

(1)

Greater than ten years (1)
Mortgage-backed securities (1)
(1)

(.5)

$

148.5

$

(4.7)

Total
Fair
Value

$

175.3

Unrealized

Losses

$

(5.2)

334.8

(29.8)

1,432.0

(137.6)

1,766.8

492.3

(76.0)

1,259.6

(173.2)

1,751.9

(249.2)

918.1

(217.3)

1,936.5

(380.8)

2,854.6

(598.1)

-

$

Total

$

Supporting remaining
products
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

1,772.0

33.3

-

$

(323.6)

$

4,809.9

$

(.4)
(696.7)

(167.4)

33.3

$

6,581.9

$

(.4)
(1,020.3)

Debt securities in an unrealized loss position that are not due to mature in less than one year are classified as long-term investments on our consolidated balance sheets.

When a debt or equity security is in an unrealized capital loss position, we monitor the duration and severity of the loss to determine if sufficient
market recovery can occur within a reasonable period of time. We also determine if we have the intent and ability to hold the investment until it
recovers in value. Summarized below are the debt and equity securities we held at December 31, 2008, that were in an unrealized capital loss
position, aggregated by the length of time the investments have been in that position:
Less than 12 months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

(Millions)

2008
Debt securities:
U.S. government securities
State, municipalities and political subdivisions
U.S. corporate securities
Foreign securities
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed
securities
Redeemable preferred securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Total debt and equity securities
(1)

$

4.0
786.9
2,010.4
777.7
616.6
125.3
4,320.9
24.5
4,345.4

$

-

Total (1)
Fair
Value

Greater than 12 months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

$

42.8
167.9
73.6

94.7

32.5
411.5
9.5

24.4
175.6
1,238.6
178.6

504.1
139.7
2,261.0
.8
2,261.8

$

.4
29.6
248.6

51.4
204.3

74.5
608.8
2.6
611.4

$

28.4
962.5
3,249.0
956.3
1,120.7
265.0
6,581.9
25.3
6,607.2

$

Unrealized

Losses

.4
72.4
416.5
125.0
299.0
107.0
1,020.3
12.1
1,032.4

$
$
421.0 $
$
$
$
At December 31, 2008, debt and equity securities in an unrealized loss position of $ 334.7 million and related fair value of $1.8 billion related to discontinued and
experience-rated products.
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Summarized below are the debt and equity securities we held at December 31, 2007, that were in an unrealized capital loss position, aggregated by
the length of time the investments have been in that position:
Less than 12 months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Greater than 12 months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Total (1)
Fair
Value

Unrealized

Losses
2007
Debt securities:
$
41.7 $
.4 $
5.3 $
.1 $
47.0 $
.5
U.S. government securities
246.4
3.1
130.5
2.2
376.9
5.3
State, municipalities and political subdivisions
1,699.8
60.5
787.6
37.9
2,487.4
98.4
U.S. corporate securities
278.2
4.7
262.5
13.8
540.7
18.5
Foreign securities
330.0
10.1
977.4
18.3
1,307.4
28.4
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities
116.4
11.9
100.3
15.3
216.7
27.2
Redeemable preferred securities
2,712.5
90.7
2,263.6
87.6
4,976.1
178.3
Total debt securities
.3
.4
.3
.4
Equity securities
$ 2,712.8 $
91.1 $
2,263.6 $
87.6 $
4,976.4 $
178.7
Total debt and equity securities
(1)
At December 31, 2007, debt and equity securities in an unrealized loss position of $ 60.9 million and related fair value of $ 1.4 billion related to discontinued and
experience-rated products.
(Millions)

We reviewed the securities in the table above and on page 59 and concluded that these are performing assets generating investment income to
support the needs of our business. In performing this review, we considered factors such as the quality of the investment security based on
research performed by external rating agencies and our internal credit analysts and the prospects of realizing the carrying value of the security
based on the investment’s current prospects for recovery. On the basis of these factors, we have the ability and intent to hold these securities
until their cost can be recovered. Therefore we did not take an other-than-temporary impairment loss on these investments. Unrealized losses at
December 31, 2008 were generally caused by the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S. Treasury
securities. Unrealized losses at December 31, 2007 were generally caused by the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S.
Treasury securities and an increase in interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities.
Mortgage Loans
Our mortgage loans are secured by commercial real estate. We had no material problem, restructured or potential problem loans included in
mortgage loans at December 31, 2008 or 2007. At December 31, 2008, our mortgage loans continue to be performing assets. We had no reserves
on our mortgage loans at December 31, 2008 or 2007.
At December 31, 2008 scheduled mortgage loan principal repayments were as follows:
(Millions)

$

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter

70.4
100.8
106.1
82.3
278.7
1,041.6

Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”)
We do not have any material relationships with VIEs which require consolidation. We have relationships with certain real estate and hedge fund
partnerships that are considered VIEs. When determining that these relationships were VIEs, we considered if we should consolidate the entity by
determining if we would receive the majority of the expected losses and the expected residual returns. Based on this analysis, we would not be
considered the primary beneficiary of these investments. We record the amount of our investment in these partnerships as long-term investments and
other long-term assets on our balance sheets and recognize our share of partnership income or losses in earnings. Our maximum exposure to loss as a
result of our investment in these partnerships is our investment balance at December 31, 2008 and 2007 of approximately $103 million and $89
million, respectively, and the risk of recapture of tax credits related to the real estate partnerships previously recognized, which we do not believe is
significant. We do not have a future obligation to fund losses or to fund debt on behalf of these investments,
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however, we may voluntarily contribute funds. The real estate partnerships construct, own and manage low-income housing developments and had
total assets of approximately $4.4 billion and $2.5 billion at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The hedge fund partnerships had total assets
of approximately $7.2 billion at both December 31, 2008 and 2007.
Credit Default Swaps
We sell credit protection via credit default swap contracts to manage credit exposure in our investment portfolio. Our contracts are limited to credit
exposure on single name entities or investment grade indices and have terms no greater than five years. We would have to pay under these contracts
based on certain defined triggering events such as bankruptcy, failure to pay and restructuring the terms of the underlying obligation. The fair value
and maximum amount of future payments for these credit default swaps at December 31, 2008 were $(.8) million and $46 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2008, we were not required to make any payments to our counterparties for risks covered by these credit default swaps.

Net Investment Income
Sources of net investment income in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
(Millions)
Debt securities
Mortgage loans

$

Other
Gross investment income
Less: Investment expenses
Net investment income
(1)

2008
877.4
116.9
(50.4)
943.9

$

(33.9)

(1)

$

910.0

2007
860.4
123.5
205.4
1,189.3

$

136.9
218.0
1,199.7
(35.0)

(39.4)

$

1,149.9

2006
844.8

$

1,164.7

Investment risks associated with our experience-rated and discontinued products generally do not impact our results of operations (refer to Note 2 beginning on page 48 for
additional information). Net investment income includes $296.1 million, $446.4 million and $504.4 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to investments
supporting our experience-rated and discontinued products.

The decrease in Other in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to lower income from alternative investments.

9. Capital Gains and Losses on Investments and Other Activities
Net realized capital losses for December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, excluding amounts related to experience-rated contract holders and discontinued
products, were as follows:
(Millions)

$

Other-than-temporary impairments of debt securities-yield related
Other-than-temporary impairments of debt securities-credit related
Sales of debt securities
Other
Pretax net realized capital (losses) gains

$

2008
(502.3)
(141.3)
(14.9)
2.6
(655.9)

$

2007
(124.9)
(2.9)

2006

$

-

$

.1
14.6
17.5
32.2

51.7
2.4

$

(73.7)

Recognizing a yield-related other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) loss requires significant diligence and judgment. We carefully evaluate all
relevant facts and circumstances for each investment in our analyses. We have concluded that the investments for which a yield-related OTTI was
recognized continue to be performing assets generating investment income to support the needs of our businesses. However, accounting guidance
requires us to assert our intent and ability to hold such securities until market recovery to avoid loss recognition. In order to maintain appropriate
flexibility in managing our investment portfolio, we do not make this assertion and therefore we recorded these yield-related OTTI losses.
Yield-related OTTI losses were primarily due to the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in 2008 and
increases in the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in 2007. During 2008, significant declines in the U.S. housing market resulted in the credit
and other capital markets experiencing volatility and limitations on the ability of companies to issue debt or equity securities. The lack of available
credit, lack of
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confidence in the financial sector, increased volatility in the financial markets and reduced business activity resulted in credit spreads widening during
2008.

The credit-related OTTI losses include $105 million pretax in 2008 related to investments in debt securities of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. and
Washington Mutual, Inc.

Excluding amounts related to experience-rated and discontinued products, proceeds from the sale of debt securities and the related gross realized
capital gains and losses in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
(Millions)
Proceeds on sales
Gross realized capital gains
Gross realized capital losses

10.

$

2008
7,494.2
120.6
136.8

$

2007
8,370.6
80.0
28.1

$

2006
10,057.6
88.0
70.9

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Shareholders’ equity included the following activity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in 2008, 2007 and 2006:

(Millions)
Balance at December 31, 2005

Net Unrealized Gains (Losses)
Foreign
Securities
Currency

$

Net unrealized losses on securities ($(53.7) pretax)
Net foreign currency losses ($(.6) pretax)
Net derivative gains ($24.9 pretax)
Pension liability adjustment ($8.8 pretax)
Reclassification to earnings ($(15.7) pretax)
Adjustment to initially recognize the funded status
of pension and OPEB plans

OPEB plans pursuant to FAS 158

(3)

$

16.2
-

5.7

-

-

-

66.5

11.6

(7.5)

(711.4)

(625.7)

113.9
(597.5)
226.8

-

-

7.6

-

-

-

(12.5)
(3.3)

15.2

(8.2)

474.1
(229.3)

$

7.9

(16.6)

3.6
(12.5)
69.8

(288.4)
(2,053.3)

(348.7)
(1,296.6)

(7.3)
(9.3)
477.0

-

.9

$

(511.8)
162.5

22.0

(9.3)

-

113.9

(3)

-

-

(7.3)

(10.2)

7.6

11.6

-

5.7

(1)

-

(652.4)

-

-

50.3
(34.9)
(.4)
16.2

(652.4) (2)

66.5

3.6

$

(64.7)

-

53.3
(756.7)

$

(1.1)
-

(.4)

51.1

Net unrealized losses ($3,158.9 pretax)
Net foreign currency losses ($11.2 pretax)
Net derivative losses ($14.3 pretax)
Reclassification to earnings ($647.7 pretax)

Derivatives

-

-

Balance at December 31, 2007

$

-

(64.3)

Net foreign currency gains ($5.5 pretax)
Net derivative losses ($(19.2) pretax)
Reclassification to earnings ($107.4 pretax)

(2)

12.0

(2.7)

Balance at January 1, 2007, as adjusted
Net unrealized (losses) gains ($250.0 pretax)

(1)

$

-

Balance at December 31, 2006
Effect of changing measurement date of pension and

Balance at December 31, 2008

104.1
(34.9)

Total Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Pension and
OPEB plans

2.0

$

(1,643.3)

$

(1,881.3)

The amount recognized reflects the $8.8 million pretax charge to record the minimum pension liability adjustment of the pension plan in accordance with the provisions of
FAS 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” (“FAS 87”), prior to the adoption of FAS 158.
The amount recognized reflects the $943.5 million pretax and $60.2 million pretax adjustment to reflect the funded status of our pension and OPEB plans, respectively, in
accordance with FAS 158.
We elected to adopt the measurement date provisions of FAS 158 in 2007. The transition provisions of FAS 158 required us to recognize the effects of this change as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated other comprehensive loss on January 1, 2007.
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The components of our pension and OPEB plans included the following activity in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income in 2008 and 2007:
OPEB Plans

Pension Plans
Unrecognized
Net Actuarial

(Millions)
Balance at December 31, 2006
Effect of changing measurement date of
pension and

$

Losses
(657.9)

$

Unrecognized

Unrecognized

Prior Service

Net Actuarial

Costs
(14.4)

Unrecognized
Prior Service

Costs
36.7 $

Losses

$

(75.8)

$

Total
(711.4)

OPEB plans pursuant to FAS 158 (1)
115.3
.8
(1.6)
(.6)
113.9
(542.6)
(13.6)
(77.4)
36.1
(597.5)
Balance at January 1, 2007, as adjusted
Unrealized net gains arising during
176.0
23.9
26.9
226.8
the period ($348.9 pretax)
17.9
3.1
3.4
(2.4)
22.0
Reclassification to earnings ($34.0 pretax)
(348.7)
13.4
(47.1)
33.7
(348.7)
Balance at December 31, 2007
Unrealized net losses arising during
(1,286.4)
(10.2)
(1,296.6)
the period (($1,994.8) pretax)
4.1
(1.4)
1.7
(2.4)
2.0
Reclassification to earnings ($3.1 pretax)
$
(1,631.0) $
12.0
$
(55.6)
$
31.3 $
(1,643.3)
Balance at December 31, 2008
(1)
We elected to adopt the measurement date provisions of FAS 158 in 2007. The transition provisions of FAS 158 required us to recognize the effects of this change as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated other comprehensive loss on January 1, 2007.

11.

Income Taxes

The components of our income tax provision in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
2008

(Millions)

Current taxes:

$

Federal

744.6

2007

$

25.5

State
Total current taxes

770.1

Deferred taxes (benefits):
Federal

State
Total deferred income taxes
Total income taxes

$

19.4
.6
20.0
790.1

$

2006

$

63.8
805.9

798.1
50.8
848.9

161.0

50.5

(1.5)
159.5
965.4

1.6
52.1

742.1

$

901.0

Income taxes were different from the amount computed by applying the federal income tax rate to income before income taxes as follows:
(Millions)

$

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Tax rate
Application of the tax rate
Tax effect of:
Valuation allowance
Other, net
Income taxes

2008
2,174.2 $
35%
761.0

56.0

$
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(26.9)
790.1

2007
2,796.4 $
35%
978.7
-

-

(13.3)

$

965.4

2006
2,586.6
35%
905.3

$

(4.3)
901.0

The significant components of our net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
2008

(Millions)

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products
Employee and postretirement benefits
Investments, net
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Insurance reserves
Other
Gross deferred tax assets
Less: Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance
Deferred tax liabilities:
Goodwill and other acquired intangible assets
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Depreciation and amortization
Employee and postretirement benefits
Total gross deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets
(1)

$

262.7
601.6
422.2

2007

$

-

158.2
55.0

56.5
128.2
27.2
102.0
1,600.4
66.1
1,534.3

-

96.0
107.3
708.9

25.3
683.6

244.0

240.6

-

32.5
183.4
51.8
508.3

210.1
-

454.1

(1)

$

292.4

1,080.2

$

175.3

Includes $ 301.5 million and $ 321.7 million classified as current assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $778.7 million and $ (146.4) million classified as
noncurrent assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Valuation allowances are provided when we estimate that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized. A valuation allowance
has been established on certain federal and state net operating losses, as well as on a portion of realized capital losses. We base our estimates of the
future realization of deferred tax assets on historic and anticipated taxable income. However, the amount of the deferred tax asset considered
realizable could be adjusted in the future if we revise our estimates of anticipated taxable income.

Beginning with the 2007 tax year, we entered into the Compliance Assurance Process (the “CAP”) with the IRS. Under the CAP, the IRS undertakes
audit procedures during the tax year and as the return is prepared for filing. The IRS has concluded its CAP audit of the 2007 tax return as well as all
the prior years. We expect the IRS will conclude its CAP audit of the 2008 tax year in 2009.

We are also subject to audits by state taxing authorities for tax years from 1996 through 2007. We believe we carry appropriate reserves for any
exposure to state tax issues.

We paid net income taxes of $906 million, $783 million and $732 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we did not have material uncertain tax positions reflected in our consolidated balance sheet. As such, we do not
believe uncertain tax positions will materially affect our financial position, results of operations or our effective tax rates in future periods.

12.

Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans
We sponsor various noncontributory defined benefit plans, including two pension plans that cover substantially all employees and other postretirement
benefit plans (“OPEB”) that provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees, including those of our former parent
company.

For certain of our employees, we provide a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan, the Aetna Pension Plan, which is a tax-qualified pension
plan. All pension plan participants accrue future benefits under a cash balance formula.
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We also sponsor a supplemental pension plan that, prior to January 1, 2007, had been used to provide benefits for wages above the Internal Revenue
Code wage limits applicable to tax qualified pension plans (such as the Aetna Pension Plan). Effective January 1, 2007, no new benefits accrue under
the supplemental pension plan, but interest will continue to be credited on outstanding supplemental cash balance accounts and the plan may continue
to be used to credit special pension arrangements.

In addition, we currently provide certain medical and life insurance benefits for retired employees, including those of our former parent company. We
provide subsidized health benefits to certain eligible employees who terminated employment prior to December 31, 2006. There is a cap on our portion
of the cost of providing medical and dental benefits to our retirees. All current and future retirees and employees who terminate employment at age 45
or later with at least five years of service are eligible to participate in our group health plans at their own cost.
In accordance with FAS 158, during 2007 we changed our measurement date for determining benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets of
our pension and OPEB plans to December 31 (the end of our fiscal year). We previously used September 30 as our measurement date.

The following table shows the changes in the benefit obligations during 2008 and 2007 for our pension and OPEB plans. For the pension plans, the
benefit obligation is the projected benefit obligation (which does not differ materially from the accumulated benefit obligation). For the OPEB plans,
the benefit obligation is the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation.
Pension Plans
(Millions)
Benefit obligation, beginning of year

Net effect of changing measurement date pursuant to FAS 158
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Plan amendments
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation, end of year

$

2008
4,906.2

$

-

45.3
312.2
(232.6)
-

$

(288.3)
4,742.8

$

2007
5,121.5
69.6
44.4
299.1
(291.2)
(36.7)
(300.5)
4,906.2

$

OPEB Plans
2008
332.1 $
-

.3
20.0
11.4

2007
393.2
(2.6)
.3
21.7
(42.5)

-

$

(34.2)
329.6

-

$

(38.0)
332.1

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine the benefit obligations of our pension and OPEB plans at our measurement date for
2008 and 2007:
Pension Plans

2008
6.89%
4.51

Discount rate
Rate of increase in future compensation levels

2007
6.56%
4.51

OPEB Plans
2008
6.92%
-

The discount rates used to determine the benefit obligation of our pension and OPEB plans were calculated using a yield curve. The yield curve
consisted of a series of individual discount rates, with each discount rate corresponding to a single point-in-time, based on high quality
bonds. Projected benefit payments are discounted to the measurement date using the corresponding rate from the yield curve. The discount rates
differ for our pension and OPEB plans due to the nature of the projected benefit payments for each plan.
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2007
6.35%
-

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of the fair value of plan assets during 2008 and 2007 for the pension and OPEB
plans:
Pension Plans

$

2008
5,819.2

$

(1,727.1)
73.4
(288.3)
3,877.2

(Millions)

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year
Net effect of changing measurement date pursuant to FAS 158
Actual (loss) return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets, end of year

$

-

$

2007
5,336.4
265.3
444.9
73.1
(300.5)
5,819.2

$

OPEB Plans
2008
70.7 $
-

(.5)

$

31.3
(34.2)
67.3

$

2007
70.8
(.1)
2.6
35.4
(38.0)
70.7

The difference between the fair value of plan assets and the plan’s benefit obligation is referred to as the plan’s funded status. This funded status is an
accounting-based calculation and is not indicative of our mandatory funding requirements, which are described on page 68. The funded status of our
pension and OPEB plans at the measurement date for 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
Pension Plans
(Millions)
Benefit obligation

$

Fair value of plan assets
Funded status

$

2008
(4,742.8)
3,877.2
(865.6)

$
$

2007
(4,906.2)
5,819.2
913.0

$
$

OPEB Plans
2008
(329.6) $
67.3
(262.3) $

2007
(332.1)
70.7
(261.4)

A reconciliation of the funded status at the measurement date for 2008 and 2007 of our pension and OPEB plans to the net amounts recognized as
assets or liabilities on our balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
Pension Plans
(Millions)

Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial losses
Unrecognized prior service credit
Amount recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss
Net amount of assets and liabilities recognized at December 31

$

$

2008
(865.6)
2,509.2
(18.4)

(2,490.8)
(865.6)

$

2007
913.0
536.5
(20.6)

$

(515.9)

$

913.0

$

OPEB Plans
2008
(262.3) $
85.5
(48.1)

2007
(261.4)
72.4

(37.4)
(262.3)

(20.6)
(261.4)

$

(51.8)

The assets and liabilities recognized on our balance sheets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 for our pension and OPEB plans were comprised of the
following:
Pension Plans
(Millions)
Prepaid pension asset reflected in other long-term assets
Accrued benefit liabilities reflected in other current liabilities
Accrued benefit liabilities reflected in other long-term liabilities
Net amount of assets and liabilities recognized at December 31

2008

$

-

$

(71.4)
(794.2)

$

(865.6)

$

2007
1,164.1
(21.5)
(229.6)
913.0

$

$

OPEB Plans
2008
$
(31.1)
(231.2)
(262.3) $

2007
-

(28.0)
(233.4)
(261.4)

At December 31, 2008, we had approximately $2.5 billion and $86 million of net actuarial losses for our pension and OPEB plans, respectively, and
approximately $18 million and $48 million of prior service credits for our pension and OPEB plans, respectively, that have not been recognized as
components of net periodic benefit costs. We expect to recognize approximately $217 million and $3 million in amortization of net actuarial losses
for our pension and OPEB plans, respectively, and approximately $2 million and $4 million in accretion of prior service credits for our pension and
OPEB plans, respectively, in 2009.
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Components of the net periodic benefit (income) cost in 2008, 2007 and 2006 for the pension and OPEB plans were as follows:
OPEB Plans
2007

Pension Plans
(Millions)

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
(Accretion) amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial loss
Net periodic benefit (income) cost

$

$

2008
45.3
312.2
(484.5)
(2.1)
6.3
(122.8)

$

$

2007
44.4
299.1
(465.5)
4.8
27.6
(89.6)

$

$

2006
97.8
283.1
(410.7)
5.7
77.3
53.2

$

$

2008
.3
20.0
(3.8)
(3.7)
2.6
15.4

$

.3
21.7
(3.8)

2006
.3
25.4
(4.0)
(2.1)
7.1
26.7

$

(3.7)

$

5.3
19.8

$

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit (income) cost in 2008, 2007 and 2006 for the pension and OPEB plans were
as follows:
Pension Plans

Discount rate
Expected long-term return on plan assets
Rate of increase in future compensation levels

2008
6.57%
8.50
4.51

2007
5.91%
8.50
4.51

2006
5.77%
8.50
4.51

2008
6.35%
5.50

OPEB Plans
2007

2006
5.59%
5.70

5.82%
5.50

-

-

-

We assume different health care cost trend rates for medical costs and prescription drug costs in estimating the expected costs of our OPEB
plans. The assumed medical cost trend rate for 2009 is 10%, decreasing gradually to 5% by 2014. The assumed prescription drug cost trend rate for
2009 is 15%, decreasing gradually to 5% by 2019. These assumptions reflect our historical as well as expected future trends for retirees. In
addition, the trend assumptions reflect factors specific to our retiree medical plan, such as plan design, cost-sharing provisions, benefits covered and
the presence of subsidy caps.
The asset allocation of the pension and OPEB plans at the measurement date for 2008 and 2007 and the target asset allocation at December 31, 2008,
presented as a percentage of the total plan assets, were as follows :
OPEB Plans

Pension Plans

Target
(Millions)
Equity securities
Debt securities
Real estate/other
Total

2008
55%
32
13
100%

2007
66%
24
10
100%

Allocation

55-75%
10-30

5-25

Target

2008
7%
87
6
100%

2007
11%
87
2
100%

Allocation

5-15%
80-90
2-10

Our pension plans invest in a diversified mix of assets intended to maximize long-term returns while recognizing the need for adequate liquidity to
meet on-going benefit and administrative obligations. Risk of unexpected investment and actuarial outcomes is regularly evaluated. This evaluation is
performed through forecasting and assessing ranges of investment outcomes over short and long-term horizons, and by assessing the pension plan’s
liability characteristics, our financial condition and our future potential obligations from both the pension and general corporate
perspectives. Complementary investment styles and techniques are utilized by multiple professional investment firms to further improve portfolio and
operational risk characteristics. Public and private equity investments are used primarily to increase overall plan returns. Real estate investments are
viewed favorably for their diversification benefits and above-average dividend generation. Fixed income investments provide diversification benefits
and liability hedging attributes that are desirable, especially in falling interest rate environments.
Asset allocations and investment performance are formally reviewed quarterly by the plan’s Benefit Finance Committee. Forecasting of asset and
liability growth is performed at least annually. More thorough analysis of assets and liabilities are also performed periodically.
We have several benefit plans for retired employees currently supported by the OPEB plan assets. OPEB plan assets are directly and indirectly
invested in a diversified mix of traditional asset classes, primarily high-quality fixed income securities.
Annual Report - Page 67

The expected long-term rate of return is estimated based on many factors including the expected forecast for inflation, risk premiums for each asset
class, expected asset allocation, current and future financial market conditions, and diversification and rebalancing strategies. Historical return
patterns and correlations, consensus return forecasts and other relevant financial factors are analyzed to check for reasonability and appropriateness.
Our current funding strategy is to fund an amount at least equal to the minimum funding requirement as determined under applicable regulatory
requirements with consideration of factors such as the maximum tax deductibility of such amounts. We may elect to voluntarily contribute amounts
to our tax-qualified pension plan. We do not have any regulatory contribution requirements for 2009; however, we intend to make a voluntary
contribution of approximately $45 million to the Aetna Pension Plan in 2009. Employer contributions related to the supplemental pension plan and
OPEB plans represent payments to retirees for current benefits. We have no plans to return any pension or OPEB plan assets to the Company in 2009.

Expected benefit payments, which reflect future employee service, as appropriate, of the pension and OPEB plans to be paid for each of the next five
years and in the aggregate for the next five years thereafter, at December 31, 2008 were as follows:
Pension Plans

(Millions)

$

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018

308.6
311.0
314.3
318.7
430.5
1,836.1

OPEB Plans

$

31.1
30.8
30.5
29.5
28.8
135.0

401(k) Plan
Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate in a defined contribution retirement savings plan under which designated contributions may
be invested in our common stock or certain other investments. We provide for a match of up to 50% of the first 6% of eligible pay contributed to the
plan. The matching contributions are made in cash and invested according to each participant’s investment elections. During 2008, 2007 and 2006,
we made $47 million, $42 million and $40 million, respectively, in matching contributions. The plan trustee held approximately 11 million shares of
our common stock for plan participants at December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008, approximately 34 million shares of our common stock were
reserved for issuance under our 401(k) plan.

Employee Incentive Plans

Stock-Based Compensation Plans - Our stock-based compensation plans (collectively, the “Plans”) provide for awards of stock options, stock
appreciation rights (“SARs”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”), performance stock units (“PSUs”), deferred contingent common stock and the
ability for employees to purchase common stock at a discount. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, approximately 85 million and 88 million common
shares, respectively, were available for issuance under the Plans.

Executive, middle management and non-management employees may be granted stock options, SARs, RSUs and PSUs. Stock options are granted
to purchase our common stock at or above the market price on the date of grant. SARs granted will be settled in stock, net of taxes, based on the
appreciation of our stock price on the exercise date over the market price on the date of grant. SARs and stock options generally become 100% vested
three years after the grant is made, with one-third vesting each year. From time to time, we have issued SARs and stock options with different vesting
provisions. Vested SARs and stock options may be exercised at any time during the 10 years after grant, except in certain circumstances, generally
related to employment termination or retirement. At the end of the 10-year period, any unexercised SARs and stock options expire. For each RSU
granted, employees receive one share of common stock, net of taxes, at the end of the vesting period. The RSUs granted in 2006 will generally vest
in a single installment on the third anniversary of the grant date. The RSUs granted in 2007 and 2008 will generally become 100% vested three years
after the grant is made, with one-third vesting each year. The PSUs granted in 2008 will become vested on December 31, 2009. The number of
vested PSUs (which could be as high as 200% of the original number of units granted and as low as 0%) is dependent upon the degree to which we
achieve performance goals as determined by the Board’s Committee on Compensation and Organization. The value of each vested PSU is equal to one
share of common stock, net of taxes.
The fair value of RSUs and PSUs are based on the market price of our common stock on the date of grant. We estimate the fair value of stock
options and awards of SARs using a modified Black-Scholes option pricing model.
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Stock options and SARs granted in 2008, 2007 and 2006 had a weighted average per share fair value of $14.71, $15.10, and $16.41, respectively,
using the assumptions noted in the following table:
2008
.1%
31.7%
2.5%
4.4 years

Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected term

2007
.1%
31.7%
4.7%
4.7 years

2006
.1%
30.9%
4.6%
4.5 years

We use historical data to estimate the period of time that stock options or SARs are expected to be outstanding. Expected volatilities are based on a
weighted average of the historical volatility of our stock price and implied volatility from traded options on our stock. The risk-free interest rate for
periods within the expected life of the stock option or SAR is based on the benchmark five-year U.S. Treasury rate in effect on the date of
grant. The dividend yield assumption is based on our historical dividends declared.

The stock option and SAR transactions in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

(Millions, except exercise price and remaining life)

Number of Stock
Options and SARs

2006
Outstanding, beginning of year

53.8
5.5
(9.5)
(.7)
49.1

$

Granted
Exercised
Expired or forfeited
Outstanding, end of year
Exercisable, end of year

Aggregate

Weighted
Average Remaining
Contractual Life

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Intrinsic

Value

$

14.78
49.84
11.17
28.72
19.22

6.2
5.5

$

1,742.2
309.2
1,213.5

38.8

$

13.27

4.9

$

1,161.3

49.1
5.7
(13.3)
(1.0)
40.5

$

5.5
5.3

$

1,213.5

$

19.22
43.26
12.55
37.31
24.31

$

494.1
1,352.6

30.6

$

18.49

4.4

$

1,201.5

40.5
4.9
(2.5)
(1.0)
41.9

$

$

24.31
49.34
14.13
38.19
27.50

5.3
4.9

$

Granted
Exercised
Expired or forfeited
Outstanding, end of year

$

1,352.6
75.5
347.0

Exercisable, end of year

33.4

$

22.48

4.0

$

345.9

2007
Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired or forfeited
Outstanding, end of year
Exercisable, end of year

2008
Outstanding, beginning of year

$

-

During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the following activity occurred under the Plans:
(Millions)

Cash received from stock option exercises
Intrinsic value (the excess of stock price on the date of exercise over the exercise price)
Tax benefits realized for the tax deductions from stock options and SARs exercised
Fair value of stock options and SARs vested

$

2008
29.7
75.5
26.4
86.5

$

2007
163.1
494.1
172.9

$

18.0

We settle employee stock options with newly issued common stock and generally utilize the proceeds to repurchase common stock in the open
market in the same period.
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2006
105.8
309.2
108.2
71.0

The following is a summary of information regarding stock options and SARs outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008 (number of
stock options and SARs and aggregate intrinsic values in millions):
Outstanding
Weighted
Average
Remaining

Range of Exercise Prices
$0.00-$10.00
10.00-20.00
20.00-30.00
30.00-40.00
40.00-50.00
50.00-60.00
$0.00-$60.00

Number
Outstanding

Contractual
Life (Years)

7.5
13.7
.2
6.4
5.3
8.8
41.9

2.1
3.8
9.0
4.9
7.6
7.2
4.9

Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Aggregate

$

7.95
14.52
22.59
33.64
43.26
50.46
$ 27.50

Intrinsic

Number

Value

Exercisable

154.8
190.8
1.4
347.0

7.5
13.7
.1
6.3
2.1
3.7
33.4

$

$

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$

7.95
14.52
21.40
33.58
43.22
50.24
$ 22.48

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value

$

$

154.8
190.8
.3
345.9

RSU and PSU transactions in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (number of units in millions):
2008

RSUs

Fair Value

and PSUs

RSUs at beginning of year (1)

1.4

Granted
Vested
Forfeited
RSUs and PSUs at end of year

1.5

(1)
(2)

(.4)
(.1)
2.4

2007
Weighted
Average
Grant Date

$

$

46.15
39.81
44.78
45.74
42.98

2006
Weighted
Average
Grant Date

RSUs

.8
.8
(.1)
(.1)
1.4

Weighted
Average
Grant Date

RSUs

Fair Value

$

$

49.52
43.15
47.70
46.36
46.15

- (2)

Fair Value

$

34.18
50.05

.8

40.29
50.21
49.52

- (2)
- (2)

.8

$

There was no PSU transactions prior to February 2008.
Amounts rounded to zero.

In 2008, 2007 and 2006 we recorded pretax share-based compensation expense of $96 million, $89 million and $74 million, respectively, in general
and administrative expenses. We also recorded related tax benefits of $34 million, $32 million and $26 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. At December 31, 2008, $115 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options, SARs, RSUs and PSUs are
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

13.

Debt

The carrying value of our long-term debt at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:
(Millions)

$

Senior notes, 5.75%, due 2011
Senior notes, 7.875%, due 2011
Senior notes, 6.0%, due 2016
Senior notes, 6.5%, due 2018
Senior notes, 6.625%, due 2036
Senior notes, 6.75%, due 2037
Total long-term debt

$

2008
449.8
449.2
746.7
498.6
798.6
695.4
3,638.3

$

2007
449.7

448.8
746.2
-

$

798.5
695.3
3,138.5

In September 2008, we issued $500 million of 6.5% senior notes due 2018 (the “2008 Senior Notes”) and used the proceeds to repay commercial
paper borrowings. In December 2007, we issued $700 million of 6.75% senior notes due 2037 (the “2007 Senior Notes”) and used the proceeds to
repay commercial paper borrowings. These debt issuances were partially hedged with forward starting swaps prior to issuance. At the time of the
debt issuance, the swaps were terminated and the amount paid was recorded as an other comprehensive loss and is being amortized as an increase of
interest expense over the life of the relevant senior notes.
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At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had $216 million and $100 million of commercial paper outstanding respectively, with a weighted average
interest rate of 5.36% and 5.44%, respectively. In addition, at December 31, 2007, certain of our subsidiaries had $31 million outstanding at an
interest rate of 5.19% under a one-year $45 million short term credit program with a bank to provide short-term liquidity to those
subsidiaries. This program was terminated in December 2008.
We paid $228 million, $178 million and $159 million in interest in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, we had an unsecured $1.5 billion revolving credit agreement (the “Facility”) with several financial institutions which
terminates in March 2013. The Facility provides for the issuance of letters of credit at our request, up to $200 million, which count as usage of the
available commitments under the Facility. Upon our agreement with one or more financial institutions, we may expand the aggregate commitments
under the Facility to a maximum of $2.0 billion. Various interest rate options are available under the Facility. Any revolving borrowings mature on the
termination date of the Facility. We pay facility fees on the Facility ranging from .045% to .175% per annum, depending upon our long-term senior
unsecured debt rating. The facility fee was .06% at December 31, 2008. The Facility contains a financial covenant that requires us to maintain a
ratio of total debt to consolidated capitalization as of the end of each fiscal quarter ending on or after December 31, 2007 at or below .5 to 1.0. For
this purpose, consolidated capitalization equals the sum of shareholders’ equity, excluding any overfunded or underfunded status of our pension and
OPEB plans in accordance with FAS 158 and any net unrealized capital gains and losses, and total debt (as defined in the Facility). We met this
requirement at December 31, 2008.

14.

Capital Stock

From time to time, the Board authorizes us to repurchase our common stock. Our activity under Board authorized share repurchase programs in 2008,
2007 and 2006 was as follows:
Shares Purchased

2008

2007

2006

Purchase Not to
Exceed

(Millions)
Authorization date:

June 27, 2008
February 29, 2008
September 28, 2007
April 27, 2007
September 29, 2006
April 28, 2006
January 27, 2006
September 29, 2005
Total repurchases

$

750.0
750.0
1,250.0
750.0
750.0
820.0
750.0
750.0
N/A

Repurchase authorization remaining at December

31,

Shares

5.8

$

17.4
19.7
-

Cost

Shares

135.8
750.0

-

901.9

6.1
15.0

-

$

Cost

Shares

-

-

12.1

348.1
750.0
570.9

-

-

42.9

$

1,787.7

33.2

$

1,669.0

4.2
21.7
20.4
14.0
60.3

N/A

$

614.2

N/A

$

901.9

N/A

Cost

$

-

$

179.1
820.0
750.0
580.9
2,330.0

$

570.9

On February 27, 2009, the Board authorized an additional $750 million share repurchase program which will commence upon the completion of the
June 27, 2008 authorization.
On September 26, 2008, the Board declared an annual cash dividend of $.04 per common share to shareholders of record at the close of business on
November 13, 2008. The $18 million dividend was paid on November 28, 2008.
In addition to the capital stock disclosed on our balance sheets, we have authorized 7.6 million shares of Class A voting preferred stock, $.01 par
value per share. At December 31, 2008, there were also 241 million undesignated shares that the Board has the power to divide into such classes and
series, with such voting rights, designations, preferences, limitations and special rights as the Board determines.
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15.
Financial Instruments
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires certain of our assets and liabilities to be reflected at their
fair value, and others on another basis, such as an adjusted historical cost basis. In this note, we provide details on the fair value of financial assets
and liabilities and how we determine those fair values. We present this information for those instruments that are reported at fair value for which the
change in fair value impacts net income or other comprehensive income separately from other financial assets and liabilities.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value in our Balance Sheets
Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted FAS 157 for our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. FAS 157 defines fair value, expands
disclosure requirements and specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques. The following are the levels of the hierarchy and a brief description of the
type of valuation information (“inputs”) that qualifies a financial asset or liability for each level:
o Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
o Level 2 – Inputs other than Level 1 that are based on observable market data. These include: quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets, quoted prices for identical assets in inactive markets, inputs that are observable that are not prices (such as interest rates, credit
risks, etc.) and inputs that are derived from or corroborated by observable markets.
o Level 3 – Developed from unobservable data, reflecting our own assumptions.

When quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are available, we use these quoted market prices to determine the fair value of
financial assets and liabilities and classify these assets and liabilities as Level 1. In other cases where a quoted market price for identical assets and
liabilities in an active market is either not available or not observable, we estimate fair values using valuation methodologies based on available and
observable market information or by using a matrix pricing model. These financial assets and liabilities would then be classified as Level 2. If quoted
market prices are not available, we determine fair value using broker quotes or an internal analysis of each investment’s financial performance and
cash flow projections. In these instances, financial assets and liabilities will be classified based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the
valuation. Thus, financial assets and liabilities may be classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that may be readily
available.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, including the general
classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Debt Securities - Where quoted prices are available in an active market, our debt securities are classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy. Our Level 1 debt securities are comprised primarily of U.S. government securities. If Level 1 valuations are not available, the fair
value is determined using models such as matrix pricing, which uses quoted market prices of debt securities with similar characteristics or
discounted cash flows to estimate fair value. We obtained one price for each of our Level 2 debt securities and did not adjust any of these
prices at December 31, 2008.
We also value a certain amount of debt securities using Level 3 inputs. For Level 3 debt securities, fair values are determined by outside
brokers or, in the case of certain private placement securities, are priced by internal staff. Outside brokers determine the value of these debt
securities through a combination of their knowledge of the current pricing environment and market flows. We obtained one non-binding
broker quote for each of these Level 3 debt securities and did not adjust any of these quotes at December 31, 2008. The total fair value of
our broker quoted securities was approximately $353 million at December 31, 2008. Examples of these Level 3 debt securities include
certain U.S. and foreign corporate securities and structured products. For certain private placement securities, internal staff determine the
value of these debt securities by analyzing spreads of corporate and sector indices as well as interest spreads of comparable public
bonds. Examples of these Level 3 debt securities include certain U.S. and foreign securities and certain tax exempt municipal securities.

Equity Securities - We currently have two classifications of equity securities: those that are publicly traded and those that are privately
held. Our publicly traded securities are classified as Level 1 because quoted prices are available for these securities in an active market. For
privately held equity securities, there is no
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active market; therefore, we classify these securities as Level 3 because we must price these securities through an internal analysis of each
investment’s financial statements and cash flow projections.

Derivatives - Our derivative instruments are valued using models that primarily use market observable inputs and therefore are classified as
Level 2 because they are traded in markets where quoted market prices are not readily available.

Our financial assets and liabilities with changes in fair value that are measured on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008 were as follows:
Level 1

(Millions)

Assets:
Debt Securities
Equity Securities

$

Level 2

$

455.7

$

$

672.1

$

1.8
12,838.0

$

485.0

$

$

-

$

4.0

$

-

$

4.0

$

681.3

29.3

-

-

Derivatives
Total

$

Total

13,961.8
31.5
1.8
13,995.1

669.9
2.2

12,836.2

Level 3

-

Liabilities:

Derivatives

The changes in the balances of Level 3 financial assets for 2008 were as follows:
Debt Securities

(Millions)
Beginning balance
Net realized and unrealized capital (losses) gains:
Included in earnings

$

642.5

Equity Securities

$

(51.9)
(30.2)

Included in other comprehensive income

Other (1)
Purchases, sales and maturities

Total

(1.0)

(51.9)
(31.2)

10.4
(34.6)

(19.0)
(83.1)

-

(29.4)

(48.5)

Transfers in or (out) of Level 3 (2)

38.8

15.7

Ending Balance

$

(26.8)
455.7

$

29.3

$

485.0

Amount of Level 3 net unrealized capital losses included in net income

$

(53.8)

$

-

$

(53.8)

(1)
(2)

(11.1)

Reflects realized and unrealized capital gains and losses on investments supporting our experience-rated and discontinued products, which do not affect our results of
operations.
For financial assets that are transferred into Level 3, we use the fair value of the assets at the end of the reporting period. For financial assets that are transferred out of
Level 3, we use the fair value of the assets at the beginning of the reporting period.

Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value in our Balance Sheets
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for estimating the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at carrying value.

Mortgage loans - Fair values are estimated by discounting expected mortgage loan cash flows at market rates that reflect the rates at which
similar loans would be made to similar borrowers. These rates reflect management’s assessment of the credit quality and the remaining
duration of the loans. Our fair value estimates of mortgage loans of lower credit quality, including problem and restructured loans, are based
on the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral.
Investment contract liabilities:
• With a fixed maturity: Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows at interest rates currently being offered by, or available to, us
for similar contracts.

•

Without a fixed maturity: Fair value is estimated as the amount payable to the contract holder upon demand. However, we have the
right under such contracts to delay payment of withdrawals that may ultimately result in paying an amount different than that determined
to be payable on demand.
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Long-term debt: Fair values are based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issued debt or, if no quoted market prices are
available, on the current rates estimated to be available to us for debt of similar terms and remaining maturities.

The carrying value and estimated fair value of certain of our financial instruments at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
2008

2007
Estimated
Fair

Carrying
Value

(Millions)

Assets:
Mortgage loans

$

Value

$

1,679.9

Estimated
Fair

Carrying
Value

$

1,622.9

Value

1,512.6

$

1,530.2

Liabilities:

Investment contract liabilities:
With a fixed maturity
Without a fixed maturity
Long-term debt

38.0
428.8
3,372.2

39.1

525.6
3,638.3

70.8
546.9
3,138.5

71.8
502.3
3,193.8

Separate Accounts Measured at Fair Value in our Balance Sheets
Separate Account assets in Large Case Pensions represent funds maintained to meet specific objectives of contract holders. Since contract holders
bear the investment risk of these assets, a corresponding Separate Account liability has been established equal to the assets. These assets and
liabilities are carried at fair value. Investment income and capital gains and losses accrue directly to such contract holders. The assets of each
account are legally segregated and are not subject to claims arising from our other businesses. Deposits, withdrawals, net investment income and
realized and unrealized capital gains and losses on Separate Account assets are not reflected in our statements of income or cash flows.
Separate Account assets include debt and equity securities and derivative instruments. The valuation methodologies used for these assets are similar to
the methodologies described beginning on page 72. Separate Account assets also include investments in real estate that are carried at fair value. The
following is a description of the valuation methodology used to price these real estate investments, including the general classification pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy.

Real Estate - The values of the underlying real estate investments are estimated using generally accepted valuation techniques and give
consideration to the investment structure. An appraisal of the underlying real estate for each of these investments is performed annually. In
the quarters in which an investment is not appraised or its valuation is not updated, fair value is based on available market information. The
valuation of a real estate investment is adjusted only if there has been a significant change in economic circumstances related to the
investment since acquisition or the most recent independent valuation and upon the appraiser’s review and concurrence with the
valuation. Further, these valuations have been prepared giving consideration to the income, cost and sales comparison approaches of
estimating property value. These valuations do not necessarily represent the prices at which the real estate investments would sell, since
market prices of real estate investments can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller. Therefore, these investment
values are classified as Level 3.

Separate Account financial assets with changes in fair value measured on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008 were as follows:
Level 1

(Millions)

Debt Securities
Equity Securities
Derivatives
Real Estate

$

Total (1)

$

(1)

631.5
1,629.2

$

-

Excludes $793.3 million of cash and cash equivalents and other receivables.
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2,260.7

Level 2
2,412.1
2.1
(.1)

Level 3

$

2,414.1

Total

$

-

$

451.8

3,408.7
1,631.3
(.1)

86.7

-

$

365.1

86.7

$

5,126.6

The changes in the balances of Level 3 Separate Account financial assets for 2008 were as follows:
Debt
Securities

(Millions)

Beginning balance
Total losses accrued to contract holders
Purchases, sales and maturities

$

291.2
(16.4)
105.2
(14.9)

$

365.1

Net transfers out of Level 3 (1)

-

Transfers of Separate Account assets (2)
Ending Balance

Total

Real Estate

$

12,541.8
(45.6)
(88.7)
-

$

(12,320.8)

(12,320.8)

$

12,833.0
(62.0)
16.5
(14.9)

86.7

$

451.8

(1)

For financial assets that are transferred into Level 3, we use the fair value of the assets at the end of the reporting period. For financial assets that are transferred out of

(2)

Level 3, we use the fair value of the assets at the beginning of the reporting period.
During 2008, approximately $12.4 billion of our Separate Account assets were transitioned out of our business. Refer to Note 2 beginning on page 48 for additional
information concerning this transfer.

16.

Dividend Restrictions and Statutory Surplus

Our business operations are conducted through subsidiaries that principally consist of HMOs and insurance companies. In addition to general state
law restrictions on payments of dividends and other distributions to shareholders applicable to all corporations, HMOs and insurance companies are
subject to further regulations that, among other things, may require such companies to maintain certain levels of equity, and restrict the amount of
dividends and other distributions that may be paid to their parent corporations. The additional regulations applicable to our HMO and insurance
company subsidiaries are not expected to affect our ability to service our debt or to pay dividends.
Under regulatory requirements, the amount of dividends that may be paid to Aetna by our insurance and HMO subsidiaries without prior approval by
regulatory authorities as calculated at December 31, 2008 is approximately $1.6 billion in the aggregate. There are no such restrictions on
distributions from Aetna to its shareholders.

The combined statutory net income for the years ended and combined statutory capital and surplus at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 for our
insurance and HMO subsidiaries, were as follows:
(Millions)

$

Statutory net income
Statutory capital and surplus

17.

2008
1,815.8
5,665.6

$

2007
1,901.9
5,316.0

$

2006
1,500.9
4,704.0

Reinsurance

Effective November 1, 1999, we reinsured certain policyholder liabilities and obligations related to paid-up group whole life insurance. Effective
October 1, 1998, we reinsured certain policyholder liabilities and obligations related to individual life insurance (in conjunction with our former
parent company’s sale of this business). These transactions were in the form of indemnity reinsurance arrangements, whereby the assuming
companies contractually assumed certain policyholder liabilities and obligations, although we remain directly obligated to policyholders. The liability
related to our obligation is recorded in future policy benefits and policyholders’ funds on our balance sheets. Assets related to and supporting these
policies were transferred to the assuming companies, and we recorded a reinsurance recoverable. Reinsurance recoverables related to these
obligations were approximately $1.0 billion at December 31, 2008 and $1.1 billion at both December 31, 2007 and 2006.

In 2008, we recorded an allowance against our reinsurance recoverable from Lehman Re Ltd. (“Lehman Re”) of $42 million pretax in operating
expenses. The reinsurance recoverable results from the 1999 transaction as described above. In September 2008, we took possession of assets
supporting the reinsurance recoverable, which previously were held as collateral in a trust. In September 2008, Lehman Re commenced proceedings
in Bermuda to liquidate itself. We intend to pursue our claims in Lehman Re’s liquidation proceedings. We believe our reinsurance recoverables
supporting all of these reinsurance obligations are adequate at December 31, 2008.
Annual Report - Page 75

There is not a material difference between premiums on a written basis versus an earned basis. Reinsurance recoveries were approximately $63
million, $62 million and $83 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31, 2008, reinsurance recoverables with a carrying value of
approximately $980 million were associated with three reinsurers.

Effective October 1, 2008, we entered into an agreement with Hannover Life Reassurance Company of America to reinsure fifty percent of our
group term life and group accidental death and dismemberment insurance policies. We entered into this contract in order to reduce the risk on
catastrophic loss which in turn reduces our statutory capital and surplus requirements. This contract does not qualify for reinsurance accounting
under GAAP pursuant to FAS 113 “Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts.” As
such, this contract has been accounted for under deposit accounting in accordance with Statement of Position 98-7 “Deposit Accounting:

Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk.”
18.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees
We have the following guarantee arrangements at December 31, 2008.

·

ASC Claim Funding Accounts - We have arrangements with certain banks for the processing of claim payments for our ASC
customers. The banks maintain accounts to fund claims of our ASC customers. The customer is responsible for funding the amount paid
by the bank each day. In these arrangements, we guarantee that the banks will not sustain losses if the responsible ASC customer does not
properly fund its account. The aggregate maximum exposure under these arrangements is $250 million. We could limit our exposure to this
guarantee by suspending the payment of claims for ASC customers that have not adequately funded the amount paid by the bank.

·

Indemnification Agreements - In connection with certain acquisitions and dispositions of assets and/or businesses, we have incurred certain
customary indemnification obligations to the applicable seller or purchaser, respectively. In general, we have agreed to indemnify the other
party for certain losses relating to the assets or business that we purchased or sold. Certain portions of our indemnification obligations are
capped at the applicable purchase price, while other arrangements are not subject to such a limit. At December 31, 2008, we do not believe
that our future obligations under any of these agreements will be material to us.

·

Separate Account assets - Certain Separate Account assets associated with the Large Case Pensions business represent funds maintained as a
contractual requirement to fund specific pension annuities that we have guaranteed. Contractual obligations in these Separate Accounts were
$4.5 billion at both December 31, 2008 and 2007. Refer to Note 2 beginning on page 48 for additional information on Separate
Accounts. Contract holders assume all investment and mortality risk and are required to maintain Separate Account balances at or above a
specified level. The level of required funds is a function of the risk underlying the Separate Accounts' investment strategy. If contract
holders do not maintain the required level of Separate Account assets to meet the annuity guarantees, we would establish an additional
liability. Contract holders' balances in the Separate Accounts at December 31, 2008 exceeded the value of the guaranteed benefit
obligation. As a result, we were not required to maintain any additional liability for our related guarantees at December 31, 2008.

Guaranty Fund Assessments, Market Stabilization and Other Non-Voluntary Risk Sharing Pools
Under guaranty fund laws existing in all states, insurers doing business in those states can be assessed (up to prescribed limits) for certain obligations
of insolvent insurance companies to policyholders and claimants. Our assessments generally are based on a formula relating to our premiums in the
state compared to the premiums of other insurers. Certain states allow recoverability of assessments as offsets to premium taxes. While we have
historically recovered more than half of guaranty fund assessments through statutorily permitted premium tax offsets, significant increases in
assessments could jeopardize future recovery of these assessments. Some states have similar laws relating to HMOs. HMOs in certain states in
which we do business are subject to assessments, including market stabilization and other risk sharing pools for which we are assessed charges based
on incurred claims, demographic membership mix and other factors. We establish liabilities for these assessments based on
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applicable laws and regulations. In certain states, the ultimate assessments we pay are dependent upon our experience relative to other entities subject
to the assessment and the ultimate liability is not known at the balance sheet date. While the ultimate amount of the assessment is dependent upon the
experience of all pool participants, we believe we have adequate reserves to cover such assessments.

Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings

Out-of-Network Benefit Proceedings
Michele Cooper, et al. v. Aetna Life Insurance Company, et al. is a purported nationwide class action lawsuit that was filed in the United States
District Court for the District of New Jersey (the “New Jersey Federal Court”) on July 30, 2007 and subsequently amended. The plaintiffs allege that
we violated state law, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act (“RICO”) in connection with various practices related to the payment of claims for services rendered to our members by providers
with whom we do not have a contract (“out-of-network providers”), resulting in increased out-of-pocket payments by our members. The purported
classes together consist of all members in substantially all of our health benefit plans who received services from out-of-network providers from 2001
to date for which we allowed less than the full amount billed by the provider. The plaintiffs seek reimbursement of all unpaid benefits, recalculation
and repayment of deductible and coinsurance amounts, unspecified damages and treble damages, statutory penalties, injunctive and declaratory relief,
plus interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, and seek to disqualify us from acting as a fiduciary of any benefit plan that is subject to ERISA. This case is
similar to other actions pending in the New Jersey Federal Court and elsewhere against us and certain of our competitors. We have requested that the
Multi-District Litigation panel consolidate the Cooper matter with the other out-of-network benefit litigation pending against us. We intend to defend
this case vigorously.

Weintraub, et al. v. Ingenix, et al. is a purported nationwide class action lawsuit that was filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Connecticut on April 29, 2008 and subsequently amended. The plaintiff alleges that we and the other defendants violated federal antitrust laws and
New York state consumer protection laws in connection with the use of information provided by Ingenix, Inc. in paying claims for services rendered
to our members by out-of-network providers, resulting in increased out-of-pocket payments by our members. The purported classes together consist
of all persons who at any time since April 29, 2004, have been members in any of our health insurance plans that pay benefits to members who receive
services from out-of-network providers. The plaintiff seeks actual damages, treble and other punitive damages, and injunctive relief, plus costs and
attorneys’ fees. This case is similar to other actions pending in the New Jersey Federal Court and elsewhere against us and certain of our
competitors. We have requested that the Multi-District Litigation panel consolidate the Weintraub matter with the other out-of-network benefit
litigation pending against us. We intend to defend this case vigorously.

Seney, et al. v. Aetna Health Inc., et al. is a purported nationwide class action lawsuit that was filed in the New Jersey Federal Court on January 28,
2009. The plaintiffs allege that we violated ERISA, RICO and federal antitrust laws in connection with various practices related to the payment of
claims for services rendered to our members by out-of-network providers, including but not limited to the use of data provided by Ingenix,
Inc., resulting in increased out-of-pocket payments by our members. The purported classes together consist of all members in substantially all of our
health benefit plans who received services from out-of-network providers from 2001 to the present for which we allowed less than the full amount
billed by the provider. The plaintiffs seek reimbursement of all unpaid benefits, recalculation and repayment of deductible and coinsurance amounts,
unspecified damages and treble damages, statutory penalties, injunctive and declaratory relief, plus interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, and seek to
disqualify us from acting as a fiduciary of any benefit plan that is subject to ERISA. This case is similar to other actions pending in the New Jersey
Federal Court and elsewhere against us and certain of our competitors. We have notified the Multi-District Litigation panel of this new matter in
connection with our existing request to consolidate the pending out-of-network litigation against us. We intend to defend this case vigorously.
American Medical Association, et al. v. Aetna Health Inc., et al., is a purported nationwide class action lawsuit that was filed in the New Jersey
Federal Court on February 9, 2009. The plaintiffs allege that we violated ERISA, RICO and federal antitrust laws (including by conspiring with
certain of our competitors) in connection with various practices related to the payment of claims for services rendered to our members by out-ofnetwork providers, including but not limited to our use of data provided by Ingenix, Inc., resulting in decreased payments to physicians and other
health care providers. The purported classes together consist of all out-of-network physicians and
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physicians groups in the United States who were entitled to receive payments from us at any time from January 1, 2005 to the present and were paid
less than the amount they billed our members. The plaintiffs seek recalculation and reimbursement of unpaid benefits, unspecified damages and treble
damages, statutory penalties, injunctive and declaratory relief, plus interest, costs and attorneys’ fees, and seek to remove us as a fiduciary of any
benefit plan that is subject to ERISA. We have notified the Multi-District Litigation panel of this new matter in connection with our existing request
to consolidate the pending out-of-network litigation against us. We intend to defend this case vigorously.

On January 15, 2009, Aetna and the New York Attorney General announced an agreement relating to an industry-wide investigation into certain
payment practices with respect to out-of-network providers. The agreement provides that Aetna will contribute $20 million towards the establishment
of an independent database system to provide fee information regarding out-of-network reimbursement rates. When the new database is ready, Aetna
will cease using databases owned by Ingenix and will use the new database for a period of at least five years in connection with out-of-network
reimbursements in those benefit plans that employ a reasonable and customary standard for out-of-network reimbursements. In February 2009, Aetna
agreed with the New York Attorney General and the Texas Attorney General to reimburse college student members for approximately $5 million of
claims relating to care rendered by out-of-network providers.
We also have received subpoenas and/or requests for documents and other information from other attorneys general relating to our out-of-network
benefit payment practices.
It is reasonably possible that others could initiate additional litigation or additional regulatory action against us and/or one or more of our competitors
with respect to benefit payment practices.

Securities Class Action Litigation
Two purported class action lawsuits were pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the “Pennsylvania
Federal Court”) against Aetna and certain of its current or former officers and/or directors. On October 24, 2007, the Southeastern Pennsylvania
Transportation Authority filed suit on behalf of all purchasers of Aetna common stock between October 27, 2005 and April 27, 2006. The second
lawsuit was filed on November 27, 2007, by the Plumbers and Pipefitters Local 51 Pension Fund on behalf of all purchasers of Aetna common stock
between July 28, 2005 and July 27, 2006. On June 3, 2008, plaintiffs in these two lawsuits filed a consolidated complaint in the Pennsylvania Federal
Court on behalf of all purchasers of Aetna common stock between October 27, 2005 and July 27, 2006. The consolidated complaint (the “Securities
Class Action Litigation”) supersedes and replaces the two previous complaints. The plaintiffs allege that Aetna and four of its current or former
officers and/or directors, John W. Rowe, M.D., Ronald A. Williams, Alan M. Bennett and Craig R. Callen (collectively, the “Defendants”), violated
federal securities laws. The plaintiffs allege misrepresentations and omissions regarding, among other things, our medical benefit ratios and health
plan pricing practices, as well as insider trading by Dr. Rowe and Messrs. Bennett and Callen. The plaintiffs seek compensatory damages plus
interest and attorneys’ fees, among other remedies. The Defendants intend to vigorously defend the Securities Class Action Litigation, which is in its
preliminary stages.

Other Litigation and Regulatory Proceedings
We are involved in numerous other lawsuits arising, for the most part, in the ordinary course of our business operations, including employment
litigation and claims of bad faith, medical malpractice, non-compliance with state and federal regulatory regimes, marketing misconduct, failure to
timely or appropriately pay medical and/or group insurance claims, rescission of insurance coverage and other litigation in our Health Care and Group
Insurance businesses. Some of these other lawsuits are or are purported to be class actions. We intend to defend these matters vigorously.

In addition, our current and past business practices are subject to review by, and from time to time we receive subpoenas and other requests for
information from, various state insurance and health care regulatory authorities and attorneys general, the Office of the Inspector General, and other
state and federal authorities, including the investigation by, and subpoenas and requests from, attorneys general described above under “Out-ofNetwork Benefit Proceedings.” There also continues to be heightened review by regulatory authorities of and increased litigation regarding the health
care benefits industry’s business and reporting practices, including utilization
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management, complaint and grievance processing, information privacy, provider network structure (including the use of performance-based
networks), delegated arrangements, pharmacy benefit management practices and claim payment practices (including payments to out-of-network
providers). As a leading national health care benefits organization, we regularly are the subject of such reviews. These reviews may result, and have
resulted, in changes to or clarifications of our business practices, as well as fines, penalties or other sanctions.

We are unable to predict at this time the ultimate outcome of the matters described above, and it is reasonably possible that their outcome could be
material to us.
Other Obligations
We have operating leases for office space and certain computer and other equipment. Rental expenses for these items were $176 million, $153
million and $146 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The future net minimum payments under noncancelable leases for 2009 through 2013
are estimated to be $164 million, $140 million, $85 million, $55 million and $36 million, respectively.

We also have funding obligations relating to equity limited partnership investments and commercial mortgage loans. The funding requirements for
equity limited partnership investments and commercial mortgage loans for 2009 through 2013 are estimated to be $92 million, $55 million, $48
million, $29 million and $20 million, respectively.

19.

Segment Information
Summarized financial information of our segment operations in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

(Millions)

Health

Group

Large Case

Corporate

Care

Insurance

Pensions

Interest

Total
Company

2008
Revenue from external customers (1)
Net investment income
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Income taxes (benefits)

$

28,709.9

$

341.3

$

240.4

-

-

1,895.4
18,754.5

205.2
328.3

$

140.0

4,435.0

-

$

-

236.4

-

6.9
(53.0)

371.4
924.5

Operating earnings (loss) (2)
Segment assets

1,781.5

-

1.3

(82.7)

39.2
12,663.0

(153.7)

30,696.6
910.0
236.4
378.3
790.1

1,920.9
35,852.5

-

2007
Revenue from external customers (1)
Net investment income
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Income taxes (benefits)

$

Operating earnings (loss) (2)
Segment assets

24,431.4
370.9

$

1,875.1

$

303.0

216.9
476.0

$

-

$

180.6

-

-

314.6
959.2

6.9
36.8

-

32.6

(63.2)

1,770.9
18,223.4

145.5
5,469.7

38.1
27,031.6

(117.4)

-

26,523.4
1,149.9
180.6
321.5
965.4

1,837.1
50,724.7

-

2006
Revenue from external customers (1)
Net investment income
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Income taxes (benefits)
Operating earnings (loss) (2)
Segment assets
(1)
(2)

$

21,897.2

$

334.2

1,846.5
294.1

-

-

256.9
847.6

13.5
48.6

1,572.7
15,904.5

5,327.4

132.7

$

205.1
536.4
-

$

-

148.3
-

56.7

(51.9)

38.9
26,394.5

(96.4)
-

$

23,948.8
1,164.7
148.3
270.4
901.0

1,647.9
47,626.4

Revenue from the federal government was ten percent or more of our total revenue from external customers in 2008, 2007 and 2006. We earned $6.2 billion, $3.8 billion
and $3.0 billion of revenue from this customer in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Health Care and Group Insurance segments.
Operating earnings (loss) excludes net realized capital gains or losses and the other items described in the reconciliation on page 80.
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A reconciliation of operating earnings to income from continuing operations in our statements of income in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:
(Millions)

$

Operating earnings
Net realized capital (losses) gains, net of tax

Reduction of reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products

(1)

(1)

Contribution for the establishment of an out-of-network pricing database

$

(1)

2007
1,837.1

$

(47.9)

28.5

Severance and facility charge (1)
Allowance on reinsurance recoverable

2008
1,920.9
(482.3)

2006
1,647.9
24.1

41.8

75.0

(35.6)

-

-

(27.4)

-

-

(20.0)

-

-

(1)

-

-

(47.1)

Debt refinancing charge (1)

-

-

(8.1)

Acquisition-related software charge (1)

-

-

Physician class action settlement insurance-related charge

$

Income from continuing operations
(1)

1,384.1

$

1,831.0

(6.2)

$

1,685.6

The following other items are excluded from operating earnings because we believe they neither relate to the ordinary course of our business nor reflect our underlying
business performance:
· We reduced the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products by $28.5 million ($43.8 million pretax), $41.8 million ($64.3 million pretax) and
$75.0 million ($115.4 million pretax) in 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Refer to Note 20 beginning on page 81 for additional information on the reduction of the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products.
· In 2008, we recorded a severance and facility charge of $35.6 million ($54.7 million pretax) related to actions taken.
· As a result of the liquidation proceedings of Lehman Re, a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., we recorded an allowance against our reinsurance
recoverable from Lehman Re of $27.4 million ($42.2 million pretax) in 2008. This reinsurance is on a closed book of paid-up group whole life insurance
business.
· As a result of our agreement with the New York Attorney General to discontinue the use of Ingenix databases in the future, we committed to contribute $20.0
million to a non-profit organization to help create a new independent database for determining out-of-network reimbursement rates.
· As a result of a trial court’s ruling in 2006, we concluded that a $72.4 million pretax receivable from third party insurers related to certain litigation we settled in
2003 was no longer probable of collection for accounting purposes. As a result, we wrote-off this receivable in 2006. Refer to Note 18 beginning on page 76.

·

·

In connection with the issuance of $2.0 billion of our senior notes in 2006, we redeemed all $700 million of our 8.5% senior notes due 2041. In connection with this
redemption, we wrote-off debt issuance costs associated with the 8.5%
senior notes due 2041 and recognized the deferred gain from the interest rate swaps that had hedged the 8.5% senior notes due 2041 (in May 2005, we sold these
interest rate swaps; the resulting gain from which was to be amortized over the remaining life of the 8.5% senior notes due 2041). As a result of the foregoing,
we recorded an $8.1 million ($12.4 million pretax) net charge in 2006.
As a result of the acquisition of Broadspire Disability in 2006, we acquired certain software which eliminated the need for similar software that we had been
developing internally. As a result, we ceased our own software development and
impaired amounts previously capitalized, resulting in a $6.2 million ($8.3 million pretax) charge to net income, reflected in general and administrative expenses in

2006.

Revenues from external customers by product in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

(Millions)
Health care premiums
Health care fees and other revenue

$

Group life
Group disability
Group long-term care

(1)

$

630.0

86.3
205.2

Large case pensions
Total revenue from external customers

2008
25,507.3
3,202.6
1,065.2

(1)

$

30,696.6

2007
21,500.1
2,931.3
1,204.2
577.1
93.8

$

216.9

$

26,523.4

$

2006
19,153.5
2,743.7
1,260.4
483.3
102.8
205.1

23,948.8

All within the United States, except approximately $ 145 million, $ 7 million and $ 4 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which were derived from foreign

customers.
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The following is a reconciliation of reportable segment revenues to total revenues included in our statements of income in 2008, 2007 and 2006:
(Millions)

$

Revenue from external customers
Net investment income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Total revenue

$

2008
30,696.6
910.0
(655.9)
30,950.7

$

2007
26,523.4
1,149.9

$

27,599.6

$

2006
23,948.8
1,164.7

$

25,145.7

32.2

(73.7)

Long-lived assets, principally within the U.S., were $467 million and $364 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
20.

Discontinued Products

Prior to 1993, we sold single-premium annuities (“SPAs”) and guaranteed investment contracts (“GICs”), primarily to employer sponsored
pension plans. In 1993, we discontinued selling these products, and now we refer to these products as discontinued products.

We discontinued selling these products because they were generating losses for us and we projected that they would continue to generate future
losses over their life (which is greater than 30 years), so we established a reserve for anticipated future losses at the time of discontinuance. This
reserve represents the present value (at the risk-free rate of return at the time of discontinuance, consistent with the duration of the liabilities) of the
difference between the expected cash flows from the assets supporting these products and the cash flows expected to be required to meet the
obligations of the outstanding contracts. Because we projected anticipated cash shortfalls in our discontinued products, at the time of
discontinuance, we established a receivable from Large Case Pensions' continuing products (which is eliminated in consolidation).
Key assumptions in setting this reserve include future investment results, payments to retirees, mortality and retirement rates and the cost of asset
management and customer service. In 1997, we began the use of a bond default assumption to reflect historical default experience. In 1995, we
modified the mortality tables used to reflect a more up-to-date 1994 Uninsured Pensioner’s Mortality table. Other than these changes, since 1993,
there have been no significant changes to the assumptions underlying the reserve.
We review the adequacy of this reserve quarterly based on actual experience. As long as our expectation of future losses remains consistent with
prior projections, the results of the discontinued products are applied to the reserve and do not affect net income. However, if actual or expected
future losses are greater than we currently estimate, we may have to increase the reserve, which could adversely impact net income. If actual or
expected future losses are less than we currently estimate, we may have to decrease the reserve, which could favorably impact net income. The
reserve for anticipated future losses is included in future policy benefits on our balance sheets.

As noted above, we review the adequacy of the reserve quarterly and as a result, we released $44 million, $64 million and $115 million in 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The 2008 reserve reduction was primarily due to favorable mortality and retirement experience compared to
assumptions we previously made in estimating the reserve. The 2007 and 2006 reserve reductions were primarily due to favorable investment
performance and favorable mortality and retirement experience compared to assumptions we previously made in estimating the reserve. The current
reserve reflects management’s best estimate of anticipated future losses.

The activity in the reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products in 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows (pretax):
(Millions)

Reserve, beginning of period

$

Operating (loss) income
Net realized capital (losses) gains
Reserve reduction
Reserve, end of period

$
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2008
1,052.3
(93.4)
(124.7)
(43.8)
790.4

2007
$ 1,061.1
28.5
27.0
(64.3)
$ 1,052.3

2006
$ 1,052.2
85.7
38.6
(115.4)
$ 1,061.1

During 2008, our discontinued products reflected an operating loss and net realized capital losses, both attributed to the unfavorable investment
conditions that existed in the latter half of 2008. The operating loss in 2008 reflects lower net investment income than we experienced in 2007,
primarily related to alternative investments. Net realized capital losses in 2008 are comprised substantially of OTTI of debt securities, a majority of
which are yield-related and were caused by the widening of credit spreads relative to the interest rates on U.S. Treasury securities in
2008. Accounting guidance requires us to recognize OTTI losses on these securities in order to maintain our flexibility in managing this portfolio;
however, these securities continue to perform and are generating investment income to support the cash flows of the discontinued products. We have
evaluated the operating losses and yield-related OTTI in 2008 against our expectations of future cash flows assumed in estimating the reserve and do
not believe an adjustment to the reserve is required at December 31, 2008.

The anticipated run-off of the discontinued products reserve balance at December 31, 2008 (assuming that assets are held until maturity and that the
reserve run-off is proportional to the liability run-off) is as follows:
(Millions)

$

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter

36.7
36.6
36.3

35.9
35.3
609.6

Assets and liabilities supporting discontinued products at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows: (1)
2008

(Millions)

Assets:
Debt and equity securities available-for-sale
Mortgage loans
Other investments
Total investments
Other assets
Collateral received under securities loan agreements
Current and deferred income taxes
Receivable from continuing products

$ 2,382.4
585.8

2007

$

3,635.1

3,025.2
554.0
605.1
4,184.3

133.4
150.7
82.2

142.6
309.6
121.4

666.9

(2)

436.0

Total assets

437.9

$ 4,437.4

$

5,195.8

$ 3,446.4

$

3,614.5

Liabilities:

Future policy benefits
Policyholders' funds
Reserve for anticipated future losses on discontinued products
Collateral payable under securities loan agreements
Other liabilities (3)

16.7
790.4
150.7

1,052.3

21.0

33.2
4,437.4

198.4
5,195.8

309.6

$
$
Total liabilities
(1)
Assets supporting the discontinued products are distinguished from assets supporting continuing products.
(2)
The receivable from continuing products is eliminated in consolidation.
(3)
Net unrealized capital losses on debt securities available-for-sale are included above in other liabilities and are not reflected in consolidated shareholders’ equity.

The discontinued products investment portfolio has changed since inception. Mortgage loans have decreased from $5.4 billion (37% of the
investment portfolio) at December 31, 1993 to $586 million (16% of the investment portfolio) at December 31, 2008. This was a result of
maturities, prepayments and the securitization and sale of commercial mortgages. Also, real estate decreased from $.5 billion (4% of the investment
portfolio) at December 31, 1993 to $67 million (2% of the investment portfolio) at December 31, 2008, primarily as a result of sales. The resulting
proceeds were primarily reinvested in debt and equity securities. Over time, the then existing mortgage loan and real estate portfolios and the
reinvested proceeds have resulted in greater investment returns than we originally assumed in 1993.
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At December 31, 2008, the expected run-off of the SPA and GIC liabilities, including future interest, were as follows:
(Millions)

$

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereafter

466.9
449.1
433.7
417.7
406.2

5,532.3

The expected run-off of the SPA and GIC liabilities can vary from actual due to several factors, including, among other things, contract holders
redeeming their contracts prior to contract maturity or additional amounts received from existing contracts. The liability expected at December 31,
1993 and actual liability balances at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 for the GIC and SPA liabilities were as follows:
Actual

Expected
(Millions)

$

2006
2007
2008

GIC
28.2
26.4
20.4

SPA

$

3,563.8
3,414.7
3,261.2

$

GIC
23.4
21.0
16.7

SPA

$

3,771.1
3,614.5
3,446.4

The GIC balances were lower than expected in each period because several contract holders redeemed their contracts prior to contract maturity. The
SPA balances in each period were higher than expected because of additional amounts received under existing contracts.
Distributions on SPA and GIC liabilities in 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:
(Millions)

$

Scheduled contract maturities, settlements and benefit payments
Participant-directed withdrawals

2008
454.3
.1

$

2007
468.0
.3

$

2006
481.0
.4

Cash required to fund these distributions was provided by earnings and scheduled payments on, and sales of, invested assets.

21.

Discontinued Operations

In 2004, the IRS completed the audit of our former parent company’s 1984 through 2000 (prior to December 13, 2000) tax returns and our 2000
(subsequent to December 13, 2000) and 2001 tax returns. On July 8, 2004, we were notified that the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation
approved a tax refund of approximately $740 million, including interest, relating to businesses that our former parent company sold in the
1990s. Also in 2004, we filed for, and were approved for, an additional $35 million tax refund related to other businesses that our former parent
company sold. The tax refunds were recorded as income from discontinued operations in 2004. As a result of the resolution of these audits, we
recorded favorable adjustments of approximately $255 million to existing tax liabilities in 2004 as income from discontinued operations, for a total of
$1.03 billion of income from discontinued operations in 2004. We received approximately $666 million of the tax refunds during 2004 and $69
million in 2005. We received the final approximately $50 million payment of these refunds in 2006, which resulted in an additional $16 million of
income from discontinued operations in 2006.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (“ICOFR”) for the Company. ICOFR
is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Our ICOFR process includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, ICOFR may not prevent or detect misstatements. Further, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers, management assessed
the effectiveness of our ICOFR at December 31, 2008. In making this assessment, management used the framework set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in “ Internal Control – Integrated Framework .” Based on this assessment, management
concluded that our ICOFR was effective at December 31, 2008. Our ICOFR as well as our consolidated financial statements have been audited by
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included on page 85.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements
Management is responsible for our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. Management believes the
consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows as of and for the periods presented in this report.
The financial statements are the product of a number of processes that include the gathering of financial data developed from the records of our dayto-day business transactions. Informed judgments and estimates are used for those transactions not yet complete or for which the ultimate effects
cannot be measured precisely. We emphasize the selection and training of personnel who are qualified to perform these functions. In addition, our
personnel are subject to rigorous standards of ethical conduct that are widely communicated throughout the organization.
The Audit Committee of Aetna’s Board of Directors engages KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, to audit our consolidated
financial statements and express their opinion thereon. Members of that firm also have the right of full access to each member of management in
conducting their audits. The report of KPMG LLP on their audit of our consolidated financial statements appears on page 85.
Audit Committee Oversight
The Audit Committee of Aetna’s Board of Directors is comprised solely of independent directors. The Audit Committee meets regularly with
management, our internal auditors and KPMG LLP to oversee and monitor the work of each and to inquire of each as to their assessment of the
performance of the others in their work relating to our consolidated financial statements and ICOFR. Both KPMG LLP and our internal auditors
have, at all times, the right of full access to the Audit Committee, without management present, to discuss any matter they believe should be brought to
the attention of the Audit Committee.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Aetna Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Aetna Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2008. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Hartford, Connecticut
February 27, 2009
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Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
(Millions, except per share and common stock data)

2008
Total revenue

$

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

Net income per share - basic

(1)

Net income per share - diluted

$
$
$

(1)

7,738.7

$

660.5
(228.9)
431.6

$

.87

$

$

-

$

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
(1)

Net income per share - diluted

$
$
$

(1)

6,700.0
663.9
(229.3)
434.6

.84
.81

735.9
(255.4)
480.5
1.00

$
$
$
$

$

-

$

47.49
39.59

$
$

7,624.6
422.7
(145.4)
277.3

.59

7,759.3

$

355.1

$

(160.4)
194.7

$

.42

$

6,961.3

$
$

$

688.6

$

759.3
(262.6)
496.7

(237.3)

$

451.3

$

$

.88

$

.42

.04
44.11
34.41

6,793.9

.85

$

.58

.97

59.19
42.09

2007
Total revenue

7,828.1

Fourth

Third

Second

.85
$

Dividends declared per share
Common stock prices, high
Common stock prices, low

Net income per share - basic

First

.98

-

37.43
17.68

7,144.4
684.6
(236.2)

$

448.4

$

.95

.90

.87

$
$
$
.04 $
Dividends declared per share
46.32
53.27
54.27
59.76
Common stock prices, high
40.89
44.19
46.95
52.85
Common stock prices, low
(1)
Calculation of net income per share is based on weighted average shares outstanding during each quarter and, accordingly, the sum may not equal the total for the year.

Corporate Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on our common stock (assuming reinvestment of dividends) with the
cumulative total return on the published Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (“S&P 500”) and the cumulative total return on the published Morgan
Stanley Healthcare Payors Index (“MSHPI”) from December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2008. The graph assumes a $100 investment in
shares of our common stock on December 31, 2003.

(1)

At December 31, 2008, the companies included in the MSHPI were: Aetna Inc., Amerigroup Corporation, Centene Corporation, CIGNA Corporation, Coventry
Health Care, Inc., Health Net, Inc., Humana Inc., Molina Healthcare, Inc., UnitedHealth Group Incorporated, Wellcare Health Plans Inc. and Wellpoint, Inc.

Shareholder returns over the period shown on the corporate performance graph should not be considered indicative of future shareholder returns.
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Exhibit 14.1
Message from Ron Williams

Aetna's success as an industry leader will be built on our ability to fulfill our commitments and to abide by a consistent set of values and standards.
The Code of Conduct expresses the standards of integrity and business practice that support Aetna's own unique set of values, known as The Aetna
Way. The Code also helps guide us in complying with the laws, regulations and ethical standards that govern our business practices.

I expect every Aetna employee, officer and director to understand and follow our Code of Conduct for several reasons. First, it's what our customers
expect from us. Second, we have made a commitment to live by our values. And finally, if we follow these guidelines in all aspects of our business,
we will be operating with the highest principles of fair and ethical business practices.
The Code of Conduct cannot cover every situation. When choices and decisions must be made, it will require sound judgment. When in doubt, ask
for help and use The Aetna Way and our Ethical Decision-Making Framework as guides to make the right choices and take the right actions in
conducting Aetna business. If you ever have reason to believe that a legal or ethical violation has occurred, you must report it to your manager,
compliance contact, the Law Department or by using the Aetna AlertLine®. Our policies forbid any form of retaliation against you for fulfilling this
obligation.
Compliance with the Code of Conduct, other company policies, and the laws and regulations applicable to our businesses must be a priority for each
of us. Our officers, directors and senior managers have the added responsibility of promoting the principles in this Code - but I expect all of us to
foster a culture in which ethical conduct is recognized and valued. Anything less is unacceptable.

Ronald A. Williams
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Introduction
All employees, officers and directors of Aetna must perform their Aetna responsibilities in compliance with this Code of Conduct, applicable
laws and company policies. If you become aware of a compliance violation related to any of these, or a business conduct or integrity
problem, you must report it right away. If you are ever in doubt about the right thing to do in conducting Aetna business, ask for help.

For over 150 years, Aetna has had a reputation for integrity and reliability. Central to this reputation is the way in which we conduct business. Aetna
employees, officers and directors are expected to perform their Aetna duties in line with the standards of ethics and business practices embodied
within this Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct guides our day-to-day actions and provides us with a set of unifying principles that help us
maintain our high standards of business conduct and integrity.
Required Business Conduct and Integrity training and acknowledgment
To help you understand our Code of Conduct and our expected standards of business conduct and integrity, every new employee, officer and director
must take Business Conduct and Integrity training. Also, you must read this Code. When you are done, you must complete an acknowledgment form
(available on our intranet site or from Aetna Compliance) to:

· Confirm that you have read and do understand the Code, that you are complying with the Code and other key Aetna policies, and that you will
continue to comply.

· Disclose possible conflicts of interest and raise concerns you may have about possible conflicts or Code violations.
Every year you are affiliated with Aetna, you must complete:

· Business Conduct and Integrity training, and
· Your acknowledgment form, including updating your disclosure of possible conflicts of interest or other issues as needed.
We know that things change. If you have a new situation that may cause a real or apparent conflict of interest, discuss it with your manager or
compliance officer right away. If you are a director, discuss it with the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel. Also, you may need to update your
disclosure on your acknowledgment form.

Raising concerns and seeking advice
If you are aware of any compliance violation or business conduct and integrity problem, or if you suspect one, you must report it right away. Ask for
help if you don't know what to do. We have resources, including our Ethical Decision-Making Framework, that can help you and Aetna:

· Do the right thing.
· Work in a way that preserves our reputation.
If you are a director, you can raise issues and get guidance from Aetna's Corporate Secretary or General Counsel. If you are an employee or officer,
turn to your manager. His or her business experience may help you make the right choice. For workplace and employment issues, someone in human
resources may be the right person to answer your questions. It is always wise to see your compliance officer or internal legal counsel to raise concerns
or get help with issues related to business conduct, integrity or compliance.
You can also ask for help or report a violation or problem by calling the Aetna AlertLine ® toll free at 1-888-891-8910 in the U.S.* It is open around
the clock, every day of the year and you can call anonymously. Or, you can write to Corporate Compliance at P.O. Box 370205, West Hartford, CT
06137-0205 USA. Our contracted providers and suppliers can use these same avenues to report possible violations or business conduct and integrity
concerns.
The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in consultation with the Chief Compliance Officer,
Corporate Secretary or General Counsel, will review any complaints or concerns about our accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing
matters.

*Outside of the U.S., dial the AT&T Direct access code for the country you are calling from followed by 888-891-8910. AT&T Direct access
codes can be found at http://www.usa.att.com/traveler/index.jsp or by contacting your local operator .
Confidentiality and non-retaliation policy
We will do our best to guard your privacy to the extent possible if you report a violation, raise a concern or are involved in a complaint or
investigation.

Aetna prohibits retaliating against someone because he or she in good faith:

· Makes a complaint or reports a violation.
· Cooperates or helps with an investigation.
· Gives information about a breach of federal or state law or Aetna policy.
This is true whether the person raises the concern to, or cooperates with, Aetna or any law enforcement or other government agency. If a violation is
found, appropriate corrective actions will be taken, including disciplining those involved, as warranted. For more information on discipline, see the
Disciplinary action section of this Introduction.

If you report concerns about fraud, waste or abuse related to potential false or fraudulent claims for payment from the government, you may also have
the right to employment protections under the federal False Claims Act and similar state or other applicable local laws. See your compliance officer or
internal legal counsel for more information on:

· These laws and protections.
· Aetna policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste and abuse in government health care programs.

Code administration and waiver

You can see the Code of Conduct on our public website at http://www.aetna.com/governance/code.html. Any changes to this Code
will be put on our public website within four business days after the change is made.

· Any waiver or administration of this Code for our directors can only be implemented by the Aetna Board of Directors or the Board's
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

· Any waiver of this Code for executive officers can only be given by the Aetna Board of Directors or by the Board's Audit Committee.
· Any waiver of this Code for other officers or employees can only be granted by the Chairman.
· Any waiver of this Code for directors, executive officers, the Chief Financial Officer, the Corporate Controller, or people with similar
functions will be put on our public website within four business days after the waiver is granted.

Disciplinary action
If you are an employee or officer, you may be disciplined, including loss of your Aetna job, if you:

· Do not follow this Code or other Aetna policies.
· Break any laws or regulations that apply to Aetna.
· Tell an employee to break the Code, an Aetna policy, a law or a regulation.
· Do not share information or provide false information about a violation of the Code, a law or a regulation.
· Retaliate against another employee who reports a suspected violation of the Code, a law or a regulation, or who cooperates or helps with
an investigation of a possible violation.

If you manage a person who commits a violation and the investigation shows that you ignored the Code or a law or regulation, you also may be
disciplined, including loss of your Aetna job. See the Workplace Policies section in AccessHR for more information.

Statement 1: Conflicts of interest

Employees, officers and directors must avoid real or apparent conflicts of interest. You must act in a way that protects Aetna's reputation.
Employee and officer affiliations and interests
You may not have ownership interests or participate in outside activities that create a conflict of interest or interfere with your ability to do your job.
You must report to your manager and compliance officer for review and approval any of the following types of proposed or existing affiliations or
ownership interests involving you or a family member or close friend who lives in your home:

· A position (as employee, officer, director, consultant or agent) with any business, nonprofit organization or government entity that is an
Aetna competitor, customer, provider or supplier, or for other reasons may lead to a conflict of interest.

· The acquisition of a significant ownership interest in any business. A “significant ownership interest” is one-tenth of one percent or more of
any business, including a partnership.

You must not be an officer, director or advisor of, or hold a similar position with, a for-profit business without first getting approval from the
Chairman or someone appointed by the Chairman, in consultation with Compliance. Contact your compliance officer if you need the Chairman's
approval.
It may not always be clear when you have a conflict of interest. For example, a conflict of interest may arise if you or a member of your household
has any affiliation with or ownership interest in a competitor, customer, provider, supplier or any company that does business with Aetna or works
with a nonprofit or political organization with interests that intersect with Aetna's businesses or with our position on a public policy. Your compliance
officer can help if you have questions. Be sure to report possible conflicts to your manager and compliance officer. For guidance on when to report
family or personal relationships with other Aetna employees, see Statement 7 .

Q: My wife is an employee benefits manager for an Aetna customer. I am a customer service representative at Aetna. Is this a conflict of
interest?
A: It could be. You must report the relationship to your manager and compliance officer. To avoid the appearance of a conflict, you should not be
involved in matters related to your wife's company. You should take care not to disclose or discuss any member or other confidential information
with your wife.
Q: I am a new employee. I own a consulting business that has worked with Aetna for years. I was hired by Aetna to do similar work.
Can my consulting company still work with Aetna if my sister runs the business?
A: As long as you own the consulting business, it should not continue to work with Aetna while you are an employee here. Even if your sister
runs the company, there is an overlap in the business interests of your company and your work for Aetna. You should disclose your ownership of
this business and its relationship with Aetna on the online Business Conduct and Integrity acknowledgement form.

Q: I am a claims processor. I have a job offer to help a health care provider keep records on weekends. Is this a conflict of interest?
A: Since you process claims for Aetna and your weekend work may include submitting claims or handling claim files, there is a good chance of
a real or apparent conflict of interest. You must report the job offer to your manager and compliance officer to see if it will be OK to accept it.

Director affiliations and interests
A director may have a conflict of interest if:

· You take an action or have an interest that makes it hard to perform your duties for Aetna objectively and effectively.
· You or a family member receives improper personal benefits because of your Aetna Board position.
To avoid director conflicts of interest, Aetna does not allow:

· Outside directors to have a direct economic relationship with Aetna unless it is approved by the Aetna Board of Directors.
· Aetna loans to directors or their family members.
· Aetna guarantees of obligations of directors or their family members.
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board must review the following situations for possible conflicts:

· Any proposed affiliation with a for-profit organization.
· Any proposed transaction involving Aetna or an Aetna subsidiary where a director has a direct economic or beneficial interest.
Conflicts of interest are not always clear. Directors should report possible conflicts to, and are encouraged generally to consult with, the Corporate
Secretary or General Counsel. They will consult with the Chairman of the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, or other
members of the Board of Directors, as appropriate.
Disclosure to customers
Working with brokers and other producers may lead to situations that could create real or apparent conflicts of interest. We believe it is best for our
customers, producers and Aetna when our customers understand our financial arrangements with producers. You must follow Aetna's rules for
disclosing relationships with producers. Refer to the Policy on Producer Compensation and ask your compliance officer or internal legal counsel if
you have questions.

Giving or accepting gifts
It is important that gifts or promotional items exchanged in the normal course of business be appropriate. You should generally neither give nor receive
expensive gifts or other benefits. Never accept or give gifts of cash or cash equivalents (such as gift certificates). You may accept or give
occasional, inexpensive gifts or promotional items (such as t-shirts, mugs, and other logo items) if doing so is legal and the gift is neither intended
nor likely to be perceived by others as an attempt to influence business decisions. Any gifts given must be accurately disclosed in the appropriate
expense report. It could be unlawful to offer any gift, travel expense, entertainment or meal, regardless of the cost, to a person who works for a
federal, state or local government entity. See Statement 6 of this Code for more detail.

If you are offered or receive an expensive or inappropriate gift, politely refuse by explaining Aetna's policy on accepting gifts. Ask your compliance
officer for help if you are unsure about a gift offered to you.
Q: A supplier sent me a gift basket with fruit and cookies to celebrate the end of a project. May I keep it?
A: This type of gift is generally acceptable as long as it does not contain expensive or inappropriate items or cash equivalents, and it is shared
with others in your office, if possible.
Q: A supplier offered me tickets to a Super Bowl game. May I accept the tickets?
A: No. Whether the tickets were offered for your personal use or whether they were offered in conjunction with a meeting to discuss Aetna
business, this type of offer is expensive and may be viewed by others as an attempt to influence your business decisions. Consult with your
compliance officer to determine whether it would be OK for you to pay the supplier the fair market value for the tickets.

Travel, entertainment and honorarium
Aetna pays for your business travel costs as permitted by Aetna's Travel and Entertainment Reimbursement Policy. These costs generally should not
be paid for by others. You may accept meals or entertainment included for all attendees during conferences and similar meetings. You may also
occasionally accept meals or entertainment offered in conjunction with meetings to discuss Aetna business. Do not accept such offers if they are
lavish or expensive or if they are likely to be perceived by others as an attempt to influence your business decisions. Consult with your compliance
officer if you have questions.
Aetna will pay for business related entertainment provided to others if permitted by law and Aetna's Travel and Expense Reimbursement Policy. It
could be unlawful to offer any travel expense, entertainment or meal, regardless of the cost, to a person who works for a federal, state or local
government entity. See Statement 6 of this Code for more detail.

You may not be paid (often referred to as an “honorarium”) by others for participating in activities, professional forums or surveys that are related to
Aetna or our business interests. If you are on a professional committee or make a platform speech, you generally may accept the event sponsor's offer
to pay reasonable travel costs as long as other committee members or speakers who are not Aetna employees are treated equally.
Q: A supplier has offered to pay for my airfare and hotel costs for an upcoming conference. The same offer has been made to other
attendees, but I will not be a speaker at the conference. May I accept this offer?
A: Since you are not speaking at the conference, Aetna should pay for your hotel and travel costs.

Q: I have been offered an honorarium of $1,500 to speak at an upcoming conference. The conference sponsor also offered to pay for my
travel and hotel expenses. The same offers have been made to all the speakers. May I accept these offers?
A: You may accept the offer of travel and hotel expenses, but you may not accept the honorarium. However, you may suggest that the
conference sponsor donate the money in the sponsor's name to a charitable organization like those supported by the Aetna Foundation.

Discounts and preferential treatment
You must not accept a discount or preferential treatment that you know is offered to you because of your position at Aetna, except for discounts that
are offered to all Aetna employees. If you use an Aetna supplier or contractor for personal purposes, you must pay full market value for the services
and materials.
Q: I was offered a discount on catering services for my family party by a company that I use to arrange Aetna events. May I accept the
discount?
A: Yes, but only if the discount is approved by Aetna and available to all Aetna employees. Other “personal” discounts that are offered to you
because of your position with Aetna are considered gifts and must be turned down. Talk to your manager or compliance officer if you need help
on a specific case.

Loans and guarantees of obligations
Loans to, or guarantees of obligations of, executive officers and their families are prohibited. Loans to, or guarantees of obligations of, other officers
and employees may create conflicts of interest. They must be reviewed and approved in advance by the Chairman or someone appointed by the
Chairman.

Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: your manager, compliance officer or internal legal counsel. For directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 2: Record keeping and use of Aetna property and resources
All record keeping and use of Aetna property must be legal and proper.

We are required to submit many documents and reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission and other regulators. These materials and any
other Aetna public communications must include disclosure that is full, fair, accurate, timely and easy to understand.

You generally must use Aetna property and resources only for Aetna business. This includes the information in our computing and communications
systems, such as e-mail, Internet and business applications. Some departments may permit incidental personal use of Aetna computers or other office
equipment. If you are unclear on your department policy, you should ask your manager. See Statement 4 for guidance on protecting information; see
below for additional guidelines on use of Aetna resources.

If you suspect improper record keeping, or if you think Aetna property or resources are being misused, contact your:

· Manager,
· Compliance officer,
· Internal legal counsel,
· Controller, or
· Investigative Services.
Q: Can I use my Aetna computer or phone to plan a vacation?
A: Some areas do not allow the personal use of Aetna computers or phones. But many areas allow incidental personal use as long as it is not
excessive, inappropriate or abusive. You must not use Aetna computers or office equipment for inappropriate things like gambling or accessing
inappropriate websites or chat rooms. Ask your manager if you are not clear on your department policy.
Record keeping and accounting controls
You must keep books, records and accounts in a way that shows a fair and accurate accounting of all business transactions and use of assets. You
must show them in reasonable detail.

Falsifying an Aetna company record is not allowed. Off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements and obligations must not be executed, and
unrecorded funds or assets must not be maintained unless permitted by applicable law or regulation. If permitted, such transactions, arrangements,
obligations and accounts, if material, must be disclosed in appropriate reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Officers and managers must build and keep an internal accounting system with controls that:

· Prevent unauthorized, unrecorded or inaccurately recorded transactions.
· Let financial statements be prepared that are based on generally accepted accounting principles.
Managers must make sure that third parties who create or update Aetna records follow the same rules, where appropriate.

Corporate opportunities and resources
You must not:

· Take for yourself a business opportunity that you discover using Aetna property, information or your Aetna position.
· Use Aetna property, information, resources or Aetna position for your own personal gain.
· Compete with Aetna.
· Take or keep Aetna property, resources or confidential information once you leave or are no longer affiliated with Aetna.
Q: My department allows incidental personal use of Aetna computers and the Internet. Does that mean I can use Aetna e-mail to
communicate with customers of my personal real estate business?
A: No, Aetna property and resources should not be used for personal gain such as your personal real estate business.

Bribes and other illegal payments
You must not make or approve:

· Bribes.
· Payment for illegal activity.
· Use of Aetna property or resources in a way that creates a conflict of interest or is against the law. See Statement 1 for guidance on giving
gifts.

Foreign payments
You must comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. It makes it illegal for U.S. companies to win, retain or direct business by offering,
paying or approving payments to foreign government workers, political parties and their officials, and political candidates. In many cases, the Act also
applies to foreign subsidiaries of U.S. companies.

Payments for goods or services
Payments you make on Aetna's behalf to a supplier, consultant, broker or other party must be made for identifiable goods and services only and must
be appropriate in relation to the goods or services provided.
Monitoring
Aetna may monitor or inspect information systems, e-mail, Internet use, personal computer files, or anything kept in Aetna furniture or on company
property.

Aetna may do this at any time for any company purpose including to stop or find improper record keeping; improper use of Aetna property or
resources; or violations of the law, Code of Conduct, or other company policies.

Your Aetna Contacts
For employees and officers: your manager, compliance officer, internal legal counsel, controller, or Investigative Services. For directors: the
Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 3: Fraud, dishonesty and criminal conduct

Aetna's reputation and continued success depend on all of us doing business honestly and in compliance with applicable laws, regulations
and ethics rules. Fraud, dishonesty and criminal conduct by anyone doing work for, or business with, Aetna is not allowed.
Conduct that is not allowed includes:

· Stealing employee or Aetna property.
· Misusing an Aetna computer, telephone, mail or other resource.
· Making false records or reports, including signing another person's name or altering an Aetna document without your manager's approval.
Follow these guidelines if you see or suspect fraud, dishonesty or criminal conduct:

· Immediately report the situation to Investigative Services, internal legal counsel, or your compliance officer.
· Do not talk about it with anyone except those authorized to investigate the matter.
· Do not discipline an employee or officer until you:
- talk to Investigative Services, and
- are cleared to do so by your compliance officer or internal legal counsel, in consultation with Employee Relations.
· Do not promise for any reason not to report the conduct to law enforcement.
· Do not try to talk anyone out of reporting real or suspected illegal activity or improper conduct to any law enforcement or government
agency.

· Do not destroy, change, falsify or hide evidence of any activity that violates this Code of Conduct. You must not even attempt to do this.
· Do not retaliate against anyone because he or she in good faith:
- reports a possible violation of law, regulation or Aetna policy,
- helps Aetna or a government agency investigate a psossible violation, or
- files or participates in a proceeding to address a possible violation.

· You must cooperate and be truthful during all Aetna investigations.
· If law enforcement or another government agency contacts you about a possible violation, immediately report the contact to Investigative
Services, internal legal counsel or your compliance officer.
Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: Investigative Services, internal legal counsel or your compliance officer. For directors: the Corporate Secretary or
General Counsel.

Statement 4: Protecting member and other confidential information

You must keep member information safe from access, use or disclosure that is not appropriate. You must treat confidential information
about Aetna, our employees and those who do business with us the same way.
Aetna values the trust that is placed in us by:

· Members,
· Plan sponsors,
· Doctors and other providers,
· Brokers,
· Consultants,
· Suppliers,
· Shareholders,
· and others who do business with us.
To keep that trust, we must keep safe all member information and all other confidential information. We must also comply with the federal, state and
local privacy and security laws that apply to Aetna. Each of us must treat this information with care to protect it from unapproved or inappropriate
access, use or disclosure. You must follow Aetna's privacy and information security rules including the guidelines set out below. If you do not do
this, you could face discipline that may include the loss of your job.

Member information:

· A member's name, address, date of birth, I.D., gender, Social Security number and other nonpublic personal information.
· Financial, health or other information about the member that is not public. Health information is information that identifies the member and
relates to the member's medical history.

Proprietary information:

· Nonpublic information that is created or used in support of Aetna business or the business of another company. This information is owned
by Aetna or the other company.

Nonpublic information:

· Information that is not known by or available to the public. Examples include information about:
- members, employees, customers, suppliers, providers and competitors.
- Aetna business strategies or processes.
- pending contracts.
- unannounced products and initiatives.
- research results.
- unannounced financial results or projections.
To learn more about confidential information, contact your business area's privacy and security manager or your compliance officer.

Member Information
To keep member information safe, you must:

· Not access, use, view or send member information within Aetna unless you are authorized and there is a valid and approved business reason.
· Not make member information known to anyone outside Aetna unless it is approved by your manager in consultation with internal legal

counsel or your compliance officer. Approval cannot be given unless there is a real business need for the disclosure and it is allowed under
Aetna policy and the law.

· Encrypt any member information that you send through e-mail that may go outside Aetna. You must comply with all Aetna information
security safeguards.

Q: I am approved to use Aetna's claim systems. Can I use my system access to update or view information for my family or friends?
A: No. In your Aetna role, you should not handle or be involved in any matters related to information about you or anyone you know. You should
make sure there is not even the appearance of anything improper. If you are assigned to a claim or other matter about a family member or friend,
you should ask that the matter be assigned to another worker. You should report the relationship to your manager and compliance officer.
Other confidential information
Among Aetna's most important assets is our proprietary and other confidential information. This includes confidential information about Aetna, our
business interests, employees, customers, plan sponsors, providers or suppliers. If used for the benefit of an Aetna competitor, the information could
harm or limit our ability to meet our business goals.

To protect this information, you must:

· Not access, view, or use confidential information unless you are authorized and there is a valid business reason to do so.
· Not send confidential information inside Aetna unless there is a business need to do so.
· Not send confidential information to anyone outside Aetna without prior approval from your manager. Your manager must consult with
internal legal counsel or your compliance officer before giving approval.

· Encrypt any confidential information that you send through e-mail that may go outside Aetna. You must comply with all Aetna information
security measures.

Information security and records retention
You must protect and keep private any document under your control that includes member information or any other confidential information. This
means using encryption when you send or store documents electronically, and locking up paper documents when they are not in use. You must follow
all security procedures that are listed in our Information Security Policy and Standards. When we no longer need to keep this information, you must
dispose of it in a way that makes certain it is kept safe and private until properly destroyed. For more information, see Aetna's Records Retention and
Management Policy.

When your Aetna job or affiliation ends

You must not take or keep member information or other confidential information once your Aetna job or affiliation ends. You must return any such
information that you have, and you must not use or disclose this information for any reason anywhere else, such as at a different employer or
company. Aetna can inspect any materials you have when you leave Aetna to prevent unauthorized removal of information. If you have signed an
agreement with Aetna requiring continued cooperation, confidentiality, or non-solicitation of employees, you must honor those obligations after
leaving Aetna.

Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: your manager, internal legal counsel, compliance officer or privacy and security manager. For directors: the Corporate
Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 5: Business and trade practices

You are expected to obey all laws and regulations that apply to Aetna's business and to follow all company policies. You must be honest
and act with integrity in all of your Aetna business dealings.
Our businesses must comply with many federal, state and local laws, regulations and rules. How well we comply is often tested through state market
conduct exams and other regulatory requests for information.

Also, our products and services are primarily contractual promises. As we strive to outperform our competition, we will do so honestly, fairly and
with integrity. We will deal fairly with our customers, providers, suppliers and others with whom we do business.
Here are some key guidelines that you must follow in conducting Aetna business:

· You must not break any law or regulation, including unfair trade or insurance practices laws.
· You should consult with internal legal counsel on any matter relating to actual or potential noncompliance with any law or regulation or any of
Aetna's contractual commitments.

· You must not be part of any conduct or sales practice that is intended to mislead, manipulate, or take unfair advantage of anyone, or
misrepresent Aetna products, services, contract terms or policies to a customer, member, provider, supplier or regulator. If you do so by
mistake, talk to your manager, internal legal counsel or compliance officer. Then, correct it as soon as you can.

· You must neither make, approve nor accept bribes, kickbacks or illegal payments.
· Do not agree with representatives of a competing company, or with others, to be part of these or any other practices that may illegally restrain
competition:

- fixing prices.
- allocating or dividing markets or customers.
- boycotting or refusing to deal with competitors, customers or suppliers.

· You must know and follow our Records Retention and Management Policy. Never destroy, change or falsify a document that could be
relevant to an anticipated or pending lawsuit or investigation. Meet with and follow the direction of internal legal counsel on these issues.

· Do not get confidential information from others in a way that is not proper.
· You must not accept, keep or use trade secret information that was improperly obtained by another person.
· Do not ask or permit a past or present employee of another company to improperly disclose confidential information about that company.
· Do not discuss or share sensitive competitive information (for example, relating to pricing or market share) with representatives of other
companies or industry and trade associations. You may do so only if your manager, in consultation with internal legal counsel or your
compliance officer, has given you approval to do so.

· Do not take part in industry or trade associations unless your manager, after talking with internal legal counsel or your compliance officer,
approves it.

Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers:your compliance officer or internal legal counsel. For directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 6: Government contracts

You must help Aetna be a responsible and reputable government contractor.
Aetna takes seriously winning and keeping government contracts. We work hard to properly administer the contracts we earn. We must conduct these
activities in a way that fully complies with all the laws, regulations and ethics rules that apply. Our work must meet our own high standards of
business conduct and integrity. The same holds true for any of our subcontractors involved in supporting a government contract.

All government contracts
You must follow all federal, state and local laws that apply to government contracting and procurement.

· You must not offer, promise or give a gift of any value to a federal, state or local government employee or elected or appointed official that
might influence or reward them for their official acts or decisions. Do not pay for their travel or lodging costs. Do not pay for their meals,
refreshments, entertainment or give them gifts unless you know that it is not against any laws or ethics rules. If you are not sure, ask the
public official if accepting your offer is allowed under the laws, regulations or ethics rules that apply to them. Or, if there is time, talk to
internal legal counsel or Government Relations before you make the offer.

· You must not use any Aetna funds from any source to lobby for or influence the awarding of any government business to Aetna without

specific approval to do so from Government Relations. See Statement 9 for additional rules on contacts with government representatives.

· Some government contracts ask you to certify that when you pursued the contract you did nothing that is prohibited by procurement laws or

regulations. Do not sign certificates or disclosures from a government body that are related to lobbying, lobbying costs, political
contributions or election matters. These requests must go to the Federal Government Relations team for review and signoff. If you are
requested to sign a certificate or disclosure related to conflicts of interest, you must contact internal legal counsel or your compliance officer.

You must also follow all employment laws that apply to federal, state and local contractors.

These include:

· The Equal Employment Opportunity law.
· State or local human rights laws.
· Laws that say you may not discriminate against protected classes of people.
See Statement 7 for additional information on these laws.

Federal government contracts

Aetna must follow special rules when we contract with the U.S. federal government, including:

· Employees and officers, and our subcontractors and providers as appropriate, must follow the laws, rules, regulations and requirements of

contractor conduct in the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHBP), Medicaid and Medicare and other government programs.
This includes our Medicare Advantage and Medicare Part D programs. If you are an employee or officer and you do not follow these rules,
you may be disciplined, including possible loss of your Aetna job. If you are a subcontractor or a provider and you do not follow these rules,
you may lose your contract with Aetna.

· You must follow the rules on recruiting and hiring current or former federal workers. Your internal legal counsel must give approval before
you talk to such individuals about working at Aetna.

· You must let internal legal counsel or a compliance officer know right away if you have been debarred, excluded or suspended from

working with any government sponsored program. This includes Medicare and Medicaid. If you are a director, you must let the Corporate
Secretary or General Counsel know. You must also tell them if you know of any other reason why you might not be permitted to perform
work related directly or indirectly to a government sponsored program, or if you know of anyone who works or is affiliated with us who is
in this situation.

· You must not give or accept “kickbacks” or “rebates” (that is, anything of value) in connection with a government contract.
· You must not use money paid to Aetna from a federal government contract (referred to as “appropriated funds”) for lobbying activity that is

focused on influencing federal officials and personnel in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, loan or other business. This
same ban on appropriated funds is often adopted by state and local governments with respect to state or local government business.

· You must follow all laws and regulations that apply in the countries where Aetna does business. Do not make any payment that is in violation
of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Statement 2 has more information on our duties under this Act.
· If your job includes working with federal contracts, you must follow the federal privacy laws and regulations that apply to the federal agency
that maintains the contract.

· Be accurate and complete when you represent, certify, negotiate or work with a federal government contract. You must give the federal

government cost, pricing and other required data that is current, complete and accurate. You and Aetna may be liable for false, incomplete or
misleading:
- proposals, quotes and rates,

- reconciliations,
- certifications, or
- other documents and statements.
State and local government contracts
State and local laws and ethics rules on contractor conduct for Medicaid, children's health programs, and state or local health plans are often like the
federal rules above; however, they vary by locality. See your internal legal counsel with questions on how state or local rules may apply.

Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: your internal legal counsel, compliance officer or Federal Government Relations. For directors: the Corporate Secretary
or General Counsel.

Statement 7: Employment practices and work environment
We strive for a workplace that is inclusive and safe for our employees and business partners. Our policies and programs are designed to
promote fairness and respect for all individuals, and to foster a workplace where diversity and inclusion are valued. We do not tolerate
discrimination, harassment or retaliation. Behaviors that put our employees or business partners at risk are not allowed.

Equal employment opportunity
We are proud to be an Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action employer. It is our goal to have a work force that reasonably reflects the diversity of
qualified talent that is available in relevant labor markets.

We base employment decisions, including selection, development and compensation decisions, on an individual's qualifications, skills and
performance. We do not base these decisions on personal characteristics or status, such as race, color, sex, pregnancy, national origin, citizenship,
religion, age, disability, veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, and/or genetic information.

Harassment-free workplace
We strive to have a workplace that is free from harassment. We do not tolerate inappropriate behavior or harassment by, or of, our employees or
business partners, including when it is based on the characteristics or statuses described above. Under our anti-harassment policy, harassment is any
behavior that:

· Unreasonably interferes with a person's job performance, or
· Creates a workplace that is intimidating, hostile or offensive.
Employees, officers and directors must:

· Treat everyone with respect, and
· Refrain from unwelcome or potentially offensive verbal or physical behavior, including slurs, name calling, jokes, touching and other
potentially harassing or intimidating actions.

Managers must:

· Administer Aetna policies and programs in a way that is appropriate, consistent and does not discriminate,
· Monitor the workplace and take steps to prevent and address inappropriate behavior,
· Support our equal opportunity and affirmative action policies and programs, and
· Make reasonable accommodations for workers with disabilities in keeping with the laws that apply.
Aetna will decide what behavior is not acceptable in our workplace. We will discipline those who act in an unacceptable way.

Personal relationships
We want to avoid even the appearance of favoritism in the workplace. People with close personal relationships must not be in supervisory/subordinate
reporting relationships or other positions of authority that can influence employment decisions about one another. For example, you must not be in the
reporting line of, or have in your reporting line, an employee who is a relative or with whom you have a close personal relationship (e.g., someone you
are dating or with whom you have a close friendship).

If you find yourself in this situation, you must disclose it by calling the HR Contact Center or your compliance officer. HR or Compliance will work
with your management to see if a change in reporting relationships is needed.
Violent behavior, alcohol and drugs
We want a workplace that protects the health and safety of our employees and business partners. That is why Aetna prohibits intimidating behavior,
threats and acts of violence in our workplace. It is also why we require a workplace that is free from drugs and alcohol. You must come to work free
from the negative effects of drugs or alcohol, and able to perform all your job duties.

Our Alcohol and Drug policy does not allow you to abuse or to unlawfully make, distribute, dispense, possess, use, transfer, solicit, purchase or sell:
· Alcoholic beverages.

· Controlled substances.
· Illegal or prescription drugs.
This Alcohol and Drug policy applies while you are on company property and while you are doing company business anywhere.
To help you comply with our Alcohol and Drug policy, we have an Employee Work/Life Assistance (EWLA) program. It offers assessment,
counseling and referrals for alcohol and drug-related problems.

Raising concerns and Aetna's non-retaliation policy
If you believe that you have experienced or witnessed inappropriate behavior, you must report it to:

· Your manager,
· A senior manager,
· The HR Contact Center, or
· Anonymously through the AlertLine®.
Aetna prohibits retaliating against anyone because he or she in good faith:

· Makes a complaint about or reports a violation of any of these policies, or
· Cooperates in the investigation of such a complaint.
Anyone who violates any of Aetna's employment or other policies may be disciplined, up to and including termination of employment.
For more information on our employment policies, practices and expected behaviors, see the Workplace Policies section in AccessHR.

Your Aetna Contacts
For employees and officers: your manager, compliance officer , internal legal counsel , or, from the U.S., the HR Contact Center (1-800-AETNAHR).
For directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 8: Securities transactions

You must not trade securities if you have material nonpublic information about those securities.

You must follow all insider trading and securities laws and all Aetna policies on securities transactions and handling confidential information. Insider
trading is unethical and illegal. It will be dealt with firmly by Aetna. You and Aetna could face civil and criminal penalties for insider trading.
Follow the rules below when you enter into any transaction regarding Aetna securities including:
· Common stock.

· Stock options.
· Preferred stock.
· Debt instruments.
· Transfers, that you control, of accumulated values to and from any Aetna common stock account in any Aetna benefit plan, including the
401(k).

In some cases, insider trading rules apply to the purchase or sale of securities of other companies, including those securities that trade in foreign
markets.

The rules apply to members of your family and any person living in your home. You must use discretion when you talk about work with friends,
family and other employees.

What is “material nonpublic” information?
“Material” information is information that a reasonable investor would think is important when making a decision about buying, holding or selling a
company's securities. Information that affects the price of our stock is typically “material.” Here are some examples:

· Financial results or expected results for the quarter or the year.
· Possible mergers or acquisitions.
· Major changes in customer relationships.
· Getting or losing an important contract.
· New product news.
· Changes in senior management.
· Major lawsuit developments.
Whether or not information is “material” may depend on the circumstances. Contact internal legal counsel for guidance.

Information is considered “nonpublic” until:
· It is made publicly available by Aetna.

· The public and the financial markets have had time to read and understand it.
Examples of public information include press releases and public filings with the Securities Exchange Commission.

Protect yourself and Aetna. Follow these rules.

· Do not trade Aetna securities if you have material nonpublic information that relates to Aetna's:
- operations,
- activities,
- plans, or
- financial results.
In some cases, some employees or directors can trade Aetna securities based on a pre-arranged contract, instruction or plan that complies
with the law. Entering into such a pre-arranged contract, instruction or plan, or any changes to it, must be approved by the Chairman or
someone appointed by the Chairman, in consultation with internal legal counsel.

· You should limit your transactions to times when it is reasonable to think that all material information is made public. Let two business days
pass between the time the information is made public through news services and the time you place your order to buy or sell. This gives the
market time to absorb the information.

· Do not trade securities of another company if you have material nonpublic information about that company, and the trade would violate

Securities and Exchange Commission rules. Do not trade securities of another company if the trade for other reasons is not legal or creates a
conflict of interest.

· Do not share material nonpublic information that you have about Aetna or any other company with anyone who is:
- inside Aetna, unless they need the information to do their job.
- outside Aetna, unless your manager has worked with internal legal counsel to approve sharing it.
Information you have because of your position at Aetna belongs to Aetna, and you must not take or share it for anyone's benefit. Giving a tip
based on this information is unethical and illegal, even if you do not profit from it.

· You may not buy or sell “put” or “call” options or other derivatives on Aetna stock. You may not sell Aetna stock short.
· When you buy or sell Aetna securities, you must tell the broker about your relationship with Aetna.
Your Aetna Contacts
For employees and officers: your internal legal counsel or compliance officer. For directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 9: Interacting with the media, the government or an outside party or organization

You may not speak for Aetna unless you have received approval from senior management or the Board of Directors to do so. Your own
views must be kept separate from Aetna views. Aetna funds may not be used to hire a lobbyist or to make a political donation unless you
have received prior approval from Government Relations.
Because companies are watched closely by the public, any public statement that may be linked to Aetna must be given with care. When
communicating publicly, if your Aetna affiliation is known, you must take care to keep your own views separate from Aetna views. To protect you
and Aetna, contacts with outside parties (including the media and government) must be in keeping with the laws that apply and these rules.

Company communications

· You must not speak publicly for Aetna unless you have received approval from senior management or the Board of Directors to do so. If you

send or make communications (like e-mails, mailings, speeches or presentations) that go outside of Aetna and are addressed to more than one
person, they must be reviewed by the Quality Communications Center (QCC) in consultation with internal legal counsel, if needed. This
includes anything you might send to:
- members,

- those thinking about joining an Aetna plan,
- plan sponsors, or
- doctors and other providers.

· To make sure that we set the right tone and message, media requests must go to the Communications department. They will review the request
and answer for Aetna. Contact the head of:
- Communications,

- Corporate Communications, or
- Business Communications.

· Requests from financial analysts or shareholders must go to the:
- Chief Financial Officer, or
- Head of Investor Relations.

· If a supplier asks you for a quote for a press release, or asks you for Aetna's approval or support of a product or service, send the request to
the Communications department. They will review the request with the right business lead and compliance officer.

Personal communications

· Do not use Aetna letterhead or titles when you write about issues that are not related to Aetna. An example is a letter to the editor. There are
times when you can use letterhead for civic, public service or charity events, but only if you get approval from your manager and
compliance officer.

· You must take care not to lead others to believe that Aetna supports your opinions. Do not link Aetna to your own opinions when you speak,
write or take part in personal activities, unless you have received approval from your manager to do so. This includes using the Internet.

· Our key managers, and employees who regularly interact with the media on Aetna's behalf, must not disagree in public with Aetna's official
positions. This is because it may be hard for the media to separate the personal views of these employees from our official company
positions.

Political activity and contributions

· You must not use Aetna funds to support any state or local candidate, ballot initiative, referendum or other question, or political activity,

unless you get prior written approval from Government Relations. This is true no matter where the Aetna funds come from (for example,
core, segment or region funds, or reimbursement of personal contributions such as money spent going to a political event).

· You must not use Aetna funds to make any political contribution related to a federal election (whether to a candidate, political party or

political action committee) since it is against the law. In some cases, Aetna funds may be used to support some federal political activity. You
must contact Government Relations to obtain written approval and if you have questions.

· Aetna is permitted by law to use its funds to support the administration of the Aetna political action committee (Aetna PAC). But, we are not
permitted to contribute Aetna funds to the Aetna PAC for election contribution purposes.

· Any use of Aetna funds for any political activity must be processed through Government Relations, no matter what the source of the funds
(core, segment or region funds).
Contacts with government representatives

· You must work with your internal legal counsel or with Government Relations on issues that involve federal, state and local government.

Promptly contact internal legal counsel, Regional Compliance or Government Relations if any part of the government, including a state
insurance department, reaches out to you on an unexpected situation or matter. See Statement 6 for additional guidance related to government
contracts.

· Only senior managers and those chosen by Aetna for government relations or legal work can formulate and express Aetna's views on
legislation, regulations or government action. Other employees may communicate Aetna's views only with specific guidance from
Government Relations.

· Only people from Government Relations or the Law Department may hire lobbyists to help Aetna.
Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: your manager, the Communications team, your compliance officer, internal legal counsel or Government Relations. For
directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Statement 10: Intellectual property
Intellectual property is valuable to Aetna. You must protect it from improper use or disclosure. This is true whether it is owned by Aetna or
licensed from others.

You must handle all intellectual property that is under your control at Aetna in the right way. This includes all names, patents, logos, trademarks,
service marks, registered marks and copyrights. See the Aetna Intellectual Property Guide for more information, and follow these rules to help you
protect intellectual property.

Aetna's intellectual property

· Before you use a new service mark or trademark, be sure internal legal counsel approves it. If the mark is approved, follow the guidelines for
use in the Aetna Intellectual Property Guide.

· When created by Aetna, put copyright notices on all audiovisuals, Internet materials, computer programs, screen displays and other items
meant for outside use or for broad internal use. Internal legal counsel will give you the right form of copyright notice.

· Do not share Aetna's trade secrets. Do not let anyone outside of Aetna use our marks or copyrighted works without getting approval from
senior management, and getting a signed confidentiality or license agreement that is approved by internal legal counsel.

· Tell internal legal counsel right away if you know of any unauthorized or improper use or disclosure of an Aetna name, logo, service mark,
trademark, trade secret, confidential document, patent or copyright.

Intellectual property of others

· Unless you have written approval from the owner, do not use another party's name, logo, trademark, service mark or copyrighted material.
· Treat all computer programs, documents and materials the same way you would treat Aetna trade secrets or confidential material. Do not
remove copyright notices from software or its documentation.

· Aetna has a photocopy agreement with the Copyright Clearance Center. This allows us to make copies of many hard copy publications, but
only when you use the copies inside Aetna and follow certain conditions. Contact internal legal counsel for approval of photocopying.

· Do not copy full-length or edited videos. You must get any required written approvals before you put all or part of a movie, newscast or TV
show in an Aetna production. Contact internal legal counsel for assistance.

· You must get approval from the person who owns any Internet material before you can use it in any Aetna material or presentation. This

includes music, clip art, text, graphics, logos and other website elements. You must assume that all material on Internet websites is copyright
protected even if no copyright symbol (designated by ©) is shown.

· Aetna has a contracted right to play certain music at company events. See internal legal counsel to see if your use is allowed. Do not combine
music with video or computer presentations without getting the written approval that internal legal counsel thinks is needed.

Q: I found an article on the Internet that I want to share with my coworkers. Can I copy and paste it to a document? Can I e-mail it?
A: No. You cannot copy and send the article unless you have written permission from the owner. As an alternative, you can send an e-mail with a
link to the page where the article appears.

Your Aetna contacts
For employees and officers: your compliance officer or internal legal counsel. For directors: the Corporate Secretary or General Counsel.

Our Ethical Decision-Making Framework
Our working definition of ethics
At times there may be competing interests and tensions among our various constituencies (members, providers, customers, business partners and
employees). Yet, common to all is the desire to build trusting, value-added relationships. Therefore, we must be guided by The Aetna Way in
conducting Aetna's business. This means that we:

· Are clear, open, and honest:
- Make what you know accessible to others.
- Deliver bad news early and personally.
- Raise concerns and problems.
· Keep our promises:
- Hold yourself and others accountable for targets and deadlines.
- Do what you say you will do.
- Take responsibility for correcting your mistakes and do all you can to correct them.
· Are fair in our dealings with others:
- Express differences of opinion with respect for others.
- Assume positive intent.
- Strive for a win-win outcome with customers, clients, employees, colleagues, providers, suppliers.
· Uphold our legal obligations:
- Federal, state and local laws and regulations (for example, market conduct, HIPAA privacy and security).
- Contractual obligations.
When the right course of action is not clear, we use a six-question framework to help guide us to an ethical decision that is in keeping with Aetna's
commitment to the highest standards of business conduct and integrity.

Our ethical decision-making framework
We recognize the complexity and breadth of our business and the importance of protecting Aetna's reputation. When faced with business decisions
that have ethical implications, we involve the right people in considering the following questions: 1

1. Should I be troubled by this? Is this consistent with Aetna's commitment to integrity?
- Is it really an issue? Am I genuinely perplexed, or am I afraid to do what is right?
2. Who will be affected by my decisions? How will they be affected?
- What other parties may be affected by my decisions? Another department, members, customers, providers? What will be the impact if I act, or
decide not to act? Consider the Golden Rule (Treat others as you would like to be treated).

3. What is my responsibility to act? What will happen if I don't act?
- Have I caused the problem, or has someone else? How far should I go in resolving the issue? How serious a problem is it? If it is not my
problem, will someone else take action if I don't?

4. What are the ethical considerations?
- Is it a question of legal obligations, fairness, promise keeping, honesty, doing good, or avoiding harm?
5. Who needs to be involved in making this decision?
- Should I consult with my manager, Compliance Officer, internal legal counsel, the HR Contact Center? If I am afraid to raise this issue, should I
anonymously call AlertLine®?

6. Am I being true to myself and The Aetna Way?
How would my actions appear to customers or the public?
- What kind of person or company would do what I am contemplating? Have I made the right decision for the right reason? Would I be proud to
share my decision with my family? With coworkers? With regulators or public officials? How would I feel if it were reported on the front page
of the newspaper?
1

Copyright 1990. Michael Rion, all rights reserved. Adapted with permission.

Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Aetna Inc.
Listed below are subsidiaries of Aetna Inc. at December 31, 2008 with their jurisdictions of organization shown in parentheses. Subsidiaries
excluded from the list below would not, in the aggregate, constitute a “significant subsidiary” of Aetna Inc., as that term is defined in Rule 1-02(w)
of Regulation S-X.

· Aetna Health Holdings, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Arizona)
o Aetna Health of California Inc. (California)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Colorado)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Connecticut)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Delaware)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Florida)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Georgia)
o Aetna Health of Illinois Inc. (Illinois)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Maryland)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Michigan)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Missouri)
o Aetna Health Inc. (New Jersey)
o Aetna Health Inc. (New York)
o Aetna Health of the Carolinas Inc. (North Carolina)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Oklahoma)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Pennsylvania)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Tennessee)
o Aetna Health Inc. (Texas)
o AET Health Care Plan, Inc. (Texas)
o Aetna Family Plans of Georgia Inc. (Georgia)
o Aetna Dental of California Inc. (California)
o Aetna Dental Inc. (New Jersey)
o Aetna Dental Inc. (Texas)
o Aetna RX Home Delivery, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Health Management, LLC (Delaware)
o NYLCare Health Plans, Inc. (Delaware)
- Aetna Health Inc. (Washington)
- Aetna Health Inc. (Maine)

o Chickering Claims Administrators, Inc. (Massachusetts)
o Aetna Specialty Pharmacy, LLC (Delaware)
o AET Health Care Plan of California, Inc. (California)
oCofinity, Inc.

(Delaware)

o@ Credentials Inc. (Delaware)

Resource Company (South Carolina)
Benefit Planning Insurance Agency, Inc. (Massachusetts)
oAetna Better Health Inc. (Pennsylvania)
oAetna Better Health Inc. (Connecticut)
oSchaller Anderson, Incorporated (Arizona)
- Schaller Anderson of Arizona, L.L.C. (Arizona)
- Schaller Anderson Healthcare, L.L.C. (Arizona)
- Schaller Anderson Medical Administrators, Incorporated (Delaware)
- Schaller Anderson of Missouri, L.L.C. (Missouri)
- Missouri Care, Incorporated (Missouri)
- Schaller Anderson of Maryland, L.L.C. (Maryland)
- Schaller Anderson of California, L.L.C. (California)
- Schaller Anderson of Tennessee, L.L.C. (Tennessee)
- Schaller Anderson of Texas Management, L.L.C. (Texas)
oStrategic

oChickering
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- Schaller Anderson Behavioral Health, Incorporated (Arizona)

¨SABH of Arizona, Incorporated (Arizona)
- Delaware Physicians Care, Incorporated (Delaware)
- Delaware Physicians Care-Medicare, Incorporated (Delaware)
- Schaller Anderson of Delaware, Incorporated (Delaware)
- Schaller Anderson of Texas, L.P. (Texas)
· Aetna Life Insurance Company (Connecticut)

o AHP Holdings, Inc. (Connecticut)
- Aetna Insurance Company of Connecticut (Connecticut)
- AE Fourteen, Incorporated (Connecticut)
- Aetna Life Assignment Company (Connecticut)
- Aetna/Area Corporation (Connecticut)

o PE Holdings, LLC (Connecticut)
o Tanker Six, LLC (Delaware)
o Azalea Mall, L.L.C. (Delaware)
o BPC Equity, Inc. (Delaware)
o Canal Place, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Ventures, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Government Health Plans, LLC (Delaware)
o Broadspire National Services, Inc. (Florida)

· Aetna Financial Holdings, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Behavioral Health of Delaware, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Health Information Solutions, Inc. (Delaware)
o Aetna Asset Advisors, LLC (Delaware)
o U.S. Healthcare Properties, Inc. (Pennsylvania)
o Integrated Pharmacy Solutions, Inc. (Florida)
o Aetna Capital Management, LLC (Delaware)
- Aetna Partners Diversified Fund, LLC (Delaware)
- Aetna Partners Diversified Fund (Cayman), Limited (Cayman)

o Aetna Workers’ Comp Access, LLC (Delaware)
o Aetna Behavioral Health, LLC (Delaware)
o Managed Care Coordinators, Inc. (Delaware)
o Aetna Integrated Informatics, Inc. (Pennsylvania)
o Aetna Provider Solutions, LLC (Delaware)

·
·
·
·
·

Aetna Health and Life Insurance Company (Connecticut)
Aetna Health Insurance Company (Pennsylvania)
Aetna Health Insurance Company of New York (New York)
Aetna Risk Indemnity Company Limited (Bermuda)
Aelan Inc. (Connecticut)
o Aetna Life & Casualty (Bermuda) Limited (Bermuda)
o Aetna Global Benefits (UK) Limited (England and Wales)
o Aetna Health Services (UK) Limited (England and Wales)
o Goodhealth Worldwide (Bermuda) Limited (Bermuda)
- Goodhealth Worldwide (Global) Limited (Bermuda)
- Goodhealth Worldwide (Europe) Limited (England and Wales)
- Goodhealth Worldwide (Asia Pacific) Limited (Hong Kong)
- Goodhealth Worldwide (Asia) Limited (Hong Kong)
- GWL (UK) Limited (England and Wales)
- Goodhealth Worldwide Limited (DIFC) (DIFC-UAE)
- Goodhealth Worldwide Management FZ-LLC (DOZ-UAE)
o Aetna Health Insurance Company of Europe Limited (Ireland)
o Goodhealth Worldwide Administrators Inc. (Florida)

· AUSHC Holdings, Inc. (Connecticut)
o PHPSNE Parent Corporation (Delaware)

· Active Health Management, Inc. (Delaware)
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o Health Cost Consultants, Inc. (Delaware)
o Health Data & Management Solutions, Inc. (Delaware)

· Aetna Criterion Communications, Inc. (Delaware)
· ASI Wings, L.L.C. (Delaware)
· Luettgens Limited (Connecticut)
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Aetna Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement (No. 333-155961) on Form S-3 and the registration statements (No. 33352124, 52122, 521120, 73052, 87722, 87726, 124619, 124620, 136176, 136177) on Form S-8 of Aetna Inc. of our reports dated February
27, 2009 with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Aetna Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the
related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2008 and the related financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, which
reports appear in the December 31, 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aetna Inc.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Hartford, Connecticut
February 27, 2009

Exhibit 24.1
Power of Attorney

We, the undersigned Directors of Aetna Inc. (the "Company"), hereby severally constitute and appoint Joseph M. Zubretsky, Rajan Parmeswar and
William C. Baskin III and each of them individually, our true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, with full power to them and each of them to sign for us,
and in our names and in the capacities indicated below, the Company’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K and any and all amendments thereto to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as
they may be signed by any of our said attorneys to such Form 10-K and to any and all amendments thereto.
Dated February 27, 2009

/s/ Frank M. Clark
Frank M. Clark, Director

/ s/ Ellen M. Hancock

/s/ Betsy Z. Cohen
Betsy Z. Cohen, Director

/ s/ Richard J. Harrington

/s/ Molly J. Coye, M.D.
Molly J. Coye, M.D., Director

/s/ Edward J. Ludwig
Edward J. Ludwig, Director

/s/ Roger N. Farah
Roger N. Farah, Director

/s/ Joseph P. Newhouse
Joseph P. Newhouse, Director

/s/ Barbara H. Franklin
Barbara Hackman Franklin, Director

/s/ Jeffrey E. Garten
Jeffrey E. Garten, Director

/s/ Earl G. Graves
Earl G. Graves, Director

/s/ Gerald Greenwald
Gerald Greenwald, Director

Ellen M. Hancock, Director

Richard J. Harrington, Director

Exhibit 31.1
Certification

I, Ronald A. Williams, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Aetna Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: February 27, 2009

/s/ Ronald A. Williams
Ronald A. Williams
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
Certification

I, Joseph M. Zubretsky, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Aetna Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: February 27, 2009

/s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky
Joseph M. Zubretsky
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
Certification

The certification set forth below is being submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K
of Aetna Inc. for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) solely for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.
Ronald A. Williams, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Aetna Inc., certifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act; and
2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Aetna Inc.

Date: February 27, 2009

/s/ Ronald A. Williams
Ronald A. Williams
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
Certification

The certification set forth below is being submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K
of Aetna Inc. for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) solely for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.
Joseph M. Zubretsky, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Aetna Inc., certifies that, to the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act; and
2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Aetna Inc.

Date: February 27, 2009

/s/ Joseph M. Zubretsky
Joseph M. Zubretsky
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

